AGENDA
Regular Meeting of the Board of Education
La Harpe Community School District #347
6 pm- 25 June 2024
School Library
La Harpe, lllinois

Regular Meeting
I.  Callto Order Information
Il. RollCall Information
lil.  Moment of Silence Information
IV.  Public Comment Information
V.  Consent Agenda Action
a. Approval of Agenda
b. Approval of Minutes of the May 21, 2024 regular meeting
¢. Review & Approval of Financial Reports
d. Review & Approval of Fund Balance Reports
e. Review & Approval of Payment of Bills
f.  Verbatim Closed Meeting Recordings - action to delete 18 months and older
g. Approve Jadrien VanFleet's Maternity Leave through 26 August 2024

VI.  1tReading Policy Updates: Information

2:70- Bd vacancies; 2:70-E — Bd vacancies, 2:125 — board compensation/expenses; 2:1225-E1 - bd
member expense; 2:125 E2 — expense approval; 2:160 Bd atty; 2:160-E selecting bd atty; 2:250 AP2 -
record preservation; 4:15 — Identity protection; 4:15 AP1 protecting privacy; 4:15 AP2 - protecting
information on grants; 4:40 incurring debt; 4:40 AP updating disclosures; 4:70 — Resource Conservation;
4:70AP - Resource Conservation; 4:80 Actg & Audits; 4:80 AP3 Inventory; 4:140 Waiver of Fees; 4:140
AP waiver of fees; 5:20 — E Prohibit Sexual Harassment; 5:30 AP4 Criminal History; 5:35 AP2 — Employee
Records; 5:35 AP3 Compensation Non-exempt employees; 5:35 AP4 FSLA compliance; 5:35 E — Volunteer
agreement; 5:120-E Employee Ethics; 5:130 - Internal Information; 5:180 ~ Temporary lliness; 5:200
Employment & Dismissal; 5:25- AP School Visitation Leave; 5:285 — Drug & Alcohol Testing Bus Drivers;

5:310 — Compensatory Time-Off; 5:310 ~ E — Compensatory Time Off; 6:110 - Programs for Students at risk;
6:120 — AP1, E2 Spec. ed. Notices; 6:120- AP2 Access to Classrooms; 6:120- AP2, E1 — Request to access
Classrooms; 6:140 — Education of Homeless Children; 6:140 AP — Education of Homeless Students; 6:150
Home & Hospital Instruction; 6:170 — AP2, E1 District Report Card; 6:230 ~ Library Media Program; 6:230- AP —
Complaints about Library Resources; 6:280 AP Evaluating Student Achievement; 6:300 E1 — Diploma for Service
Members; 7:40 AP — Placement of Students; 7;170 Vandalism; 7:240 AP2 — Drug/Alcohol Testing Program;
7:250 AP1 ~ Head Lice; 7:270 - E2 — School Medication — Medical Cannabis; 7:280 AP -
Communicable/infectious Diseases; 7:280 E2 — Reporting & Excluding Communicable/Infectious Diseases;

8:25 AP Distributing Materials; & 8:95- E1School Visitation Rights.

VIl 2023-2024 Fuel Bids Action
Vill.  2023-2024 Amended Budget Presentation Information
IX.  2023-2024 Administrative Costs Information
X.  2023-2024 Amended Budget Action
Xi.  2024-2025 Student Handbook Update ; Action
Xll.  Asbestos Abatement Action
Xill.  Composite Pictures to LaHarpe Museum Action
XIV.  Old Central Office Demolition Action
XV.  Grain Bin FFA Plot Bid (to sell) Action
XVI.  Bus Bam (adding lean-to on Maintenance Bldg.) Action
XVIl.  Cafeteria Addition Discussion Information
XVIIl.  Lobby Bathroom Remodel Discussion Information
XIX.  Reports:

a. Board Committees
b. Board Members

¢. Principal \ . %h"‘%‘ DO N
d. Superintendent ¢ pedaun\e -
XX.  Closed Session to Discuss Items included in 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) Exceptions — (1) Appointment, Employment, Compensation or
dismissal of specific employees and (14) Closed Session Minutes ' Action to Enter



a. Al non-certified staff members not covered under the LEA agreement for purposes of 2024-2025 salaries

b. Bi-Annual Approval of Closed Session Minutes
¢. Closed Session Minutes from 21 May 2024
XXI.  Closed Session ltems:

a. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 21 May 2024
b. Al non-certified staff members not covered under the LEA agreement for purposes of 2024-2025 salaries

XXIIl.  Adjournment Action

Action



OPEN MINUTES
La Harpe Community School District #347
Special Board Meeting-Facility Committee
May 21th — 5:00 PM
District Office

The Board of Education of La Harpe Community School District #347 Facility Committee held a
Special Meeting on May 21, 2024 in the School Library.

President Dustin Detherage called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.

Roll Call was answered by Allen, Collins, Gebhardt, Walker, Detherage, also present was
Superintendent Janet Gladu, Board Secretary Shelly Rahn and Principal Ryan Hopper.

Approval of the Agenda: A motion was made by Collins and seconded by Detherage to approve
the agenda as presented/amended.

Roll Call: Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes.

The facility committee reviewed Architects. Firms that submitted proposals. The following firms
were short listed: Architechnics, Baysinger and Graham and Hyde.

Voice Vote: A motion by Allen and seconded by Walker to adjourn the 21 May, 2024
Meeting at 5:23pm.

Board President Board Secretary

Approved




BOARD OF EDUCATION LA HARPE CSD #347 May 21, 2024

The Board of Education of La Harpe Community School District #347 held a regular School
Board meeting May 21, 2024 in the school library. President Detherage called the meeting to
order at 6:00 PM. Roll Call was answered by Allen, Collins, Gebhardt, Walker, Detherage,
absent Blythe, absent Deitrich. Superintendent Janet Gladu and Board Secretary Shelly Rahn,
and Principal Ryan Hopper were also in attendance.

Visitors in attendance: Cathy Jones, Chad Burt

A Moment of Silence was observed.

Public Presentations: No public presentations.

Business ltems:
The Approval of the regular minutes of April 16,2024.

Financial Report:

Fund FY2024
Education $2,322,081.11
Building $539,459.19
Debt Service $104,744.32
Transportation $204,311.51
IMRF $70,659.49
Capital Projects $0.00
Working Cash $150,250.42
Tort $177,285.98
Fire Prevention & Safety $238,439.24
Total $3,807,231.26

FY 2023 $2,916,933.17
FY 2022 $2,637,407.38
FY 2021 $2,220,128.78
FY 2020 $1,484,070.86

Consent Agenda: The Consent Agenda included the Closed and Open Minutes of the April 16
2024 Regular Board Meeting and Financial Report, Individual fund balances, payment, and
Closed Session Records- deletion of items 18 months and older. Acceptance of Rebekah
Russell’s Resignation effective May 24™, 2024. A motion was made by Gebhardt and seconded
by Walker to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Roll Call: Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes;
Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of the Hazardous Route:

A motion was made by Allen and seconded by Detherage to approve the hazardous route. Roll
Call: Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, absent Deitrich, absent
Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Asbestos Abatement: Discussed the prices and tabled Asbestos abatement for old central office
and band room.

21 May 2024 Open Board Minutes



Board Action: None required.

Central Office Demolition: Discussed the quote for demolition of the Old Central Office. Due to
the presence of asbestos, the demolition needs to be postponed until asbestos abatement is
complete. ltem was tabled.

Board Action: None required.

Approval of the purchase for a 72 passenger bus for the 2025-2026 school year

A motion was made by Collins and seconded by Allen to authorize the superintendent to seek
bids on a new 72 passenger school bus. Roll Call: Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes;
Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Bus Barn: Discussed revisiting bus barn at a later date, due to completion of other projects.
Board Action: None needed.

Approval of Sale and Removal of Grain Bin on FFA plot

A motion was made by Gebhardt and seconded by Walker to authorize superintendent to seek
bids to sell and remove grain bin. Roll call: Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes;
Detherage, yes; absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of Architechnics for the Architect

A motion was made by Collins and seconded by Walker to select Architechnics as the new
architect. Roll Call: Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; absent
Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of Savvas enVision math for 5%-8" and iReady for K-4 adopted through 2029-2030
school year

A motion was made by Gebhardt and seconded by Detherage to approve enVision Math as the
5-th-8" grade adopted math curriculum and iReady math as the adopted K-4 math curriculum.
Roll Call: Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; absent Deitrich,
absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of Savvas myView K-5 ELA and myPerspectives 6-8" ELA adopted through 2029-
2030 school year

A motion was made by Allen and seconded by Gebhardt to approve Savvas myView as the K-5
adopted ELA curriculum and myPerspectives as the 6-8" adopted ELA curriculum. Roll Call:
Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; absent Deitrich, absent
Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of the CFST (1% sales tax) on the November 2024 Ballot

A motion was made by Collins and seconded by Detherage to direct the superintendent to draft
a resolution for board approval regarding placing the CFST on the November 2024 ballot. Roll

21 May, 2024 Open Board Minutes



Call: Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; absent Deitrich,
absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of June 2024 Board Meeting

A motion was made by Detherage and seconded by Allen to move the June Regular Board
Meeting to June 25,2024 to allow Laura and the superintendent more time to finalize the 2024-
2025 amended budget. Roll Call: Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes;
Detherage, yes:; absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of June Budget Hearing

A motion was made by Detherage and seconded by Collins to set the fiscal year 2024 amended
budget hearing for June 25,2024 at 6:00 pm. Roll Call: Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes;
Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of Audit Engagement Letter

A motion was made by Walker and seconded by Allen to approve the audit engagement letter
between the district and Dennis Koch for the amount not to exceed $ 14,570. Roll Call:
Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; absent Deitrich, absent
Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of Policy Updates

A motion was made by Gebhardt and seconded by Collins to approve the policy updates as
presented. Roll Call: Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes;
absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of Rotating Classrooms for Board Meetings

A motion was made by Collins and seconded by Walker to approve amended 2024-2025 Board
Meeting dates and locations. Roll Call: Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes;
Walker, yes; absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of HVAC Bid

A motion was made by Collins and seconded by Walker to approve the HVAC bids from
Arnold’s in the amount of $104,385.00. Roll Call: Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker,
yes:; Detherage, yes; absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of Roof Bid

A motion was made by Walker and seconded by Gebhardt to approve the roof bid from Kreiling
in the amount of $108,799. Roll Call: Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes;, Walker, yes; Detherage, yes;
Allen, yes; absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0.

Approval of Junior High Basketball Uniforms

21 May, 2024 Open Board Minutes



A motion was made by Allen and seconded by Collins to approve the 25 new Basketball
uniforms to meet IESA rules. Roll Call: Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes:
Collins, absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. Motion carried 5-0. '

Reports:

Principal / Athletic Director presented to the board doing another fund raiser to help with
the purchase of new boy’s basketball uniforms.

Principal Hopper also presented to the board Junior High helping the American legion
put up flags at the cemetery.

Superintendent Gladu presented to the board team member for the month of May is Amy
Simmons.

Superintendent Gladu presented to the board our team member of the year is Susan
Pratt.

Superintendent Gladu presented to the board to hire another Special ed
paraprofessional plus an additional paraprofessional for 2024-2025 School year.

Board Action: Motion to adjourn to closed session at 6:37pm to discuss items per
5 ILCS 120/2/(c)(1). The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline,
performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the District; and (14) closed
session minutes. Rahn excited at 6:38pm.

Motion by Allen and seconded by Walker to adjourn to closed session.

Roll Call: yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; Detherage. Yes; Allen, yes; Collins, absent
Deitrich, absent Blythe. 5-0.

Board Action: Detherage called the closed session to order at 6:39pm on 21 May
2024.

Roll Call: yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, absent
Deitrich, absent Blythe.

Board Action: Motion by Collins and seconded by Detherage to return to open
session at 6:49pm. (voice vote).

Action on Closed Session items:
Meeting called to order at 6:49pm.

Board Action: Moved by Gebhardt and seconded by Walker to approve the closed
session minutes from 21 May 2024.

Roll Call: yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, absent
Deitrich, absent Blythe. 5-0.

Board Action: Moved by Collins and seconded by Detherage to hire Aubrey Porter
as a non-tenured teacher beginning the 2024-2025 school year.

Roll Call: yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins. Yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, absent
Deitrich, absent Blythe. 5-0.

21 May, 2024 Open Board Minutes



Board Action: Moved by Detherage and seconded by Allen to hire Kayla Gebhardt
as a paraprofessional beginning the 2024-2025 school year.

Roll Call: yes; Allen, yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, abstain; Walker, absent Deitrich,
absent Blythe. 5-0.

Board Action: Moved by Gebhardt and seconded by Collins to hire Michelle
Detherage as a paraprofessional beginning the 2024-2025 school year.

Roll Call: yes; Collins, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, abstain; Allen,
absent Deitrich, absent Blythe. 4-0.

Board Action: Moved by Collins and seconded by Detherage to hire Aubrey Porter
as assistant volleyball coach beginning school year 2024-2025.

Roll Call: yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes; Detherage, yes; Allen, yes; Collins, absent
Deitrich, absent Blythe. 5-0.

Adjournment: Motion to adjourn. (voice vote).

Board Action: Moved by Detherage and seconded by Walker to adjourn the 21May 2024 board
meeting at 6:57 pm. (voice vote).

The next regularly stated meeting is scheduled for 25 June 2024 at 6:00 pm.

Board President Board Secretary

Approved

21 May, 2024 Open Board Minutes



sjed

) seuor eane

'91°0¥8'625'e$

[E301 pueID

AEED

P2 BEV'BETS

86'582'LL) | Z¥'0S2'05LS

00'0$

£9°216'€59

69'€51'L819

ZL'9zz'06$ | ¥2'985°208%

$2'086'921'2$

3ONV1ve aNNd

00°0$

00°0% 00°0%

00°0%

00°0%

00°0%

00°0$ 00°0$

00°0%

S3LLINIgvI V1oL

yseo "M 03 ajqefed ueo

dsueu] o} sjqefed ueo

‘Bpjg 03 ajqeded ueo"

*anp3 o0} ajqeded ueon

319VAVd ANNJYUILNI

d/v loahed

juswaley sleysea]

SuUj Baly UI9}SaM

3)ON uonedionpuy

s3alLniavii

Y2 6EY'8ECS

86'98Z'LL1$ | 2¥'052'051$

00'0%

£€9°216'€5$

69'€51'181$

T.L'922'06$ | ¥2'985'L05%

$2°086'921°29

S13SSV V101

1)4ely Asuo/ale)s ISl

18°98¢°¢LL$

SEELL'ES 00°282'v8%

91°62£°196°1L$

jood ‘seail |

pung-Asid @ alij 0) Ueo

pung JyN| 03 ueot

un4 uonexodsues] o} ueo

pung Guipjing o} ueo

pung uoneanp3 o} sueoT

fpadougd

00°000's$

pund jsaiduwj

00°0S€$

Hur-waj3/pung abueyy

00°05€$

yses Apad

vZ'6Er'8E2S

86'682'2L1% | ZP'0S20SLS

00°0%

€9°216'€5%

8899223

Ie'€LL'288 | ¥Z662'CTrS

8 y56°esLs

yueg uj yseo

ALTIVS B

ALINNINWI HSVD

S103rodd

B ErCERE]

LHOL| SNIMYOM

TVLidvO

YW

‘dSNVL

"AY3S 1930 ONIaTINg

NOILYONa3

S13SSV

vzoe ‘LS Aely

NOILISOd 40 LNJWILVLS

_ _

2¥S# 1O141S1d TOOHIS ALINNININOD Jd¥VH V1

_

_




1d¥"20dY ms\eoueul\gAsps\odieHe\S\:Q
'ou| ‘swalsAg eleq pazijeoads

Frreovs  IeoLyoday
¥ ¥99'y |ejot

1-019-01£2-0) (6E'G) 06016 2/0€/S 2/0ElS 88 €202 INNF - 19L# Y0 dIOA 1-019-0L€2-01 1921
1-018-0LE2-01 (¥1'8E) 06016 #2/0E/S ve/oe/s 88 £20Z INNC - 09LL# MO AIOA 1-019-01€2-0} 0922
L-LL9L-0F 08Pl 06016 ¥2/0E/S ¥2/0E/S 88  HONNTINIANLS - IONIFHHOL VHVL L-119L-01 86621
1-L191-01 0£°801 06016 ¥2/0€/S ve/0g/S 88 | HONNT LNIANLS - AOOOW Nvador 1-1191-01 1661
-L191-0} 089 06016 Y¥Z/0E/S ¥2/08/S 88 IN4IYH HONNT LNIANLS - QHOTVNID 1-L191-01 9662
1=LL9L-0L (08°9S€ 06016 ¥2/0E/S ¥2/0elS 88 3I¥ HONNTLIN3IANLS - ¥37LNG VNVA L-1191-01 S66.L
Pi-7LE-10LL-0L 96°S06'} 060L6 ¥Z/0E/S v2I0E/S 88 IVOVA HIHOVAL - L1I1439 NOYVHS i-vLE-10LL-0L ¥66.
L-0L-01L€2-01 00708 06016 ¥2/0E/S ¥Z/0E/S g8 JIWN3IW Wv3L - G3A0T138 2 INdILNv3g L-0L+-0L€T-0L £66.L
L-0L$-0L€2-01 9P'6l 06016 v2/0E/S ye/0elS 88 |A 40 YIGWIN WYL - NAV1O LINVF 1-0L1-01€2-01 266L
L-Cc€€-01€2-0L 8E'E€LL 06016 ¥2/0€/S y2/0E/S 88 FOVITIN QYO8 - NAVT1O LANVF L-2€€-01€2-01 1662
L-LL¥-0652-0F 8Z'est'L 06016 YZ/0E/S vZ/0t/S 88 LS a3 93dS IOVAIN - LIVATLS a3 }-LL-0S5¢-0F 0662
vi-pL€-L0LL-0L 00°0SY 06016 ¥2/0E/S ¥2/0E/S 88  AONVOVA ¥IHOVAL - NOXIA AFTYH v1-7LE-L0}1-01 686.L

1-00£-065¢-0y 61'6l

060L6  VZIOBIS  EIOS/S
# ajeqg uo  sieq # #
woayy esuadx3y ¥oeuD . ‘Q'd - uvled

S14vd NVA - 113N YNNOd

“ ANNd LS3UdNI s« 1-00€-0952-0%

#1UN022Yy 31€}S  JUNoWy

i . A NS Y e SRR
¥202/0E/S 01 ¥20Z/0E/S :81e uo asuadxy

L¥€ AsO sdiey e
i WdZG:10:Z #202/90/90 paiuid

L 10| obed 1aquinN %29y) Aq ajqehed sjun oy pred

uondussseq SWEN tOPUBA




1d¥'d pdig ms\eoueul{\gasps\adieHe\S\:Q

¥-866t-01 0070 (00'8€9'2) 00'8€9'C 00°0 000 dyv ¥ss3 1-8661-01
£-8667-01 8£'8L6 (00°8TH'L8) 00°LLL'86 00'0 00'€89'0L 11 ¥SS3 £-8661-01
Z-8661-01L 000 (00'v82'sS) 00'¥82'SS 000 000 1 ¥ss3 2-9661-01
L-g667-0L 06'%22'L (91°248'E) 91°202'y 000 00°0€€ IDIAYTS JO4 334/aIVOIaTIN 1-Z661-01
L-166¢-0L 91'ST 65°E8Y'L LoLs'e 000 00°000'0L HOVIYLNO WAy alvola3w 1-166t-01
1-286-0L LE'GE 00'S9¢ 00°Zk¥'L 000 00°22L°L VN HOL ITLIL 1-ZE61-01
1-029%-0F OLOF 00'Z)'SE 00'805'€2 00'0 00°029'8S HONOYHL MOT4-03 TvIO3dS vaal 1-029%-01
HONO™HL

1-009%-0L 6%V 00'709 00'9.'L 000 00'89€'2 MOTI-LNVHOENS/T00HOSTHd VA 1-009%-04
1-00v¥-0L SL'S8ZL  (00°S19'2) 00°519'21 000 00°000'0} 3344 9NHA 7 3IVS/AI TTLIL 1-00b-01
1-66€7-0F 000 00'£22'22 000 000 00°222'22 dvay L-66E7-0L
-Leer-0b 6262 (0072b8'ZH) 00'2¥8'99 000 00°000'%S Id 1370 d-LEs-0l
G1L-00Ev-0) 1GST 00'602'L¥ 00°651 'V} 000 00'89€'GS £202-2202/1 I1LIL SL-00€7-0
¥1-008¥-04 000 (00°£10'69) 00°€10'69 000 000 ¥202-£202/1 I1LIL #1-00€t-01
}-022i-01 B86'P8 06'280'9 oVi've 0Z'LbS'Y 00°'005'0¥ 1SV-Hvayg Tvy3a3ad }-022-0L
L-0Lerob beLL 05'622'82 05721'S6 SO'0LE‘LY 00°000'¥Z1 HONNT TvY3a3d 1-0L2#-0L
S$32IN0G |eJ9pad WOl ONUSAYN

onuaAsy JO 32IN0S »  LZ'68 82'126'S8 $2'699'v1LL 02'592'69 25°965'008 S92I1N0S aJe)S Wol4 SNUBASY  000€
1-666€-0) /G'8L 00'S67' V¥ 00°€91'25} 00°€E8'EL 00'859'€61 1NVHO ADNVOVA HIHOVAL 1-666€-01
L1-G0/£-0L 000 00'LiY'88 000 000 00’17’88 £202-2202/LNVEO QOOHAIHO ATHY3 11-G0£-0)
01-50/€-0} 000 (00'sZE'68) 00°'G2E'68 00°0v0'8 000 $202-€20Z/LNVHD QOOHATIHO ATdva 01-50.€-0}
1-09e€-01 ze'see  (pzovi')) ¥2'125'2 0Z'92¢ 00°GLL HONNT 334 2UVLS 1-09e€-0}
1-L00E-04 16°06 26°290'LY 00°099'0L1 00°990'L¥ CARAANALS dlv 3LVLS N3O L-L00€-01
$32Jnog 2es wolj ANUSAIY

onUaAY JO B2INOS - PL'BOL  (99°6E8'EEL) 19'015'208'} 0E'EE6'LE 19°0L9'EL€"L Kno [eJoues 000}
16-6661-0L 000 (6¥°26) 6126 000 000 ‘WNSNOD/AWIY DISNIN 1-G-6661-01
L-1-6661-0F 00'S} 00°0S5'2 00°0S¥ 00°05Y 00°000'€ ¥31S008 JILIHLIVAIHLO L-1-6664-01
1-6661-0) 6V'SEL  (¥8'16S'TH) ¥8°165'291 Lyl 00'000'02} 31v1S3 NOSNHOfF ® ¥3H10 L-6661-0}
L-LLBL-0L LLbY SL'e8 §2'99 000 0005} STVINTY Moogix3aL L-1181-0b
1-9-1121-0L 00°0 00'000'} 000 00°0 00°000') ADHYr-SNOISSINGY 1-9-111-0L
L-G-LL2L-0b ZZ08E  (597208'2) 59'208'€ 000 00'000't gOHIr-SNOISSINGY L-S-Lb2L-0b
V-1LLLL-0b 0Z€ce  (00°2€2')) 002€2'C 000 00°000'} gaHYr -SNOISSINGY L-~1121-0b
i-1191-01 6¢62F (G8°0v6'D) Sg0vy'9 08'500'} 0070051 STidNd-S3TvS HONNT 1-1L91-01
L-0151-01 SLOge  (80°155'08) 80°L55'SLL 81°221'6 00°000'GE SININLSIANI NO LSTHALN] L-0LSL-0)
1-082L-0+ 9¥'26 12°659'6 6L°05¥'811 51°925'02 00°041'82L XVLOV1d3Y dOdd S¥3d 440D 1-0€2Z1-0L
1-10-012L-0L 000 00°00¥ 000 000 00'00% S3IXVL IWOH TGO 1-10-0121-0L
1-10-07LL-0L S6°L0L (€S0 Srely'le 000 26'200'12 AATTONAT TVIOAdS 1-10-07LL-0L
1-10-0€L1-01 96°L0L  (St'eLs) ceezo'le 000 11'¥05'92 AAT1 3SYIVNOLLYONA3 L-10-0ELL-0}
1-10-0LLL-0L 6 10L  {(€6°Z6E'YL) S0'96E'6Y0' | 000 ZL'€00'5€0' L AATT XYL HHEND-NOILYONAa3 1-10-0L11-0

Anon [esoudg

anupney
186png aouefeg anuanay anuaney jafipng
IBquINN URo2oY BjeIg . 109 188png ‘al ANUINS: uohduosag \unoany

L BnudAsy JO 22INOS
0 pund uoneanps .

LvE @SO edleH e
Wd6gZ:cl:L ¥202/L1/90 -poiulid

Db Hoday anuaAdy /S dSH - ey e

Y




1d¥'d bdig ms\eoueul\gaspsiedieHe\sn:d

¥202/1£/S Jo se podey
€ jo g obed

BNUBASY JO 82JN0S  »

L-01SE-0P
1-005€-0¥

SNUSASY JO a3INoS »

1-6661-0%
1-01G1-0¥
1-elyl-0¥
1-1L0-0121-0%
b-L0-ELLI-O0Y

pund
BNUBAGY JO 82IN0S

1-01S}1-0€
1-10-0121-0¢
1-10-CLLL-0E

pung
SNUSASY JO 20IN0S »

£-866¥-0C
866102

©NUBASY JO 90INOS

1-100€-02

8NUOASY JO B0INOS
1-6661-02

1-0LG1-02

1-L0-012L-02
L=10-LIb1-02

puny

SNUSAY JO B2INOS

S-866¥-01

9€'cL 65°228'0F 80'cLy'ZLL 00°0 £9°02'6S)
€9'S9 SL081'Se 62'€80'8Y 0070 POv92'€L
7708 08'9¥9'Gl 6.°62€'79 000 65°9/6'6L
69'00)  (92°0€0°}) 9.°6a.'0G1 000 00°SEL'6Y1
0000} 0070 00°000'68 000 00°000'G8
000 00°0L 000 000 00°0}

000 00°002 000 000 00°002
00°0 00'52 000 000 0062
96°L0}  (92°592'}) 9/°69/'69 000 00°005'79

———————————————————————————

89°10F (2COLL'E 815 %22 000 687298 022
go'lol  (zzoLl'e) 1-825'vee 000 68°298'02¢
000 00°0¢ 00°0 000 00°0E
00°0 00°06 000 000 0006
v2oL  (zzoes'e) LL'8Ls'vee 000 68°LyL'022
50°Z1E 259 000 00002 268
00°0 (00°282'v8) 00°282'8 000 00'0
000 (00'¥£0'c}) 00'¥E0'EL 00°0 000
000 (00'es2'12) 00'€S2'LL 000 000
00°0 00°000'0S 000 00'0 00°000'0S
000 00°000'0S 000 000 0000005
08’211 (90'628'ss) 90°620'895 000 00°002'28¥
ov'ovt  (00°26°08) 00°526'082 00°0 00°000'002
000 00°00L 000 000 0000}
00°0 00001 000 000 0000}
18101 (90°00}'S) 907001282 000 00°000'282
68°S0F (GLVLE LGH) 80°GSY 12L ¢ S1°SS0°LYE €0Vl 0/5 ¢
Ziozl  (LL'zov'eol) L1'5/2'66Y 5z'158'S) 00°€.8'S6€E
000 (00°600'9) 00°600'9 000 000

13bpng

anuansy
aoue|eg

anusnay

anuaaay 13bpng

BNUINTY

@3 03dS/dSNVHL
Y INDOIY-"dSNYHL

NOSNHOT 2 ¥3HLO/ dSNVHL
*1SIANI NO "LNI/dSNvHL

*1510 ¥3HLO0-S334'SNVYL

S3IXVL IWOH 3TI9ON

AATT XYL HHNO/NOLLYLIHOdSNYYL

$92IN0G 9J}S WOIY BNUBARY  000E

1-0l5€-0v
1-00S€-0v

$92IN0G 9)BIS WOl aNUIARY

Aaa [eJausg 000L

1-6661-0v
1-0LS1-0F
LCIvl-0v
1-10-0421-0%
L-LO-ELLL-0F
Ao |eisuan

dnous) pund Jo pung 2a21A198 1q8d  0S

L1S3IANI NO'LNI/SIDIAYAS 18930
S3XVL IWOH F190W
AATT XYL HYNO/SDIANIS 1830

Ane1 |e1ousD 0001

1-0151-0€
1-10-0LC1-0¢
1~10-CiL1-0E
Ara 13U

pund juiel 3 ‘piing “1ado 02

$82IN0G [BIope WOl] 3NUSAIY 000

[IR-SRE]
11¥ss3

alv 31VLS N3O

*1S3 NOSNHOT 8 ¥3HLO/WEO
LNIWLSNIANI NO'LNI-WBO
S3XVL INOH 31180N

AATT XYL HIND/O019

€-8661-0¢
¢-8661-0C

$32IN0§ |BJ9pad W04 dNUIAY

$89IN0G 2}B)§ WO 3NUGASY 000€

1-100€-02

$324N0S 3JB}S Wol4 INUBAY

Ane [e1sueD 0001

1-6661-0C
1-0161-02
1-10-0L21-02
1-L0-biLL-02
AAa [erouan

pung uonesnp3 ol

$82IN0¢ [B49pa4 Wol] ANUBAIY 000V

ONIYOLNL LH - ¥SS3

S-8661-01

e «:.:ow.w( -

anUEAGY 10 821103

01 pund uoneor

L¥€ 4SO adiey e
Wdez:gl:l ¥20¢/L1/90 :peiulld

Joday anuaAay /s dSH @-eH e



1d¥'d ¥diq ms\eoueul\gAsps\adieHET\S\:Q

€090F (16894 2ve

e TA A

————

S.°GS0°LLL

—

€L7016L0V

:|ejo) Hodoy

pung 00°'9¢0'9¢ pund jusweaoidw] |eyded 06
enuerey Joooinog  + 88101 (YS'6BY) ¥5'515'92 00°0 00°920'92 Ans [e10USD 0004
1-0151-06 000 000 000 000 00°0L *1SIANI NO LNVATHd 3¥Hd 1-0151-06
1-10-0121-06 000 00°0b 000 000 0070} S3XVL INOH ITE0N 1-10-0121-086
AATT
1-10-8LLL-06 96°}0F  (¥S5°605) ¥5'515'92 000 00°900'92 XV1HENO-ADUNI/ALIS/ATE Il b-10-8L11-06
Aro Jeiausg
s S e
pung 8810} I¥2.SSel 00'951 281 pun JuewBpnr pue Aunuwiw 1ol 08
enuersy joeonos . 88°10L  (Lb9LY'E) 1¥'el5's8) 00°0 00951281 Aas fesousn  000L
1-0151-08 000 00'08 000 000 0008 *1SIANI NO LNVALINNNWI LHOL £-0151-08
1-10-0421-08 000 00°02 000 000 0002 S3IXVL INOH ITIE0ON 1-L0-0L2}-08
b-10-0ZL1-08 96°L0}  (2b'99G'E) Lrels'sel 000 00°900°281 AATT XYL HENO/ALINDNAL LNOL 1-10-02L1-08
AA9 |elsusn
pung 1810F (991G 95729 ve 00°€lL 12 punJ yses BubUom 0L
anusA9y Josanos  » 287101 (99°LSH) 95'¥29'v2 000 00°€LL'pE Ara [e19Ue9 0004
1-0LG1-0L 000 0004 000 000 00°0L SIANI NO "INIFHSYO “MHOM 1-0L51-0L
1-10-0121-0. 0070 00'0! 000 000 000} S$3IXVYL INOH 90N 1-10-0121-0L
1-10-GLLL-02 S6°L0L  (96°LH) 95'¥29've 00'0 00°€5L'v2 AATT XYL HHUNO/HSYD ONIIHOM 1-L0-SLLL-0L
AA9] [esoueg
pung 86920 €91 $8°G0G 091 pUN4 ‘208 208/ W1 08
anueAey Josomos . €510 (01°194'2) 86°920°c9} 000 88'G95'09L Ano] Jesoues  000)
1-0LS1-05 00'0 00°0S 000 00°0 0005 *LSIANI NO'LNIIHWNI -0151-0S
1-0621-06 62000  (58°00L) G8'001'GE 000 00°000'SE 143N’ dOdd ' SHAd dHOD/JHNI L-0£Z1-05
1-10-0121-08 00°0 00'0S 000 00'0 00°0S S3aXVL IWOH I 190N L-10-0L2L-08
1-10-06LL-0S 96°L0L  (92'#pL'L) 92'205'65 000 00'85€'9S AAT T XYL HHEND/ATINO'QIN-YOIS 1-10-0511-0S
L-LO-vLLL-0S 96°10)  (66°GLE'L) 18'€27'89 00'0 88°204'29 ANATT XYL HAND/FENI b-L0-LLL-0S
An91 Jelsusg
puny

J3QWINNIUN0D0Y LIS

anuandy

18bpng

10 % jabpng

3oueleg

anuanay
‘LA

anuanay

18bpng
BNU3AIY

pund uopepodsuel}] op

uonduossag JUnoIDYy

o v::n__ :o_.«mtmmw.r.m\_.r. :

LY€ QSO edieH e
Wd6ez:Zzl:l ¥20z2/11/90 :psjuld

¥202/1 £/ Jo-se Hoday
€10 ¢ abed

Joday anuaAady e dSH P UeH e



1dY'd pdig ms\eoueulj\gasps\edieHe \s:d

¥202/1€/S -Jo.se yoday
/101 mmmm

L-€11-5021-0L
1-0L1-5021-01
0L-2-0l7-Sehl-0)
01-2-00t-S2L1-01
L1-2-022-52L4-01
01-2-022-5211-0L
L1-2-c12-seil-0b
0l-2-¢l2g-Scli-0l
11-4-t12-G2Li-01
01-2-112-G2L1-0}
01-2-921-5241-01
01-2-2Z1-521i-01
L-4-G11-G2L1-0}
oL-£-ghi-62lLi-0l
Lb-2-011-G211-04
04-2-011-5211-01
L-Ei-L0LL-0L
L-8-LL-L0LL-0)
1-6-9-LL-LOLL-0)
LS Lp-LO0LL-01
1-9-o-Li-LOLL-0L
L=7-9-1L-L0L1-0L
L-€-9-LLi-LOLL-0)
1-2-9-EL-L0LL-0L
L-1-g-LL-10LL-0}

vi-LLi-LOLL-0}
1-8-0L-1011-01
1-€-0L¥-LOLL-0}
¥L-01¥-L0LL-0L

1-0L-L0LL-0L

i-vi€-LOLL-0L
1-022-10LI-01
1-Z12-L0LI-01
b-L12-1041-01
1-621-L0LL-0L
1-0Z1-10L4-0L
1-GL1-}0LL-0}
1-0L1-1041-01

S2'9S
68°C6
000
9¢'scl
000
T’le
000
GE'C8
000
82799
000
000
000
12°€9
000
8¥'v8
0z'sel
000
¥Sv0l
98'0ee
65°801
000
6¥'0
000
000

000
000
000
000
69°119

000
487011
00°96
0€°69
Se'ly
06'8L
8916
Sb'cé

13bpng
40 %

00°GL}
qTShe'e
(szv9z'e)
(0g'92))
(8e'9.+'2)
95°290'GL
(ze'09)
9625
(oz'ecl)
£z2ee
{oszLL)
(00'0t2)
(vee8z'e)
ZL'8GE'L
(99°€29'8)
16'6.£'8
(00'9.1)
00°000'}
(6€°St)
(8Z'¥8L'})
(05°2¢1)
(22¢6)
90°206'61
(e2:8¥1)
(s6'51L'6)

(08'¥22'08)
(ze98)
(25'982)
(L1291)
(82'29¢'91)

(295512'0)
(cs'z6l'ol)
00°02}
0S°9LE'E
05216’
00'022'%
0€'819'9
91'£59'6E

asup(eg

00'S¢e
8.v52'02)
SZ¥92'C
08'9.8
8E°9LP'T
¥i'ee6's
2e'0S
SO°L¥C
029l
127199
052
00°0¥C
¥£'682'e
8g'Ly9'CL
99'¢/9'8
£0°029'sy
009.9
000
6€'SP0°L
82'v89'L
05'2€1'Y
22'€6
v6'L6
€L'8v1
S6'GLL'6

08'%22'09
2€'9%
1G'9eC
LioLol
8/'/95'6}

19'512'L
Z5'261's91
00'088'c
05'€29'2
05°280'L
00'084'G}
0L'1SE'8LL
ys'ove'ssy

00641
8L'916'S)
vL'818
000
000
yreey'l
000
9.°8¢
000
601
Q000
00°0
00°0
8e'yve'e
000
68'¥89'9
00°66
000
5682
LE'6ED'L
00°0
000
000
000
000

28'505'0C
000

000

000
evzel'l

96°S5E'C
86'€91'€2
8¢°G0V
0,020k
00'SZ1L'L
00'08L'€
ETYEL'6L
L'2¥9'29

00°00%
00°000°0EL
000
00004
000
00'000'¥C
000
00°00€
000
00°000°b
000

000

000
00°000'0¢
000
00°000'tS
00°005
00°000't
00000}
00°00S
00°009'L
000
00'000'02
000

000

000
000
00’0
000
00'002'€

000
00'000'6¥L
00'000'€
00°000'+b
00°000'G}
00'000'02
007000°5Z)
00°000'62S

196png
WBND

ONINOLNL ANNOSIWOH/ a3 03dS
“I¥S HOL1-a3 D34S
S3NdANSHMSIY Ly M Idd

AY3S A004/HISTNd

LI43N39 SNIYHOS3Hd
JONVHUNSNIMSIY 1V HOS 3dd
a15) £202-2202/ 1¥S HOL HOS3d
41.8) +2-€20Z AMYIVS HOLM I¥d
88€) £202-2202/ VS HOL HOS3Hd
a8¢) ¥2-£202 AMYIVS HOLM 3d
MYI10 anNsS-HOSIHd
HOL/aNS-HOSId

£20Z-220Z “vS 3aAIv/HOSTHd
¥202-€20Z2 AYVIVS 3QIv/ 3¥d
£202-2202/1¥S HOL HOS3INd
¥202-€202 AYVIVS HOLM 34d
1dNS ¥ Syivd3y aNvd

‘HOHNd GNN ALIAILLOY

2ISNW TVHOHD B ANVE H¥r

HYr - W33 /S3ddNS L8y

1dNS HLIV3H 2 3d

8-/-9 S1NV IADVNONY]

8-/-9 SIIANLS VIO0S

8-/-9 AON310S

8-2-9 HIVW

ANINIAOHINI

JOOHOS | F1LIL - SITddNS
S3r1ddNS "OANIM

S3ANddNS 3avyO aue

LINVHO AONVOVA | 31LIL - S3ddNS
dNS vHIANID/WITI

AINVHD AONVOVA

1 31LIL - INTWISHNGWIZY SSYT10
S1I43IN3F SNI/HEr-NI13

(g15) SANVIVS HOL HMr/W3T13
(88¢€) SAAVIVS HOL HYM/W3T13
S30IV 9 SHHITO 8NS HYMHNAT13
HOL 9NS HYr-Wa3a

s3IV B SHYTTO WH1D HArNT T
SAAYVYIVS HOL HYr/WaT3

uonduosssqg’

L-EL1-50CL-0}
1-011-G02 -0l
04-0L1-00}-S2L1-0}
01-00t-952-GZLL-0}
+1-022-001SclL-0}
01-022-001-5211-01
LL°00L°2LZ'STLL 0L
0L'00bZLZ’SCLLI0
L1°001°LLe'seLL 0L
oL'ooL’vLe'seLiolL
01-921-00L-S21-01
01-2Z1-00L-ScLi-al
11-G11-001-G2L1-0l
01-GL1-001-GZ}1-0}
11-011-001-G2i -0l
01-011-001-G21L1-01
1-E1¥7-1L0LL-0L
1-8-LL#-L0LL-0L
1-6-LL¥-LOLL-0L
b=4-11¥-10LL-0L
1-9-L41-10LL-0L
b--LLy-LoLL-0b
L-€-Liy-LOoLL-0L
V¢ -L0LL-0L
L-L-Li-L0LL-01

¥L-LL¥-L0LL-0L

1-0-0L7-LOLL-0}
1-€-0L-10L1-0L
#1-01¥-L0LL-0L
L-0L-10LL-0L

vi-Fie-10LL-0L
1-022-10LL-0L
L2Le’ Lokl o}
L2’ L0l o)
1-62i-10L1-01
1-0Z1-L0L1-0L
1-GLL-L0LL-0L
L-0L1-1L0LL-0)
uoponnsu|

- unaday !

0L pun4 uoneonpy

L¥€ QSO odiey e
Wdev:gl:l t+20g/L1/90 paluld

>g - Joday ainyipuadx3y Lyg 4SO PUeH e



1dy'd” vdiq pmg\eoueul\gasps\adieHe\S)\:Q

v20e/LE/S u\o\mm Hoday

1 10 Z oBed

A

1-022-0251-0}
L-212-0251-0}
}-Lb2-0251-0}
1-04}-0251-0}
L-0L-04S1-04
L-¥2-8071-0t
L-L-80PL-0}
I-EL¥-80F1-01
L2h-80v1-0}
L=t -807L-0L
1-0L-80¥1-0}
1-00€-80¥1-0}
1-0L1-00¥1-0}
§1-022-S5¢1-01
G1-242-5521-0b
Sl-112-8521-01
G1-041-6521-01
¥1-0L-0S21-0}
¥1-01-0521-0}
71-007-0521-0}
¥1-00t-0521-0)
¥1-01€-0521-01
¥1-00€-05S21-0}
P1-022-0521-0}
¥1-022-0521-0L
y1-212-05¢c1-01
v1-212-0521-01
yL-LL2-0S21-01
¥1-1L2-0521-01
pI-112-0521-01
¥1-011-0621-01
v1-04L-0621-01
1-€-2-0LS021-0}
L-7-0L¥#-S021-01
1-2-0L#5021-01
1-60-0L+-502}-01
1-00€-50Z1-01
1-022-50¢21-01
l-2le-502i-0t
1-112-8021-0)
1-GLL-S0Z1-0)

0472l
6E°E9
82y
91’86
0e'vL
=%
000
000
(32 14
L1°8S)
99'bL
00°0
S6°L6
000
000
00°0
000
Sv' 0
vlel
¥S'0LL
08082
85'C
80'vvE
SY'LL
000
000
(4414
000
69'GE
00°0
86'S
22901
95201
0001
09'v9
6¥'€0€
00°0
86°68
8298
6.°8Y
}1°09

1abpng
19.9%

(v6'€52)
19'9¢
£6°822
£€' 26V
00'S8Z')
8r'v16'12

(zg'szl'pL)
00°00S'¥

(oz'022'2)

(08°'S0L'v})
01°020°}

(55'529'%)
00508

(26'059'1)

(ya'ss)

(09°054)

(0g°165'6)

(sz°2£5'1)
TLL0V'9

(80°12)

(0z'959'z1)
08'8€9'El
(s1°v0z'eh)
£5'08¥'2
(z6'28L')
00°001
9v'62h
00°00L
11°856'Z
(£9°066)
01°905'sZ
(8t'26.'t)
(00°6.1)
(00'9¥€'2)
86'9/L
(ot'210'L)
00°052Z
96°200'S
0}°99
0Z'720'L
00°'£06'SE

aouejeg
12bpng

¥6'€62'2
6E'€9
WL
19'205'92
00°GLL'E
Z5°GEE
25°S2L'Y)
00°0
0Z'0.2'v
08'S01'8E
06'6.5'C
§5°619'%
00°S61'6
26°0S9'L
+9'SS
09°051
05°165'6
5Z°1€0'2
82'265'0l
8012 .
02°959'6)
0Z'19¢
SLH02'LL
17'615'8
6 LEL'E
000
¥5°0LE
00°0
68'L¥9'L
£9'066
06°E6'L
8'26L'v9
00°L¥5'e
00°996'09
(A A A
ov'LLS'L
00'0
$0°266'7¥
06°¢EY
08'S.6
00°260'LS

98°g¢l
56’y
8E'El
LO'ES8
000
000
000
000
000
6898’9
¥eie
000
00°08S °
000
000
00°0
000
000
12902
000
000
000
00°0
000
z9°ZeL'e
000
arArd:}
000
000
20'L6Y
000
zi'sze'ol
00°¢82
00'v2.'9
000
9/'SLy
000
6€'215'G
0L'2S
9L
60°266'S

Ajianoy
‘ara

¥

00°000'2
00°001
00'00%
00'000'22
00°000'G
00°052'22
000
00'00S'¥
00°000'2
00'000°v2
00°009'¢
000
00°000'0L
00°0

00’0

000

000
00°00S
00'000°€2
007002
00°000'Z
00°000'v1
00'000'S
00°000'LL
00°0
00°001
00°008
007001
00°009'%
000
00'000'6Z
00°000'L9
00'89¢€'C
00'029'85
007005
00°00S
00°052
00°000'0S
00°00%
00°000'2
00°000'68

1a6png
PITESVTI

(89%) ANVIVS DILTTHLY HYr
(915) AMVIVS OILITHLY HYr
(98€) AYVIVS OILITHLY HYP
AUVIVS OILTTHLY HAP
*HOHNd/ ¥31S008 DILITHLY
1202/dv3y

2202/dvay

SHIVAIY/HOTL
TUYMLJOS/HO3L

LNESVY-OIT LOddNS/HO3L
S3NddNS'HO3L

S3DIAY3S 'HOUN/HOAL
S3ANYIVS HO3L

SHI43INTE SNIF 3L

(815) £2-2202/S31YYIVS-I F1LIL
%Ly 0L-SHL/ T1LIL
£2-2202/S3NMVIVS- 3TLIL
TdNS AH3IS WAOD/ ITLIL
1dnSA 3LIL

SSTTAWOH/ FTLIL
IddNS/LSNI 40 ACHdWI
IHYMLA0S/ ITLIL
“M1SNI'AO¥dII ATLIL
SLI43N3IE SNIN 3TLIL

(89%) TVS-LHOIN DAN/AHIS WWOD
23N/SYHL

818) ¥2-6202 SAVIVS | T1LIL
1143IN38 HOL/SIHL

%0901 - S¥I/A TILIL

(g88€) TYS-LHOIN DAYW/AYIS NNOD
AaNIdILS A3Q 40¥d 1 3111
¥2-£20Z SAAVIVS 1 T1LIL
HOS3¥d 9 18vd ¥3Q) VY
HONOYHL MO 8 Livd Y3al vyaY
HOMH ¥r-8311ddns
W313-83ddNS

AM3S d1OVHINOD/AT 23dS
"SNI/AN38-a3 03dS

(g18) “1vs HOL-a3 03dS

(88¢€) VS HO1-a3 03dS

VS Y4310-03 03dS

L€ QSO odiey e

1'022°02510L
L°2h2'0esL 0}
L"t1Z°02s) ol
1-0L1-0251-01
1-0L¥#-01S1-01
1-92-80v1-01
L-71¥#-80V}-0L
1-€L7-80%L-0)
L-CL-80v1-04
L-11-80¥1-01
1-01-80%1-0L
1-00€-80%1-0)
1-0LL-00¥1-0L
G1-022-00}-55¢1-0}
§1°001°¢lZ'ssel ol
Sl-112-001-5S2l-0L
S1-011-001-6521-0}
¥1-01-00€-05¢C1-04
¥1-01¥-00L-05C1-0}
¥1-00%-062-05¢1-0}
¥1-00%-122-05¢21-0L
1-01£-001-0521-01
¥1-00€-122-05¢1-01
¥1-0¢2-001-0621-01
¥1°00€°0¢2°05¢21°0}
¥1-212-041-0S21-0}
¥1°001°212°0521 0}
Y1-Li2-011L-0S2L-01
¥1-112-001-05Z4-01
vL00€°L12° 0521 0L
P1-011-12¢-092)-0}
¥1-041-001-0521-01
1-€-01#-5021-0)
-#-0L1-S021-01
1-2-01¥-50¢21-0L
1-1-01+-50¢i-0}
1-00€-5021-0)
b-02¢-5021-01
L'¢l2's02L 0}
L1esoet ok
}-611-5021-01

Wd8v:cl:l ¥20¢/11/90 psjuld

>g - Joday ainypuadx3y /y¢ 4SO °-feH e



1dY'd pdiq mg\eoueuti\gasps\adieHe\S\:d

' ¥202/1 €/ o se yodey

L Jo ¢ abed

\;
\

1-06€-01€2-0}
I-FEE-01E2-01
-22€-0L€2-0)
1-81€-0LEZ-0}
1-81€-01€2-01
1-01€-01€2-01
L-2e¥-02¢c-0L
1-0e¥-0¢¢c-0l
1-011-0222-01
1-022-02¢¢-0%
1-0L1-0222-04
02-00#-0L22-04
Z1-00¥-0122-01
¢1-062-012¢-0}
2l-12e0ice-0)
1-0k-0512-0}
1-0L1-0S12-01
1-0L¥-0¥12-01
1-00€-0¥L2-0}
}-02c-0¥1c-0}
1-¢12-0v12-0}
b-112-0vi2-0b
1-01L-0¥12-01
1-0L-0E12-04
1-00e-0€l2-01
1-0L¥-0212-0}
}-cee-021¢-01
1-022-0Z12-0}
121202120}
L-112-0212-0}
1-0L1-0Z12-0}
1-0L1-021c-0}
1-00€-0112-0}

uogouny
1-009-026}-0b
1-L-ELF-0ZS1-0)
121025101
b-14#-0251-0b
1-0L1-0251-01
1-2EE-0Z54-01

68'65¢  (/8'e56')) 19'€56'T S5°'166 00'000'}
99°0l 0 0vE’} 96'6G} 000 00°005'L
gecie  (8€'2.2) 8€°Z.E 8e'cll 00°00L
0021 00+ 009 000 0008
19221 (89°€L2'g) 89°€lZ'vl 05'LirL 00°000'8
6L8Y 00°S¥71'9 00°558'S 00°50S 00'000°Z1
19°%6 99°9¢2 yEELY 000 00°00S
68'26 A 8 11681 000 00°002
o061 (0g'081) 08°08¢ 1652 00002
G€°96 6€°10¥ 19'865'0L 6106’} 0070004}
62°66 66'722'} L0'6LL'PT Lg'olz'e 00'000'92
LLzsL  {(00'LL2's) 00'L12's1 000 00°000°0L
00°0 (95°21) 95z} 00°0 000

00°0 00°00Z 000 00°0 00°002
05'6$ 16°220'€ 6022S'Y £6°095 00'009'2
6e'8Z)  (8199) 8L°9SC 000 00°002
000 00°000'02 000 000 00'000'02
000 007002 00'0 00°0 00°00Z
000 (00°052'%) 00°052'% 000 000

000 {80°/55'8) 80°255'8 ¥8'9/¢'} 00'0

000 (va-e6)) 7586 yE'LE 000
00'0 (82229 82°26S ] 000
Lieve  (e9'912've) £9°9LT'VE £9°20¥'S 00°000°0L
£5°SY 90°LvL ¥6722} 000 00'022
8595 08'615't 02°086'1 00°0v2 00'00S'c
000 {(s8'9) 68’9 689 000

000 00°001 000 00°0 0000}
500 8L'¥66'LL 78’ 000 007000}
000 (71°0) #L0 00°0 00°0

900 19'669 6€'0 000 00°00L
000 00°00Z 000 000 00°002
90°'0 00'56'tY 0052 000 00°000'S¥
16'%S 00°252'LL 00°SPL'EL 00'225'L 00'000'S2
95'/6 9¢°2¢E'8e $9'650'28S'L 157119512 00'88€£0/G'L
16'/81 (6E'SEB'L) BEGEL'Y 68'226'S 00°002'2
5106 5912 SZ'ER6'L 00°0 00°002'2
oleel  (oe8zl) 0€°826'C 000 00°002'Z
¥h'9L 00°52S 00°629'} 00°0 007002
YAl 00°09L°} 00°0¥0'} 00'0 00°002'2

€1'C8

1wbpng
ho o\c

09'€S

aoue(eg
19bpng

R AP FE s,

0v'ave

000

00°00€

ONISILYIAQY
I9VLSOd-0Na3 40 a9
J3AVH1-a3 40 a9

"SOHO JHIM ® MNVE
Ivo3T-"0Nd3 40 ag

*AY3S HOMNd-ONA3 40 ag
SIVINILYIN AV

SHOO0E AMVHEIT

S31ddNS AXveall
SNI/ANI-AYVEN

ANVIVS - AUVl

S31ddNS (00¥)-Al TTLIL
Idns (zesp) 11 3TLIL
IUYMISOS/ TTLIL

ONYLSNI AOHdNI(ZEEY)II ITLIL
S3Nddns-HO33dS

AMVIVS SHIHOVIL-HO3TdS
S3INddNS-"HOASd

AMIS HOUNdMVYOIDOTOHOAS
*SNI/AN3E-"HOASd

(818) ANV IVS-ADOTOHOASd
(88€) AUV TVS-ADOTOHOAS
AUVTYS-ADOTOHDAS
S31ddNS H1ITVAHHOS
SIDIANTS HETV3H
$3NddNS-H013SNNOD
TIAVYL-HOTISNNOD
*SNIFANIE-HOT3SNNOD

(818) AMVIVS HOL-HOTISNNOD
1143NTE SIHL/SYHL

O3AN/SHL

ANVIVS HOL-HOT1ISNNOD
AMIS HOHNd ¥INFOM TVIOOS

SASNAIX3 YIHLO - HAr
TIVE13MsSvd SAO8 Hir
11vg3svd SA0S HAr
TIVEAITIOA STIIO HYr
1188 STHID HAr
TBAVEL-HYr

1-06€-01€2-01
1-0vE-0LE2-0L
}-ZE€-01€2-0}
L-61€-0L€2-01
1-81E-0L€2-01
1-01€-01L€2-01
}-2Et-02ce-0L
L-0Et-02¢2Z-0L
L-0L-0¢cc-0}
1-022-022e-0L
1-011-0222-0}
L-¥-00t-0L22-01
L-¢-00¥-0122-0l
1-€-00€-0122-0l
1-2-122-012e-0l
1-0L-0SLc-0L
1-011-0Sl2-01
1-0L-0v12-0L
1-00€-0¥12-0)
1-022-0¥12-0l
Lzieovicol
LLzovicol
1-011-0¥12-0l
L-0L1-0€12-01
1-00€-0€12-01
1-011-0212-0}
1-2¢€€-0212-01
1-022-0212-01
[rATAvAYAH]E
L-112-011-0212-0L
L-212-0L-021e-01
L-0L1-0ZL2-01
1-00€-0L12-01
saojales Hoddng

uopanysul 0001

uopdussag

L¥€ asO adiey e

1-008-0251-01
L-EL-0251-0}
L-21-0251-01
L-11¥-02S1-01
1-01¥-02S1-0l
1-2E€-0251-04

Wd8v:cl:l +202/L1/90 ‘Pejulld

>g - Moday ainypuadx3y /y¢ 4SO @7'feH e



Ld¥ d bdig ms\eoueuld\gAsps\edieHE\SI:Q

1-LL-0952-0L LSv6 ZO'SBE'Y 86'709'SL 09°09€'6 00°000'08 SW3Ll a004-s311ddNS L-11-0952-04
1-0L-0952-0L  LO0E 68'96€'8 11°109'e 00°0 00°000'C} (0004 NONXNIHLO-1dNS L-0L-0952-01
}-ZE€-0952-01 86°}8 80°06 26'60F 000 00°005 IBAVL }-Z6€-0952-0L
1-€2€-0952-0) +B'CE LLp10'T 62'586 000 00'000'E JONVNILNIVIN/SHIVAIY L-€2€-0952-01
1-00€-0952-01 8262 06°015'S 01'681'L 000V 00°000'S SIDINYIS HOUN/VINILIIVO 1-00€-0952-0L
1-022-0952-01 00'/8 1§ vor'y 61'688'62 157062t 00°0S€'VE SNI 3N38 FIA0 NI 1-022-0952-01
1-0L1-0952-0L €110 (88°thl) 88'¥12'99 12'916'2 00°000'99 SIMVIVS VINFLAHVO }-011-0952-0}
1-0ve-0¥S2-0L 0026 19'2t9 6£'25h'L ¥0'0S9 00°00}'8 INOHJITALILN L-0vE-0+52-01
1-00€-0252-01L 267104 (00°052) 00°05C'E} 000 00°000'E} 11anNv/S30IAY3AS TvOSId 1-00€-0252-01
1-259-0152-01 08'28 00°508 00'S61L'2 00°0 00°005'2 aNog ALN3ald ¥3daIMood 1-259-0152-0L
L-2e€-0162-01 Z¥'00L  (80%) 80°6.8 000 00°6.8 T3AVHL 1-2£€-0152-0L
1-00€-01G2-04 000 00'002'L 000 000 00002’} SIDIAYTS gASYHOUNd }-00€-0152-0L
1-022-0152-01 80'L6 82°520'} ZTYLY'0L 64°0eV'L 00°005'LL SNI 3N3E FIA0TdWI 1-022-0152-0L
1-0L1-0L62-0L E€'Z6 6E'186'Y 19'610'09 S1'€2E'L 00°000'59 HIdIDINOOF-ANY VS 1-044-01L52-0}
1-0¥9-0L¥2-0} 09'65 00'202 00'862 000 007005 $334 ® SANA-"ONRId'WIT L-0v9-0L2-01
L-OL-0LYZ-0L 087251 (zS'2ev'L) 75'Ce6'e 10°S2L') 00°005'2 S31NddNS 301440 W31 1-0L7-0L¥2-0L
L-2e€-0Lp2-0L 0SZE1  (00°GL) 00'S.C 000 00°002 TIAVHL- "IN W33 1-2£€-0L¥2-0L
1-00€-0L¥2-0L 62°68% (85°0.4) 85°0L6 000 007002 ISNIJX3 "OSIN ¥IHLO 1-009-012-01
}-1-022-0b 20} 96°E- 00°156'vZ (00°156) (00°156) 00°000'+2 "SNFAN3E-ONIMd WA }-022-04¥2-0L
1-022-0L¥2-0L L&'€Lr  (OE'9S6'PL) 0€'956'aL 10°00S'€ 00'000'% (89Y) ANVIVS-ONIId'WI13 1'02Z°0L¥2 0L
1-Z12-0l¥2-04 00°0 00005 00°0 000 00005 “HINOO ‘AOTdW3 MIAN/SHL L-Z+2-04}-0L12-0}
L-2Lz-0Lv2-0L vEv0L  (p£+09) yEv0L 0.'98 00°00} (A5¢) ANV IVS-ONIId'WIT 1'Z1Z°0L¥2 0L
L-112-042-0L  00'0 00°000'} 000 000 00°000'L ‘dX3 1143N39 Syl 1-112-01L-01b2-01
1-1L12-01¥2-0L 28'906'L (Z8'908'L) 78'906'} TN (A 00°004 (g6€) AMYIVS-ONIMd WIS LLZoLyZ ol
1-GLL-0L¥2-0L €296 08'616 02'020'62 60°6E'C 00°000°0€ AMYIVS-"03S W33 1-5L1-0L¥2-0l
1-0LL-0L¥2-0L 95€€C  (L0°0SH'69) Lo'ost' 121 10°056'%) 00'000'2S AMYIYS-"ONIYd W13 }-0LL-0L¥2-0}
1-0v9-0282-0L 16V 0v'9.¢ 09'€ZL'} 000 00°005'} $334 % $3ana 1-0+9-02£2-0L
L-0¥5-02£2-01  00°0 (c1'919) £1°818 000 00°0 AVILNO TYLIdYD 1-0¥5-02€2-01
1-0L#-0282-0L 0070 (z9288'}) z9'28¢'L 000 000 dI¥oSENns/1dNS 301440 1-0L#-02€2-01
1-0v€-02€2-0L 000 (zezoL't) zeeoL't 00°0 000 JOVLSOd 1-0vE-02£2-0L
}-Ze£-0282-01 000 (65°20%) 85°L0% 000 000 TAAVYL }-2e€-02€2-04
1-022-02€2-0) 9Z'€8 16'800'2 £0°L66'6 80°€6P'2 00°000'ZL SNIANIE TdW3 1-022-02€2-01
1-Z12-0282-01 89FE 91'€59 ¥8'0vE vz'sy 00°000'} (85€) AYVIVS LdNS 1’212’ 02ee 0l
1-112-0282-0L  ¥6'9F P1°190'L 98'8€6 9b'zzh 0070002 (868) AUVIVS LdNS [MAF A rAAE
1-GL1-02€2-0L 0L 0L  (25'€0S')) 15'€0S'eE 60'925't 00°000'2¢ N1S dO-0D/AD3S LdNS 1-511-02€2-01
L-0LL-02€2-01L 9L'€S 00'00.'2S 00'008'65 00'008'2 00°005'Z1) AMYIVS 1dNS }-0L1-0282-0b
1-069-01€2-0L 0L%2) (£9'69¢'2) £8°69Y'C) 000 00°000°0L NOILNSANOD-OSIN 1-069-01£2-0L
1-0p9-0LE20L 1122 00°SEE'T 00°599 00°052 00°000'€ $334 2 83and 1-0¥9-0L£2-0L
1-019-01€2-0} LMY gz Les't G1'890'} 2561 00°009'2 Y3IHLO/ OSIN }-0L9-0LEC-0L
1-0¥5-01£2-0L 0072k 00°02€'2 00°089'L 000 00°000'% AVILNO'dY3-0Nad 40 ad 1L-05-01£2-0L

1-0L-0LEZ-0L SO+O0L  (v1°209) ¥1°209'SL Zr'046') 00°000'G) S3NddnNs L-01-01€2-0L

1abpng asuejeq fAanoy 12Bpng
40 % sy - uohdussag

0002

Lp€ QSO edieH e
Wd8t:cl:l +20c/1L1/90 Pajuld

20Z/\E/S o se odey >g - poday ainjipuadx3 /e 4SO @-HeH e

1 Jo ¥ ofed




Ld¥'d pdig ma\eouBULy\gASpS\adiEHE TSI

¥202/1€/G 4O se podey
1 10 G abed(

\

1-112-0552-0v
1-011-0SS2-0F

pung
uoouny .

1-659-00¢5-0E

1-069-00€5-0€

1-129-0025-0€

pun
uonound .

1-008-0v52-02
2-0¥6-0vS2-02
1-0¥S-0¥52-0C
1-L1$-0¥S2-02
1-0L¥-0¥S2-02
L-¥€e-0v¥S2-0C
1-2€€-0¥52-02
1-82€-0¥52-02
-12€-0%52-02
1-92€-0%52-02
L-12e-0v5e-02
1-00€-0%52-02
}1-022-0¥5¢-02
1-212-0¥52-02
L-142-0vSc-02
L-0L1-0¥S2-0¢

pun

uogouny

1-02e-021 -0l

uojound

1-009-0992-01
1-009-0952-01

18gWINN 1UN0JDY BIBIS

00'0 (81°19) 8L°LS 85'6 000

2508 9Z'v62'9C ¥4°502'801 08°29v'71 00'000'GEL
—_—--————————————
00’001 000 09°LL6g1e 09 LIS ¥L 09°L16'9tZ
00'00F 000 09'116'912 09'216'%) 09'L16'912
00°00} 000 00°005 000 007005

007001 000 00'000'98} 000 00°000'981
0000} 000 09'L11'08 09°L1S'vL 09'LHb'0E

£208 88'1£9 08 Z1'80L ZEE R 00007 BLF
£'08 88°1€9'08 z1'89.°2€E 66'256'LE 00°00¢'8L¥
000 00°008'L 000 000 00°008'}
000 (00'892's) 00'892'S 000 000

¥8rl $9'8.5'2Y STy G1'662'S 00°000'0S
1865 19'140'4) 6E'7G6'E) 12'€59 00°000'52
1897l (£2°089'%) £2°089'74 S6'YEL 00°000'01
19'02 96°S/1 o'+l 0’z 00°009
59'6GZ 20°28%') £6°24S 000 00°000'2
9z'sL A TAATA 8S'ELL'O 8119 00°000'6
829 +0'658'2€ 96'0%1'6S 88'98F'¢ 00°000'26
000 (05°Z18) 05218 000 00'0

00V ¥5'10%'92 91'865'C) 89'622'C 00°000'0%
16€zl  (L2'v56'LL) 12'¥56'19 00292’} 0000005
15'%6 Sy'eve’L 65°0S.'12 8E'098'2 00°000'€2
000 (62°0) 62°0 000 00°0

000 (60°9¢€) 60°9EE 00°0€€ 000
oEvLE  (FSLvb'oL) PSP LEL ZTYes'sl 00°000'GLE
- =
vave 2 aEv Ser 6. 765 S0E € 2995021 00'EE0 VeV ©
86'79 £5°900't7) LY'€66'62 SLLpS'8 00°000'0%
86’19 £5°900'%} Ly'£66'62 SLLYS'e 00°000'0%
60°16 2E660'EL 89°GYS'LbL 9€'¢06'28 00°'6¥9'028
68'evl  (¥5'056'E) $5'056'2) 100z 00°000'6

2195

1ebpng
30 %

0.°509

aosuepjeg
12bpng

0e'v6L

ANANDY

000

Aanoy

00°00%'k

1abpng
BN

(888€) AUVIVS "OIY-dSNYHL
AYYIVS "D3H-dSNYHL

1'112°085¢° 0¥
1-011-0852-0¥
saoiAleg Hoddng

dnoig pung Jo pung @2lAIeS 3Ged  OF

(334 INTOV) HIHLO-IDIAY3S 183d
wy3L

DNOT TVAIONING-SIDIANTS 1830
WyaL

DNOVISNILX3 INIFIDIAYIS 1930

*dX3 ¥IHLO-WEO
S193ro¥d dvo Z ¥SS3-WE0
AVILNO TVLIdYD-WE0
S3MddNS LNIVIW/SHIVATN
S31ddns TvIOLSNI-WE0
ISNIIX3 YOMHL LINN
T3AVEL

JOVMIS 7§ HILYM-TLLN/NSO
DIYLOF 13- NLVNEO
3ISNIIX3 HIvdIY dIND3
DNILYIH-TILN

S30IAY3S aSVYHOANd
"SNI/AN3S-WEO

(g18) SAAUVIVSDIY-WEO
(g88E) SAVTVS OIU-NEO
SAVIVS OIH-NEO

O3SIOM-SLAd NOILINL

IVINTH H3IdOO/ O0Hd Vivd
S3ISNI4XA Y3HLO ISIN

uopdusseq

SaojAleg 1qeg 0005
1-G69-00tS-0€

1-069-00£5-0¢

}-129-0025-0€
S92IAIRS 1920

pund juiely % ‘piing Jedo 02
saojaleg Hoddng 0002

1-009-0v52-02
2-0v6-0¥52-02
1-0¥5-0¥52-02
L-1Li-0¥52-02
1-01¥-0v52-02
L-¥€€-0¥52-0C
L-2€€-0¥5¢2-0¢
182€-0¥52-02
L-22€-0vS2-02
1-92€-0¥52-02
L-L2e-0vSe-0e
1-00€-0¥52-02
-02¢-0vS2-0C
1'2Le0vse 0Z
L'b12°0vse 02
L-0LL-0¥S2-0C
saojAleg Hoddng

pung uojeonp3 o}

safieyo powweiboiduoN Q00

1-02E-02L1-01
sabieyn pawweiboiduon

seoluag Hoddns 000z

1-008-099¢-01
1-009-0952-0}

WUNo99Yy

Q1 puny uoneonp3-

L¥€ QSO ediey e

Wdst:cl:l +#202/11/90 :psiulld

bg - Joday ainypuadx3 Ly¢ QSO @~NeH e



1d¥'d pdig ms\e0uBUl\gASPS\edieHE NSO

¥20Z/L£/S :0 se podey
1 1o g abed’

C-212-0l2e-0s
L-b12-0v12-0S
L-¥12-0212-0S

uogouny

b-#12-0251-0S
1-€12-0251-0S
1-212-02S1-08
\-#12-00¥1-0S
t-€12-00v1-0S
S1¥12-55¢21-0S
SL-€L2-85¢21-05
§1-212SS21-0S
¥1-v12-05¢1-05
L-#12-5021-0S
1-€£12-5021-05
1-212-S0C1-0S
LI-212-G2L1-0S
04-L-Y|2-G2i1-0S
L-2€12-52L1-05
0b-2-€12-5211-0S
L1-4-212-SC11-0S
01-2-212-6211-0S
b-¥12-L0LL-0S
1-€12-10L1-0%
1-212-1011-0S

pun
uogouny

1~009-0552-0%
1-0SS-0552-0%
1-€L¥-0552-0v
L-24-05S2-0v
1-LL¥-0552-0%
L-2e€-055¢-0v
1-61€-0552-0F
1-01£-0552-0%
1-00€-055¢-0%
1-022-0552-0v
}-¢12-085¢-0%

00°0 00°002 00°0 000 00°002
000 (LL°96Y) 11961 ££°82 00'0
1070 ¥9'661 9€'0 00°0 00°00S
29'.6 0E¥6L'} 0'sv6'8t ¥8'9/6'0 00°0¥1'0S
SL'EE 9z vEe ¥1'691 9g'gl 00005
sL'6ll  (8¥'L6L) gy’ I6L) 000 00°000°t
000 (L5°58t) 1G°5SY 000 000
000 (86°2) 86°L 000 000
S'98 ¥9'€01 9¢°199 187 00°59.
6€°LL 76°099 80'6€} 000 00°008
000 00°002 00°0 000 00°002
000 00°002 000 000 00'002
00°0 (6£°6€6) 6£°6E6 ov'ssl 000
€5°/8 Lyeve £5°08.') 1Z'1E2 00°000'2
GG'ES SL'LBE'E G8°806°C 92°85Y 00°00€'2
1208 9z'0.Lt'S ¥1'625'G 01299 00°000'L}
9s621  (9162) 9/°cel 00°0 00°001
¥6'16 N2 15'029 ¥6°96 00'6.9
ze'lse  (ze'lst) z€°152 00°0 00°00L
€2°L6 S9'vE TR A 02'8%¢ 00°052')
gv'ose  (9t'952) 9b'9se 00'0 007001
av’L6 0e'29L oLLeL'L G/'19¢ 00°006'}
zr'es 18'6¥6 £1°052'L 60°820°L 00°002'8
1g8yl  (20'8vL'e) L0'865'6 Al Rl 00'0S7'9
65121 (89°0v¥'S) 89°00'El EPEEL'T 00°009'2
0918  99%OvES  PVESGLLZEC Z8LLLEC 00185068
09'L8 99'V9Y'eS ye'aLL'L€2 e8'Lll'eT 00185062
ZLeLl  (88°iLb) 98°L16'C 00°22 0070052
1816 +2'000' 9/°0€0'%L 000 00°1£0'8L
96°06 00'922'} 00'%22'} 000 00°005'2
000 0005 000 000 0008
¥5'89 ¥9'LS1'Y) 9E'ZY8'0E 98'69%'9 00°000'SY
1GGLE  (25°9v9) 25°976 00°0 00°00€
£9°'L8L-  €L'80V'L (¢1'9086) 00°00% 00°005
£6°'8G 12969 £2°100°t 00641 00°00L'L
68'PL 99'015'2 ye'68p'L 6L°091 00°000'0}
749 PE'ELE'Y 90'989'0} G9'ees’l 00°000'G}
(06'84) 068 $5'e 000

1aBpng

ouR[E]

Aoy

1abpnga
HITE ST

(gee) yoLnunl ILL
ATINO FMVOIQIW/HOAS
ATINO 3YVOIQ3W/ADNYAND

ATNO'GIW/SOILITHLY HYr
VYOI4/SOILITHLY HYr
JUNI/SOILTTHLY HYP

AINO "G3W/HOL HOAL

VOI4/HO3L

(4N) 12-0202/SAIMY TS T1LIL
(M) 12-0202/SAV VS ITLIL
(8€e) 12-0202/SIIVIVS-I T1LIL
(MW) 102-210Z SAAXVIVS | T1LIL
AINO FHVOIGIW/HOL A
vold/s3av at

Juniysaav al

(¥W) 1202-0202/ VS HOL HOS3Hd
(4} 0Z-610Z AMVIVS HOLN T¥d
(¥4) 12-020Z VS 3AIV/HOSIHd
(44) 02-6102 AMVIVS 3AIVH Iud
gEE) 12-020Z “IVS AAIV/HOSIUd
8€€) 02-6L02 ANVIVS IV IHd
ATNO QIW-HOL HYr/W3T3
vold/s3ay ‘wan3a

JHNYS3aAY W13

3SNIdX3 ¥3HLO
SITOIHIA-AVILNO TVLIYD
S39nL? SIMIL

3IsY3HO % M0

7383108 INIMTOSYD
TAAVHL

SIDIAYIS HOUN/ dSNVHL
SIOINYIS HLTVIH
SIHVAIVAIY HOoavl
"SNI/ANIG-dSNYHL

(A1S) AVIVS "DIU-dSNYL

L'ezizolee0s
L-¥12-0v12-08
V-#12-0212-05

saoiaeg yoddng

uoponAsul 0004
L-¥12-0¢SL-0S
L-€12-0251-0S
}-212-0251-0S
1-¥12-00¥1-0S
L-€12-00¥1-0S

S1°001'v12'SSTH 0S
GL°00L'€12°6521'0S
§1°001°212'55¢)'0S
¥1°001°¥12°0521°0S
L-¥12-80¢1-05
1-€12-5021-0S
1-212-5021-0S
LL°00L ¥12'Sell 05
0L°00L¥12'S2LL 0S
LL°00L'ELE S2LL'0S
0L'00L°€VT'SCLL 08
L1°00LC12'SCLL'0S
01°001'ChT’'S2LL70S
L-¥12-10L1-0S
L-€42-L0LL-0S
1-Cl2-10LL-08
uononiIsuy

punj uoyeuodsuel] of

seojaleg poddns 0002

1-009-0S52-0v
1-095-0652-0¥%
b-€L1-055¢-0¥
L-€l¥-055¢-0v
1-4L¥-0552-0%
1-ZE€-0SS2-0F
1-G1€-055¢-0%
1-01€-0S5¢-0v
1-00£-055¢2-0F
1-02¢-0S5¢2-0v
(AT A 4

ubndioseq

- 0p pund uoneuodsuel)

Lp€ @sO adieH e

Nd8¥'cl:l +20¢/L1/90 :Peiuld

>g - poday ainyipuadx3 /y€ ASD 7 YeH e

)



1dy d ¥diq mg\eoueuld\gasps\adieHe\S\:Q

pung
uopouny .

1-00€-0€£52-06

pung
uopgouny  «

1-001-29€2-08
1-00€-¥9€2-08
1-00€-£9€2-08
1-00€-29€2-08

pung

uonouny
|-¥12-0952-08
L-€12-0952-05
}-212-0952-0S
L-¥12-0552-08
L-£12-0562-05
1-212-0552-05
L-¥12-0#S2-05
1-€12-0v52-06
1-212-0+52-0S
L-€L2-0152-0S
1-212-0152-0S
L-vL2-0L¥2-0S
L-E12-0L¥C-0S
L-2lz-0Lv2-08
b-v12-0¢€2-0S
1-€12-02€2-08
L-¢le-02€e-0s
L-¥12-0222-0S
\-€12-0222-08
\-¢te-0¢cc-09
¢l-vl2-0L22-09
Z\-€l2-0122-0S

2 ¥202/1.€/S :jo se poday
1 10 } abed \J

98'68 BLPLEELE ZVBEB'BOE'E SE'9YP BEGE

66° € 05082 0S6L.¢C 000 000008
66°EE 05°082'S 0S'6LL'C 000 00°000'8
66°CE 05°082'S 096122 000 00°000'8

6S'S¥ 26'85.°86 80'¥bL 28 000 00°005° 181
65'SY 26'561'86 80'vv.'e8 00°0 00°005'L8L
000 00°000'00} 000 000 00'000'00}
2966 yINA¥A £228.'SS oo'o 00°000'9S
62204 (L2°052) 12°052'6 000 00'000'6
1e'z0L  (80°902'}) 80'904'2) 000 00°005'91

1926 10Er.6 66 86 921 98'LV.L 91 00822 SEL
€106 14'8¥5'9 6¢'6£0'8L 20'59.'6 00'885°98
000 (L6) L6 8'0 000
88'78 11206 £8°260'S S0'0L9 00°000'e
£8°08 69'€ES'L 1£'99t'9 ¥¥'098 00°000'8
000 (ze' 1) zeLy 588 000
£9'68 L5'EE6 6°990'9 Z1'090°L 00°000'6
89’6 £9'2.¢ 1£°129'9 Sl°298 00°000'2
00°0 (96°0) 96'0 00°0 000
89°LLL  (SE'LSO'L) SE'150'01 ze'8S0'L 00°000'6
2168 88'8/2'L zL1ze' Ll SZ'9et'L 00°005'24
€816 2L'80p 82'165'Y 8Z'095 00°000'S
£2'06 18212 €1°2859 09'9L8 00°00€'2
85'vll  (80°'%22) 80°19.L'} 8L912 00°LES'L
08'98 16'6.2 £0°022'2 18'65¢2 00°005'Z
18°08 11°92) £2'€L0'E ¥8'€9€ 00°008'€
zg'6¥ 06'£88 ob'298 0V'ELL 00°162'}
Y516 66'9€2 L0'€95'C SZ'ovE 00°008'C
65'G8 0,619 0£'089'¢ 69'70S 00°00€'y
000 (€00) £0°0 000 000
92'06 £9'v02 18'668') ¥9'sve 00°001'2
Z8'€6 9Z'6.} vL02L'T 20'85€ 00°006'2
000 00°002 00°0 000 00002
00°0 00'002 000 000 00°002

aouejeg IAL Ananoy 1abpng
aLrn

:|eyo), Joday

*'AY3S HOUNd /ALIAVS B A3dd IHI

pung juswaaoidwy [eyded 06

sa21A198 Yoddng 0002
1-00€-0€52-06
saoialeg poddng

pun4 yuawbpnp pue flunwiw) Yol g

AY3S ‘AHIANS 'LOIdSNI 'aF/1H0L
"dXZ'SNI ALTVNSVO/ALYIJONHd
“dX3'SNI INIWAOTJWANN/LHEOL
SNI NOLLYSNIdWOD .SHINHOM

(HIN) STMVIVS VINFL34VD
VOIJ/SHO0D
JUWI/SHO0D

(HIN) AMVIVS "OFH-dSNVHL

VOI4-¥3ANMA SNA
JHWI-H3AING SNE

(4W) SV IVS DIY-WE0
VOIHMVIaOLSnO
FHWINVIAOLSND
YOldrddig

SHWIEINE
ATNO'GIW/ONIbd W3
YOI4/°03S "ONIYd W33
SUNY O3S ONINd NI 12
ATNO 3HVYDIa3W/ LdNS
VY2I4/301440°LN3D
4MWIADI440°INTD
(dN) AYVIVS - AdvaEn
vold/yan

JHWIAEN

(4W) MoLNL/M 3TLIL
(yd) HoLnu/ 3ILIL

seojAleg yoddng 0002
1-001-29€2-08
1-00€-9€2-08
1-00E-E9€E2-08
1-00€-29€2-08

sao1n9s poddng

pung -29g "00S/JU'W1 0§

seoialeg Hoddns 0002
}'#12°0952'05
L-€12-0952-05
1-212-0952-0S
L'¥12 0552°05
1-€12-055¢-0S
L-212-0552-0S
L'vle0vse oS
}-€12-0+52-0S
}-Cl2-0vS2-0S
L-€12-0152-05
1-212-0152-05
L-¥12-0}¥2-0S
L-€L2-0L¥2-0S
}-212-01v2-0S
L-¥12-02€2-05
}-€12-02€2-05
L-212-02€2-0S
L'v12°0222°0S
}-€12-02¢2-0S
1-212-02¢2-05
L'E'¥Le’ 012205
L'EELE0LCZ0S

uonduosag ; ‘

% : uBouN
05 Pun4 335 05/ I NI

¥ asD ediey e

Wd8¥:gl:l ¥20¢/L1/90 ‘pejulld

>g - Hoday aimipuadx3 Lp€ SO @7 JeH e



FUND

EDUCATION

BUILDING.

DEBT SERVICE

TRANSPORTATION.

IL MUNICIPAL RET.
CAPITAL PROJECTS

WORKING CASH

TORT IMMUNITY FUND
FIRE PREV & SAFETY

CURRENT TOTAL

INVESTMENTS

NOTES:

NOW Account

Liguid Asset
Treasurer's Pool

First State/M.Market
Interest distributed to
each FUND based on
percentage invested

CASH & INVESTMENTS AS |

LA HARPE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT #347

“TREASURER'S REPORT MAY 31,2024

Karen Nudd

e en Fluzd 6-/2-24

Date

|CASH BALANCES:NOW ACCOUNT _ INVESTMENTS
|Balance |Receipts | Disbursements | Balance ey | e o BN .
41302024 5/31/2024 =
544325115 $24,47985  $313,77652 $153,954.48 ___ $0.00 |F.STATE/M.MRKT.
i _ o = $1,967,325.76_IL TREAS POOL
$455,172.19 © $000  $31,87295  $423,299.24 $0.00 [F.STATE/M.MRKT.
s = - $84,287.00 IL TREAS POOL
$101,630.97 $0.00 $14,517.60 | $87,113.37 | $0.00 |F.STATE/M.MRKT.
- = ~$3,113.35 [IL TREAS POOL
$30,924.70 | ~$0.00 '$23157.82 $7,766.88 |  $0.00 F.STATE/M.MRKT.
- '$173,386.81 | [L TREAS POOL
$70,659.49 | $0.00 | $16,741.86 ~ $53,917.63 | ~ $0.00 |[F.STATE/M.MRKT.
([ - $0.00 [IL TREAS POOL
$0.00 $0.00 | $0.00 ~ $0.00 $0.00 F.STATE/M.MRKT.
$150,250.42 $0.00 | $0.00 $150,250.42 $0.00 |F.STATE/M.MRKT.
$0.00 IL TREAS POOL
$177,285.98 $0.00 $0.00 $177,285.98 0.0 F.STATE/M.MRKT.
$0.00 IL.TREAS.POOL
$238,439.24 $0.00 | $0.00 '$238,439.24 $0.00 IL. TREAS.POOL
$1,667,614.14  $24,479.85  $400,066.75 $1292,027.24 $2,228,112.92
$2,228112.92
5/31/2024 $3,520,140.16
'Daily Rate Int./Month Int./YTD
0.25% $649.82 $6,399.98
5.42% $10,058.16 $111,472.88
$0.00




1d¥ dedig mg\soueulf\gAsps\adieHe T\SA:Q

|
H
ll

000 000 000 ‘ejo) poday
pung j’ j. lccd||| dnoso pund Jo pung Aouaby 66
SSE[D JUNCODY  » (8v'80¥'v2) 05'¥€0'L (86°2¥1'SZ) SapIIGeIT JuBLIND oo
66-00682-+8¥-66 (8¥6v1) 000 (st'6v1) slad
66-0022- 18166 (69'169'Y) 000 (69°'169') aNNd IONNOD IN3ANLS
66-0092-18t-66 (sr€) 00’0 (sLe) vAVHA
66-0052-18%-66 (ZLez8'L) (05°22) {£966L'L) AdvHdll
66-00t2- 1866 (89°28€'}) 000 (89°/8¢'1) DJISNW/ANYE
66-0062-181-66 (15'508'%) 0S'1HLL'L (10'226'S) HOIH HOINAP
66-0022Z- 1866 (00°66¥) 000 (00°66+) aNNd TVIHOWIN
66-001.2- 18166 (95'961) (st°2) (Li°681) 1S3A3LNI MON
66-0031-18-66 (05'255'9) 000 (05'255'9) ANINWVYNHNOL TYNOIDIN
66-0051-18¥-66 (62'562) 000 (62'662) TIVELINSYE SAOE Hr
66-007}-187-66 (18°70%) 000 (L8'+05) TIVEAITIOA HP
66-00€1L-18t-66 (95'v8) 000 (95'¥8) Tva3asve He
66-00Z1L-18¥-66 (zp968) 000 (2t'569) TIVELINSVE ST HI
66-0001-18¥-66 (95'818'2) (g0zol) (15°942'2) SNOISSIONOD
segijiqern uaung
SSE[D JUNOOOY 8v'80b'v2 (05'¥£0'1) B6'ZYb'SZ sjassy uany  gol

ZL1-66 8v'80v've (05've0't) 896°2vb'se MNVE NI HSYD ALIALLOY
$)esSsy Juaind

JaquINN WNoIsy selg RIAIOY "' LA Aoy aLiN PWLIeE O LA uopdusseq

SSE[D JUN0OIY
66 dnoig pung o pund Aouaby

L¥€ Qs edieH e
WdPr:62:L $202/L0/90 :pejuild
$202/1£/G 40 se poday

L jo | abegd jodys aduejeg
\ )




1d¥'20dV Ims\edueulf\gAsps\edieHET\S\:A
"ou| ‘swalsAs eyeq pazielosds

1-01€-01€2-0L  00°000'Z 60LL6  YelZL/9 vereL9 cl SN1d-SS3dd L-0L€-01€2-01 v6.l9ey

L-0L-0LEC-0L  00°18L 6016  ¥Erel9 veren Zh LISMO08 AIAYNS MV1TOOHOS 8SVI 1-0L¥-0L€C-01 8LELEV

L-0¥9-0LEC-0L 00'Vi8'L 60LL6  VErCL/9 \ZArATE] cl S3NA dIHSHIWAW 8SYl  Sa¥VOH 'HOS 40 "00SSV T 1-0¥9-0L€2-0L 1422154
00°56Y fejol

L-z€€-02c€C-01  00'S6 80LL6  veiel/9 vereLo [4 Nnav1o - SISV 139ang |-2€€-02€2-0} ¥202/50/90

}-2e€-02€e-0}  00°00¥ 80LL6  veieh9 vereLs (43 NAavio - ONINIVYL HO1VNTIVAI Wav THOS 40 D0SSY |-¢€€-02€2-04  YZIEQEL0-VB
0Z'es lejol

1-0GE-04€2-0L 0CT'ES 046 VT/CLi9 ye/ieLs zl saIg1and  TIND NOSHIANIH-HMNOOINVH 1-06€-01€2-0} ¥202/90/90
66'65 IejoL

1-0L¥-022¢-0} 66'6S 90LL6  veieLie vereLg cl 739V AMYHEIT 3304N0SIY AdvdE 113711704 1-01¥-02¢2-01 991EYS1
65°1G€'t lejoL

1-009-0992-01  65°ISE'L 0116 ve/CLi9 verev9 cl TVINIY H31dOD ATHLNOW SWIALSAS AdOD TVLIOIA 1-009-099¢-01 clesseyy
SZYiS'L [ejoL

L-0V-0pS2-02  STYLS'L voLle  veieL9 vereLe cl 3XN130 eNE0S ONI LIINN3g Xea 1-01¥-0vS2-0¢ +202/90/90

00'18E'EL lejol

PL-LL-LOML-0L  00'LBE'EL  €0LL6  ¥2iZl/9 veiehio el FUNNTNOREND HLYN AQYIS-T 071 STLVIO0SSY WNINDI¥AEND Yi-LLY-L0LL-0L 28261806
00064 lejol
L-00€-0952-01  00°0F coLLe  beleli9 veiel9 Zl 43134vD - TOHLINOD 1S3d ATHLNOW +-00€-095¢2-0L ¥202/62/50
L-D0E-0¥S2-02 00°05L c0LL6  velel/9 vereL9 cl STLINSAL - NOOIYLNAS TVNNNY 153d 8 3LINYTL S3ddOD 1-00€-0vS5¢-0¢ ¥202/10/30
Zy'v00's lejoL
1-/Z€-0¥52-02 2V v00'S LOLL6 vereLo veicyi9 43 OIY1OTTFNULN/NEO  ADHUINIMIN NOLLYTIZLSNOD 1-12€-0v52-0C ¥20¢e/¥2/S0
00°008'Y leyoL
¥1-00€-0521-01  00°008'v 00LL6  veieL/9 AAIE] cl diS 1371l 071 3AISTING ¥1-00€-122-05¢1-01 cisl
66'6vLC [ejol
L-LL-0¥SZ-02  66'6VL'2 660L6  v2/ZL/9 vereLe (43 IV TIYM ONI S1H0OdS NSg8 L-L1¥-0¥52-02 9¥.9¥9¥26
56°66¢€ lejoL
L-L1$-0952-01 S6'66€ 860L6  ve/ei/9 verevin cl VI¥IL34vD NIVHOHLIHYI/SANHIYE O8NIE 1-11¥-0962-01 ¥20Z/1€/S0
05261 ¢S eyoL
8-0¥5-0¥52-02 0S26L'2S 16016  ¥2l2L/3

veieLi9 cl 103rodd LNIJWIAOV1d3d N1 91H SYIHLOYE ATONMY 8-0¥5-0¥52-02
# sjequo  ajeq # # . .
j98ys  asuadxy 3%9BY) ‘O'd uoeg

122S2)

i S NSV ..w.mnm._g:_._
$202/21/9 O} $Z20Z/ZL/9 ‘oreq uo ssuadx3

L¥€ 4SO odiey e
INVSG0:2Z:LL +202/€L/90 paund

£ 10 | obed JaquinN 329y9 Aq sjqehed syun )oy pled-

)

#31UN093Yy 31EIS Junowy uondisosag QWEN 10pUap




1d¥'20dV ms\eoueuld\gAsps\edieHe\sh:a
"ou| ‘SWieIsAg ele( pazijeoadg

¥1-LL-10LL-0L  80°06Y 22L6  vZiZLli9  veeL9 £l S3MNddNS dIS 1 31LIL L=V 1-LOLL-0F 7)€58-99/6258

L-60-041-G0Z4-0  G6'G8S 226 VZRM9  vereM9 £l S3MNddNS dIS | 31LIL "ONI ‘43N1S GO0 ATIVIY 1-1-01#-60Z1-0L 9976258
05°Lv6'} lejol

i-LLP-80VL-0L  0S'Z¥6'L  LZLLE  VerRL9  vZrel9 4 1OVHINOD A1LNOW NOILNTOS MHOMLIAN ALITYND L=LL+-80¥L-0) €691/
16091'2 lejoL

L-LLp-0952-01  /608L'Z  0ZLL6  YERL9  vZiZL9 Zl VI43134v0 AHIVG SWHVH TdIvid L-LLy-0952-0} ¥202/80/90
186V JejoL

}-12E-0¥52-02  LE'BIY 8LLL6 V229 ¥TZL9 zl ONILYIH-THLA SVO HOOIN 1-12€-0v52-02 ¥20Z/SL/S0
SLveo'L {ejoL

|-0bS-0bS2-02 SL'¥29'L  8LIL6  YZZL9  vErelLi9 4} 3S30 MIN - ¥3ddOH JNLINYNA SSANISNE TWNOILYN 1-0PS-0¥SZ-02 DAL-P6LEETHZ
zv'ees'e JejoL

|-0VS-0VSZ-02 6V.8L'C  IWL6  VZIEM9  vereL9 4} WOOYH Y-Fxd MaN 1-0¥S-0v52-02 29026

I-LLP-0bSZ-02 86°9L0°L  LLLLE  ¥E2CL9  ¥TiTLO 4} S3NddNS INIVIA/SHIVAIY 1-L1-0¥52-02 9/896

1-LL~0¥G2-0Z 66'C L6 V2RV vEeM9 zl S3ddNS INIVW/SHIVdIN 1-LLP-0¥52-02 ££996

L-LL-0PSZ-0Z  96'€8 LLL6  VTELS  ¥eZL9 zl S3NddNS LNIVN/SHIVAIY SAYYNaAW J-LL-0¥52-02 22866
00'22 lejoL

1-00€-0E42-0L 0022 oLLE  VZleL9  veiThi9 4" 1531 g1 - T1ESSNY HyY383d  SOINITO TYOIa03W TVRIOWIW 1-00€-0€12-0} £202/¥2/L0
68°ClY |ejoL

1-82€-0v52-02 68°TlY SLLE  VZIZL9  verRM9 zl JOVYMIS ? ¥IALYMTLLN/NGO SYHOMYILYM TdHYH V1 1-8Z£-0v52-0Z ¥202/1E/50
£€°8.9 lejoL

1-0bE-0rSC-01  £€'8.9 vLLLE V229 veieu9 4} INOHJITAL-ILN "00 INOHJI 3L IdHVYH Y 1-0¥E-0VSZ-0} ¥202/10/90
Ly'eey'e lejoL

L-LL-0962-01  LY'BEV'Z  SLLL6  v2ieL9 vTieh9 4} VIY3134v0 YIDOHO THOM 1-Lb-0962-0) ¥20z/15/S0
00'50S lejoL

L-0LE-01£2-0L  00°S0S ZLL6  YeRMe  bTeLe 4} S3LNA ¥IHUNSVYIHL aanN N3uw 1-01£-0L€2-0} ¥Z02/Z1/90
vl lejoL

1-008-0652-0v ¥ LL L6 v2leMe  v2leM9 zl NVA 30IAM3S S3SIUIHIINT O 9 }-00€-0652-0% 6£2LE
¥5°862 lejoL

1-82€-0v52-02 #5862 0MI6  VeCLI9  veieL9 4" I9VIUVO-TILN/NEO SH1 - WSOdSIa NOSHOV! 1-82E-0752-0C ¥8189LHN
00°199'y 1ejoL

# ajeguo - 2jeq # # - : S
#1Unoody 8jels junotuy yoeys  asuadx3y oayp - ‘0d  Yoleg uondiasag SWEN JIOPUBA NS ## BOIOAN}.

¥202/21/9 0} #202/Z1/9 :8jeq uo asusdx3
L¥€ QSO odieH B
WVG0:/2:LL $202/€1/90 ‘poljulld

¢ 10 Z 9bed JaquinN }28y9 Aq sjqeled syun oy pied-




1d¥20dY ms\eoueuli\gaspsiedieHe\s\:Q
"0u| ‘sSWoIsAg ele pazieleds

—_—
82918 GEC$ Jejo) poday
282902 lejolL

\-LL7-0SG2-0F 28C90'C  CEME  t2RMI  YETH9 £l 10/5%'2 ® SVO 19 €29 "ONI ‘'S4 TVH1N3D 1SIM }-LL1-0552-0F €629€
PN I=loL

|-0Ze-0zZL-0L GL'8L0'F  LELLE  VvZlRM9  ve/eM9 £l NOLLINL TrdV L-02€-0ZL-0b ¥202/ZZ/50

|-026-0ZL-0b  25PS0'Y  LELLE  VZZH9  PTIEL9 gl NOILNL HOMYIN ‘g3'034S TN INZO LSIM 1-02€-0Z}1-0) ¥20Z/ELIS0
09'592'1 j=loL

1-0VS-0¥GZ-0Z 09'G9.'L  OELL6  ¥2RL9  ¥T/eL9 £l 3ON3d - ¥S3Q MaN 971 WOOHSSY IO S.AVAOL 1-0bS-0v52-02 €9/2-42
0S°206 ieoL

1-00€-0¥52-0C 05206 6zL6  verRM9 el €l HIVdIY WODHILNI "0 SOINOYLOT T NOSIWOH.L 1-00€-0¥5¢-02 85€91L1
11161'T IesoL

LL-OVSZ-0Z  LVI6L'Z 8ZLL6  YERMS  bEIeMW9 €l LNIVd WAD SAVITIM-NIMYTHS }-LL-0vSZ-0Z ¥202/LEIS0
00°00S'E leoL

L-00E-0VLZ-0} 00°00S'€  ZZLI6  VZZL9 Y229 €l STVA3 £ - TVOIDOTOHOASd HIAVVIVHS 1-00€-0v12-0) $202/21/90
¥6°082 Iejol

P1-LL1-10LL1-0)  ¥6°082 9ZLI6 Y29 YEZRM9 €1 4OM 3ONIIOS ® SMIN JILSVIOHOS “ONI DILSVI0HOS Y1-LLt-10LL-0) ¥Z0Z/ELISO

Y LSETLL lejol

L-0L¥-LOLL-0L bb'8€L'08 GZLLE  VE/CLi9 vereL/s el ANTINOIYND HLYIA B V13 1-0L¥-1L0LL-01 v202/1E/S0
#1-LLP-L0LL-0)  00'649'Y seHe  veiel/e yereL9 €l JILHOd INVYHO - ANTNDIYEND HIVA vi-H-LOLL-01 ¥202/1€/50
PL-LLE-LOLL-0L  00°000°LC  S2LL6  vElCL/9 ¥ereL/9 £l NOILMOd INVHO - ANTNORRND V13 1T ANVANOD ONINYVIT SYAAYS Y1-LL¥-L0LL-0) ¥20c/1€/S0

00°0L¥'L lejoL

L-0€€-0ZL1-0L  00°0.S vele  vereLe veizVv9 £l 32 A4 HALSTNIS ANT - UDIVWNHS L 1-0e€-0¢i-01 $202/50/90

L-0€€-0Z1L1-01  00°006 veLe  veiTHe vereL/9 €l \O¥ ST Ad ¥3LSINWIS ONZ - AANNG 1 NV - 9¢# 301440 TYNOIO3H 1-0€€-0CL-0} ¥202/S0/90

000 1eyoL

L-00€-0€LC-0L 00°0L ECILE6  VCTH9 velehi9 £l SALNINJHIONIH FOVHIHLIA N 9Z#0NA3 40 321440 O3y 1-00€-0€1L2-0) ¥202/2L/90

€0°9.0'L lejoL

#
%3349

sjeg uo  ajeqg
asuadxg  y23yd

#
‘0Od

#
yayeg

#1UN0%0Y 3lejS Junowy uondiasaq

SWEN 10pUdA

/¥€ asD ediey e
INVS0:2Z:LL ¥20Z/S1/90 -pauld

10 obed 1equinp %08y Aq ajqeked syun Joy pred:



June 18, 2024

Dear LaHarpe School District Board of Education and Administration,

As | am currently pregnant and expecting a new baby at the end of this
month, | am asking for a short leave of absence in August, before
returning to my full-time teaching position in the fall. This will hopefully
allow me 8 weeks of maternity leave.

| am requesting to be gone August 12th-August 23rd and will return to
school on Monday, August 26th. It is my intention to still be present for
the required curriculum trainings, as well as Back to School Night. | will
also ensure that my classroom is set up and ready to go for students on
August 14th and will work closely with my substitute and Miss Kass to
make the transition as easy as possible.

| greatly appreciate your time and consideration of this matter.

Best regards,




Contents

INStrUCHiONS ...ceeenensamracsaencsanens p.-1
PRESS Terminology .....ccoeeenenees p.- 2
PRESS Issue 115 Topic

Bundles p.2
Progress Report .......cocuceneneeae p-4

Revisions to Policies, Administrative
Procedures, and Exhibits (numerical
table) p-5

Next Issue: Title IX Regulation
Updates

Online Instructions

Please follow these four easy
steps to log in to PRESS:

e Go to.www.iasb.com and click on the
BT button on the top navigation.
1. Enter your email address and password.

» |f you do not know your password,
do not create a new account; reset
your password using your district
email address. Use the “forgot
your password?” link. Make sure
to check your spam folder for an
email from info@iasb.com, if you do
not see it in your email inbox.

» If you are still having difficulty
logging in, please contact your
District’s Superintendent or Admin-
istrative Assistant to make sure you
are listed as an authorized user on
the District Roster.

* If you continue to have difficulty
signing on to www.jasb.com, please
contact Michael Ifkovits at

. Click the #5850 pytton on the
top navigator bar. This will bring you to
your account page

4. Under “My Account Links," click
on "PRESS Login."

IMB Illinois Association
of School Boards

Lighting the Way to Excellence in School Governance

w

PRESS

Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

This publication is designed to provide information only and is not a substitute for legal advice from
the Board Attorney. If you have any questions, please contact Issue 115 Lead Debra Jacohson, Assistant
General Counsel and Assistant PRESS Editor, 630/629-3776, ext. 1211, Jeremy Duffy, IASB General
Counsel and PRESS Editor, 630/629-3776, ext. 1226; Maryam Brotine, Assistant General Counsel and
Assistant PRESS Editor, 630/629-3776, ext. 1219.

Please share this PRESS Update Memo with all board
members and appropriate staff.

For answers to com-

Two other important components of PRESS may be
viewed and downloaded from PRESS Online: Com-
mittee Worksheets and the updated Policy Reference
Manual (PRM) pages.

The Committee Worksheets, found by selecting a
PRESS Issue at the top of the PRESS Online Table of
Contents, show suggested changes to PRESS materi-
al by striking out deleted words and underscoring new words, ak.a “tracked
changes.”

Updated PRM pages can be found in the IASB POLICY REFERENCE MANUAL
Table of Contents. For visual instruction about how to download and use PRM

pages to update your policy manual, please go to www.iasb.com/policy/ to view
the PRESS video tutorial located under the header entitled: PRESS — Policy Ref-

erence Education Subscription Service.

oW available
TASB’s website.

PRESS Bundles

Each bundle summarizes the global reasons for changes to all materials that
are listed.

Specific details about how each piece of material changed, e.g,, legislation, ad-
ministrative rules, PRESS Advisory Board feedback, quality assurance, five-year
review items, etc., are explained in numerical order in the Revisions to Policies,
Administrative Procedures, and Exhibits table beginning on p. 5.

Please spend time reviewing the PRESS online Committee Worksheets for these
materials, which will provide further, more on-the-spot detailed explanations
in the footnotes, along with added comment boxes by the PRESS Editors when
necessary.

Have feedback on PRESS materials?
Click on the PRESS Feedback Button, located on the header
bar of PRESS Online. For answers to more immediate questions
about PRESS content, please contact a PRESS editor directly.

A policy service from the lllinois Association of School Boards
Copyright © 2024 lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved



Library Media Resources

The Illinois Secretary of State recently adopted rules to
implement 75 ILCS 10/8.7, added by P.A. 103-100, which
requires boards that want to be eligible for State school
library grant funding to either adopt the American Library
Association’s (ALA) Library Bill of Rights or to develop an
alternative written statement prohibiting the practice of
banning library materials. Sample PRESS policy 6:230,
Library Media Program, was updated in PRESS Issue 113 to
outline these options for boards. With the final regulations
now in place, boards that adopted the alternative written
statement in policy 6:230, Library Media Program, will need
to submit a copy of their policy, along with a copy of the
updated administrative procedure, 6:230-AP, Responding to
Complaints About Library Media Resources, when applying
for the School Library Grant. Districts need to ensure that
their administrative procedure aligns with the option their
board selected in the policy. Boards that previously adopt-
ed the ALA Bill of Rights language in their policy will not
have to submit any such documentation; they will simply
need to certify to the Ill. State Library that they have adopt-
ed the ALA standards in policy.

The following PRESS materials are updated:

6:230, Library Media Program
6:230-AP, Responding to Complaints About Library
Media Resources

Criminal History Record
Information Security

The Ill. State Police (ISP) has started to audit school dis-
tricts’ handling of criminal history record information
(CHRI). The U.S. Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI)
requires all entities that receive CHRI from the FBJ, in-
cluding school districts, to implement security procedures
that comply with its Criminal Justice Information Security
(CJIS) Policy. New administrative procedure 5:30-AP4,
Fingerprint-Based Criminal History Record Information Secu-
rity, is created to assist districts with protecting CHRI in
accordance with the CJIS Policy. The ISP is also available to
provide districts with technical assistance in this area.

The following PRESS material is updated or created:

2:250-AP2, Protocols for Record Preservation and Devel-
opment of Retention Schedules

5:30-AP4, Fingerprint-Based Criminal History Record
Information Security - NEW

PRESS Terminology

What are the meanings of the “AP” and “E” after
certain policy numbers?

The PRESS Policy Reference Manual (PRM) is an
encyclopedia of sample board policies, administrative
procedures, and exhibits. They are all in numerical
order for easy reference. PRESS recommends that local
school districts maintain separate board policy and
administrative procedure manuals to help distinguish
for the board, staff, students, parents, and community
members, the distinction between board documents
and staff documents, board work, and staff work.

Policy. The board develops policies with input

from various sources like district administrators, the
board attorney, and PRESS materials. The board then
formally adopts the policies, often after more than one
consideration.

After adoption by the board, each policy should
have an adoption date.

Administrative Procedures. Administrative procedures
are developed by the superintendent, administrators,
and/or other district staff members. The staff develops
the procedures that guide implementation of the
policies. Administrative procedures are not adopted
by the board, which allows the superintendent and
staff the flexibility they need to keep the procedures
current. PRESS sample procedures are numbered to
correspond with the policies that they implement for
easy reference. For example, policy 6:190’s related
administrative procedure is 6:190-AP.

Administrative procedures should be dated for
implementation by the administrative staff and
kept separately from the board policy manual.

Exhibits. Both board policies and administrative
procedures may have related exhibits. Exhibits provide
information and forms intended to be helpful to the
understanding or implementation of either a board
policy or administrative procedure, and they do not
require formal board adoption. PRESS sample exhibits
are numbered to correspond to the related board
policy or administrative procedure. For example, Board
Policy 2:70 has a related exhibit numbered 2:70-E.
Administrative procedure 7:340-AP1 has a related
exhibit numbered 7:340-AP1, E.

Exhibits labeled with an “E” may provide
guidance for board work or staff work. Those
providing guidance for board work should be
dated for implementation by the board. Those
providing guidance for the staff should be dated
for implementation by the administrative staff.

Administrative procedures exhibits, always la-
beled with the “AP, E” format should be dated for
implementation by the administrative staff.




Miscellaneous

The following PRESS materials are updated due to legislation,
administrative rule and/or continuous improvement chang-
es, including subscriber feedback. These are also detailed in
the Revisions to Policies, Administrative Procedures, and
Exhibits table in numerical order beginning on p. 5.

The following PRESS materials are updated:

4:80, Accounting and Audits
4:140, Waiver of Student Fees
4:140-AP, Fines, Fees, and Charges — Waiver of Student Fees

PRM Five-Year Reviews

PRESS Editors have a quality assurance goal to ensure that

a review of each piece of the 1500+ page IASB PRESS PRM
occurs once every five years. The PRM contains approximately
474 separate pieces of material, including policies, administra-
tive procedures, and related exhibits. These are also detailed
in the Revisions to Policies, Administrative Procedures, and
Exhibits table in numerical order beginning on p. 5.

The following PRESS materials are updated in response to
five-year reviews:

2:70, Vacancies on the School Board - Filling Vacancies

2:70-E, Checklist for Filling Board Vacancies by Appointment

2:125, Board Member Compensation; Expenses

2:125-E1, Board Member Expense Reimbursement Form

2:125-E2, Board Member Estimated Expense Approval
Form

2:160, Board Attorney

2:160-E, Checklist for Selecting a Board Attorney

4:15, Identity Protection

4:15-AP1, Protecting the Privacy of Social Security Numbers

4:15-AP2, Treatment of Personally Identifiable Informa-
tion Under Grant Awards

4:40, Incurring Debt

4:40-AP, Preparing and Updating Disclosures

4:70, Resource Conservation

4:70-AP, Resource Conservation

4:80-AP3, Inventory Management for Federal and State
Awards

5:20-E, Resolution to Prohibit Sexual Harassment

5:35-AP2, Employee Records Required by the Fair Labor
Standards Act

5:35-AP3, Compensable Work Time for Non-Exempt
Employees Under the FLSA

5:200, Terms and Conditions of Employment and Dis-
missal

6:140, Education of Homeless Children

6:140-AP, Education of Homeless Children

7:280-AP, Managing Students with Communicable or
Infectious Diseases

7:280-E2, Reporting and Exclusion Requirements for
Common Communicable Diseases

5:310, Compensatory Time-Off

5:310-E, Agreement to Receive Compensatory Time-Off

6:110, Programs for Students At Risk of Academic Failure
and/or Dropping Out of School and Graduation In-
centives Program

6:120-AP1, E2, Special Education Required Notice and
Consent Forms

6:120-AP2, Access to Classrooms and Personnel

6:120-AP2, E1, Request to Access Classroom(s) or Person-
nel for Special Education Evaluation and/or Observa-
tion Purposes

6:150, Home and Hospital Instruction

6:170-AP2, E1, District Annual Report Card Required by
Every Student Succeeds Act

6:280-AP, Evaluating and Reporting Student Achieve-
ment

6:300-E1, Application for a Diploma for a Service member
Killed in Action or for Veterans of WWII, the Korean
Contflict, or Vietnam Conflict

7:40-AP, Placement of Nonpublic School Students Trans-
ferring Into the District

7:170, Vandalism

7:240-AP2, Extracurricular Drug and Alcohol Testing
Program

7:250-AP1, Measures to Control the Spread of Head Lice
at School

7:270-E2, School Medication Authorization Form — Medical
Cannabis

8:25-AP, Advertising and Distributing Materials in
School Provided by Non-School Related Entities

8:95-E1, Letter Notifying Parents/Guardians of School
Visitation Rights

5:35-AP4, Fair Labor Standards Act 12-Step Compliance
Checklist

5:35-E, Volunteer Agreement Executed by a Non-Exempt
Employee

5:120-E, Code of Ethics for Illinois Educators

5:130, Responsibilities Concerning Internal Information

5:180, Temporary Illness or Temporary Incapacity

5:250-AP, School Visitation Leave

5:285, Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus and
Commercial Vehicle Drivers

Please also spend time reviewing the PRESS Online Com-
mittee Worksheets for these materials, which will provide
further, more on-the-spot detailed explanations in the
footnotes, along with added comment boxes by the PRESS
Editors when necessary.



Progress Report = The contents of this table fre

-

_Topics

quently change.

Final Title IX Regulations Effective 8-1-2024

On 4-19-24, the U.S. Dept. of Education released final Title IX regulations, effective
8-1-24. PRESS Issue 116 (August 2024) will address the new Title IX regulations. Updated
sample policies, administrative procedures, and exhibits should be available for PRESS
subscribers on 8-1-24. Customized policy draft updates should be available for PRESS Plus
subscribers on or around 8-9-24.

Please note that the affected board policies were included in PRESS and PRESS Plus Issue
114 (March 2024); however, the [ssue 114 updates are unrelated to new Title 1X regulation
changes. Boards may prepare for upcoming PRESS [ssue 116 by adopting the Issue 114
updates as soon as possible.

Affected PRESS materials, including
the 2:265 suite, will be updated in
PRESS Issue 116 (August)

Pregnancy Workers Fairness Act Regulations Issued

On 4-19-24, the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission released final regula-
tions to implement the Pregnant Workers Fairness Act (PWFA). The final rule is scheduled
to take effect on 6-18-24, but it is being challenged in court by attorneys general in at
least 17 states. Among the more controversial provisions of the rule, abortion is included
as a “related medical condition” to pregnancy and childbirth. Further, under the new
rule, a pregnant employee may still qualify for the protections of the PWFA even if the
employee cannot perform an essential job function for a temporary period (i.e., 40 weeks
of pregnancy).

If the new rule goes into effect,
affected PRESS materials, including
5:10, Equal Employment and Minori-
ty Recruitment, will be updated in a
future PRESS issue.

New FLSA Overtime Regulations Released

On 4-23-24, the U.S. Dept. of Labor issued a final rule that raises the minimum salary
threshold for exempt workers in two stages. Beginning 7-1-24, the minimum salary to
qualify for exempt status will be increased from $684 per week ($35,568 per year) to
$844 per week ($43,888 per year). Then, beginning 1-1-25, the threshold will increase
again to $1,128 per week ($58,656). The threshold for the exemption for highly compen-
sated employees will also increase. Starting 7-1-27, the rule provides for automatic in-
creases every three years based on current earnings data. Teachers continue o be exempt
from overtime under the updated rules. Legal challenges to the new rule are anticipated.

If the new rule goes into effect,
5:35, Compliance with the Fair
Labor Standards Act, and 5:35-AP1,
Fair Labor Standards Act Exemp-
tions, will be updated in the fall
PRESS issue.

Website and Mobile Application Rule Is Released

On 4-24-24, the U.S. Dept. of Justice issued regulations under Title Il of the Americans
with Disabilities Act that will require State and local governments, including school
districts, to implement the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) Version 2.1,
Level AA for their web content and mobile apps. Districts will have to make sure their
web content and mobile apps meet this technical standard by either 4-24-26, or 4-26-27,
depending on the size of their local populations. There are limited and detailed exemp-
tions to the rule, such as archived web content and preexisting conventional electronic
documents (such as PDFs). For more information about this rule, see www.ada.gov/notic-
es/2024/03/08/web-rule.

Affected PRESS materials, including
2:260, Uniform Grievance Proce-
dure, and 8:70, Accommodating
Individuals with Disabilities, will be
updated in a future PRESS issue.

PRESS Issue 115 Trivia

159 pages ® 59,113 words ¢ 54 materials




Certain PRM materials in a PRESS Issue may be labeled in the PRESS Bundles, Revision Table and Committee Worksheets
with one or more of the following categories:

NEW. This material is brand new to the PRM.

RENUMBERED. This material has been assigned a new number within the PRM, usually due to the addition of NEW
material.

RENAMED. The title of the material has been amended.

REWRITTEN. The material has undergone significant revisions. To preserve the readability of the Committee Worksheets,
suggested changes are not shown as tracked changes.

REFORMATTED. Non-substantive changes in formatting, €., list renumbering, have been applied for consistency
throughout the PRM. To preserve the readability of the Committee Worksheets, such formatting changes are not reflected
as tracked changes.

Revisions to Policies, Administrative Procedures, and Exhibits

2:70, Vacancies on the School The policy is unchanged. The footnotes are updated in response to a five-year
Board - Filling Vacancies review.

2:70-E, Checklist for Filling Board The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.
Vacancies by Appointment

2:125, Board Member Compensa- The policy is unchanged. The footnotes are updated in response to a five-year
tion; Expenses review.
2:125-E1, Board Member Expense The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.

Reimbursement Form

2:125-E2, Board Member Estimat- The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.
ed Expense Approval Form

2:160, Board Attorney The policy and footnotes are updated in response to a five-year review.

2:160-E, Checklist for Selecting a The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.
Board Attorney

ol o/ol ol ol ol o of

2:250-AP2, Protocols for Record The exhibit is updated in response to Federal Bureau of Investigation’s Crim-
Preservation and Development of inal Justice Information Services (CJIS) Security Policy, which requires school
Retention Schedules districts to have written procedures in place to protect criminal history record

information, and for continuous improvement.

O

4:15, Identity Protection The Legal References, Cross References, and footnotes are updated in response
to a five-year review. The Legal References are updated with a minor style
change. Policy 7:345, Use of Educational Technologies; Student Data Privacy, is
added to the Cross References.

4:15-AP1, Protecting the Privacy The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review. D
of Social Security Numbers

4:15-AP2, Treatment of Personally The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review. D
[dentifiable Information Under
Grant Awards




Revisions to Policies, Administrative Procedures, and Exhibits — continued

4:40, Incurring Debt

The Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to a five-year
review. The Legal References are updated with minor style changes.

4:40-AP, Preparing and Updating
Disclosures

REFORMATTED. The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

4:70, Resource Conservation

The policy and footnotes are updated in response to a five-year review.

4:70-AP, Resource Conservation

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

4:80, Accounting and Audits

The policy, Legal References, and footnotes are updated. The policy is updated

in response to PRESS Advisory Board member feedback to raise the maximum
balance for revolving fund bank accounts. The Legal References are updated with

a minor style change. The footnotes are updated in response to 44 Il.Admin.Code
§7000.90(c)(3), added by 47 lll.Reg. 7893, requiring districts that receive federal and
State grant awards to have an annual audit of their financial statements conducted in
accordance with 1SBE accounting rules, and for continuous improvement.

I o o

4:80-AP3, Inventory Management
for Federal and State Awards

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

O

4:140, Waiver of Student Fees

The policy is unchanged. The footnotes are updated in response to 23 [ll. Ad-
min.Code §1.245, amended at 47 Ill. Reg. 18457, addressing school fines, and
for continuous improvement.

4:140-AP, Fines, Fees, and
Charges — Waiver of Student Fees

The exhibit is updated for the reasons stated in 4:140, Waiver of Student Fees,
above.

5:20-E, Resolution to Prohibit
Sexual Harassment

The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.

5:30-AP4, Fingerprint-Based
Criminal History Record Informa-
tion Security

NEW. The procedure is created in response to the Federal Bureau of Inves-
tigation’s Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS) Security Policy, which
requires school districts to have written procedures in place to protect criminal
history record information.

5:35-AP2, Employee Records
Required by the Fair Labor Stan-
dards Act

The procedure is unchanged in response to a five-year review.

5:35-AP3, Compensable Work
Time for Non-Exempt Employees
Under the FLSA

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

5:35-AP4, Fair Labor Standards
Act 12-Step Compliance Checklist

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

5:35-E, Volunteer Agreement Exe-
cuted by a Non-Exempt Employee

The exhibit unchanged in response to a five-year review.

5:120-E, Code of Ethics for lllinois
Educators

The exhibit is unchanged in response to a five-year review.




Revisions to Policies, Administrative Procedures, and Exhibits — continued

5:130, Responsibilities Concerning
Internal Information

The Legal References, Cross References, and footnotes are updated in response
to a five-year review. A Cross Reference to policy 7:345, Use of Educational
Technologies; Student Data Privacy and Security, is added.

5:180, Temporary llness or Tem-
porary Incapacity

The policy is unchanged. The footnotes are updated in response to a five-year
review,

5:200, Terms and Conditions of
Employment and Dismissal

The Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 105 ILCS
5/22-96, addressing short-term approvals for educators. The footnotes are also
updated for continuous improvement.

5:250-AP, School Visitation Leave

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

5:285, Drug and Alcohol Testing
for Schoo! Bus and Commercial
Vehicle Drivers

The Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to a five-year
review. The Legal References are updated with a minor style change.

5:310, Compensatory Time-Off

The Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to a five-year
review. The Legal References are updated with a minor style change.

5:310-E, Agreement to Receive
Compensatory Time-Off

The exhibit is unchanged in response to a five-year review.

6:110, Programs for Students At
Risk of Academic Failure and/

or Dropping Out of School and
Graduation Incentives Program

The policy is unchanged. The footnotes are updated in response to a five-year
review.

6:120-AP1, E2, Special Education
Required Notice and Consent Forms

The exhibit is unchanged in response to a five-year review.

6:120-AP2, Access to Classrooms
and Personnel

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

6:120-AP2, E1, Request to Access
Classroom(s) or Personnel for
Special Education Evaluation and/
or Observation Purposes

The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.

6:140, Education of Homeless
Children

The Legal References, Cross References, and footnotes are updated. The Legal
References and footnotes are updated in response to 23 . Admin.Code §1.241,
Dispute Resolution for Students Experiencing Homelessness, added at 47 IIL.
Reg. 2411. The footnotes are updated for continuous improvement. Policy
4:140, Waiver of Student Fees, is added to the Cross References.

6:140-AP, Education of Homeless
Children

The procedure is updated in response to 23 lil.Admin.Code §1.241, Dispute
Resolution for Students Experiencing Homelessness, added at 47 |ll.Reg. 241,
and for continuous improvement.

6:150, Home and Hospital
Instruction

The policy and footnotes are updated in response to a five-year review.




Revisions to Policies, Administrative Procedures, and Exhibits — continued

! o _! md.’—_iﬂe

6:170-AP2, E1, District Annual
Report Card Required by Every
Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)

The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.

6:230, Library Media Program

The policy is unchanged. The footnotes are updated in response to 23 lll.
Admin.Code §§3035.120 and 3035.140, amended by 48 lll.Reg. 948, requiring
a district to establish written procedures if it adopts an alternative written state-
ment to prohibit the banning of books or resources.

6:230-AP, Responding to Complaints
About Library Media Resource

The procedure is updated for the reason stated in 6:230, Library Media
Program, above.

6:280-AP, Evaluating and Report-
ing Student Achievement

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

6:300-E1, Application for a
Diploma for a Service member
Killed in Action or for Veterans of
WWII, the Korean Conflict, or the
Vietnam Conflict

The exhibit is unchanged in response to a five-year review.

7:40-AP, Placement of Nonpublic
School Students Transferring Into
the District

The procedure is unchanged in response to a five-year review.

O

7:170, Vandalism

The Legal References are updated with a minor style change in response to a
five-year review.

7:240-AP2, Extracurricular Drug
and Alcohol Testing Program

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

7:250-AP1, Measures to Control
the Spread of Head Lice at School

The procedure is unchanged in response to a five-year review.

7:270-E2, School Medication Autho-
rization Form — Medical Cannabis

The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review,

7:280-AP, Managing Students
with Communicable or Infectious
Diseases

The procedure is updated in response to 77 lll. Admin.Code Part 690, amend-
ed by 47 1ll. Reg. 18112 and 48 lll. Reg. 4098, revising rules regarding various
communicable diseases.

O O O O O

7:280-E2, Reporting and Exclu-
sion Requirements for Common
Communicable Diseases

The exhibit is updated for the reson stated in 7:280-AP, Managing Students
with Communicable or Infectious Diseases, above.

O

8:25-AP, Advertising and Distribut-
ing Materials in Schools Provided
by Non-School Related Entities

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

8:95-E1, Letter Notifying Parents/
Guardians of School Visitation Rights

The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.




. protect and preserve [ASB through legal
- risk management and compliance services

Issue 115 Lead:

Qe . , =
& ;
.©
(o) " ¥
; Office of o §
2\ General Counsel BT
© s Assistant PRESS Editor,

Assistant General Counsel

{ext. 1211) djacobson@iasb.com

o D@g.

22 @y ™ &
The IASB Office of General Counsel’s mission
is to honestly, professionally, and credibly

for the IASB Board of Directors and staff;
promote best practices to IASB members;
create educational products and services; and
maintain strong, collaborative relationships
with the public education community.

Ummehani Faizullabhoy
Assistant Directar,
Office of General Counsel

(ext. 1227) ufaizullabhoy@iash.com

Acknowledgement to PRESS Advisory Board

The Policy Reference Education Subscription Service (PRESS) Advisory Board consists of a group
of distinguished individuals, from the legal and education field. These individuals dedicate and
volunteer their time to provide valuable input and suggestions on PRESS lssues. We appreciate
their contributions and thank them sincerely.

— Jeremy Duffy, Maryam Brotine, Debra Jacobson
Charles Watkins, Associate Director/General Counsel, lllinois Association of School Administrators
Brian Schwartz, Deputy Executive Director & General Counsel, lilinois Principals Association
Heather K. Brickman, Attorney, Hodges, Loizzi, Eisenhammer, Rodick & Kohn LLP

Dr. Kimberly C. Chambers, Executive Director, lllinois Association of School Personnel
Administrators; Director of Human Resources, Adlai E. Stevenson High School District 125

Teri Engler, Attorney, Engler Callaway Baasten & Sraga, LLC

Dr. Dale R. Fisher, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, Deerfield Public Schools
District 109

Yashekia Goldsmith, Deputy General Counsel, Rockford Public Schools
Stephanie E. Jones, Attorney, Kriha Boucek LLC

Kathy Marshall, Assistant Superintendent, Bureau-Henry-Stark ROE 28

steve Miller, Executive Director of Business Operations, Schaumburg CCSD 54
David G. Penn, Attorney, Schmiedeskamp, Robertson, Neu & Mitchell LLP
Merry Rhoades, Attorney, Tueth, Keeney, Cooper, Mohan & Jackstadt P.C.

M. Curt Richardson, Attorney, McLean County Unit District 5

Caroline Roselli, Attorney, Robbins Schwartz

Wayne Savageau, former IASB Policy Consultant, and former Superintendent

Michael Ifkovits
Legal Assistant,
Office of General Counsel

(ext. 1237) mitkovits@iash.com

Maryam Brotine
Assistant PRESS Editor,

Karis Li
‘Legal Assistant,
Office of General Counsel
(ext. 1236) kligziash com

Special Acknowledgement
to IASB Legal Assistants

The following individuals pro-

vide us with excellent assistance
between and during the drafting of
each PRESS issue. We also thank
them and appreciate their dedica-
tion and contributions to the quality
of this service.

Ummehani Faizullabhoy, Office
of General Counsel, preparation,
formatting, quality assurance,
editor, State and federal regulations
monitor

Michael tfkovits, Office of General
Counsel, preparation, formatting,
quality assurance, editor, State and
federal regulations monitor

Karis Li, Office of General Counsel,
preparation, formatting, quality
assurance, editor, State and federal
regulations monitor

Dr. Lisa L. Smith, Retired Associate Superintendent for Educational Services, Community School District 308

Dr. Glenn A. Wood, Assistant Superintendent, Plainfield Community Consolidated School District 202

H. Allen Yow, Attorney, Rammelkamp Bradney, Attorneys at Law

1ASB Staff Members, especially Policy Services Directors and select Field and Equity Services and Governmental Relations Directors

IMB [llinois Association
of School Boards

292 Baker Drive, Springfield, lllinois 62703-5929, Phone: 12171 528-9633

Lighling the Way to Excellence in School Governance

9

One Imperial Place, 1 Easl 22nd Street, Suite 310, Lombard, [linois 60148-6120. Phone: 1630) 629-3776







S%c*\%()n \
Oeteber2049June 2024 2:70

School Board

Vacancies on the School Board - Filling Vacancies 1

Vacancy
Elective office of a School Board member becomes vacant before the term’s expiration when any of
the following occurs: 2

1. Death of the incumbent,

2. Resignation in writing filed with the Secretary of the Board,

3. Legal disability, 3

4. Conviction of a felony, bribery, perjury, or other infamous crime orofany offense involving
a violation of official oath or of a violent crime against a child, 4

Removal from office,

The decision of a competent tribunal declaring his or her election void, 3

7. Ceasing to be an inhabitant of the District or a particular area from which he or she was
elected, if the residential requirements contained in the School Code are violated,
8. An illegal conflict of interest, or

N

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content. A helpful publication is on the IASB website, Vacancies on the Board of
Education, published by the Til. Council of School Attorneys (ICSA), available at: www.iasb.com/law/vacancies.cfin.

2 105 ILCS 5/10-11. See also 10 ILCS 5/25-2.

3 Id. Legal disability is not defined, but must be interpreted consistently with other laws, e.g., laws prohibiting
discrimination on the basis of a disability. A similar statute regarding the occurrence of vacancies on the State Board of
Education provides guidance. It states that a vacancy occurs when: “a member is adjudicated to be a person under legal
disability under the Probate Act of 1975-as-amended: or a person subject to involuntary admission under the Mental Health
and Developmental Disabilities Code.” 105 [LCS 5/1A-2.1.

4 Id. at f/n 2. See also IlL Constitution, Art. XIIL, and 5 ILCS 280/1. Depending on the authority, infamous crime has
different meanings. Pursuant to 10 [LCS 5/25-2 felony, bribery, and perjury fall-are infamous crimes. An infamous crime is
one that is inconsistent with commonly accepted principles of honesty and decency. People ex rel. City of Kankakee v.
Morris, 126 1L App.3d 722 (3rd Dist. 1984). An admission of guilt, pursuant to a plea agreement, to an otherwise office-
disqualifying offense, constitutes a resignation. 10 ILCS 5/25-2. An 11l Agppellate court twice found that a felony forgery
conviction in another state constituted an infamous crime rendering the individual ineligible to hold the office of school
board member. Alvarez v. Williams. 23 N.E.3d 544 (Il App.1 2014); Williams v. Cook Co. Officers Electoral Board, 35
N.E.3d 82 (Ill.App.1 2015).

A board member commits official misconduct if he/she intentionally or recklessly fails to perform any mandatory duty
required by law, knowingly performs an act forbidden by law, performs an act in excess of his or her lawful authority in
order to obtain personal advantage for oneself or another, or solicits or knowingly accepts for doing any act a fee or reward
which he or she knows is not authorized by law. 720 ILCS 5/33-3.

5 See Miceli v. Lavelle, 114 IILApp.3d 311 (1st Dist. 1983).

6 1d. at f/n 2 and 50 ILCS 105/3. 105 ILCS 5/10-9 contains limited exceptions to the laws prohibiting board member
interest in contracts (explained in footnotes to sample policy 2:100, Board Member Conflict of Interest). Virtually the same
exceptions are stated in 50 [LCS 105/3. For more information, see .nswers 10 FAOs Regarding Conflict of Interest and
Incompatible Offices-£4@ (IlL_Council of School Attorneys), available at: www.iash.comAaw/COl_FAQ.pdf.

2:70 Page 1 of 3
©20242 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

{Hlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



9. Acceptance of a second public office that is incompatible with Board membership. 7

Filling Vacancies 8

Whenever a vacancy occurs, the remaining members shall notify the Regional Superintendent of
Schools of that vacancy within five days after its occurrence and shall fill the vacancy until the next
regular board election, at which election a successor shall be elected to serve the remainder of the
unexpired term. However, if the vacancy occurs with less than 868 days remaining in the term or less
than 88 days before the next regularly scheduled election, the person so appointed shall serve the
remainder of the unexpired term, and no election to fill the vacancy shall be held. Members appointed
by the remaining members of the Board to fill vacancies shall meet any residential requirements as
specified in the School Code. The Board shall fill the vacancy within 60 days after it occurred by a
public vote at a meeting of the Board.

Immediately following a vacancy onthe Board, the Board will publicize it and accept résumés from
District residents who are interested in filling the vacancy.? After reviewing the applications, the
Board may invite the prospective candidates for personal interviews to be conducted during duly
scheduled closed meetings. 10

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

7 An individual may not held-simultaneously hold two offices that are incompatible; acceptance of the second office is
a constructive resignation of the first office (Ill. Constitution, Art. IV, Sec. 2(e), and Art. VI, Sec. 13(b)). The offices of
alderman, school board member, and park district commissioner are incompatible. People ex. Rel. Alvarez v. Price, 408
L App.3d 457 (1st Dist. 2011). The court found that offices can be incompatible absent an actual conflict; the eventuality of
a conflict is enough. See People v. Wilson, 357 Ill. App.3d 204 (3rd Dist. 2005)(simultaneously holding offices as a county
board member and a school board member violates the Public Officer Prohibited Activities Act; this legislation prohibits a
county board member from holding a second office). For more information on incompatible offices, see the FAQ referenced
in f/n 6.

A board member may participate in a group health insurance program provided to an employee of the district that the
board member serves if the board member is a dependent of that employee. 105 ILCS 5/10-22.3a.

8 This paragraph restates the requirements in 105 ILCS 5/10-10-assended b D A_ 10167 ofF | | 20 If the board fails
to act within 60 days after the vacancy occurs, the regional superintendent, under whose supervision and control the district
is operating, must then fill the vacancy within 30 days. Id.

105 TLCS 5/9-11.2 provides that in any school district that elects its board member according to area of residence and
that has one or more unexpired term(s) to be filled at an election, the winner(s) of the unexpired term(s) shall be determined
first and independently of those running for full terms.

If a vacancy for an area of residence remains unfilled, a board must submit a proposition at the next general election for
the election of a board member at large. 105 ILCS 5/10-10.5—amended by P A_100-800,

Questions arise when fewer individuals run for seats on the board than are up for election. 105 ILCS 5/10-11 partially
addresses this issue; it states “no elective office...becomes vacant until the successor of the incumbent of such office has
been appointed or elected, as the case may be, and qualified.” Id. A board with potential #oldover incumbent members
should seek advice from the board attorney regarding (1) how long the seat can be held over by the incumbent member, and
(2) the process by which the Board should fill the seat.

Use this alternative for districts in suburban Cook County: replace “Regional Superintendent” with “appropriate
Intermediate Service Center_Executive Director.”

9 The process for filling a vacancy is at the board’s discretion. See sample exhibil 2:70-E, Checklist for Filling Board
Vacancies by Appointment.

10 The Open Meetings Act allows a board to consider in closed session the appointment of someone to fill a vacancy. 5
ILCS 120/2(c)(3).

2:70 Page 2 of 3
©20242 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-10 and 5/10-11.

CROSS REF.: 2:40 (Board Member Qualifications), 2:60 (Board Member Removal from
Office), 2:120 (Board Member Development)

2:70 Page 3 of 3

©20242 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Oectober2049June 2024 2:70-E

School Board

Exhibit - Checklist for Filling Board Vacancies by Appointment

The School Board fills a vacancy by either appointment or election. The Board uses this checklist for
guidance when it must fill a vacancy by appointment. Some items contain guidelines along with
explanations. For more information, see dnswers to FAQs: Vacancies on the Board of Education,
published by a committee of the Ill. Council of School Attorneys_(ICSA), and available at:
www.iasb.com/law/vacancies.cfm.

] Confirm that the Board must fill the vacancy by appointment.

Guidelines Explanation

Review Board policy 2:70, Vacancies
on the School Board - Filling
Vacancies, to determine if a vacancy ith less than: (1) 868 days remaining
on the Board occurred and, if so, i or (2) 88 days before the next
whether the successor will be selected for the vacant office, no
by election or Board appointment._ is held and the appointee
Consult the Board Attorney as er of the term. At all other times, an
needed. til the next regular school election,
ion a successor is elected to serve the

e unexpired term. See 105 ILCS 5/10-

Filling a vigancy by Board appointment or election

ool Code partially addresses the concept of a
unfilled at a - holdover seat; it states “no elective office...becomes
Board Attogiie ing wvacant until the successor of the incumbent of such
long the <€ ' office has been appointed or elected, as the case may
incumbent be, and qualified.” 105 ILCS 5/10-11.

process by whidh
the seat.

] Notify the RegionalSffperintendent of the vacancy within five days of its occurrence (105
ILCS 5/10-10).

Ol Develop a list of qualifications for appointment of a person to fill the vacancy.

Guidelines Explanation

At a minimum, a candidate must | While the School Code does not expressly set forth
meet the following qualifications: eligibility requirements for appointment to a Board
* BeaUnited States citizen | vacancy, the Board may want to use the qualifications
e Beatleast 18 years of age | for elected Board members listed in 105 ILCS 5/10-3
e Be aresident of [llinois and | and 5/10-10.
District for at least one year
immediately preceding the
appointment

For guidance discussing other qualifications that the
Board may want to consider, see [ASB’s Recruiting

2:70-E Page 1 of 6
D2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Guidelines

Explanation

e Be aregistered voter

¢ Not be a child sex offender

e Not hold anether
incompatible public office

e Not have a prohibited
interest in any contract with
the District

e Not be a school trustee

e Not hold certain types of
prohibited State or federal
employment

School Board Candidates, available at:
www.iasb.com/training/recruiting.cfm

For guidance regarding conflict of interest and
1nc0mpat1b1e offices, see Conflict-ofInterest-and-
Answers to FAQs Regarding

Conflict of Interest and Incompatible Offices (ICSA),
available at:
www.iasb.com/IASB/media/Documents/COl_FAQ.pdf.

When additional qualifications
apply, the following items may be
included in the Board’s list of

Board members of some community unit school
districts may be subject to historical residential
ased on the distribution of population

qualifications: 1 townships in the district or
e Meet all qualifications incorporated and unincorporated
based upon the distribution
of population among of residence remains
congr es§1ona1 townships in st submit a proposition at the next
the district. election of a board member at
o Meet all qualifications 5/10-10.5(c)-added-by-P-A—+00-800.
based upon the distributj
of  population
incorporated d
uninco as.
Decide w recei ple acancy applications.
idelines Explanation
The Board Pre t will acc Who accepts vacancy applications is at the Board’s
applications. sole discretion. According to Board policy 2:110,
The Board will discu Pin open Qualifications, Term, and Duties of Board Officers,

meeting, its process to review the
applications and who will contact
applicants for an interview.

the Board President is a logical officer to accept the
applications, but this task may be delegated to the
Secretary or Supermtendent s secretary if the Board
determines that it is more convenient. Who accepts the
applications must be decided prior to posting the
vacancy announcement.

Create the Board member vacancy announcement.

Announcement Explanation
School District Board The contents of a vacancy announcement, how it is
Member Vacancy announced, and where it is posted are at the Board’s

sole discretion.

2:70-E

Page 2 of 6

©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attormey before use.




Announcement Explanation

The School District is accepting The Board may want to announce the vacancy and its
applications to fill the vacancy intent to fill it by appointment during an open
resulting from [reason for vacancy] meeting. The announcement may be posted on the

of [former Board member's name). District’s website and in the local newspaper(s).

The individual selected will serve on | The length of the appointment depends upon when
the School Board from the date of during the term of office the vacancy occurred. See
appointment to [date]. 105 ILCS 5/10-10 and Board policy 2:70, Vacancies

on the School Board - Filling Vacancies, to
determine the length of the appointment.

Philosophy or mission statement]. for the District’s mission statement that is specific to

The School District [School District’s | See Board policy 1:30, School District Philosophy,

the community’s goals.

Applicants for the Board vacancy
must be: [Board'’s list of
qualifications).

titled Develop a list of
appointment of a person to fill the

oard’s list of
dates in understanding a

Applicants should show familiarity
with the Board’s policies regarding
general duties and responsibilities of uties and responsibilities and may
a Board and a Board member, a versation during the interview
including fiduciary responsibilities, Board policies: 2:20, Powers and Duties
conflict of interest, ethics and gj 3
ban. The Board’s policies are
available at [locations].

ath and Conduct; 2:100, Board Member
of Interest; 2:105 Ethics and Gift Ban; and
2: 120 Board Member Development.

Applicatiopd#fa O ee action item titled Decide who will receive
[location e ess ] completed vacancy applications above.
beginning o

Completed app

and title of person rec®

applications].

] Publicize the vacancy announcement by placing it on the District’s website, announcing
it at a meeting, and/or advertising it in the local newspaper(s).

] Accept and review applications from prospective candidates (see Decide who will receive
completed vacancy applications above).

] Contact appropriate applicants for interviews (see Decide who will receive completed
vacancy applications above).

[]  Develop interview questions.

2:70-E Page 3 of 6

©2644-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Interview Questions

Explanation

Why do you want to be a Board
member?

What specific skills would you bring
to the Board?

Please give specific examples of your
ability in interpersonal relationships
and teamwork.

What do you see as the role of a
Board member?

What have you done to prepare
yourself for the challenges of being a
Board member?

Please describe your previous
community or non-profit experiences.

What areas in the district would you
like to see the Board strengthen?

What is your availability to meet the
time, training commitments, and

other responsibilities required for
Board membership?

Describe what legacy you w
to leave behind,

Interview questions are at the Board’s sole

discretion. This list is not exhaustive, but it may help
the Board tailor its questions toward finding a
candidate who will approach Board membership with
a clear understanding of its demands and
expectations along with a constructive attitude
toward the challenge. The Board may also want to
consider allowing an equal amount of time for each
interview.

See TASB’s Recruiting School Board Candidates,
available at: www.iasb.com/training/recruiting.cfm

A prospective candidate to fill a vacancy may raise
other specific issues that the Board will want to cover

(interviews may occur in closed session pursuant to

Explanation

In each interview,
will:

Introduce Board members to the
candidate at the beginning of the
interview.

Describe the Board’s interview
process, selection process, and ask the
candidate if he or she has questions
about the Board’s process for filling a
vacancy by appointment.

Describe the District’s philosophy or
mission statement.

Describe the vacancy for the

The Board President will lead the Board as it
interviews prospective candidates. See Board policy
2:110, Qualifications, Term, and Duties of Board
Officers. The president presides at all meetings. 105
ILCS 5/10-13.

The Board may also want to consider allowing an
equal amount of time for each interview.

candidate by reviewing the: (1)

2:70-E

Page 4 of 6

©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.




[l

Interview Plan

Explanation

qualifications, and (2) general duties
and responsibilities of the Board and
the Board members, including
fiduciary responsibilities, conflict of
interest, ethics and gift ban, and
general Board member development.

Begin asking the interview questions
that the Board developed.

Ask the candidate whether he or she
has any questions for the Board.

Thank the candidate and inform the
candidate when the Board expects to
make a decision and how the
candidate will be contacted regarding
the Board’s decision.

Fill vacancy by a vote during an open
5/10-10; e —eff

mee before the 60th day (105 ILCS

Explanation

Board.

The appoint
to [date].

The Board previou®
qualifications for the Z3p9
careful and thoughtful manner.
[Appointee’s name] meets these
qualifications and has demonstrated
the willingness to accept the duties
and responsibilities of a Board
member. [Appointee’s name] brings a
clear understanding of the demands
and expectations of being a Board
member along with a constructive
attitude toward the challenge.

The contents of the appointment announcement and
length of time it is displayed are at the Board’s sole
discretion. The Board may want to consider
announcing the appointment during its meeting and
also by posting it in the same places that it posted the
vacancy announcement.

See Board policy 8:10, Connection with the
Community.

Administer the Oath of Office and begin orientation.

2:70-E

Page 5 of 6

©32643-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use




Guidelines Explanation
See Board policy 2:80, Board Each individual, before taking his or her seat on the
Member Oath and Conduct. Board, must take an oath in substantially the form

given in 105 ILCS 5/10-16.5.

See Board policy 2:120, Board Orientation assists new Board members to learn,
Member Development, and exhibit understand, and practice effective governance
2:120-E1, Guidelines for Serving as a | principles. See the IASB Foundational Principles of
Mentor to a New School Board Effective Governance, available at:
Member. www.iasb.com/principles_popup.cfm.

O Inform IASB of the newly appointed Board member’s name and directory information.

Q&

2:70-E Page 6 of 6
©2619-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Mareh2020June 2024 2:125

School Board

Board Member Compensation; Expenses !

Board Member Compensation Prohibited 2

School Board members provide volunteer service to the community and may not receive compensation
for services, except that a Board member serving as the Board Secretary may be paid an amount up to
the statutory limit if the Board so provides.

Roll Call Vote 3

All Board member expenserequests fortravel, meals, and/orlodgingmust be approved by roll call vote
at an open meeting of the Board.

Regulation of School District Expenses 4

The Board regulates the reimbursement of all travel, meal, and lodging expenses in the District by
resolution.5 No later than approval of the annual budget and when necessary, 8 the Superintendent will

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content (105 ILCS 5/10-9, 5/10-10 and 5/22-1 (no compensation allowed, conflicts of
interest prohibited); 105 ILCS 5/10-22.32 (expense advancements); the Local Government Travel Expense Control Act
(ECA), 50 ILCS 150/10 (regulation of travel expenses); and the Grant A ccountability and Transparency Act, 30 ILCS 708/130
(regulation of travel expenses under grants)).

2 The legal limit for board secretary compensation is $500 _per year. 105 ILCS 5/10-14.

3 50 ILCS 150/15. 105 ILCS 5/10-7 also states, “[o]n all questions involving the expenditure of money, the yeas and
nays shall be taken and entered on the records of the proceedings of the board,” i.e., a roll call vote.
Although the School Code has always required a roll call vote on public expenditures, the ECA requires aroll call vote
for any:
1. Officer oremployee of the board that exceeds the maximum allowable reimbursement amount (MARA) set by
the board in its resolution to regulate expenses, or
2. Board member (50 ILCS 150/15).
See f/n 13, below, for more discussion about amending or adopting another resolution when expenses exceed the MARA
required by the ECA.

450 ILCS 150/10 requires boards to regulate the reimbursement of expenses by resolution or ordinance. Unlike like the
powers granted by the [ll. General Assembly to municipalities to pass ordinances, school boards govern by rules referred to
as policies. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.5. Further, school boards may only exercise powers given to them that are consistent with the
School Code that may be requisite or proper for the maintenance, operation, and development of any school or schools under
the jurisdiction of the board. 105 ILCS 5/10-20. Therefore, to effectuate the intent of the ECA’s requirement to regulate
expenses with an ordinance or resolution and stay within the confines of the School Code and best practice (minimize liability
while aligning with the IASB “Foundational Principles of Effective Governance™), the language in this subhead:

1. Retains with the board its duty to regulate expenses through policy with a reference to a resolution that will
define and set the types of allowable expenses in the district through the adoption of board policies 2:125,
Board Member Compensation; Expenses, and 5:60, Expenses (105 ILCS 5/10-20)(see f/in 5, below);

2. Delegates to the superintendent the duty to recommend an appropriate MARA to the board for adoption in its
resolution to regulate expenses (see f/n 7, below).

3 Id. For a sample resolution, see sample exhibit 2:125-E3, Resolution to Regulate Expense Reimbursements. Consult the
board attorney about how often the board should adopt or revisit its resolution (see f/ns 6 and 8, below). For discussion about
setting an annual time of year to adopt the resolution, see f/n 6, below.

6 50 ILCS 150/10 allows boards to determine this timeline locally.

2:125 Page 1 of 6
©2020-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



recommend a maximum allowable reimbursement amount for expenses to be included in the
resolution.” The recommended amount should be based upon the District’s budget and other financial
considerations. 8

Money shall not be advanced or reimbursed, or purchase orders issued for: (1) the expenses of any
person except the Board member,? (2) anyone’s personal expenses, 19 or (3) entertainment expenses.11
Entertainment includes, but is not limited to, shows, amusements, theaters, circuses, sporting events, or

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

While the ECA does not require boards to adopt an annual resolution to regulate expenses, an annual review provides a
way for the board to monitor this policy’s implementation and its duties under the ECA and sample policy 2:240, Board Policy
Development.

This sample policy uses “No later than approval of the annual budget” to align with 105 ILCS 5/17-1 (annual budget
adoption within the first quarter ofeach fiscal year). The words and when necessary allow for flexibility in situations discussed
in f/n 13, below (emergency and/or an extraordinary circumstance).

Consider consulting the board’s auditors to assist with this decision. Other options for the timing of when boards should
set the MARA include deleting - - : and replacing it with:

1. . mnual-bud at-and-replacin «th—At the start of each fiscal vear™

2. : aeing-iwith-=At the start of each school vear=
3. At the start of each calendar vear—
4. g =When presenting the proposed

budget™
7 For practical purposes, this duty is delegated to the superintendent because:
1. The School Code:
a.  Allows the board to delegate duties to the superintendent (105 ILCS 5/10-16.7), and
b. Assigns to the superintendent the duty to make recommendations to the board concerning the budget
(105 ILCS 5/10-21.4); and
2. The MARA should be based upon a district’s financial resources and other considerations important to the
local district.

8 The ECA does not define MARA or how to determine it (see the first sentence of f/in 6, above). The board and
superintendent should have a conversation that addresses at minimum the following topics:
1. Should the superintendent use and refer to line items from the current budget?
2. Would the board set per diems or set a very large number for the board and/or all of the district employees —
both have their advantages and disadvantages.
Should the board categorize MARA by activity?
Will it categorize by individual responsibilities to the district or job titles/classes?
Should there be an amount category for each type of travel: airfare, train, automobile, taxi, etc.?
Will there be a special category for recurring and/or required training opportunities for teachers and board
members?

These choices will depend upon many factors, including the budget, perhaps an auditor’s recommendation, the
community’s preferences, and advice from the board attorney.

Amend the language throughout this subhead and in the fourth WHEREAS paragraph in_sample exhibit 2:125-E3,
Resolution to Regulate Expense Reimbursements, to reflect local preferences. Consider that inserting the actual MARA into
the policy would likely require more formal continual policy updates as opposed to amending the resolution if a board needs
to increase its MARA for any reason. For example, see the discussion in f/n 13, below.

QW

9 105 ILCS 5/10-22.32. The final paragraph of this law prohibits money for expenses from being advanced or reimbursed
to any person other than a board member or employee of the district.

10 Optional. Personal expenses are not defined in 50 ILCS 150/25 or 105 [LCS 5/10-22.32. Consult the board attomey
about this term and delete it only at the direction of the board attorney. Excluding personal expenses from advancements,
reimbursements, and purchase orders is a generally-accepted best practice. The practice also aligns well with the State’s
widely-accepted transparency movement. Reimbursing personal expenses is also a magnet for the media.

50 1LCS 150/25.

2:125 Page 2 of 6
©2629-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




any other place of public or private entertainment or amusement, unless the entertainment is ancillary
to the purpose of the program or event. 12

Exceeding the Maximum Allowable Reimbursement Amount(s)
All requests for expense advancements, reimbursements, and/or purchase orders that exceed the
maximum allowable reimbursement amount set by the Board may only be approved by it when:

1. The Board’s resolution to regulate expenses allows for such approval;
2. An emergency or other extraordinary circumstance exists; and

3. The request is approved by a roll call vote at an open Board meeting. 13

Advancements

The Board may advanceto its membersactual and necessary expenses to be incurred while attending; 14

1. Meetings sponsored by the Illinois State Board of Educationor by the Regional Superintendent
of Schools; 15

2. County orregional meetings and the annual meeting sponsored by any school board association
complying with Article 23 of the School Code; and

3. Meetings sponsored by a national organization in the field of public school education.

Expense advancement requests must be submitted to the Superintendent or designee on the Board’s
standardized estimated expense approval form. After spendingexpense advancements, Board members
must use the Board’s standardized expense reimbursement form and submit to the Superintendent: (a)
the itemized, signed advancement voucherthat was issued, and (b) the amount of actual expenses by
attaching receipts. A Board member must retum to the District any portion of an expense advancement
not used.16 If an expense advancement is not requested, expense reimbursements may be issued by the

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.
1219

13 50 ILCS 150/10 and 15. A board may need to revisit its resolution to regulate expenses more often than annually if
(a) an expense reimbursement amount exceeds the MARA set in the board’s resolution, and (b) an emergency or an
extraordinary circumstance does not exist. Consult the board attorney in these circumstances to determine whether the board
may need to revisit and amend its resolution to increase the MARA before approving the expenses exceeding it.

Emergency or an extraordinary circumstance is not defined by the ECA, but these terms are meant to allow boards
flexibility when expenses exceed the MARA. Yet approving expense reimbursement requests that exceed the MARA as
emergencies or extraordinary circumstances when the board or superintendent “did not plan well” or “an organization’s
conference fees went up more than expected this year after the board adopted its resolution,” may open the board to public
relations and other legal challenges. See Laukhuf v, Bd. of Educ., 2003 WL 23936148 (Ill.Cir. 2003)(addressing what
constitutes an emergency in the context of the Open Meetings Act (OMA)(5 ILCS 120/), which similar to the ECA, also does
not define the term, and holding an emergency meeting to cure asituation that aschool board created itself is not an emergency
within the confines of OMA).

While the ECA does not provide for specific legal penalties for the wrongful approval of expenses, it is not clear whether
a court may find in circumstances of poor MARA planning, that an emergency or extraordinary circumstance under the ECA
did not exist and grant relief requested by a challenger as allowed under State law.

14 105 [LCS 5/10-22.32 authorizes advancements for the listed items. This advancement language pre-dates the ECA
and is narrower than the ECA. A reasonable interpretation is that the MARA required in the ECA would apply to any
advancement amount. This policy seeks to reconcile and highlight the differences between the School Code and the ECA
requirements by separating School Code advancements into a separate subhead from ECA reimbursements (estimated and
actual). For more distinctions between these laws and further discussion, see f/n 20, below.

15 Use this altemative for districts in suburban Cook County: replace “Regional Superintendent of Schools” with
“appropriate Intermediate Service Center_Exccutive Director.”

16 105 1LCS 5/10-22.32 requires the return of excess advancements that are issued.

2:125 Page 3 of 6
02020-024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Board to its members for the activities listed in numbers one through three, above, along with
registration fees or tuition for a course(s) that allowed compliance with the mandatory trainings
described in policy 2:120, Board Member Development and other professional development
opportunities that are encouraged by the School Code (see the Reimbursements and Purchase Orders
subhead, below).17 Expense advancements and vouchers shall be presented to the Board in its regular
bill process.

Reimbursements and Purchase Orders

Expense reimbursement is not guaranteed and, when possible, Board members should seek pre-
approval of expenses!8 by providing an estimation of expenses on the Board’s standardized estimated
expense approval form, except in situations when the expense is diminutive. When pre-approval is not
sought, Board members must seek reimbursement on the Board’s standardized expense reimbursement
form. Expense reimbursements and purchase orders shall be presented to the Board in its regular bill
process.

Credit and Procurement Cards 12

Credit and procurement cards shall not be issued to Board members.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

17 Boards have this power under 105 ILCS 5/10-20; this statute specifies that the grant of powers to school boards is not
exclusive and that school boards may exercise other powers that are not inconsistent with duties. A board may expand this
provision’s scope by amending and adding to the sentence as follows:

*_andother professional development opportunities that are encouraged by the School Code. and other training provided
by one of the entities described in the above list.”

See also f/n 8 in sample policy 2:120, Board Member Development for an example of a board member professional
development opportunity that is encouraged by the School Code.

18 Optional. Consult the board attorney to determine whether a pre-approval process is appropriate for the district.
Neither 105 ILCS 5/10-22.32 (expense advancements) nor 50 [LCS 150/ (expense reimbursements and estimates) address
expense pre-approvals. 50 ILCS 150/20 states: “an estimate if expenses have not been incurred ...” or “a receipt ... if the
expenses have already been incurred,” suggesting no pre-approval is necessary. However, pre-approval is a best practice, and
a board member who incurs expenses without pre-approval may run the risk that his or her expenses will not be approved. On
the other hand, submitting estimated expenses for approval begs a pre-approval process, and some attorneys may read the law
to require pre-approval of expenses. The pre-approval process also provides school officials with better information for
financial planning.

Consult the board attorney to determine whether a pre-approval process is appropriate for the district. Ifit is required,
ensure that 2:125-E3, Resolution to Regulate Expense Reimbursements, reflects the district's specific pre-approval
requirements. For an example of a standardized estimated expense form that could be used as a form of pre-approval, see
sample exhibit 2:125-E2, Board Member Estimated Expense Approval Form. The form provides three methods for board
members to submil estimated expenses: providing estimated expenses (50 ILCS 150/), expense advancements for the specific
activities (105 ILCS 5/10-22.32), or a purchase order.

19 Optional. Consult the board attorney about issuing credit and procurement cards to board members. See f/n 1 of sample
policy 4:53, Use of Credit and Procurement Cards.

Ifin consultation with the board attorney credit and procurement cards will be issued to board members, delete “Cradit
ps ddaprd-res » and insert “Credit and procurement card usage is governed by

licy 4:55, Use of Credit and Procurement Cards.”

po
2:125 Page 4 of 6
©2828-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Standardized Expense Form(s) Required 20

All requests for expense advancement, reimbursement, and/or purchase orders in the District must be

submitted on the appropriate itemized, signed standardized form(s). The form(s) must show the
following information:

1. The amount of the estimated or actual expense, with attached receipts for actual incurred
expenses.

2. The name and office of the Board member who is requesting the expense advancement or
reimbursement. Receipts from group functions must include the names, offices, and job titles
of all participants. 21

3. The date(s) of the official business on which the expense advancement or reimbursement will
be or was expended.

4. Thenature of the official business conducted when theexpense ad vancement or reimbursement
will be or was expended.

Types of Official Business for Expense Advancements, Reimbursements, and Purchase Orders
1. Registration. When possible, registration fees will be paid by the District in advance.
2. Travel. The least expensive method of travel will be used, providing that no hardship will be
caused to the Board member. Board members will be reimbursed for:

a. Airtravelatthe coach oreconomy class commercial airline rate. First class or business
class air travel will be reimbursed only if emergency circumstances warrant. The
emergency circumstances must be explained on the expense form and Board approval
of the additional expense is required. Fees for the first checked bag will be
reimbursed.22 Copies of airline tickets and baggage receipts must be attached to the
expense form.

b. Rail or bus travel at actual cost. Rail or bus travel costs may not exceed the cost of
coach airfare. Copies of tickets must be attached to the expense form to substantiate
amounts.

c. Use of personal automobiles at the standard mileage rate approved by the Intemal
RevenueService for incometax purposes. The reimbursement may notexceed the cost
of coach airfare. Mileage for use of personal automobiles in trips to and from
transportation terminals will also be reimbursed. Toll charges and parking costs will
be reimbursed.

d. Automobile rental costs when the vehicle’s use is warranted. The circumstances for
such use must be explained on the expense form.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

20 50 [LCS 150/20. The School Code uses the term voucher for expense advancements (105 ILCS 5/10-22.32). The
PRESS materials on expenses marry the School Code’s advancement voucher requirement into the ECA’s requirement for a
standardized estimated expense form. For an example, see_sample exhibits 2:125-E2, Board Member Estimated Expense
Approval Form, and 5:60-E2, Employee Estimated Expense Approval Form. These forms provide three methods for board
members or district employees to submit anticipated/estimated expenses:

L. Providing estimated expenses under 50 ILCS 150/ (including for grant-related travel, see f/n 24, below),
2. Requesting expense advancements for the activities listed under 105 ILCS 5/10-22.32, or
3. Obtaining a purchase order (highly unlikely for anticipated board member expenses but possible).

21 50 [LCS 150/20(2) and (3).

22 Optional. This language reflects the standard for expenses permitted for federal and State grants. 41 C.F.R. §301-12.2.
If the board does not reimburse baggage fees, delete this sentence and and-baggage-reseipts from the next sentence.

2:125 Page 5 of 6
©2820-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




e. Taxis, airport limousines, ride sharing or other local transportation costs.

3. Meals. Meals charged to the School District should represent mid-fare selections for the
hotel/meeting facility or general area, consistent with the maximum allowable reimbursement
amount set by the Board.23 Tips are included with meal charges. Expense forms must explain
the meal charges incurred. Alcoholic beverages will not be reimbursed.

4. Lodging. Board members should request conference rate or mid-fare room accommodations.
A single room rate will be reimbursed. Board members should pay personal expenses at
checkout. If that is impossible, deductions for the charges shouldbe made on the expense form.

5. Miscellaneous Expenses. Board members may seek reimbursement for other expensesincurred
while attending a meeting sponsored by organizations described herein by fully describing the
expenses on the expense form, attaching receipts.

Additional Requirements for Travel Expenses Charged to Federal and State Grants 24

All Board member expenses fortravel charged to a federal grant or State grant governed by the Grant
Accountability and Transparency Act (30 ILCS 708/) must comply with Board policy 5:60, Expenses,
and its implementing procedures. Travel expenses include costs for transportation, lodging, meals, and
related items.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20 and 5/10-22.32.
30 ILCS 708/, Government Accountability and Transparency Act.
50 ILCS 150/, Local Government Travel Expense Control Act.

CROSS REF.: 2:100 (Board Member Conflict of Interest), 2:120 (Board Member Development),
2:240 (Board Policy Development), 4:50 (Payment Procedures), 4:55 (Use of
Credit and Procurement Cards), 5:60 (Expenses)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

23 Alternatively, a board could set a daily limit on meal costs, such as:

Board members will be reimbursed for meal costs and-tips-up to §
allowable reimbursement amount(s) set by the Board.

But see also £/n 8, above and ensure this amount is consistent with the MARA set by the board resolution.

24 Required by 30 [LCS 708/130. See sample policy 5:60, Expenses, and its fins 22-36 for details. Eederal travel
regulations_state that requests izati : expense reimbursement should be made in gdvance of travel. 2
C.F.R. §301-11.302. Sample exhibit 2:125-E2, Board Member Estimated Expense Approval Form, can be used as a form for
pre-approval.

per day consistent with the maximum

2:125 Page 6 of 6
©2020-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Mareh2020June 2024 2:125-E1

School Board

Exhibit - Board Member Expense Reimbursement Form

Submit to the Superintendent, who will include this request in the monthly list of bills presented to the
School Board. Please print and attach receipts for all expenditures. Use of this form is required by
2:125-E3, Resolution to Regulate Expense Reimbursements. Please print.

Name: Title/Office:
Travel Destination: Purpose:
Departure Date: Return Date:

O Receipts attached Request Date:

Board Member Estimated Expense
d State grants).

O Estimated expenses attached (Complet
Approval Form) (pre-approval is requir

U Approved expense advancement (vouche i ble* (Completed 2:125-E2,

*Board members will be reimbursed for actual and neg
expense advancement that exceeds the actual and, nedss
grants, board members will be reimbursed for
Board policy 2:125, Board Member Compe

the amount advanced, but must refund any
jred. 105 ILCS 5/10-22.32. For federal and State

Date |Auto
Mileage
Miles

Other Daily
Total

" Expenses
Lunch |Dinner| Item Cost

Subtotal

Advances '

TOTAL (a negative amount indicates refund due from Board member) $

Submitting Board Member’s Signature Date

2:125-E1 Page 1 of 2
©2020-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Superintendent Signature Date

School Board Action: [ ] Approved (] Denied
[J Approved in Part ] Exceeds Maximum Allowable Amount
] Grant Funding Source (if applicable):
Comments:
2:125-E1 Page 2 of 2

©2020-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Mareh2020June 2024 2:125-E2

School Board

Exhibit - Board Member Estimated Expense Approval Form

Submit to the Superintendent, who will include this request in the monthly list of bills presented to the
School Board. Use of this form is required: (1) by 2:125-E3, Resolution to Regulate Expense
Reimbursements, and (2) for pre-approval of expenses to be charged to a federal grant or State grant
governed by the Grant Accountability and Transparency Act. Please print.

Name: Title/Office:
Travel Destination: Purpose:
Departure Date: Return Date:

Estimated Expenses Approval Requested (50 IBCS 150/20 or grant expenditure)

Travel is grant-related* (specify grant):
Purchase Order Requested

ooono

Expense Advancement Voucher Requeste

Auto Travel Allowance:

*Grant-related travel only: Except for mil
allowed if on official travel status for 12 h
indicate below and attach at le

allibn expenses, expense reimbursement/per diem is only
br below the applicable rate cannot be identified, please

Date  |Auto Meals or Per Diem | Other Daily
Mileage Expens Total
Miles st kfst Lunch Dinner| Item Cost

Total $

Submitting Board Member’s Signature Date

2:125-E2 Page 1 of 2

©2020-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use




Superintendent Signature Date

School Board Action: [ | Approved ] Denied
] Approved in Part ] Exceeds Maximum Allowable Amount

[[] Grant Funding Source (if applicable):

Comments:

X

2:125-E2 Page 2 of 2
©2020-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Mareh2020June 2024 2:160

School Board

Board Attorney 1

The School Board may retain legal services with one or more attorneys or law firms to be the Board
Attorney(s). The Board Attorney represents the Seheel-Board in its capacity as the governing body for
the School District.2 The Board Attorney serves on a retainer or other fee arrangement as determined
in advance. The Board Attorney will provide services as described in the agreement for legal services
or as memorialized by an engagement letter.3 The District will only pay for legal services that are
providedin accordance with the agreement for legal services, as memorialized by an engagement letter,
or that are otherwise authorized by this policy or a majority of the Board.

The Superintendent, his or her designee,and Board President, are each authorized to confer with and/or
seek the legal advice of the Board Attorney.4 The Board may also authorize a specific Board member
to confer with the Board Attorney on its behalf.

The Superintendent may authorize the Board Attorney to represent the District in any legal matter untl
the Board has an opportunity to be informed of and/or consider the matter.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

U The attorney’s selection and duties are totally within the board’s discretion —bidding is not required. 105 ILCS 5/10-
20.21.

2 Rule 1.7 (Conﬂlct of Intermt Current Chents) and Rule L. 13 (Orgamzatlon as Client) of the Ill. Rules of Professional
Conduct, at : : : ~aspwww.illino iscourts. gov/rules/supreme -
court-rules?a=viii, address concurrent conﬂlcts of mterest Board preSIdents superintendents, and board attorneys should be
prepared to ask potennal board attorneys whether they will have the ability to declare that representation of the board and
district will be to the exclusion of all other clients having potential conflicts with the board and district’s interests. See exhibit
2:160-E, Checklist for Selecting a Board Attorney.

3 There is no general format for an agreement for legal services or an engagement letter. To help monitor its legal fees,
a board should require a written agreement or an engagement letter with the board attorney or law firm that details the services,
fees, expenses, and billing format. See sample exhibit 2:160-E, Checklist for Selecting a Board Attorney.
Legal services can be spelled out in the policy but boards face the attendant risk of conflicting lists. However, a board
desiring such a list can use the following;:
The attorney will:
1. Serve as counselor to the Board and attend Board meetings when requested by the Superintendent or Board
President;
2. Represent the District in any legal matter as requested by the Board;
3. Provide written opinions on legal questions as requested by the Superintendent or Board President;
4. Approve, prepare, or supervise the preparation of legal documents and instruments and perform such other
legal duties as the Board may request; and
5. Beavailable for telephone consultation.

4 Depending on the fee arrangement, contacting the board attorney generates fees owed by the district. Thus, to avoid
excessive attorney fees, the board should consider limiting individuals who are authorized to contact the board attorney.
Additional individuals may be added to this sentence as in the alternative below:

The following people are authorized to confer with and/or seek the legal advice of the Board Attorney:
Superintendent or designee, Business Manager, District Freedom of Information Officer, Complaint
Manager(s), District treasurer, and the Board President.

Individual board members should refrain from discussing their board attorney’s advice outside of a board meeting.
Disclosing legal advice can waive the attorney-client privilege. Individual board members possess none of the board’s powers
and are not authorized to individually waive attorney-client privilege on behalf of the board as an entity.

2:160 Page 1 of 2
©2626-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



The Board retains the right to consult with or employ other attoneys and to terminate the service of
any attorney.

LEGAL REF.: Rule 1.7 (Conflict of Interest: Current Clients) and Rule 1.13 (Organization as
Client) of the Ill. Rules of Professional Conduct adopted by the I1l. Supreme
Court.

CROSS REF.: 4:60 (Purchases and Contracts)

2:160 Page 2 of 2
©2026-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Mareh2020June 2024 2:160-E

School Board

Exhibit - Checklist for Selecting a Board Attorney

The School Board selects and retains the Board Attorney(s). The Board may use this checklist for
guidance when it selects and retains attorney(s) and/or law firms for legal services. This checklist is
designed for the Board to use a request for proposal (RFP) process to seek outside attorneys/law firms.
The Board may also select an attorney without using an RFP process and adapt this checklist. The
Board may also adapt this checklist and use it for an application process, if the Board seeks an in-house
attorney. For more information, call the Ill. Association of School Board's (IASB) Office of General
Counsel; see its current phone numbers at www.iasb.com/about-us/staff/#office-general-counsel.

] Determine what type of legal services the District needs.

1. Review Board policy 2:160, Board Attorney. Noge: Critically analyze whether the District’s
legal needs are best served by in-house att outside attorney{s)/law firms. Many
districts use a combination of these servic icts also use multiple attorney¢s)/law
firms for their specialties, e.g., different la ounsel, special education, or labor
law. Some boards also approve a panel of e administration to choose
which attorney to use.

2. Consider the following factors to anal
including, but are not limited to:

District’s size;

Any past and current exp

Complexity of the Distgj

legal services needed for the District

1. Review B0t hases and Contracts. Note: While State law exempts hiring an
attorney from ents (105 ILCS 10-20.21(a)), the Board may want to review its
procurement proGESse “align procurement for legal services to its non-bidding-related
standards for purch3 .g., avoiding favoritism, staying within the District’s budget, etc.

dlifications. The major qualifications include, but are not limited to:

e Licensed to practice law in Illinois and in good standing with the Ill. Attorney Registration
and Disciplinary Commission (ARDC) (see checklist item Conduct a reference check and
other background investigations, below)

e Member of the District’s assigned United States district court and the Seventh Circuit Court
of Appeals

o Substantive knowledge and experience in the legal areas matching District’s needs, e.g.,
bidding, civil rights, collective bargaining, education reform, employment law, Freedom
of Information Act, Open Meetings Act, other records laws, special education, student
rights, etc. Note: This list of knowledge and experience must be created by the District’s
identified needs and may change from time to time.

e Experience in all aspects of contract, employment, and school law

2:160-E Page 1 of 6
©32020-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use



e Experience that meets the District’s needs, including litigation experience in State and
federal courts

e Membership in professional associations, such as, the Iil. Council of School Attorneys
(ICSA) and education law sections of bar associations, etc.

e Demonstrated knowledge of and ability to apply professional responsibility rules
Accessibility for the District’s identified needs, e.g., evening Board meetings, phone calls,
etc.

o Ability to declare that representation of the District will be to the exclusion of all other
clients having potential conflicts with the District’s interests

e When additional qualifications apply, list those qualifications for providing legal services.
This may include specialties such as bond counsel, etc.

'l Develop the RFP.

Insert the list of qualifications that the Board developed.

2. Include the following information:
o The deadline for responses to be submitted
e The location (address or email) where resgo

—

e A statement that the Board is solicitin om qualified lawyers and law firms to
provide legal services to the School Di

e Significant information about the Dis licy 1:30, School District
Philosophy, for the District’s mission stal to the community’s goals)

e The scope of work, e.g., “The Boarg ovide legal advice concerning [typical

e Qualifications
e Details about interviews a

sponse, including their titles

of and directory information for the individuals who
estion® regarding the submitted proposal

c.g., “Respondents may combine set fees and hourly fees. If
ease provide the minimum time increment for billing purposes.

e 1ré

A writing samplé
An assurance that the responder meets the RFP’s qualifications
References including current or past clients

[l Announce the RFP.

1. Title the announcement. Note: How and where the RFP is announced are at the Board’s sole
discretion. The Board may want to announce the RFP during an open meeting, post it on the
District’s website, mail or email it to local law firms, and/or place it in the local newspaper(s)
or other legal publications. A directory of those lawyers belonging to the [CSA is on the [ASB
website, www.iasb.com. A printed copy is available upon request. Inclusion in the directory
does not represent an [ASB endorsement. Some attorneys who practice school law do not
belong to ICSA. Other online sources, such as the IIl. State Bar Association, also maintain
directories of information about attorneys. The Board may want to title the announcement “The
[Insert District’s name] School Board Requests Proposals to Provide Legal Services.”

e o @ O

2:160-E Page 2 of 6
©226-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Announce that the Board seeks an attorney or law firm to serve as its Board Attorney.

Inform the reader that the attorney or law firm selected will serve either at will or from the date
of appointment to [date]. The length of the appointment is at the Board’s discretion.

4. State the School District’s philosophy or mission statement.

Insert the RFP location and contact information with the beginning date and time.

6. Tell prospective responders that completed RFPs must be returned by [certain time and date]
to [name and title of person receiving applications].

Ol Receive and manage responses to the RFP.

1. Review Board policy 2:110, Qualifications, Term, and Duties of Board Officers. The Board
President is a logical officer to accept the applications, but this task may be delegated to the
Secretary or Superintendent’s secretary if the Board determines that it is more convenient. Who
accepts applications is at the Board’s sole discretion and should be decided by the Board prior
to posting the RFP announcement.

2. The Board will discuss, at an open meeting, its process to review the applications and who will
contact RFP responders for an interview.

3. The designated person will contact RFP respond

Ol Develop interview questions if the Board j

w

b

for interviews.

ttorneys or law firms.

1. Interview questions are at the Board’s disc

2. A prospective attorney or law firm to fill the osjtion may raise other specific
issues that the Board will want to cover duri i

3. The following non-exhaustive list of inteye may help the Board tailor its questions
toward finding an attorney or law firgg g the role of the Board Attorney that
the Board desires:

e What do you see as your r

o

° b your school clients? Please explain how your

° es your firm (or, the attorney) have? How long have you

e you been representing school districts?
° to ensure all members of the Board, which is your client, remain
n about the Ill. Professional Rules of Conduct in f/n 2 of sampl

e How would Ol B agfiPe a situation in which the Board feels strongly about its position but
you believe that Pl fon is not legally supportable? The Ill. Rules of Professional Conduct,
at www.illinoiscourts.gov/supremecourt/rules/art_viii/default new.asp, require attorneys
to represent the Board in its capacity as the governing body for the District. The responders
should be discussing these rules, specifically Rule 1.7 (Conflict of Interest: Current Clients)
and Rule 1.13 (Organization as Client), among others, in their answers to this question.
See also, PRESS-sample policy 2:160, Board Attorney.

s How would you manage a situation in which the Board’s interest may be or become adverse
to one or more of its members? See the discussion about the IlI. Professional Rules of
Conduct in f/n 2 of sample policy 2:160, Board Attorney.

¢ How would you manage a situation in which the Board and Superintendent are in conflict?
How about a divided Board? See the discussion about the [/l. Professional Rules of Conduct
in /n 2 of sample policy 2:160, Board Attorney.

2:160-E Page 3 of 6

©2620-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use,



e Ifthe Board did something that you had advised against, could you still defend the Board’s
action? See the discussion about the JIl. Professional Rules of Conduct in f/n 2 of sample
policy 2:160, Board Attorney.

e Will you try to shape Board decisions or do you have a whatever the Board decides
philosophy? See the discussion about the ZIL Professional Rules of Conduct in f/n 2 of
sample policy 2:160, Board Attorney.

e Do you give clients specific recommendations or do you advise them of the available
options and let the client decide? See the discussion about the JII. Professional Rules of
Conduct in f/n 2 of sample policy 2:160, Board Attorney.

e Do you provide your school Board clients with any updating services gratis?

How do you keep your Board clients apprised of litigation and other legal matters you are
handling for them?

e  Will you be handling this business personally, i.e., will you delegate to your associates or
partners?

e Can anyone else in your firm handle our inquiries when you are unavailable?

e How do you keep current on school law?
When do you tell your school clients to

egarding a matter with possible legal

repercussions?
o Have you represented a school district i i ing the rights of disabled students?
...involving disabled employees? ... inv ion? ... involving a teacher

dismissal? ... involving an employeg's con
contract or bidding matter? ... Cag

representation and its me
was performed, and w

a1l, including the date and time, what work
t, along with expenses.

BPicoal services, engagement letter, or a retainer
w it for us now. If not, please explain the options for a

Qualifications, Term@®d Duties of Board Officers.
2. The Board may also want to consider allowing an equal amount of time for each interview.
3. Discuss the following items with each responder during the interview:
e Introduce Board members to the responder
e Describe the Board’s interview process, selection process, and ask the responder if he or
she has questions about the Board’s process for selecting its attorney
e Describe the District’s philosophy or mission statement
e Describe the Board Attorney position by reviewing the RFP
e Begin asking the interview questions (see Develop interview questions, above)
e  Ask the responder whether he or she has any questions for the Board
e Thank the responder and inform him or her when the Board expects to make its decision
and how the responder will be contacted regarding the Board’s decision

] Conduct a reference check and other background investigation(s).

2:160-E Page 4 of 6
©2020-2024 Policy Reference Education Subseription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



1. The Board President may perform this check or direct the Superintendent to:

e Check the ARDC’s master roll of attorneys as “Authorized to Practice Law” (To do this,
enter the attorney’s name into the ARDC’s registration and public disciplinary records
database at: www.iardc.org/Lawyer/Searchwwiwiarde-orelawyersearchasp.)

e Click on the attorney’s name to review whether any disciplinary actions are pending or
resolved; current and prior actions will appear at the bottom of the screen

e If disciplinary actions are listed, ask the attorney or law firm for more information

2. There are other online attorney review services available. These services may be overly
subjective and/or the attorney may have control over the content in these services. Always
check with the ARDC.

3. Call references provided by the responder.

Ol Enter into a written agreement or engagement letter with the selected attorney or law
firm.

1. All agreements for legal services should be in writing. At minimum, the agreement should
provide the fee arrangement and the scope of services. Agreements for legal services and

Freedom of Information Act request (PAO

2. Discuss the fee arrangements with the resp

e  Whether to enter into a fee arrangeme iner agreement (Note: Attorneys

typically bill by a pre-determined perc ., in one-tenth of an hour

increments. Many districts enter i agreeflent for legal services or an

: a pre-determined fee every month.

In return, the attorney provides g i unt of legal services whenever the

district needs him or her. Djst bful because (1) they can budget for legal

expenses, (2) legal advic pre-determined amount for lower fees, and

(3) this arrangement :
attorney.)

o ”

e A statement thati§li@Board controls all legal decisions
A statement that the attorney and his or her law firm have no conflicts of interest or, if a
conflict exists, that the Board understands the conflict and waives it

e Board’s right to terminate the services of the attorney and law firm at any time for any

reason
4. Approve the agreement for legal services or engagement letter during an open Board meeting.
Il Announce the appointment to District staff and community.
1. The contents of the announcement and length of time it is displayed are at the Board’s sole
discretion.

2. The Board may want to consider announcing during an open meeting. See Board policy 8:10,
Connection with the Community.

3. The Board may want to include the following information in its announcement:
e The Board appointed [attorney’s name or law firm name] as the Board Attorney
e The appointment will begin on [date] for [length of time]

2:160-E Page 5 of 6
©2428-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



e The Board previously established qualifications for the Board Attorney in a careful and

2:160-E

thoughtful manner, e.g., “[Attorney or law firm's name] meets these qualifications and has
demonstrated the willingness to accept its duties and responsibilities. [Atforney or law
firm’s name] brings a clear understanding of the demands and expectations of the Board
Attorney position along with a constructive attitude toward the challenge.”

Q\

Page 6 of 6
©2026-2024 Policy Reference Education Subseription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Oectober2049June 2024 2:250-AP2

School Board

Administrative Procedure - Protocols for Record Preservation and Development of
Retention Schedules

Legal Citations

Each legal requirement in this procedure is followed by a citation to the controlling rule and/or

statute. Citations—in—parenthesis—indicate—thelocation-ofa—namedtaw—For additional clarification

regarding a requirement, the cited law should be reviewed.

Actor Action

All Staff Members and | Maintain all records, as defined and required in the 1. Local Records
School Board Members | Act (LRA). No public record ghall be destroyed except as allowed by the
LRA.

“Public record me
digital electronic mat
material with a combi
other official docume

er, map, photograph, born-

ial, dless of physical form or
ecuted or received by any agency
ection with the transaction of

pr appropriate for preservation by such

Orneys will generally fiotify their clients at the beginning of a legal
proceeding to not destroy any electronic records that might be
relevant. The receipt of a litigation hold or preservation letter from
the Board’s attorney requires all potentially relevant electronic
information to be identified, located, and preserved. This includes all
email, e-documents, the tapes and servers of discarded systems, and
backup data stored elsewhere.

Whenever disposing of materials containing personal information,
render the personal information unreadable, unusable, and
undecipherable. 815 ILCS 530/40; 44 1ll.Admin.Code §4000.40(b).

The Personal Information Protection Act (815 ILCS 530/) contains
mandates for disposing of materials containing personal information

2:250-AP2 Page 1 of 7
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Actor Action

(personal information is defined in 815 ILCS 530/5 as either of the
following: (1) an individual’s first name or first initial and last name
combined with any of the following data elements, when either the
name or data elements are not encrypted/redacted or are
encrypted/redacted but the keys to unencrypt/unredact or otherwise
read the name or data elements have been acquired without
authorization through a security breach: social security number,
driver’s license number or State identification card number, financial
account information, medical information, health insurance
information, or unique biometric data; or (2) user name or email
address, combined with a password or security question and answer
that would permit access to an online account, when any of these
data elements are not encrypted/redacted or are encrypted/redacted
but the keys to unencrypt/unredact or otherwise read the data
elements have been acquigad without authorization through a
security breach). Thg General is authorized to impose a
ncompliance. 815 ILCS 530/40.

do not otherwise qualify 38 anal i on under 8135 [LCS
530/40, follow adm gissati edure 4:15-AP1. Protecting the

Superintendent g ing activities to the Records Custodian and Head of

Welop and maintain a record retention and destruction
nedule; and

3. Develop protocols to implement a litigation hold.

Records Custodian and | 1- Develop and maintain a protocol for preserving and categorizing
Head of [T District records.

Develop and maintain a list of all District records organized in
categories and sub-categories, ¢.g., records relating to business, students,
personnel, board meetings, etc. Align this list with the list of District
records required by the Freedom of Information Act. 5 ILCS 140/5.

Paper records may be easier to locate than electronic records.
Electronic records will potentially exist in all of the available clouds,
servers, tapes, hard drives, computers, and similar types of electronic

2:250-AP2 Page 2 of 7
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor Action

devices (e.g., laptops, tablets, smart phones, voicemail, etc.).
Prepare a description of how District records stored by means of
electronic data processing may be obtained in a form understandable to
persons lacking computer knowledge. 5 ILCS 140/5; 44 11l.Admin.Code

§4000.70, Digital Reproduction; 44 1ll.Admin.Code §4000.80,
Management of Electronic Records.

Such a description may include contact information for a person who
can aid in obtaining records stored electronically.

Provide for keeping only records and destroying non-records. Avoid
filing non-record material with records. Determine what is a non-record,
e.g., identical copies of documents maintained in the same file; extra
copies of printed or processed materials (official copies of which are
retained by the office); blank forms; and personal communications.

The goal is to contro cumulation of material. Non-

at any time. 50 ILCS 205/9.

Absent a litigation h i retained only when it
contains: (1) eviden istri ization, function,
policies, procedu : i informational data

) process for use across the District
emails are being retained and emalls that

by phBtography (44 Ill.Admin.Code §4000.60),
praphic and electronic microimaging processes (44
L ode §4000.50), or digitized electronic format (44

pny public record may be reproduced in a microfilm or digitized
electronic format and the analog/paper version destroyed, provided:
(a) the records are reproduced on “a durable medium that accurately
and legibly reproduces the original record in all details,” and “that
does not permit additions, deletions, or changes to the original
document images,” and “if electronic, that are retained in a
trustworthy manner so that the records...are accessible and usable
for subsequent reference at all times when the information must be
retained,” (b) the reproduction is retained for the prescribed retention
period, and (c) the Local Records Commission is notified when the
original record is disposed of and also when the reproduced record is
disposed of. 50 ILCS 205/7.

2:250-AP2 Page 3 of 7
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor

Action

Use the Iil. Secretary of State publication Guidelines for Using
Electronic Records
(www.cyberdriveillinois.com/departments/archives/records_managemen
t/electrecs.html) and 44 1ll.Admin.Code §§4000.APPENDIX A
Sustainable File Formats for Electronic Records - A Guide for
Government Agencies
(www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/044/04404000ZZ9996aR.ht
ml), 4000.APPENDIX B Reliable Storage Media for Electronic Records
- A Guide for Government Agencies
(www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/044/04404000ZZ9996BR.ht
ml).

Identify and index the location of each category and sub-category of
District records. Organize electronic record and data storage.

ments, including electronically
required timeframes and are easy to

The goal is to ensure
created ones, are re
retrieve and produc

3 Strative, legal, or fiscal value, as this is the
ission uses to determine whether or not to authorize

bd according to provisions in the LRA. 50 ILCS 205/10.

ved or produced by the District.

The ultimate goal is to obtain permission to destroy unnecessary
public records. The Local Records Commission must approve the
destruction of any public record. 50 ILCS 205/7; 44 I1l.Admin.Code
Part 4000 (Local Records Commission for agencies comprising
counties of less than 3,000,000 inhabitants); 44 [1l.Admin.Code Part
4500 (Local Records Commission of Cook County). See the
Archives Department on the Secretary of State’s website:
www.ilsos.cov/departments/archives/home.htmlwwaw-evberdrivettin

44 TIl.Admin.Code Part 4000.30 details the procedures for compiling |

2:250-AP2

Page 4 of 7
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor Action

and submitting lists and schedules of records for disposal.

The School Code and other statutes (e.g., statutes of limitations)
contain mandatory retention timelines. The Board aAttorney should
be consulted.

The e-discovery rules provide a safe harbor for parties during a
lawsuit that cannot provide information because it was destroyed as
a result of routine practices. F.R.C.P. 37(e).

3. Develop protocols to implement a litigation hold.
Understand what a litigation hold is.

A litigation hold refers to the notification made by the Board’s
aAttorney telling the District to preserve all information that may be
relevant to current or antigjpated litigation. While it may occur
anytime in the legal itaill usually occur during discovery,
the pretrial phase o igned to compel the exchange of
information betwee

how to implement a litigation hold for all IT systems,
g backup tapes, to ensure they are not deleted or overwritten
of the normal tape rotation process.

cpare a map of potentially relevant data and otherwise assist the
Board aAttorney in locating all potentially relevant information.

Superintendent Submit new or revised record retention and destruction lists and
schedules to the Local Records Commission for approval.

Disseminate the record retention schedule, along with instructions, to all
affected staff members and Board members.

Immediately inform the Records Custodian and Head of IT whenever a
record must be preserved because: (1) it may be relevant to present or
future litigation, or (2) the Board Attorney has notified the District to
preserve a record, including electronic information (litigation hold).

2:250-AP2 Page 5 of 7
©2644-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



Actor Action

Authorize and/or order the destruction of District records after ensuring
that the following steps have been performed:

1. The Local Records Commission approved a schedule for continuing
authority to destroy District records after the expiration of the
applicable period.

2. Any record is retained and removed from the disposal list if it is or
may be evidence in litigation, or is otherwise subject to a litigation
hold.

3. Thirty days prior to disposal or destruction of any records, regardless
of physical format or characteristics, submit a Local Records
Disposal Certificate to the Commission and dispose only after a
copy of that certificate has been reviewed and approved by the
Chairman and returned to the District. The original copy of that
Local Records Dispo: ifigate is kept in the files of the
Commission, and opy approved and returned by the
Chairman must be g istrict. 44 111.Admin.Code
§§4000.40(c), 4500.

4. i tion of less than one year,

disposal in addition to the normally
District must wait to dispose of records

have been damaged by water, fire, smoke, insects or
_molder some other natural disaster that poses a health or

sk to employees, the District may apply to the Commission
Bhission to dispose of those records ahead of their scheduled
fal date. The request must include a Local Records Disposal
Ptificate accompanied by the District’s explanation of why the
ecords need early disposal. The Commission may grant the request
only after physically reviewing the damaged records. 44

(1. Admin.Code §§4000.40(e), 4500.40(¢).

Links to Web-based Record Management Resources:

Cook County Local Records Commission Meetings

Cook County Local Records Commission Rules (44 [1l.Admin.Code Part 4500)

Downstate Local Records Commission Meetings
Rules of the Downstate Local Records Commission (44 [1l.Admin.Code Part 4000)
[11. School Student Records Act (105 [LCS 10/=

2:250-AP2 Page 6 of 7
©2048-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomney before use.



Actor Action
Local Records Act (50 [LCS 205/)

Local Records Disposal Certificate

LEGAL REEF.: Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Rules 16, 26 and 37.
5 ILCS 140/, Freedom of Information Act.
50 ILCS 205/, Local Records Act.
105 ILCS 10/, Ill. School Student Records Act.
815 ILCS 530/, Personal Information Protection Act.
820 ILCS 40/, Ill. Personnel Record Review Act.
44 TlI1.Admin.Code Part 4000, Local Records Commission.
44 TIl.Admin.Code Part 4500, Cook County Local Records Commission.

QK

2:250-AP2 Page 7 of 7
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



Oetober-June 26492024 4:15

Operational Services

Identity Protection 1

The collection, storage, use, and disclosure of social security numbers by the School District shall be
consistent with State and federal laws. The goals for managing the District’s collection, storage, use,
and disclosure of social security numbers are to: 2

1. Limitall activities involvingsocial security numbersto those circumstances that are authorized
by State or federal law.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 Consult the board attorney before adoption of this policy. Districts may choose to provide or implement more
protections than the statutory requirements outlined in this sample policy. While the laws that apply to this policy govern
current management of sensitive information, best practices may outpace the law’s ability to keep up. Seealso f/n 19 to sample
policy 2:250, Access to District Public Records, detailing the preservation requirements of the Local Records Act (50 ILCS
205/3), the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. §1232g), and the Ill. School Student Records Act (105
ILCS 10/), and litigation holds or document preservation requirements pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (Rules
16 and 26).

The Identity Protection Act (IPA) (5 ILCS 179/) requires that this subject matter be covered in policy and controls its
content. 5 ILCS 179/35. The Act places greater limits on the use of social security numbers (SSNs) than federal law. The IPA
defines identity-protection policy as “any policy created to protect social security numbers from unauthorized disclosure.”
(Social security number is not capitalized inthe IPA). 5ILCS 179/5. Much of a district’s collection, storage, use, and disclosure
of SSNs applies to employee records only. But limited exceptions may exist where a school district may need to ask students
or their parents/guardians to provide SSNs, and any collection and retention of students’ SSNs must also be in accordance
with this policy.

Another State law, the Personal Information Protection Act (PIPA) (815 ILCS 530/; e SR BEYE
20-) requires data collectors of personal information to provide certain notice to Illinois residents, and in certain cases, the [lL.
Attorney General, when the collector’s system data is breached. 815 ILCS 530/10—amended-by—RA01 343 of 1120,
Under PIPA, data collector is broadly defined to include government agencies and any entities that deal with nonpublic
personal information. Personal information is defined as: (1) an individual’s first name or first initial combined with an SSN,
driver’s license number or State identification card number, financial account information (including without limitation, credit
or debit card numbers), medical or health insurance information or biometric data; or (2) a username or email address in
combination with a password or security question and answer that would permit access to an online account. Id. at 530/5.
Depending on whether the data collector owns or merely maintains or stores the information, additional notification
requirements will also apply. Finally, PIPA requires units of local governments 1o dispose of personal information so that it
may not be read or reconstructed. Id. at 530/40. It is unclear whether Section 530/40 applies to school districts because PIPA
does not specifically identify school districts as units of local governments (Ill. Constitution Article VII, Sec. 1). However,
the TIl. State Board of Education (ISBE) considers PIPA to apply to the handling of personally identi fiable information under
grant awards. See the ISBE Checklist for Protection of Personally Identifiable Information Review, referenced in f/n 9, below.
Consult the board attorney for advice on the applicability of PIPA’s various mandates to your district. See f/n 4, below
for more information about options to include PIPA requirements in this sample policy.

The U.S. Cybersecurity & Infrastructure Securitv Agency (CISA) recommends that K-12 districts have an incident
response plan (IRP) that details what a district needs to do before, during. and after an actual or potential security incident.
See www.cisa.gov/online-toolkit-partnering-safeguard-k- | 2-oroanizat ions-cvbersecurity-threats. In the case of a data breach
it is critical for a district to have an IRP in place that is customized lo local conditions and to practice the plan, Having an IRP
may also be required for cyber liabilitv insurance coverage. For resources and templates. see
/nistpubs/S pecialPublications/NIST.SP.800-6 1r2 pdl.
lan-template-securitv-studio.

2 The list of goals is optional; it may be deleted, augmented, or otherwise amended.

4:15 Page 1 of 4
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



2. Protecteach social security number collected or maintained by the District from unauthorized
disclosure.

The Superintendent is responsible for ensuring that the District complies with the Identity Protection
Act, 5 ILCS 179/. Compliance measures shall include each of the following;: 3 4

1. All employees havingaccess to social security numbers in the course of performingtheir duties
shall be trained to protect the confidentiality of social security numbers. Training should
include instructions on the proper handling of information containing social security numbers
from the time of collection through the destruction of the information.

2. Only employees whoare required to use or handle information or documents that contain social
security numbers shall have access to such information or documents.

3. Social security numbers requested from an individual shall be provided in a manner that makes
the social security number easily redacted if the record is required to be released as partof a
public records request.

4, When collecting a social security number or upon request by an individual, a statement of the
purpose(s) for which the District is collecting and using the social security number shall be
provided. The stated reason for collection of the social security number must be relevant to the
documented purpose. 5

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

3 The IPA requires items #1-4 to be covered in a policy. 5 ILCS 179/35(a).

4 For boards that want to include PIPA mandates in this Policy, insert the following option after the IPA items #1-4, or
if the board includes items #5 and #6 (discussed in fin 6, below), after items #1-6, and add “815 ILCS 530/, Personal
Information Protection Act” to the Legal References:

The Superintendent is also responsible for ensuring the District complies with the Personal Information Protection

Act, 815 ILCS 530/. Compliance measures shall include each of the following:

1. Written or electronic notification to an individual and, if applicable, the owner of the information, as required
by 815 ILCS 530/10 whenever his or her personal information was acquired by an unauthorized person;
personal information means either:

a.  An individual’s first name or first initial and last name in combination with any one or more of his
or her (i) social security number, (ii) driver’s license number or State identification card number, (iii)
financial account information (with any required security codes or passwords), (iv) medical
information, (v) health insurance information, and/or (vi) unique biometric data or other unique
physical or digital representation of biometric data, when either the name or the data elements are
not encrypted or redacted or are encrypted or redacted but the keys to unencrypt or unredact or
otherwise read the name or data elements have been acquired through the breach of security; or

b. Anindividual’s username or email address, in combination with a password or security question and
answer that would permit access to an online account, when either the username or email address or
password or security question and answer are not encrypted or redacted or are encrypted or redacted
but the keys to unencrypt or unredact or otherwise read the data elements have been obtained through
the breach of security.

2. Notification to the Ill. Attorney General as required by 815 ILCS 530/10, if a single breach of the security
system requires the District to notify more than 500 Illinois residents.

3. Cooperation with the owner of the information in matters relating to the breach, if applicable, as required by
815 ILCS 530/10.

4. Disposal of materials containing personal information in a manner that renders the personal information
unreadable, unusable, and undecipherable; personal information has the meaning stated in #1, above.

5 See sample exhibit 4:15-E2, -Statement of Purpose for Collection of Social Security Numbers.

4:15 Page 2 of 4
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



5. All employees must be advised of this policy’s existence, and a copy of the policy must be
made available to each employee. The policy must also be made available to any member of
the public, upon request. 6

6. Ifthis policy is amended, employees will be advised of the existence of the amended policy
and a copy of the amended policy will be made available to each employee. ’

No District employee shall collect, store, use, or disclose an individual’s social security number unless
specifically authorized by the Superintendent.8 This policy shall not be interpreted as a guarantee of
the confidentiality of social security numbers and/or other personal information. The District will use
best efforts to comply with this policy, but this policy should not be construed to convey any rights to
protection of information not otherwise afforded by law.

Treatment of Personally Identifiable Information Under Grant Awards ?

The Superintendent ensures that the District takes reasonable measures to safeguard: (1) protected
personally identifiable information,19 (2) other information that a federal awarding agency, pass-
through agency or State awarding agency designates as sensitive, such as personally identifiable
information (PI)!! and (3) information that the District considers to be sensitive consistent with

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

6 [tems #5 and #6 are not required to be in policy but districts are required to perform the described action(s). 5 ILCS
179/35(b). These compliance measures are covered in sample administrative_procedure 4:15-AP1, Protecting the Privacy of
Social Security Numbers.

7 Optional. See fn 6 above.

8 This sentence is optional. Its intent is to inform employees of the need to have proper authority before collecting,
storing, using, or disclosing SSNs. A board may attach a sanction to the paragraph by adding the following option:

An employee who has substantially breached the confidentiality of social security numbers may be subject to

disciplinary action orsanctions up to and including dismissal in accordance with District policy and procedures.

9 While the federal regulations on procurement standards in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 do not specifically require a written policy
on the treatment of personally identifiable information (PII) under grant-funded programs, the Tll. State Board of Education’s
(ISBE’s) Checklist for Protection of Personally Identifiable  Information Review (ISBE Checklist), at
www.ishe.net/Pages/Federal-and-State-Monitoring.aspxwewweisbe-net/RagestAudit-and-Monitoring-Roview—Reg iremen
and-Toels-aspx requires an approved policy or policies related to the identification, handling, storage, access, disposal, and
overall protection of PII as evidence oflegal compliance with the Grant Accountability and Transparency Act (GATA) (30
ILCS 708/) and federal regulations. The ISBE Checklist is specific to PII handled by districts in connection with their
administration of grants. The uniform federal rules on procurement standards in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 apply to eligible State grants
through the Grant Accountability and Transparency Act (GATA) (30 ILCS 708/). This sample policy and accompanying
sample administrative procedure 4:15-AP2, Treatment of Personally [dentifiable Information Under Grant Awards, are
designed to help districts meet the standard set forth in 2 C.F.R. 200.303(e) and the documentation items on the ISBE
Checklist.

10 pyotected personally identifiable information (Protected PII) means an individual’s first name or first initial and last
name in combination with any one or more types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, passport
number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of birth, mother’s maiden name, criminal
records, medical records, financial records, or educational transcripts. Protected PII does not include personally identifiable
information (PII) that is required by law to be disclosed. 2 C.F.R. §200.182. See sample administrative procedure 4:15-AP2,
Treatment of Personally Identifiable Information Under Grant Awards. Protected PIl is similar to, but broader than, the
definition of personal information under PIPA.

11 py1 is a broader concept than Protected PIL. Said another way, Protected PIl is a subset of PIL

o =y IR,

4:15 Page 3 of 4
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



applicable laws regarding privacy and confidentiality (collectively, sensitive information), when
administering federal grant awards and State grant awards governed by the Grant Accountability and
Transparency Act (30 ILCS 708/).

The Superintendent shall establish procedures forthe identification, handling, storage, access, disposal
and overall confidentiality of sensitive information.12 The Superintendent shall ensure that employees
and contractors responsible for the administration of a federal or State award for the District receive

regular training in the safeguarding of sensitive information.13 Employees mishandling sensitive
information are subject to discipline, up to and including dismissal.

LEGAL REF.: 2 C.F.R. §200.303(e).
5 ILCS 179/, Identity Protection Act.

30 ILCS 708/, Grant Accountability and Transparency Act.
50 ILCS 205/3, Local Records Act.

105 ILCS 10/, Illinois School Student Records Act.

CROSS REF: 2:250 (Access to District Public Records), 5:150 (Personnel Records), 7:340
(Student Records), 7:345 (Use of Educational Technologies: Student Data Privacy
and Security)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

PII means information that can be used to distinguish or trace an individual's identity, either alone or when combined
with other personal or identifying information that is linked or linkable to a specific individual. Some information that is
considered to be PII is available in public sources such as telephone books and public websites, and it is considered to be
Public PII. Public PII includes, for example, first and last name, address, work telephone number, email address, home
telephone number, and general educational credentials. The definition of PII is not anchored to any single category of
information ortechnology. Rather, it requires a case-by-case assessmentof the specific risk that an individual can be identified.
Non-PII can become PII whenever additional information is made publicly available, in any medium and from any source,
that, when combined with other available information, could be used to identify an individual. 2 C.F.R. §200.178.

In addition to 2 C.F.R. 200.303(¢), depending upon the type of record being created or used in connection with a grant-
funded program, multiple laws may govern the treatment of personally identifiable information (PII) under a grant, including
the [PA (5 ILCS 179/), PIPA (815 ILCS 530/), Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, (20 U.S.C. §1232g), Ill. School
Student Records Act (105 ILCS 10/), Student Online Personal Protection Act, (105 ILCS 85/-amended—byP-A—t01-516-ofE
7-1-21), Personnel Record Review Act (820 ILCS 40/), and Local Records Act (50 ILCS 205/3).

12 gee sample administrative procedure 4:15-AP2, Treatment of Personally ldentifiable Information Under Grant
Awards.

13 The ISBE Checklist requires districts to maintain documentation of training of all employees/contractors on the
handling of PII, including evidence of the date(s) of the trammg and attendance/completlon of the u'ammg See
www.isbe.net/Pages/Federal-and-State-Monitoring aspxw d
and-toelsaspx. Because many individuals in a district can be mvolved in day-to day admmlslratlon of acnvmes supported

by a federal or State grant, best practice is to regularly train all employees on the safeguarding of such sensitive information,
€.g., upon hire and then annually or semi-annually.

4:15 Page 4 of 4
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Oetober20+9June 2024 4:15-AP1

Operational Services
Administrative Procedure - Protecting the Privacy of Social Security Numbers

Much of the District’s collection, storage, use, and disclosure of social security numbers apply to
employee records only. But limited exceptions may exist where a school district may need to ask
students or their parents/guardians to provide social security numbers. When student social security
numbers are involved, consult the Board Aattorney about the intersection of the Identity Protection Act
(5 ILCS 179/), the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. §1232g), and the Il1. School
Student Records Act (105 ILCS 10/).

Actor Action

Superintendent Identify the approved purposes for collecting SSNs, including:

and business 1. Employment matters, e.g., i orting to IRS and the IL Dept. of

JLUELE S2 and Revenue, tax withholding edicare.

their designees 2. Verifying enrollment in t programs, e.g., medical benefits,
health insurance claims, an

3. Filing insurance claims.

4. Internal verification or gdminis purposes.

5 i by State law including, without

s (5 ILCS 179/10(c)):

cWSNs to investigate or prevent fraud, to conduct
ecks, to collect a debt, or to obtain a credit report from a
ing agency under the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act.
for documenting the need and purpose for the SSN before its

5 179/10(b)(1).

byees of the District’s efforts to protect the privacy of SSNs. See
8°E 1, Letter to Employees Regarding Protecting the Privacy of

While State law does not specifically require this step, the law contains
mandates applicable to all employees that they need to know. Moreover, this
letter provides an opportunity to increase awareness of the confidential nature
of SSNs.

Maintain a written list of each staff position that allows or requires access to
SSNs.

The existence of a written list, even though not required, is important for
recordkeeping and accountability purposes.

Require that employees who have access to SSNs in the course of performing
their duties be trained to protect the confidentiality of SSNs. 5 ILCS
179/35(a)(2).

4:15-AP1 Page 1 of 3
©2822.2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor

Action

Direct that only employees who are required to use or handle information or
documents that contain SSNs have access to such information or documents. 5
ILCS 179/35(a)(3).

Require that SSNs requested from an individual be provided in a manner that
makes the SSN easily redacted if the record is otherwise required to be released
as part of a public records request. 5 ILCS 179/35(a)(4).

Require that, when collecting SSNs or upon request, a statement of the
purpose(s) for which the District is collecting and using the SSNs be provided. 5
ILCS 179/35(a)(5). See eExhibit 4:15-E2, Statement of Purpose for Collecting
Social Security Numbers.

Require that, when employees who are required to use or handle information or
documents that contain SSNs learn of a breach, they:

1. Notify District administrators ingmediately, and

2. Ensure that notifications t dividuals occur.

Enforce the requirements in 215, Identity Protection, and this
procedure.

Records Develop guidelines for handlingso ers in electronic systems.
Custodian and These guidelines should
Head of . 1. The display of SS Is, screens, and reports;
Information 2 Ns on a device or system protected by a
Technology (IT) d for accessing SSNis that are included
leting SSNs that are stored in electronic
s for integrating data other than the use of SSNs.
Staff te a training program on protecting the confidentiality of SSNs
Development 0 have access to SSNs in the course of performing their
Head
g should include instructions on the proper handling of
ion that contains SSNs from the time of collection through the
destrtiction of the information. 5 ILCS 179/35(a)(2).
Assistant Require each staff member whose position allows or requires access to SSNs to
Superintendents, | attend training on protecting the confidentiality of SSNis.
g:;?g:gg’ Instruct staff members whose positions allow or require access to SSNs to:
Principals, and/or 1. Treat SSNs-as conﬁdential.information. _ o
Department 2. Never pub.l1cally post or display SSNs or require any individual to verbally
Heads disclose his or her SSN.

3. Dispose of documents containing SSNs in a secure fashion, such as, by
shredding paper documents and by deleting electronic documents as
instructed by the [T Department.

4. Use SSNs as needed during the execution of their job duties and in
accordance with the training and instructions that they received.

4:15-AP1

Page 2 of 3
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
{llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use




Actor Action

Instruct staff members whose positions do not require access to SSNs to notify a
supervisor and/or the IT Department whenever SSNs are found in a document
or other material, whether in paper or electronic form.

Freedom of Redact every SSN before allowing public inspection or copying of records
Information responsive to a FOIA request. 5 ILCS 179/15.

Officer

Employees Do not collect, use, or disclose another individual’s SSN unless directed to do

so by an administrator.

If the employee is in a position that requires access to SSNs: Treat SSNs as
confidential information and follow the instructions learned during training.

If the employee is rot in a position that requires access to SSNs: Notify his
or her supervisor and/or the IT Department whenever the employee comes
across a document or other material @hether in paper or electronic form, that
contain SSNs.

4:15-AP1 Page 3 of 3
©24:22.2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Oectober2049June 2024 4:15-AP2

Operations

Administrative Procedure — Treatment of Personally Identifiable Information Under
Grant Awards

This procedure implements identification, handling, storage, access, disposal, and the overall
confidentiality of personally identifiable information under grant awards in the subhead Treatment of
Personally Identifiable Information Under Grant Awards in Board policy 4:15, Identity Protection.
Use it when the District is a recipient of a federal grant award or State grant award governed by the
Grant Accountability and Transparency Act (GATA) (30 ILCS 708/) and, as a result, must handle
personally identifiable information (defined below) in its administration of the award.

Definitions

Personally identifiable information (PII) means inforigatig@that can be used to distinguish or trace an
individual's identity, either alone or when combine rsonal or identifying information that
is linked or linkable to a specific individual. Some is considered to be PII is available
in public sources such as telephone books and public pe of information is considered
to be Public PII and includes, for example, first and
address, home telephone number, and general gd i dentials. The definition of PII is not

assessment of the specific risk that an ing e ideMflified. Non-PIl can become PII (or
protected personally identifiable inforga dditional information is made publicly
available, in any medium and from ' efif combined with other available information,
could be used to identify an indivi

bination with any one or more types of information,
ber, passport number, credit card numbers, clearances,
ce of birth, mother’s maiden name, criminal records, medical
onal transcripts. Protected PII does not include personally

bank numbers, bré
records, financial

Safeguarding Requirement

GATA and 2 C.F.R. §200.303(e) require grant recipients to take reasonable measures to safeguard (1)
protected personally identifiable information, (2) other information that the awarding or pass-through
agency designates as sensitive, such as personally identifiable information, and (3) information that the
District considers to be sensitive consistent with applicable laws regarding privacy and confidentiality
(collectively referred to in this Procedure as sensitive information).

The Superintendent or designee will ensure that the District:

4:15-AP2 Page 1 of 3
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



1. Implements reasonable security measures, such as physical and technological safeguards, for the
protection of sensitive information that meets or exceeds industry standards designed to protect
such information from unauthorized access, destruction, use, modification, or disclosure. 1

2. Complies with all applicable laws, such as the Identity Protection Act (5 ILCS 179/) (IPA), Personal
Information Protection Act (815 ILCS 530/10) (PIPA) and Student Online Personal Protection Act
(105 ILCS 85/27-added by P-A101-516ef7-1-21) (SOPPA) in the event of a breach of sensitive
information.

3. Notifies, if appropriate, members of the school community impacted by a breach when notification
is not specifically required by law.

4. Educates staff members involved in the administration of grants that in addition to federal
regulation 2 C.F.R. §200.303(e) and the terms of a specific award, multiple laws may apply to
personally identifiable information, depending upon the type of information/record including: IPA
(5 ILCS 179/), PIPA (815 ILCS 530/), Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, (20 US.C.
1232g), I11. School Student Records Act (105 ILCS 10/), SOPPA (105 ILCS 85/;-amended-by-R-A-
101-516—eff-7-+21), Personnel Record Review Act (820 ILCS 40/), and Local Records Act (50
ILCS 205/3).

5. Consults with the Board Attorney as needed to engure jance.

Relevant Board Policies—and. Administrative Prd
Information

Exhibit for Handling of Sensitive

The following Board policies and_administrative p : and govern the District’s

identification, handling, storage, access, disposz 2 dentiality of certain types of

sensitive information:

1. 2:220, School Board Meeting Proce affST W ibit—~2:220-E8, School Board Records
Maintenance Requirements and F. z ; d ess, and destruction of meeting minutes,

including closed meeting minutes
2. 2:250, Access to District Publi

& preservation and destruction of public records
under the Loca A Protocols for Record Preservation and Development of
Retention Scig@ : servation and destruction of public records under the

3. 4:15, Identity F
grant awards.

protect assets, including ology and electronic systems from loss or misuse.

5. 5:120-AP2, Employee Conduct Standards, requires all District staff members to respect the
confidentiality of student and personal records and other information covered by confidentiality
agreements.

6. 5:130, Responsibilities Concerning Internal Information, requires all District employees to
maintain the integrity and security of all internal information and the privacy of confidential
records.

7. 5:150, Personnel Records, and 5:150-AP, Personnel Records, address the identification, storage,
and access to personnel records.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 This paragraph is an adaptation of the standard for the protection of covered information under the Student Online
Personal Protection Act, 105 ILCS 85/-amended-byP-A—t4StoeiF-1 21 Districts should customize this procedure to
align with local practices and conditions.

4:15-AP2 Page 2 of 3
©2043-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




8. 6:235, Access to Electronic Networks, requires all users of the District’s electronic networks to
maintain the confidentiality of student information,

9. 6:235-AP1, Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks, requires all users of the District’s
electronic networks to take steps to safeguard their integrity and security.

10. 7:340, Student Records, along with 7:340-AP1, School Student Records, and 7:340-AP2, Storage
and Destruction of School Student Records, address the District’s legal obligations regarding the
identification, confidentiality, safeguarding, access, and disposal of school student records.

+0:11. 7:345, Use of Educational Technologies; Student Data Privacy and Security. addresses the

District's legal obligations regarding the handling and safeguarding of covered information that is
shared with operators.

Disposal of Sensitive Information

When disposal of sensitive information is authorized by law and/or Board policy, the Superintendent
or other administrator overseeing the administration of the grant award will ensure the District follows
the disposal standard under the-Personal-information—Protection-AetPIPA (815 ILCS 530/40) and
renders the information unreadable, unusable, and undecipherable.

Training for Employees and Contractors

District employees and contractors responsible for t
District will receive training on the safeguarding of

jon of a federal or State award for the

The Superintendent or designee will ensure:
1. Employees receive training upon their assig work under the award and then on a

ployee’s involvement in the award

is complete, whichever is earlier. The §#ininggia lude education on this procedure and the
District’s policies and procedure & abyg pavern the District’s handling of sensitive
information for various types ofi

2. Documentation of e ng of personally identifiable information is
maintained, inclug training and attendance/completion of the training

3. District cont er the grant award regularly receive training from the
District or g management of sensitive information

Resources

I11. State Board of Ed

Checklist for of Personally Identlﬁable Information, available—at

U.S. Dept. of Education —

Privacy Technical Assistance Center’s Protecting Student Privacy Service, at
www.studentprivacy.ed.gov.

[ll. Attorney General —
www.illinoisattorneygeneral.gov/consumer-protection/identity-

theftwww-iHineisattornevaeneral-coviconsumersthotline htmi#dbrepost,

4:15-AP2 Page 3 of 3
©20645-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved,
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use



October 2049 June 2024 4:40

Operational Services

Incurring Debt !

The Superintendent shall provide early notice to the School Board of the District’s need to borrow
money. The Superintendent or designee? shall prepare all documents and notices necessary for the
Board, at its discretion, to: (1) issue State Aid Anticipation Certificates,3 tax anticipation warrants,
working cash fund bonds,5 bonds,S notes,” and other evidence of indebtedness,8 or (2) establish a line
of credit with a bank or other financial institution.? The Superintendent shall notify the [ll. State Board
of Education before the District issues any form of long-term or short-term debt that will result in
outstanding debt that exceeds 75% of the debt limit specified in State law. 10

Bond Issue Obligations 11

In connection with the Board’s issuance of bonds, the Superintendent shall be responsible for ensuring
the District’s compliance with federal securities laws, including the anti-fraud provisions of the

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content. School districts are subject to a statutory debt limitation (105 ILCS 5/19-1(a));
other provisions in 5/19-1 contain exceptions. Not all forms of indebtedness are subject to the statutory debt limitations. Before
incurring any debt, the board must be certain that the debt will be within the district’s debt limitation.

2 Boards that employ business managers may want to substitute “Business Manager”, “Chief School Business Official”,
or another locally-equivalent title for “Superintendent or designee” and “Superintendent” as they appear throughout this
policy; the business manager most commonly performs the duties described in this policy.

3 50 ILCS 420/1 et seq. and 105 ILCS 5/18-18.

4105 ILCS 5/17-16.

5105 ILCS 5/20-2, 5/20-4, and 5/20-5-amended-by-P-A—101-446; 30 ILCS 305/2.
6 105 ILCS 5/19-1 et seq.; 30 ILCS 350/.

7 50 ILCS 420/0.01 et seq. A district may borrow money and issue bonds for the purposes stated in 105 ILCS 5/19-3,
provided the board properly adopted an election referendum and subsequently the voters approved the proposition. 10 [LCS
5/28-2. Districts have the authority to issue bonds for certain purposes without a direct referendum, e.g., School Fire
Prevention and Safety Bonds, Working Cash Fund Bonds, Funding Bonds, and Insurance Reserve Bonds. However, as is the
case with Working Cash Fund Bonds, certain types of bonds still require boards to follow backdoor referendum procedures.

8 Other types of indebtedness include funding bonds and refunding bonds (105 ILCS 5/19-1 et seq.), as well as debt
certificates and alternate bonds authorized by the Local Government Debt Reform Act (30 ILCS 350/).

9 105 ILCS 5/17-17.
10 105 1L.CS 5/19-1(q).

1 Optional. This subhead is offered for boards that want to: (1) expressly address their obligations to comply with federal
securities laws; and (2) authorize the creation of written procedures to protect the status of tax-exempt (or otherwise tax-
advantaged) bonds issued by the board. As a matter of best practice and to reduce potential future liabilities, many attorneys
recommend that board policy address these obligations. Consult the board attorney and/or bond counsel for guidance.

The Internal Revenue Service strongly encourages, but does not currently require, issuers of tax-exempt bonds to establish
written post-issuance compliance monitoring procedures. For guidance regarding the recommended content of such
procedures, see [RS Publication 4079, Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds, at: www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/p4079.pdf. Such
procedures may be included in a written bond resolution for a specific bond issue, and/or they may be established more
generally. Consult the board attorney and/or bond counsel regarding the establishment of such procedures for tax-exempt
bonds.

4:40 Page 1 of 2
©234-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



Securities Act of 1933, as amended12 and, if applicable, the continuing disclosure obligations under
Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 13

Additionally, in connection with the Board’s issuance of bonds, the interest on which is excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, or which enable the District or bond holder to
receive other federal tax benefits, the Board authorizes the Superintendent to establish written
procedures for post-issuance compliance monitoring for such bonds to protect their tax-exempt (or tax-
advantaged) status.

The Board may contract with outside professionals, such as bond counsel and/or a qualified financial
consulting firm, to assist it in meeting the requirements of this subsection, 14

LEGAL REF.: Seetrities-Aet-of 193315 U.S.C. §77a et seq., Securities Act of 1933.
Seeurities-Exchange Aet0f1934--15 U.S.C. §78a et seq.. Securities Exchange Act
of 1934,

17 CE.R. §240.15¢2-12.

Bend-AutherizatienAet-30 ILCS 305/2, Bond Authorization Act.

Bend-Issue-Netifieation-Aet-30 ILCS 352/, Bond Issue Notification Act.

Loeal-Government—Debt—Reform—Aet—30 ILCS 350/, _Local Government Debt
Reform Act.

Tax-AnticipationNote-Aet-50 ILCS 420/, Tax Anticipation Note Act.
105 ILCS 5/17-16, 5/17-17, 5/18-18, and 5/19-1 et seq.

CROSS REF.: 4:10 (Fiscal and Business Management)

ADMIN. PROC.: 4:40-AP (Preparing and Updating Disclosures)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

If a board does not accept this subhead, delete the Administrative Procedure Reference and the following Legal
References: Securities—Aet-af1933-15 U.S.C.§77a et seq.. Securities Act of 1933; Seeurities—ExchangeAet-of1915
U.S.C.§78a et seq.. Securitics Exchange Act of 1934; and 17 C.F.R. §240.15¢2-12.

1215Us.C. §77q.

1317 CFR. §240.15¢c2-12. See sample administrative procedure 4:40-AP, Preparing and Updating Disclosures, for a

detailed set of sample procedures designed to facilitate a district’s compliance with disclosure requirements of federal
securities laws.

14 Deete the last paragraph of this subhead if the board does not want to include a sentence in this policy that addresses
the use of outside professionals for assistance with compliance. Boards that regularly utilize outside professionals to assist
them in meeting bond disclosure requirements may want to include this language to memorialize their current practice.
Contracts for the services of individuals possessing a high degree of professional skill, such as attorneys and financial
consultants, are exempt from competitive bidding requirements. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.21(a)(i).

4:40 Page 2 of 2
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
{llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



REFORMATTED

June 26242024 4:40-AP

Operational Services

Administrative Procedure - Preparing and Updating Disclosures

This sample administrative procedure has been adapted and printed with the express permission of Chapman and Cutler
LLP. Chapman and Cutler LLP is pleased to provide this sample procedure as an example of factors issuers should consider
under current law in preparing policies and procedures for post-issuance compliance with federal securities laws and
regulations. It is intended to provide general guidance with the understanding that the provision of the sample procedure
does not constitute the rendering of legal advice by Chapman and Cutler LLP or the establishment of an attorney-client
relationship with any user of the sample procedure. Reference to this sample procedure should not be considered a
substitute for consultation with your legal advisors. Readers should understand that the application of relevant statutory
and regulatory provisions can vary based on specific facts and that changes in law or facts may impact the applicability of
the sample procedure. Chapman and Cutler LLP assumes no obligation to update the sample procedure to reflect changes
in law or practice.

Pursuant to the District’s responsibilities under the s
undertakings (Undertakings) under Rule 15¢2-1
amended, and the Securities and Exchange Com
necessary and in the District’s best interest that th all material respects with
federal securities laws regarding its (i) preliminary afd ments or offering circulars
and any supplements or amendments thereto i Official Statements), disseminated by
the District in connection with any bond
Information or Annual Financial Informat

s, including its continuing disclosure
curities Exchange Act of 1934, as
ents in enforcement actions, it is

Reportable Events, each as defi ngs, and any other required or voluntary
disclosures to EM ese procedures are designed to enable the District
to create accurate to its (i) Official Statements, (ii) Annual Financial
¢ collectively referred to herein as Disclosures.

(Disclosure Officer) :

Disclosures as hereinat orth (collectively, Disclosure Procedures).

o Disclosure Procedures: Official Statements. Whenever an Official Statement will be disseminated
in connection with the issuance of obligations by the District, the Disclosure Officer will oversee
the process of preparing the Official Statement pursuant to the following procedures:

1. The District shall select (a) the working group for the transaction, which group may include
outside professionals such as disclosure counsel, a municipal advisor, and an underwriter (the
Working Group), and (b) the member of the Working Group responsible for preparing the
first draft of the Official Statement.

2. The Disclosure Officer shall review and make comments on the first draft of the Official
Statement. Such review shall be done to determine that the Official Statement does not

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

L Districts that employ business managers may want to substitute “Business Manager”, “Chief School Business
Official”, or another locally equivalent title.

4:40-AP Page 1 of 4
©2421-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



include any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made in the Official Statement not misleading. Particular attention shall
be paid to the accuracy of all descriptions, significant information, and financial data
regarding the District. Examples include confirming that information relating to the District,
including but not limited to demographic changes, the addition or loss of major employers,
the addition or loss of major taxpayers or any other material information within the
knowledge of the Disclosure Officer, is included and properly disclosed. The Disclosure
Officer shall also be responsible for ensuring that the financial data presented with regard to
the District is accurate and corresponds with the financial information in the District’s
possession, including but not limited to information regarding bonded indebtedness, notes,
certificates, outstanding leases, tax rates or any other financial information of the District
presented in the Official Statement.

3. After completion of the review set forth in 2, above, the Disclosure Officer shall (a) discuss
the first draft of the Official Statement with the members of the Working Group and such
staff and officials of the District as the Disclosurg Officer deems necessary and appropriate,
and (b) provide comments, as appropriate, bers of the Working Group. The
Disclosure Officer shall also consider co '
whether any additional changes to the O are necessary or desirable to make
the document compliant with the requiremen

4. The Disclosure Officer shall continue to rev of the Official Statement in
the manner set forth in 2 and 3, above.

5. If, in the Disclosure Officer’s reasop
any untrue statement of a material
statements made in the Offici
reasonable discretion of the
provided, however, that t
authorized by th

e Disclosure Prog

material fact necessary to make the
ding, the Official Statement may, in the
be released for dissemination to the public;
Statement must be ratified, approved, and

ial Information. The Disclosure Officer will oversee the

; formation pursuant to these procedures:

1. By Deccmibe car (the same being at least 30 days prior to the last date on
A 3 ormation is required to be disseminated pursuant to the related

Annual Financid on. The Disclosure Officer shall also review the audited or
unaudited financial ents, as applicable, to be filed as part of the Annual Financial
Information (Financial Statements). In addition to the required updating of the Annual
Financial Information, the Disclosure Officer should consider whether additional information
needs to be added to the Annual Financial Information to make the Annual Financial
Information, including the Financial Statements, taken as a whole, correct and complete in all
material respects. For example, if disclosure of events that occurred subsequent to the date of
the Financial Statements would be necessary to clarify, enhance or correct information
presented in the Financial Statements, in order to make the Annual Financial Information,

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

2 The deadline for the dissemination of Annual Financial Information and/or Audited Financial Statements should be
set forth in each applicable Undertaking. These procedures assume the deadline set forth in each such Undertaking is not
later than 210 days after the end of a district’s fiscal year (ending June 30). If one orf more of a district’s Undertakings
provide for a different deadline, it may be appropriate or necessary to change the date in Paragraph C.1 above.

4:40-AP Page 2 of 4
©2024-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



taken as a whole, correct and complete in all material respects, disclosure of such subsequent
events should be made.

2. If, in the Disclosure Officer’s reasonable judgment, the Annual Financial Information,
including the Financial Statements, is correct and complete in all material respects, the
Disclosure Officer shall file the Annual Financial Information with EMMA (or confirm that
such filing is completed by any agent hired by the District for such purpose) within the
timeframe allowed for such filing.

e Disclosure Procedures: Reportable Events. The Disclosure Officer will prepare (or hire an agent
to prepare) Reportable Event Disclosure and file the same with EMMA (or confirm that such
filing is completed by an agent hired by the District for such purpose) in a timely manner (not in
excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the Reportable Event). Incurrence of a
Financial Obligation, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority
rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation, any of which affect security holders, if
material, is a Reportable Event. Upon the incurrence of any Financial Obligation, as such term is
defined in the Undertaking, the Disclosure Officer ghall review such Financial Obligation and
assess whether such Financial Obligation is € in connection with such Financial
Obligation, the District has agreed to any co of default, remedy, priority right or
other similar term which affects security holde e Officer shall further review such

such review. If, in the Disclosure Officer’s red8o i ollowing consultation with
financial or legal professionals as necessaiMEms cial Obligation and/or term of such
Financial Obligation is deemed materia
Financial Obligation (or the entire fing ent, provided that confidential or sensitive
information may be redacted to thi does not prevent all material terms from
being disclosed) with EMMA n &¥of teglbusiness days after the incurrence of such

o Disclosure Prag : 57 Whenever the District determines to file an EMMA
Notice, or Wit deci make a voluntary filing to EMMA, the Disclosure
Officer will @ preparing the EMMA Notice pursuant to these procedures:

1. The DiscloSiii all@repare (or hire an agent to prepare) the EMMA Notice. The
g cg@¥ed in the form required by the MSRB.

¥quired by an Undertaking, the Disclosure Officer shall determine

¢ EMMA Notice are necessary to make the document compliant

2. Inthe case of _
whether any chang®
with the Undertaking.

3. If, in the Disclosure Officer’s reasonable judgment, the EMMA Notice is correct and
complete and, in the case of a disclosure required by an Undertaking, complies with the
Undertaking, the Disclosure Officer shall file the EMMA Notice with EMMA (or confirm
that such filing is completed by any agent hired by the District for such purpose) within the
timeframe allowed for such filing.

e Additional Responsibilities of the Disclosure Officer. The Disclosure Officer, in addition to the
specific responsibilities outlined above, shall have general oversight of the entire disclosure
process, which shall include:

1. Maintaining appropriate records of compliance with these Disclosure Procedures (including
proofs of EMMA filings) and decisions made with respect to issues that have been raised;

2. Evaluating the effectiveness of the procedures contained in these Disclosure Procedures; and

4:40-AP Page 3 of 4
©202+-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



3.

Informing the Board when substantive revisions or modifications are made to these
Disclosure Procedures.

e General Principles.

1. All participants in the disclosure process should be encouraged to raise potential disclosure
items at all times in the process.

2. The process of revising and updating the Disclosures should not be viewed as a mechanical
insertion of current numbers. While it is not anticipated that there will be major changes in
the form and content of the Disclosures at the time of each update, the Disclosure Officer
should consider whether such changes are necessary or desirable to make sure the Disclosure
does not make any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary or desirable, in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances in
which they were made, not misleading at the time of each update.

3. Whenever the District releases information, whether in written or spoken form, that may
reasonably be expected to reach investors, it is said to be “speaking to the market.” When
speaking to the market, District officials must be sure that the released information does not
make any untrue statement of a material fa o state a material fact necessary or
desirable, in order to make the statements t of the circumstances in which they
were made, not misleading,

4. While care should be taken not to shortcut o i eps.outlined in these Disclosure
Procedures on an ad hoc basis, the revie i the Disclosures is a fluid
process and recommendations for impsgms ese Disclosure Procedures should be
solicited and regularly considered.

5. The Disclosure Officer is authonze i : r attendance at relevant conferences
or presentatlons or annual traj eSS ted by outside counsel, consultants or
experts in order to ensure a i : owledge for the effective administration of
these Disclosure Procedur

LEGAL REF
4:40-AP Page 4 of 4

©2024-2024 Potlicy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



May-2022June 2024 4:70

Operational Services

Resource Conservation !

The Superintendent or designee shall manage a program of energy and resource conservation for the
District that includes:

1. Periodic review of procurement procedures and specifications to ensure that purchased
products and supplies are reusable, durable, or made from recycled materials, if economically
and practically feasible. 2

2. Purchasing recycled paper and paper products in amounts that will, at a minimum, meet the
specifications in the School Code, if economically and practically feasible. 3

3. Periodic review of procedures on the reduction of solid waste generated by academic,
administrative, and other institutional functions. These procedures shall: (a) require recycling
the District’s waste stream, including landscape waste, computer paper, and white office paper,
if economically and practically feasible; (b) include investigation of the feasibility of potential
markets for other recyclable materials that are present in the District’s waste stream; and (c)
establish a poal for thebe-designed-to-achieve-beforeJuly1-2020atleasta-56%-reduction in
the amount of solid waste-that—is generated by the District, when it is economically and
practically feasible to do so. 4

4. Adherenceto-eEnergy conservation measures. 5

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

L State or federal law controls this policy’s content. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.19¢.

2 Required by 105 ILCS 5/10-20.19¢(a-5).

3 Required by 105 ILCS 5/10-20.19¢(b) - (e).

4 Reguired-by-105 ILCS 5/10-20.19c(e-5). Everything—in-this—paragraph—isliem (a) is mandatory. Item (b) except-that

theis not mandatory_because the statute only “encourages” districts to investigate “potential markets for other recyclable
materials that are present in the school district’s waste stream.” 105 ILCS 5/10-20.19¢(e-5) required districts to have waste
reduction procedures designed to achieve at least a 50% reduction in the amount of solid waste generated by the district before
7-1-20. but it wasis unclear-sbeut what year or baseline number e=yearthat-a district mustneeded to use to determine whether
it has-achieved 4 4 30% reduction—in-the-ameunt-ofselid-waste-tha! itagnerah By Mm Oneoption for
a baseline may-be-tewas to use the date this law became effective, which was 7-18-08, or the year closest to it for which the

district st#iretaineds relevant records=h —cansuit-the b : 3 .
¢) is optional. The statute does not establish ¢ cti 3 . i 2) gives districts the fexibility

5 Districts are authorized to enter into guaranteed energy savings contracts to implement energy conservation measures,
including any improvement, repair, or alteration of any school district building, or any equipment or fixture to be added t0 a
district building, that is designed to reduce energy consumption or operation costs. 105 [LCS 5/19b. The guaranteed energy
savings contract must provide that all payments are to be made over time, and energy cost savings must be specified and
guaranteed to the extent necessary to pay the costs of the energy conservation measures. State law provides the process for
requesting proposals and entering into contracts. Any contract is valid whether or not funding has been appropriated in any
budget adopted by the board.

470 ‘ Page 1 of 2
©2022 2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.19c and 5/19b.

CROSS REF.: 4:60 (Purchases and Contracts), 4:150 (Facility Management and Building
Programs)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

Consult the board attorney about whether an energy conservation measure qualifies for funding as an energy conservation
project under the Ill. Finance Authority Act (FAA). 20 ILCS 3501/. The FAA specifically includes energy conservation
projects in school districts. 20 ILCS 3501/820-10(c). The FAA’s definition of energy conservation project is very similar to
the School Code’s definition of energy conservation measure (105 ILCS 5/19b-1.1); it also includes measures that reduce the
amount of electricity or natural gas required to achieve a given end use, consistent with the definition of energy efficiency in
the I1l. Power Agency Act. 20 ILCS 3855/1-10. Funding under the FAA requires a certification that the project will be a cost-
effective energy-related project that will lower energy or utility costs in connection with the operation or maintenance of such
building or facility, and will achieve energy cost savings sufficient to cover bond debt service and other project costs within
10 years from the date of project installation. 20 ILCS 3501/820-10(c).

4:70 Page 2 of 2
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Illinois Association of School Boards. Al Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June2019June 2024 4:70-AP

Operational Services

Administrative Procedure - Resource Conservation 1

Definitions

De-inked stock — Paper that has been processed to remove inks, clays, coatings, binders, and other
contaminants.

High grade printing and writing papers — Includes offset-printing paper, duplicator paper, writing
paper (stationery), tablet paper, office paper, note pads, xerographic paper, envelopes, form bond
including computer paper and carbonless forms, book papers, bond papers, ledger paper, book stock,
and cotton fiber papers.

Paper and paper products — High-grade printing and
unbleached packaging, and recycled paperboard.

iting papers, tissue products, newsprint,

Postconsumer material — Only those products gen iness or consumer, that have served
their intended end uses, and that have been separate

during the production of an end product are excluded? ial includes:

e Paper, paperboard, and fibrous waste {g tai office buildings, homes and so forth,
after the waste has passed through i 1 USABEN er item, including used corrugated
boxes, old newspapers, mixed-wast WBing cards, and used cordage; and

e All paper, paperboard, and fi astg AP verted or separated from the municipal
waste stream.

Recovered paper materig genera er the completion of the papermaking process,
such as postconsume 4l ings, bindery trimmings, printing waste, cutting and other
converting waste, 48t AN ers, obsolete inventories, and rejected unused stock.

e Postconsumer mate

e Dry paper and paperbBard waste generated after completion of the papermaking process (that
is, those manufacturing operations up to and including the cutting and trimming of the paper
machine reel into smaller rolls or rough sheets), including envelope cuttings, bindery
trimmings, and other paper and paperboard waste resulting from printing, cutting, forming and
other converting operations, or from bag, box, and carton manufacturing, and butt rolls, mill
wrappers, and rejected unused stock; and

o Finished paper and paperboard from obsolete inventories of paper and paperboard
manufacturers, merchants, wholesalers, dealers, printers, converters or others.

Recycled paperboard — Includes paperboard products, folding cartons and pad backings.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

1 With the exception of activities listed under the Solid Waste Reduction subhead, these procedures restate State law.
105 ILCS 5/10-20.19¢.

4:70-AP Page 1 of 3
©2412.2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Tissue products — Includes toilet tissue, paper towels, paper napkins, facial tissue, paper doilies,
industrial wipers, paper bags, and brown papers. These products shall also be unscented and shall not
be colored.

Unbleached packaging — Includes corrugated and fiber storage boxes.

Procurement Procedures and Specifications for Products and Supplies

Procurement procedures and specifications for products and supplies shall be periodically reviewed to
ensure that the District is: (a) purchasing products and supplies that are reusable, durable, or made from
or contain recycled materials, if economically and practically feasible, and (b) giving preference to
products and supplies containing the highest amount of recycled material and that are consistent with
the effective use of the product or supply, if economically and practically feasible.

Recycled Paper and Paper Products Purchases
I. Whenever economically and practically feasible, at least 75% of the total dollar value of paper and

paper products purchased by the District will be recycled paper and paper products.—shatbe
a Sre paiaiond e o antaces—of the Distriet’s-total d e a Af

paper products purchased from private sector verfto;
from this requirement.
I1. Wherever economically and practically fg
postconsumer or recovered paper mate
e Recycled high grade printing

ting contracts are exempted
r and paper products shall contain

contain at least 50% recovered paper
stock or postconsumer material.

e Recycled tissue products s postconsumer material

e Recycled newgs least 80% postconsumer material.

¢ Recycled : i contain at least 55% postconsumer material

e Recycleg ast 95% postconsumer material.
These regulations"@@s ar@laterials, nor to any newspapers, magazines, textbooks, library
books or other copylighte icafi@ns that are purchased or used by the District or any school or
attendance center withif¥igiie Distg@¥or that are sold in any school supply store operated by or within

any such school or attenda

Solid Waste Reduction 2

The Supermtendent will appomt a team of mterested individuals representmg VaI‘lOLIS DlStI‘lCt
departments to

1. Periodically review methods and procedures to reduce solid waste generated by academic,
administrative, and other institutional functions. These procedures must be designed to, when

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

2 This section contains several of the many ways a district may comply with 105 ILCS 5/10-20.19c. State-law—<centaing
the-geatstated-in-the-Hrst-sentenee-but- does-net-mandate-its-achievement-State law requires the periodic review of procedures
to reduce solid waste. The activities #1-6 listed in the last paragraph are only ideas and should be customized.

4:70-AP Page 2 of 3
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



economically and practically feasible, recycle the District’s waste stream, including without
limitation landscape waste, computer paper, and white office paper.

1.2 Establish a goal for reduction in the amount of solid waste generated by the District. when it is
economically and practically feasible to do so.

2.3.Identify indicators to monitor the District’s progress toward achieving the-any established solid
waste reduction goal. As necessary, the procedures and methods shall be adjusted and refined.

3.4. Make periodic progress reports to the Superintendent or designee.

The team shall devise and oversee methods for making the following activities part of the District
culture:

1. Staff members actively pursue waste reduction and prevention activities. Examples include:
a. Printing and copying individual documents on both sides of the page.
b. Setting computer software for default two-sided printing including word processing,
spreadsheets, electronic mail, and others.
c. Printing or copying only the pages needed.
d. Routing memos and newsletters.
e. Providing trays to collect and reuse one-
f.  Reducing unwanted mail and elimi
2. Staff members and students seek to reuse erials to divert them from the waste
stream whenever possible.
3. A training plan instructs staff members and s
4. The District’s solid waste reduction program is ici its benefits are emphasized,
including cost savings by lowering su disposal costs.

5. An incentive program to reduce soli ugh school recognition programs.
6. Staff and students are encouraged i nd suggest improvements to procedures
and practices.
LEGAL REF.: 10
4:70-AP Page 3 of 3

©2049.2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Mevember202+-June 2024 4:80

Operational Services

Accounting and Audits !

The School District’s accountingand audit services shall comply with the Requirements for Accounting,
Budgeting, Financial Reporting, and Auditing, as adopted by the Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE),
State and federal laws and regulations, and generally accepted accounting principles. Detemmination of
liabilities and assets, prioritization of expenditures of governmental funds, and provisions for
accounting disclosures shall be made in accordance with govemment accounting standards as directed
by the auditor designated by the Board. The Superintendent, in addition to other assigned financial
responsibilities, shall report monthly on the District’s financial performance, both income and expense,
in relation to the financial plan represented in the budget.

Annual Audit 2

At the close of each fiscal year, the Superintendent shall arrange an audit ofthe District funds, accounts,
statements, and other financial matters. The audit shall be performed by an independent certified public
accountant designated by the Board and be conducted in conformance with prescribed standards and
legal requirements. A complete and detailed written audit report shall be provided to each Board
member and to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall annually, on or before October 15, submit
an original and one copy of the audit to the Regional Superintendent of Schools.

Annual Financial Report 3

The Superintendent or designee shall annually prepare and submit the Annual Financial Reporton a
timely basis using the form adopted by the ISBE. The Superintendent shall review and discuss the
Annual Financial Report with the Board before it is submitted.

The foomotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

L State or federal law controls this policy’s content. A board policy or resolution is required concerning revolving funds
and petty cash. 23 IlLAdmin.Code §100.70. This policy is intended to facilitate the board’s fiscal oversight role. The last
sentence of'the first paragraph should be modified to align with local conditions. The Requirements for Accounting, Budgeting,
Financial Reporting, and Auditing at 23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 100 replaced 23 Tl.Admin.Code Part 110, Program Accounting
Manual and 23 Tl.Admin.Code Part 125, Student Activity Funds and Convenience Accounts.

2 Audit requirements are found in 105 ILCS 5/3-7 and 5/3-15.1, and 23 [11.Admin.Code §100.110. The federal Single
Audit Act adds audit requirements for federal programs. 31 U.S.C. §7501 et seq. Grant Accountability Transparency Act
(GATA) (30 1LCS 708/ rules also require districts that receive federal pass-through and State-issued awards to have a
financial statement audit conducted in accordance with 23 [ILAdmin.Code §100.110, regardless of the amount of award
expenditures. 44 L. Admin.Code §7000.90(c)(3). See f/n 5. below. for additional information regarding GATA.

Use-this—aliermative{farFor districts in suburban Cook County,: replace “Regional Superintendent of Schools” with

“appropriate Intermediate Service Center_Executive Director.”

The following optional sentence establishes an audit committee: “The Board will annually establish an audit committee
to help the Board select an external auditor, confer with the auditor regarding the audit’s scope, and oversee the audit process.”
Note: All board committees are subject to the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/).

The following optional sentence establishes a competitive process for selecting the extemal auditor; it prevents a long-
term relationship with an auditor and reduces the possibility of audits being too routine or friendly: “The Board will annually
advertise a request for proposals to perform the external audit.” Substitute “periodically” for “annually™ if desired.

3 Requirements for the annual financial report are found in 105 ILCS 5/2-3.27 and 5/3-15.1; 23 [ll. Admin.Code §100.100.
The last sentence of this section should be modified to align with local conditions.

4:80 Page 1 of 5
©2021-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Inventories 4

The Superintendent or designee is responsible for establishing and maintaining accurate inventory
records. The inventory record of supplies and equipment shall include a description of each item,
quantity, location, purchase date, and cost or estimated replace ment cost, unless the supplies and
equipment are acquired by the District pursuantto a federal or State grant award, in which case the
inventory record shall also include the information required by 2 C.F.R. §200.313, if applicable. S The
Superintendent shall establish procedures for the management of property acquired by the District
under grant awards that comply with federal and State law. 6

Capitalization Threshold 7

To be considered a capital asset for financial reporting purposes, a capital item must be at or above a
capitalization threshold of $5,000 and have an estimated useful life greater than one year.

Disposition of District Property 8

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the Board, as necessary, of the following so that the Board
may consider its disposition: (1) District personal property (property other than buildings and land) that

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

ioRS content of inventory records is at the
bv 2 C.F.R. §200.313. Sce f/n 5. below.

52 C.F.R. §200.313. The uniform federal rules that govern federal grant awards in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 apply to State-
issued grant-awards through the Grant Accountability Transparency Act (GATA) (30 ILCS 708/), unless exempted in whole
or in part by the Governor’s Office of Management of Budget. 30 ILCS 708/55. Sec www.isbe.net/gata for further information
about the scope of GATA’s application to federal awards and State-funded grant programs administered by the Ill. State Board
of Education (ISBE). See sample administrative procedure 4:80-AP3, Inventory Management for Federal and State Awards.
ISBE guidance is available at: www isbe.net/Documents/fiscal cedure_handbk.pdf and www.isbenet/Pages/F -and-
State-Monitoring.aspx ichepatPagesiAuditand-Mor itoring-ReviewRequirements-and-Tools-asp.

6 1d. In connection with ISBE’s grant monitoring function, ISBE published a Checkiist for Equipment and Inventory
Review which requires an approved policy (or procedure) related to the management of equipment at:

www.ishe.net/Pages/Federal-and-State-Monitoring. aspx sacncisbe-netPac +
Hﬁ‘!ﬁ!!w‘ it.

7 Optional. 23 [I.Admin.Code §100.60 requires school boards to adopt a capitalization threshold, which can be done
through policy. The capitalization threshold is a dollar figure above which the cost of an item will be included on financial
statements and depreciated. A minimum threshold of $5,000 and useful life greater than one year complies with the definition
of equipment under federal grant rules, but may be adjusted, and/or multiple thresholds can be established, for different
categories of capital assets. 2 C.F.R. §§200.133 and 200.313(¢). The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34 at para. 115(¢) states that a government should disclose its policy “for capitalizing assets and for estimating
the useful lives of those assets.” See GASB Statement 34 and Guide to Implementation of GASB Statement 34 on Basic
Financial Statements (p.28), both available at: www .gasb org, Fhere-are-ne-specific-requirements orsch-poHeieshowarer
Ddistrict auditors may require or recommend a district have a more comprehensive capitalization policy and/or procedure.
Such an accounting policy or procedure should be developed in consultation with the district’s accounting professional(s) and
tailored to reflect local conditions.

a-nat/D .
Be-HetHacHTe

siny= BT

8 The requirements in this section are specified in 105 [LCS 5/5-22 (allowing property constructed or renovated by
students as part of a curricular program to be sold through the services of a licensed real estate broker subject to certain
requirements), 5/10-22.8 (sale of personal propertv); and 2 C.F.R. §200.3 13(e) for federal awards and State awards governed
by GATA. See f/n 5, above, regarding grant award requirements. A board that desires to act on the disposition of property
having any value should use the following alternative to this section’s last sentence: “Notwithstanding the above, the
Superintendent or designee may unilaterally dispose of worthless personal property.”

4:80 Page 2 of 5
©2021+-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
{llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




is no longer needed for school purposes, and (2) school site, building, or other real estate that is
unnecessary, unsuitable, or inconvenient. Notwithstanding the above, the Superintendent or designee
may unilaterally dispose of personal property of a diminutive value. The Superintendent shall establish
procedures for the disposition of property acquired by the District under grant awards that comply with
federal and State law.

Taxable Fringe Benefits ?

The Superintendent or designee shall: (1) require that all use of District property or equipment by
employees is for the District’s convenience and best interests unless it is a Board-approved fringe
benefit, and (2) ensure compliance with the Internal Revenue Service regulations regarding when to
report an employee’s personal use of District property or equipment as taxable compensation.

Controls for Revolving Funds and Petty Cash 10

Revolving funds and the petty cash system are established in Board policy 4:50, Payment Procedures.
The Superintendent shall: (1) designate a custodian for eachrevolving fund and petty cash fund, (2)
obtain a bond for each fund custodian, and (3) maintain the funds in compliance with this policy, State
law, and ISBE rules. A check for the petty cash fund may be drawn payable to the designated petty
cash custodian. Bank accounts for revolving funds are limited to a maximum balance of $566:001,000.
All expenditures fromthese bank accountsmust be directly related to the purpose for which the account
was established and supported with documentation, including signed invoices or receipts. All deposits
into these bank accounts must be accompanied with a clear description of their intended purpose. The
Superintendent or designee shall include checks written to reimburse revolving funds on the Board’s
monthly listing of bills indicating the recipient and including an explanation.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

The recipient (through either sale or donation) of any discarded school bus must immediately: (1) remove, cover, or
conceal the “SCHOOL BUS” signs and any other insignia or words indicating the vehicle is a school bus; (2) render inoperable
or remove entirely the stop signal arm and flashing signal system; and (3) paint the school bus a different color from those
under 625 ILCS 5/12-801. 625 ILCS 5/12-806(b).

9 The intent of this optional section is twofold: (1) to control personal use of district property and equipment; and (2) to
ensure compliance with IRS rules. As to the first point, allowing personal use of district property or equipment is arguably
prohibited by the Ill. Constitution, Art. VIIL Sec. 1 which states: “Public funds, property or credit shall be used only for public
purposes.” As to the second point, any fringe benefit an employer provides is taxable and must be included in the recipient’s
pay unless the law specifically excludes it. See Publication 15-B (2019), Employer's Tax Guide to Fringe Benefits, at:
www.irs. gov/publirs-pdfip | 5b.pdf.

10 105 [LCS 5/10-20.19(2); 23 Tl Admin.Code §100.70. This paragraph’s contents are mandatory, except for the
$1.000500 cap on the maximum balance of revolving funds. The cap amount may be changed or the following alternative
used: “Each revolving fund shall be maintained in a bank that has been approved by the Board and established in an amount
approved by the Superintendent consistent with the annual budget.”

The School Code defines petty cash as a type of revolving fund. Id. It and other revolving funds carry a standard balance
and are regularly reimbursed to maintain the standard balance amount (generally referred to as an imprest system of financial
accounting). In practice, petty cash is paid out of a de minimis cash amount maintained by a fund custodian. Disbursement
from a revolving fund other than petty cash is typically made against an imprest checking account, by an authorized signor
who is readily available in the district, e.g., a superintendent or building principal. The authorized signor manages the revolving

fund and requests the board to reimburse the fund for expenses incurred to bring the imprest account back to its standard
balance.

4:80 Page 3 of 5
©2024-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Control Requirements for Checks 11

The Board must approve all bank accounts opened or established in the District’s or a District school’s
name or with the District’s Federal Employer Identification Number. All checks issued by the School
District must be signed by either the Treasurer or Board President, except that checks from accounts
containing student activity funds or fiduciary funds and checks from revolving accounts may be signed
by their respective account custodians.

Internal Controls 12

The Superintendent is primarily responsible for establishing and implementing a system of interal
controls for safeguarding the District’s financial condition; the Board, however, will oversee these
safeguards. The control objectives are to ensure efficient business and financial practices, reliable
financial reporting, and compliance with State law and Board policies, and to prevent losses from fraud,

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

11 This section is largely up to the local board’s discretion; additional controls may be added. The following alternative
to the second sentence will mandate two signatories for checks:

Two of the following individuals: the Treasurer, Board President, and/or Board Vice-President, shall sign all checks
issued by the School District, except that checks from accounts containing student activity funds or fiduciary funds and checks
from revolving accounts may be signed by their respective account custodians.

See sample policy 4:90, Student Activity and Fiduciary Funds, for more information about a board’s responsibilities for
student activity funds and fiduciary finds. A board must comply with State law requirements concerning the use of facsimile
or electronic signatures on checks. The Secretary of State, Index Department, maintains certified manual signatures of officers
authorized fo sign checks. Uniform Facsimile Signature of Public Officials Act, 30 ILCS 320/. Electronic records and
signatures are governed by the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act. 815 ILCS 333/-added-by-R-A-—10238. Attorneys disagree
about the applicability of these laws to school districts.

12 This section is largely up to the local board’s discretion. The annual audit must include a “review and testing of the
internal control structure.” 23 1L Admin.Code §100.110. This review’s limited scope means that boards should not rely on it
to reveal uncontrolled financial risks. The board’s responsibility is to establish policy to safeguard the district’s financial
condition. Indeed, the oath of office includes this promise: “1 shall respect taxpayer interests by serving as a faithful protector
of the school district’s assets.” In this sample policy, the board sets the control objectives and the superintendent is responsible
for developing an internal controls system. In addition, ISBE has issued guidance on internal controls pursuant to its
administration of the Grant Accountability and Transparency Act (GATA), 30 ILCS 708/. See thelSBE's State and Federal

1 Polit Fiscal  Requirements, _and _ Procedures—Eiseal—Procedwres—Handbook,  at:
www isbe.net/Documents/fiscal_procedure_handbk.pdf. which states that “to establish a strong control environment, grantees
must...[d]esign internal controls that are in compliance with guidance in Standards for Internal Control in the Federal
Government issued by the Comptroller General of the United States” (a free resource, available at:
www g40.g0v/assels/670/663712.pdf) or the [nternal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (a fee-based resource, available at__www coso.org/guidance-on-ic
hitns: cose.orz/Paesiicasnx). Boards that wish to take a larger oversight role regarding internal controls may list the
numbered sentences in the [ASB sample administrative procedure 4:80-AP1, Checklist for Internal Controls, as required
inclusions in the superintendent’s program for internal controls. This alternative, for insertion at the end of this section’s first
paragraph, follows:

The District’s system of internal controls shall include the following:

All financial transactions must be properly authorized and documented.

Financial records and data must be accurate and complete.

Accounts payable must be accurate and punctual.

District assets must be protected from loss or misuse.

Incompatible duties should be segregated, if possible.

Accounting records must be periodically reconciled.

Equipment and supplies must be safeguarded.

Staff members with financial or business responsibilities must be properly trained and supervised, and must
perform their responsibilities with utmost care and competence.

9.  Any unnecessary weaknesses or financial risks must be promptly corrected.

N AR BN

4:80 Page 4 of 5
©2024-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards, All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



waste, and abuse,13 as well as employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, or other imprudent
employee action.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually audit the District’s financial and business operations for
compliance with established internal controls and providethe results to the Board. The Board may from
time-to-time engage a third party to audit internal controls in addition to the annual audit.

LEGAL REF.: 2 C.F.R. §200 et seq.
30 ILCS 708/, Grant Accountability and Transparency Act, implemented by 44
I1. Admin.Code 7000 et seq.
105 ILCS 5/2-3.27,5/2-3.28,5/3-7, 5/3-15.1,5/5-22, 5/10-21.4,5/10-20.19, 5/10-
22.8, and 5/17-1 et seq.
23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 100.

CROSS REF.: 4:10 (Fiscal and Business Management), 4:50 (Payment Procedures), 4:55 (Use of
Credit and Procurement Cards), 4:90 (Student Activity and Fiduciary Funds)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed betore the policy is adopted.

13 Unless specifically exempted, grantees receiving funds from any State agency, including ISBE, must comply with
GATA and annually complete a Fiscal and Administrative Internal Controls Questionnaire (ICQ). The ICQ covers a number
of different topics related to internal controls. Districts that are identified as having one or more areas of elevated risk based
on their answers to the [CQ, are required to develop and implement corrective action to address the area(s). Districts that fail
to take necessary corrective action to address weak areas of internal control put their grant funding at risk. One of the sections
of the ICQ_may addresses a grantee’s internal controls for fraud, waste, and abuse, including whether the grantee has a fraud
awareness program. See sample administrativ :dures 4:80-AP1, Checklist for Internal Controls, and 4:80-AP2, Fraud,
Waste, and Abuse Awareness Program, which incorporate [SBE-recommended practices related to fraud, waste, and abuse.

4:80 Page 5 of 5
©2021-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[ltinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Oectober2019June 2024 4:80-AP3

Operational Services

Administrative Procedure - Inventory Management for Federal and State Awards

This procedure applies to property acquired by the District under federal grant awards or State grant
awards governed by the Grant Accountability and Transparency Act (GATA) (30 ILCS 708/). 1

Definitions

Property - real or personal property. 2 C.F.R. §200.81.

Equipment - Tangible personal property (including information technology systems) having a useful
life of more than one year and per-unit acquisition cost that equals or exceeds the lesser of the

capitalization level established by the District for financial statement purposes, or $5,000. 2 C.F.R.
§200.133

Supplies - All tangible personal property other than C.F.R. §200.194

Acquisition Cost - The cost of the asset includin, y the asset for its intended use.
Acquisition cost for equipment, for example, means icéof the equipment, including
the cost of any modifications, attachments, accessories, ili aratus necessary to make it
costs for software includes those
development costs capitalized in accordancg : ed accounting principles (GAAP).
Ancillary charges, such as taxes, duty, prot@ive i#ra insurance, freight, and installation may be
included in or excluded from the acquiiio
practices. 2 C.F.R. §200.12

hing —2 C.F.R. §200.313(d)(1) and (2)

kures all equipment purchased with grant funds is identified

d marked as such.

aintains an inventory list that includes the following:

a. adescription of the property

b. a serial number or other identification number

c. the source of funding for the property (including the Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN), if applicable)

d. who holds title

e. the acquisition date

f. cost of the property

and/or Designee

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

1 The Grant Accountability and Transparency Act (GATA) adopts the federal uniform guidance applicable to federal
grant awards for all State grant awards, unless the Office of the Governor grants an exception. 30 ILCS 708/55; 44
[1I.Admin.Code §7000.60. For information about the scope of GATA as it pertains to grants administered by the [ll. State
Board of Education, see www.isbe.net/gata.

4:80-AP3 Page 1 of 4
@326449-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor Responsibility
g. percentage of federal or State participation in the cost of the
property

h. the location, use and condition of the property
i. any ultimate disposition data including the date of disposal
and sale price of the property.
3. Takes a physical inventory of the property and reconciles the
results with the records at least once every two years.

Maintenance and Safeguarding —2 C.F.R. §200.313(d)(4)

1. Budgets for and schedules regular maintenance of the equipment
when it is recommended by the manufacturer and arranges for
repair of equipment when economically feasible.

2. Oversees implementation of the internal controls for the
safeguarding of ipment and supplies required by

inistrati 0-AP1, futernal-Contrel-Checklist

Awareness Program.

erty loss, damage, or theft. If
n with the Superintendent, makes
ent for further investigation.

ded for the purposes of the project.
ring the time that equipment is used on the project or program
which it was acquired, designates equipment available for use
other projects or programs currently or previously supported
by the federal or State government, provided such use will not
interfere with the work for which it was originally acquired, in
the following order of priority:

a. First preference is given to other programs or projects
supported by the awarding agency that financed the
equipment.

b. Second preference is given to programs or projects under
awards from other awarding agencies (in the case of federal
awards, to activities under federal awards from other federal
awarding agencies; this includes consolidated equipment for
information technology systems).

3. [If the equipment is to be used for non-federally or non-State-
funded programs or projects, considers charging user fees. Any
fees charged for equipment services acquired under an award
must be equal to or greater than what private companies charge

4:80-AP3

Page 2 of 4
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.




Actor

Responsibility

for equivalent services, unless specifically authorized by statute,
for as long as the government retains an interest in the equipment.

4. Ensures that title to the property is not encumbered without the
approval of the awarding agency.

Disposition —2 C.F.R. §200.313(¢)

1. Unless the awarding agency requires an equipment transfer,
when equipment acquired under an award is no longer needed for
the original project or program or for any other activities
supported by a federal or State awarding agency, requests
disposition instructions from the awarding agency, if required by
the terms and conditions of the award.

2. If an item of equipment has a current per unit fair market value
of $5,000 or less, arranges for the retention, sale, or disposal of
the equipment with ng further obligation to the awarding agency.

i iti ch items in the District’s property

records.
3. Except for aw
the awarding

nder 2 C.F.R. §200.312(b), or if
provide  requested
days, arranges for the

The awfiliding 8¢ i itled to an amount calculated by
i arket value or proceeds from sale by

may permit the District to deduct and retain from
cy share $500 or ten percent of the proceeds, whichever

applicable, arranges for the transfer of title to the property to

federal or State government or to an eligible third party,

ovided that in such cases, the District is entitled to
compensation for its attributable percentage of the current fair
market value of the property.

5. If the District is authorized or required to sell the property,
ensures compliance with Board policy 4:80, Accounting and
Audits, regarding the disposition of property, and follows proper
sales procedures to ensure the highest possible return.

6. For items of equipment with an acquisition cost of $5,000 or
more:

a. Obtains two signed bids from potential purchasers or two
appraisals from authorized appraisers to determine the per
unit current fair market value.

b. If the per unit current fair market value is $5,000 or more,

follows the procedures outlined in the IlI. State Board of

Education’s State and Federal Grant Administration Policy,

4:80-AP3

Page 3 of 4
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor Responsibility

Fiscal Requirements, and Procedures to obtain ISBE’s
approval, available at:
www.isbe.net/Documents/fiscal_procedure_handbk.pdf,

7. When appropriate, arranges for the trade-in of equipment to be
replaced or sale of the property when acquiring replacement
equipment. Proceeds from the trade-in or sale may be used to
offset the cost of the replacement equipment.

Note: If the District fails to take appropriate disposition actions,
the awarding agency may direct the District to take disposition actions.

Staff Members Who Use the equipment/supplies for the purposes authorized by the grant

Receive during the grant period, or until the property is no longer needed for the
Equipment/Supplies as | purposes of the project.
Paﬂ. of Their Job Properly use the equipment in accordance with the manufacturer’s
Duties 5 f
mstructions.
Produce the equipmen en requested by the Business
Manager or designee, entory, scheduled maintenance,
repair, or other purposes
Take reasonable step Sllamage 10 equipment and supplies in
ati gdure 4:80-AP1, fternal-Control-
of property in accordance with_
-AP2, Fraud, Waste, and Abuse
ort lost or stolen equipment/supplies to the Business
equipment/supplies when requested by the Business
designee or if it is no longer needed.
4:80-AP3 Page 4 of 4

©2849-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Oetober2022 June 2024 4:140

Operational Services
Waiver of Student Fees 1

The Superintendent will recommend to the School Board a schedule of fees, if any, to be charged
students for the use of textbooks, consumable materials, extracurricular activities, and other school
student fees. Students must also pay fines for the loss of or damage to school books or other school-
owned materials.

Fees for textbooks, other instructional materials, and driver education, as well as fines for the loss or
damage of school property are waived for students who meet the eligibility criteria for a waiver as
described in this policy.2 In order that no student is denied educational services or academic credit due
to the inability of parents/guardians to pay student fees and fines, the Superintendent will recommend

The foomotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law requires this subject matter be covered by policy and controls its content. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13, amended by
P.A.s 102-1032, 102-805, and_103-1354efi——4-23; 23 Tl Admin.Code §1.245. Fhought0SHLCS5/10-20-3has-been
armended—by 44 N el HOS0S ol —tha Hlineis—SiateBoard—e

...... By b ndata 1

T
-

: : - b se—[ees are “any monetary charge collected by a public school,
public school district, or charter school from a student or the parents or guardian ofa student as a prerequisite for the student’s
participation in any curricular or extracurricular program of the school or school district as defined [at 23 [ll.Admin.Code
§1.245(1) and (2)].” 105 ILCS 5/1-3, amended by P.A. 102-805—e£E1-1-23, Fines include "charges for the loss of school
property_assessed by a district.” 23 [ Admin.Code §1.245.

State law provides that “[n]o discrimination or punishment of any kind, including, but not limited to: the lowering of
grades, exclusion from classes, or withholding of student records, transcripts, or diplomas may be exercised against a student
because the student’s parents or guardians are unable to purchase required textbooks or instructional materials or to pay
required fees;.” 105 ILCS 5/28-19.2, amended by P.A. 102-805—ef—4-23: 23 Tl Admin.Code §1.245(g). This policy
concerns an area in which the law is unsettled (see footnotes 2 and 3). If the fee or fine waiver policy end/or procedures are
substantively amended, then parents/guardians must be notified in writing within 30 calendar days following the adoption of
the amendments. 23 Il.Admin.Code §1.245(¢).

2 Districts must waive textbooks fees and all fees and fines for the loss of school property for students whose
parents/guardians are unable to afford them and for homeless children and youth. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13, amended by P.As
102-1032, and-102-805, and 103-154e£E1-1-23. While districts are only required to waive fines for the /oss of school property
and not the damage of school property, this sample policy extends fine waivers to both for ease of implementation and to
encourage students to return school property even if damaged (instead of claiming property is lost to avoid a fine), Delete o
damase if the board. afler consulting with the board attorney. decides to only waive fines for the loss of school property.

In order to effectuate the law’s intent, the term “textbook™ should be interpreted broadly to include fees for instructional
materials, laboratory fees, and workbooks. The enforceability of 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13(b) and ISBE regulations (23
[1.Admin.Code §1.245) requiring districts to waive “other fees” is questionable because they are unfunded mandates. [SBE
regulations on school fees may not be enforceable because the General Assembly failed to make necessary appropriations.
See the Weekly Message from State Superintendent Robert Schiller, 8-15-03 (contact a PRESS Asst. Editor for a copy).

The textbook block grant program operated by ISBE is found at 105 [LCS 5/2-3.155amended-by-RA— 101227,

A school district may charge up to $50 to students who participate in the driver education course. The fee may be
increased up to $250, provided the district completes the requirements in Section 27-24.2. The fee must be waived for any
student whose parent(s)/guardian(s) isare unable to afford it. 105 ILCS 5/27-24.2; 23 1. Admin.Code §252.30.

Resident tuition fees are not permissible, but a board’s authority under 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13 to charge for textbooks and
towel fees does not violate the [Il. Constitution’s provision guaranteeing free public education through the secondary level.

Hamer v. Board of Ed.. Sch. Dist. No. 109, 9 ML App.3d 663 (2nd Dist. 1973).

4:140 Page 1 of 4
©2022 2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Iilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use,



to the Board which additional fees and fines, if any, the District will waive for students who meet the
eligibility criteria for a waiver. 3

Notification

The Superintendent shall ensure that a notice of waiver applicability is provided to parents/guardians
with every bill for fees and/or fines,4 and that applications for waivers are widely available and
distributed according to State law and Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) rule and that provisions for
assisting parents/guardians in completing the application are available.

Eligibility Criteria
A student shall be eligible for a fee and fine waiver when: 5
1. The student currently lives in a household that meets the same income guidelines, with the
same limits based on household size, that are used for the federal free meals program;
2. The student’s parents/guardians are veterans or active-duty military personnel with income at
or below 200% of the federal poverty line; or
3. The student is homeless, as defined in the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42
U.S.C. §11434a).

The Superintendent or designee will give additional consideration when one or more of the following
factors are present: 6

Illness in the family;

Unusual expenses such as fire, flood, storm damage, etc.;

Unemployment;

Emergency situations;

When one or more of the parents/guardians are involved in a work stoppage.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

3 1051LCS 5/10-20.13(b) was added by P.A. 83-603 in 1983 to require districts to waive “other fees” in addition fo the
costs of textbooks and then amended by P.A. 102-805-e8-—-23; to waive “other fees and fines.” The General Assembly,
however, never appropriated the necessary funds. Thus, the amendment may be unenforceable because it violated the State
Mandates Act. 30 ILCS 805/1; see above footnote. Use the following alternative if the board wants to make a longstanding
commitment to waive specific fees, amending the list of fees that will be waived as desired:

In order that no student is denied educational services or academic credit due to the inability of parents/guardians to
pay student fees and fines, the following fees are also waived for students who meet the eligibility criteria for waiver:
athletic participation fees, lock fees, towel fees, shop fees, laboratory fees, and registration fees.

Alternatively, a board may decide to waive all school student fees and fines and substitute the following sentence for this
paragraph:

All school student fees and fines as defined by the Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) are waived for students who
meet the eligibility criteria for a waiver contained in this policy.

4 Required by 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13(b), as amended by P.A. 102-805—=f-—-23: 23 Il Admin.Code §1.245(c)(2)(A).

5 Required by 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13(b), amended by P.A.s 102-1032 and 102-805-eff——1-23; to add numbers 2 and 3
as eligibility criteria; 23 Il Admin.Code §1.245(c)(1). 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13(b), as amended by P.A. 102-1032, does not
specify whether the income at or below 200% of the federal poverty line is the household income or solely the income of the
veteran/active-duty military parent/guardian. Consult the board attorney for guidance.

Though 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13(b) was amended by P.A. 102-805—eff—-t23; to make homeless students statutorily
eligible for school fee and fine waivers, non-regulatory ISBE guidance states that students who are homeless, migrant, in
foster care, runaway, or partlclpatmg in Head Start are categorically eligible for school fee waivers. See

The federal free meals program is found at 42 U.S.C. §1758; 7 C.F.R. Part 245. See f/n 7.
6 This paragraph is optional and may be omitted.

4:140 Page 2 of 4
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Verification 7

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process for determining a student’s eligibility for a
waiver of fees and fines in accordance with State law requirements.

If a student receiving a waiver is found to be no longer eligible during the school year, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify the student’s parent/ guardian and charge the student a prorated
amount based upon the number of school days remaining in the school year.

Determination and Appeal 8

Within 30 calendar days after the receipt of a waiver request, the Superintendent or designee shall mail
a notice to the parent/guardian whenever a waiver request is denied. The denial notice shall include: (1)
the reason for the denial, (2) the process and timelines for making an appeal, and (3) a statement that
the parent/guardian may reapply for a waiver any time during the school year if circumstances change.
If the denial is appealed, the District shall follow the procedures for the resolution of appeals as
provided in the ISBE rule on waiver of fees.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

7 Districts have two income verification options to determine eligibility for fee and fine waivers: (1) establish an
application process that is completely independent of a student’s application for, eligibility for, or participation in the federal
free meals program, or (2) tie the application process to the federal free meals program application and only ask for verification
in accordance with the meals program. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13(c), amended by P.A.s 102-1032 and 102-805—efF1-1-23. See
www.ishe.net/Pages/School-Fee-Waivers.aspx for further explanation. For option #1, see_sample exhibit 4:140-El,
Application for Fee Waiver. For option #2, see sample exhibit 4:140-E2, Application for Fee Waiver Based on Federal Free
Meals Program.

By using option #1, a district may require income verification at the time an application is submitted for a waiver and
may do so thereafter, but not more than once per academic year. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13, as amended by P.A. 102-805—et—-
123, An application using option #1 cannot ask whether a student lives in a household that meets free lunch eligibility
guidelines and request income verification with reference to free lunch eligibility guidelines. Instead, the district should supply
its own income guidelines with the same limits based on household size that are used for the federal meals program and have
the parents/guardians indicate if they meet the income guidelines used to determine eligibility for fee and fine waivers. The
independent fee and fine waiver income guidelines should not be any higher than those for eligibility for free lunch (or
reduced-price, if the district voluntarily provides fee and fine waivers for those students who qualify), but the district should
not reference or indicate that the guidelines are for the free meals program. In this completely independent waiver application
process, the district may ask for verification, but cannot use any information it receives though this process for determining
eligibility for free or reduced meals.

By using option #2, the district must follow the verification requirements of the federal free meals program at 7 C.F.R.
§245.6a. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.13(c), amended by P.A.s 102-1032 and 102-805 23

Income verification may include such things as payroll stubs, tax returns, or evidence of receipt of food stamps or
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families. 23 [1l.Admin.Code §1.245(d).

8 An ISBE rule requires that the policy state that the district will mail a copy of a denial notice within 30 calendar days
after the receipt of the waiver request. 23 Ill. Admin.Code §1.245(c)(3). This rule also specifies timelines and procedures,
including a requirement that “the person who decides the appeal shall not be the person who initially denied the fee or fine
waiver ora subordinate of this person.” Thus, a board may be required to hear an appeal if the superintendent made the initial
decision to deny a waiver. The board’s participation is avoided by the principal making initial waiver decisions and the
superintendent or other main office administrator deciding the appeals.

4:140 Page 3 of 4
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



LEGAL REF.: 42 U.S.C. §11434a, McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.
105 ILCS 5/10-20.13, 5/10-22.25, 5/27-24.2, and 5/28-19.2.
23 Il.Admin.Code §1.245 [may contain unenforceable provisions].

CROSS REF.: 4:130 (Free and Reduced-Price Food Services), 6:140 (Education of Homeless
Children), 6:220 (Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program; Responsible
Use and Conduct)

4:140 Page 4 of 4
©2422-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Oetober2022June 2024 4:140-AP

Operational Services

Administrative Procedure - Fines, Fees, and Charges - Waiver of Student Fees 1

Actor Action

Superintendent or designee | Prepares and recommends to the School Board a list of school fees
and fines to be charged to students for the use, damage, or loss of
textbooks, consumable materials, field trips, extracurricular
activities, graduation fees, and similar items. See 105 ILCS 5/1-3,
amended by P.A. 102-805-ef£434-23, and 23 Ill. Admin.Code
§1.245(a) for a-definitions of school fees and fines.

Initial notice: For all students enrolling in the District for the first
time, notifies their parenfiguardians that the District will waive
school fees and fin unable to afford them in

40, Waiver of Student Fees.

including the ¢ stances under which the
i fees_or fines; (2) the school fees or
the procedure to apply for a fee or
ailability of a fee_or fine waiver

bill: Includes a notice with every bill for fees
ent to parents/guardians that the District will waive
fines for persons unable to afford them in

ance with Board policy 4:140, Waiver of Student Fees.

¢ notice must include a description of the waiver application
frocess or the name, address, and telephone number of the
person to contact for information concerning a waiver. 23
[11.Admin.Code §1.245(c)(2)(B).

Determines whether the required inclusions in these notices will be
satisfied by providing parents/guardians with a written copy of
Board policy 4:140, Waiver of Student Fees, and 4:140-E1,
Application for Fee Waiver.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

1 gchool districts have two income verification options for school fee and fine waiver applications. 105 [LCS 5/10-20.13,
amended by P.A.s 102-1032, and-102-805, and 103-15deff-A—-23. See f/n 7 in sample policy 4:140, FeeHigsersVaiver of
Stuedent Fees. This procedure uses option #1. If the district implements option #2 for verifying income to determine eligibility
for fee and fine waivers, replace every instance of “4:140-E1, Application for Fee Waiver” with “4:140-E2, Application for
Fee Waiver Based on Federal Free Meals Program.”
Wﬁ%ﬂm@%—%—%ﬁ%}aﬂ

-

bR,
4:140-AP Page 1 of 3
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

lilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Parents/Guardians seeking a | For waiver sought based on income guidelines for the federal
school fee and fine waiver free meals program or because parents/guardians are veterans
or active-duty military personnel with income at or below
200% of the federal poverty line:

Complete 4:140-E1, Application for Fee Waiver, and return it to
the Building Principal along with documents that will verify the
family’s income, such as, payroll stubs, tax returns, or evidence
of receipt of food stamps or Temporary Assistance for Needy
Families. 23 I1l.Admin.Code §1.245(d). 2

May apply for a waiver of school fees and fines by completing
4:140-E1, Application for Fee Waiver, at any time.

For waiver sought based on homeless status:

Contact the District Liaison for Homeless Children, [insert
namel, at [insert contact information).

Building Principal or Determines the student’
designee accordance with Bo

ligibility for fee or fine waiver in
£140, Waiver of Student Fees.

30 calendar days if their

Notifies parents/g
Application for Fee
§1.245(c)(3).

ppeal as well as the appeal process
esponse to Application for Fee
sponse to Appeal); and (3) a statement

0 Appeal, are confidentially treated and maintained.
Admin.Code §1.245(f).

ippeal the denial of a waiver request.

Parents/Guardians s@

school fee and fine ¥ fequested, meets with the person who will decide the appeal in

order to explain why the waiver should be granted. 23
[l1.Admin.Code §1.245(c)(3)(B).

Superintendent or designee | If the parents/guardians request to meet with the person who will
decide the appeal to explain why the waiver should be granted,
contacts the parents/guardians and schedules the meeting. 23
[1l.Admin.Code §1.245(c)(3)(B).

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

2 £ the district implements option #2 for verifying income to determine eligibility for fee and fine waivers from f/n 7 of
sample policy 4:140, Waiver of Student Fees, replace this sentence with the following sentence:
Complete exhibil 4:140-E2, Application for Fee Waiver Based on Federal Free Meals, and retum it to the Building
Principal.

4:140-AP Page 2 of 3
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Ensures that the person who decides the appeal is not the person
who initially denied the waiver or a subordinate of this person. 23
[11.Admin.Code §1.245(c)(3)(B).

Responds in writing to parents/guardians’ appeal within 30
calendar days of receipt of the appeal. 23 11l Admin.Code

§1.245(c)3)(B).

Ensures that no discrimination or punishment of any kind,
including the lowering of grades, exclusion from classes, or
withholding of student records, transcripts, or diplomas, is
exercised against a student whose parents/guardians are unable to
purchase required textbooks or instructional materials or to pay
required fees and fines. 105 ILCS 5/28-19.2(a), amended by P.A.
102-805-ef£++-23; 23 [I.Admin.Code §1.245(g). 3

Q&

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

3 If the district seeks to hold parents/guardians accountable for unpaid fines, fees, or charges, consult the board attorney
to ensure that any consequences imposed on parents/guardians do not discriminate against or punish students.

4:140-AP Page 3 of 3
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.






QoroNn'C

Oectober-June 26492024 5:20-E

General Personnel

Exhibit - Resolution to Prohibit Sexual Harassment

WHEREAS, Section 10-20 of the School Code (105 ILCS 5/10-20) grants school boards other powers
that are not inconsistent with their duties;

WHEREAS, Section 1-5 of the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430/1-5) includes
school districts within the definition of a governmental entity;

WHEREAS, Section 5-65 of the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430/5-65-added-by
P-A-—}00-554) provides that all persons have a right to work in an environment free from sexual
harassment;

WHEREAS Section 70-5 of the State Ofﬁcials and Ernpl ayees Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430/70-5—armended
gal & 28 to adopt an ordinance or resolution

imum, includes: (1) a prohibition on
P an allegation of sexual harassment,
ethicsie fficer, Inspector General, or
‘teporting sexual harassment

Tons nder the Act, the Whistleblower Act

sexual harassment; (2) details on how an individua :
including options for making a conﬁdential repOrt tod st

(7401LCS 174/) and the [1l. Human Rights £
of the prohlbition on. sexual harassment AN

Proh as Exhibit A, which collectively contain the following: (1) a
prohibition on seXi at3(2) detail regarding how an individual can report an allegation
of sexual harassm
supervisor, the Bui 1 ipal, an administrator, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, a
Complaint Manager, or theftll. Dept. of Human Rights; (3) a prohibition on retaliation for reporting
sexual harassment allegations and a statement regarding the availability of whistleblower
protections under the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act, the Whistleblower Act, and the Tll
Human Rights Act; and (4) the consequences: (a) of a violation of the prohibition on sexual
harassment; and (b) for knowingly making a false report, and (5) a mechanism for reporting and
independent review of allegations of sexual harassment made against a Board member by a fellow
Board member or other elected official.

Section 2: Any prior versions of Board policies 2:105, Ethics and Gift Ban, and 5:20, Workplace
Harassment Prohibited, adopted by the Board are superseded by this Resolution.

Adopted this day of ,20

Attested by: , Board President

Attested by: , Board Secretary

5:20-E Page 1 of 1
©@245-2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June 20192024 5:35-E

General Personnel

Exhibit - Volunteer Agreement Executed by a Non-Exempt Employee

I would like to serve as a volunteer for the School District. I understand that;

1.
2.

3.

4.

I may not volunteer to perform a job that is the same or similarjob for which I am employed.
My time and service as a volunteer are given without promise, expectation, or receipt of any
form of compensation.

My volunteer services are not being performed in the course and scope of my regular
employment and are not in any way required by the School District.

Either the District or I may terminate my volunteer services at any time for any reason. My
withdrawal will not affect my continued employment with the School District.

This agreement will continue in force until terminated by either the employee or School District.

Volunteer Signature

Supervisor

5:35-E

QK

Page 1 of 1
©2619-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




NEW

June 2024 5:30-AP4

General Personnel

Administrative Procedure - Fingerprint-Based Criminal History Record Information
Security

The District is required by State law to conduct fingerprint-based criminal history record checks on
applicants for employment. See administrative procedure 5:30-AP2, Investigations, for the procedures
to be followed in carrying out such checks. This procedure outlines the District's responsibility to
safeguard applicants' criminal justice information (CJI), including Criminal History Records
Information (CHRI), received from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), whether the information
is received directly from the FBI or through the Il1. State Police (ISP) or a live scan vendor pursuant to
an existing Outsourcing Management Control Agreement. This procedure is based on the FBI Criminal
Justice Information Services (CJIS) Security Policy (CJIS Security Policy) available at:
https://le.fbi.gov/ciis-division/ciis-security-policy-resourcgecenter (see Appendix J, Noncriminal
Justice Agency Supplemental Guidance) and ISP's génerigitgiftplate titled Criminal History Record
Information Proper Access, Use, and Disseminatig
provides a minimum set of security requirement
information and to protect and safeguard CJI.

Glossary of Terms

Criminal Justice Information (CJI) — through the FBI CJIS, including, but not
limited to, biometric, identity historyfp . , property (when accompanied by any
personally identifiable information)gait ingident hiStory data.

disposition arising i dihe acqUiftal, sentencing, correctional supervision, and release. For
erchangeable with CJI.

Authorized Personnel istri oyee(s) who have been appropriately vetted through a national
fingerprint-based reco ang ¢ been granted access to CJI. For purposes of this procedure,

Information Technology, and"#i€ir respective designees.

Electronic Media — Any form of electronic storage media such as a memory device in a laptop or
computer (hard drive) or mobile device; and any removable, transportable electronic media, such as
magnetic tape or disk, optical disk, flash drive, external hard drive, or digital memory card.

Physical Media — Media in printed form, including, but is not limited to, printed documents, printed
imagery, and printed facsimile.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

I The 1Il. State Police (ISP) generic template can be requested through ISP.BOLC ustomer.Support@illinois.gov.
Requests for technical assistance from the ISP can also be made through the same email address.

5:30-AP4 Page 1 of 6
©2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Remote Access — Any temporary access to the District's information system by a user (or an
information system) communicating temporarily through an external, non-District controlled network
(e.g., the Internet).

Actor Action
Superintendent or If the District utilizes a live scan vendor, ensures the District has entered
Human Resources in an outsourcing agreement with the vendor that incorporates appropriate
Administrator FBI security and management control outsourcing standards to protect

CHRI. See https://www. fbi.gov/file-repository/compact-council-security-
and-management-control-outsourcing-standard-for-non-

channelers.pdf/view or www.fbi.gov/file-repository/compact-council-
security-and-management-control-outsourcing-standard-for-
channelers.pdf/view, depending on the status of the vendor (channelers
are contractors selected by the FBI that have a direct connection to the
FBI's identification system, seejawvww.fbi.gov/how-we-can-help-

pplicable agreement(s) in place necessary to
y user agreement with the ISP,

[esh a seclire location within the District with physical and
security controls sufficient to protect CHRI and associated
informati@giiSystem(s), including the following:
_4¥¥e location shall be prominently posted and physically separate
from non-secure locations.
Only Authorized Personnel will have access to the physically
secure location.
3. The District is able to control all access points and verify
individual access authorizations before granting access.
4. The device(s) that displays CHRI is positioned in such a way as to
prevent unauthorized individuals from accessing and/or viewing it.
5. CHRI on physical media is always stored in a locked
cabinet/drawer/container at the District Office which is only
accessible to Authorized Personnel. Physical media is not removed
from the secure location area except for purposes of
sanitization/disposal.

5:30-AP4 Page 2 of 6
©2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[Minois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorey before use.



Actor

Action

Media Protection and Transport

Ensures controls are in place to protect electronic and physical media
containing CHRI while at rest, stored, or actively being accessed, as well
as during transport outside of secure areas to prevent inadvertent or
inappropriate disclosure and use. Only Authorized Personnel may transport
electronic media or physical media containing CHRI.

If physical and personnel restrictions are not feasible, directs the Head of
Information Technology to ensure CHRI is encrypted per the CJIS Security
Policy (pg. 160, see SC-13).

Sanitization and Disposal of CHRI

Properly sanitizes or disposes of (or designates Authorized Personnel to
sanitize or dispose of) physical or electronic media containing CHRI in
accordance with the District's &cord retention schedule. Physical media

2. Placement in lock i for a private District contractor
to come on-site
3. Incineration ysigg Di inerators or witnessed by Authorized

Electronic i s B by one of the following methods:
ce times (using a program to write onto the

nt of misuse of CHRI by a District employee, issues discipline to
ployee (such as loss of access privileges) or recommends discipline
to tfe Board up to and including termination and/or refers the matter to law
enforcement. See Board policies 5:200, Terms and Conditions of
Employment and Dismissal, 5:240, Suspensions, and 5:290, Employment
Termination and Suspensions.

Head of Information

Assists the Superintendent and Human Resources Administrator as

Technology requested to implement appropriate controls for access to CHRI within the
District.
Account Management
Manages information system accounts, including establishing, activating,
modifying, reviewing, disabling, and removing accounts.
5:30-AP4 Page 3 of 6

©2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards, All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor

Action

Validates information system accounts at least annually and documents the
validation process.

Monitors electronic system log access to CHRI on a weekly basis for
indications of inappropriate or usual activity.

Remote Access and Personally Owned Devices
Authorizes, monitors, and controls all methods of remote access to the
information systems that can access, process, transmit, and/or store CJI.

Employs automated mechanisms to facilitate the monitoring and control of
remote access methods and control all remote accesses through managed
access control points.

Permits remote access for
operational needs and

Wileged functions only for compelling
e rationale for such access in the

use personal devices to
blishes and documents the

nal device use consistent with the

Security Policy (pg. 173-179).

HRI may not be released from the District's
equipment and has been sanitized and all stored
n cleared using one of the methods authorized in this

easible, employs automated mechanisms to assist in the reporting
of security incidents.

District Point of
Contact (POC)

Communicates as needed with the ISP regarding audits, District personnel
changes, training, and security.

Disseminates information security alerts and other communications from
ISP to all Authorized Personnel.

If applicable, identifies who is using live scan hardware, software, and
firmware and ensures no unauthorized individuals or processes have
access to the same. Identifies and documents how the equipment is

connected to the [SP system.

5:30-AP4

Page 4 of 6
©2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Assoctiation of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor

Action

Ensures appropriate security measures to protect CHRI are in place and
working as expected.

Maintains a list of Authorized Personnel that is updated annually and
when new users are registered or off boarded.

Annually reviews all information system accounts to ensure that access and
account privileges align with job functions, need-to-know, and
employment status on systems that contain CHRI.

Maintains a log for access to any physical files containing CHRI and
monitors the log on a weekly basis for indications of inappropriate or
unusual activity.

Maintains Security Awareness Training Certificates for all Authorized
Personnel.

Informs all Authorized Pe
events and weaknesses t
CHRI. Ensures the ISP's

e procedures for reporting security
e an impact on the security of

form District employment,
tems or physical areas where

Authorized Personnel

eness Training within six months of initial

s thereafter as required under Section 5.2 of
Policy, as well as any other role-based training that may
er the CJIS Security Policy (pgs. 11-16). Security
Pis available at: https://www.cjisonline.com/. Submits

MPns documents or other physical media containing CHRI and any
devices through which CHRI is viewed in such a manner to prevent
authorized persons from accessing or viewing the CHRIL.

Only communicates CHRI in secure, private areas. Takes extreme care to
prevent overhearing or interception of communication.

Unless authorized by the District under specific terms and conditions,
never uses a personal device (computer, smartphone, tablet, flash drive,
etc.) to access, view, process, store or transmit CHRI.

Never uses a publicly accessible computer to access, process, store, or
transmit CHRI.

5:30-AP4

Page 5 of 6
©2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Tlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor Action

Promptly reports to the POC any security incidents or weaknesses
associated with the District's information systems of which he or she
becomes aware.

Q\

5:30-AP4 Page 6 of 6
©2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June 26492024

5:35-AP2

General Personnel

Administrative Procedure - Employee Records Required by the Fair Labor Standards

Act

Important - School officials should contact the Board Attorney for application of the Fair Labor
Standards Act (FLSA) to specific situations. The information contained in this procedure, and any
information provided in the hyperlinks contained in it, should be confirmed with the Board Attorney
before its application to a specific situation.

This table contains the FLSA recordkeeping requirements as described in

www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/whdfs21.htm.

Actor

Action

Business office working
with supervisors of non-
exempt employees

Business office working
with supervisors of
exempt employees

oo uswn -~

Keep each of the follg

=5 s concemmg non-exempt employees
for at least three years 2R

otal overtime earnings for the workweek
iladditions to or deductions from the employee’s wages
Jiotal wages paid each pay period

Date of payment and the pay period covered by the payment

Cor ncerning exempt employees, keep for at least three years, the records
listed in numbers 1-5 and 13-14 above and a record showing the basis
on which the exempt employee’s wages are paid (e.g., salary basis of
$x per pay period). 29 C.F.R. §516.3.

Business office

1. Payroll records must be kept for at least three years. 29 C.F.R.
§516.5(2).

2. Records on which wage computations are based must be kept for
at least two years, i.e., time cards and piece work tickets, wage rate
tables, work and time schedules, and records of additions to or
deductions from wages. 29 C.F.R. §516.6.

3. Collective bargaining agreements and individual employment
contracts must be kept for at least three years (when an agreement
is not in writing, prepare and retain a written memorandum

summarizing it). 29 C.F.R. §516.5(b).

5:35-AP2

Page 1 of 2

©26-19-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

lllinois Association of School Boards, All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



Actor Action

4. Certificates and notices must be kept for at least three years. 29
C.F.R. §516.5(b).

Building Principal Display an official poster outlining the provisions of FLSA, available
at no cost from local offices of the Wage and Hour Division and toll-
free, by calling 1-866-487-9243. This poster is also available
electronically for downloading and printing at:

www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/whd_fs.pdf

Keep records regarding the posting of notices for at least 3 years. 29
C.F.R. §516.5(b).

QK

5:35-AP2 Page 2 of 2
©32644-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June 26482024 5:35-AP3

General Personnel

Administrative Procedure - Compensable Work Time for Non-Exempt Employees Under
the FLSA

Important - School officials should contact the Board Attorney for application of the Fair Labor
Standards Act (FLSA) to specific situations. The information contained in this procedure, and any
information provided in the hyperlinks contained in it, should be confirmed with the Board Attorney
before its application to a specific situation.

Resources
Overview — htips://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/flsa.

For help determining whether time spent on work-related

activities is compensable as “hours worked,”
see the U.S. Dept. of Labor’s FLSA Hours Worked Adhyis8it, 4

overtime. ;
Non-Exempt Employee - The term 20 : it e yee refers to employees who are not exempt
from the overtime provisions in the Wage ‘See administrative procedure 5:35-AP1, Fair

Labor Standards Act E emplions.

o All the tim&gine Stibe on duty;

e All the time a be on the employer’s premises;
o All the time an emplaysgltust be at any other prescribed place of work; and
e Any additional time th&€mployee is allowed, i.e., “suffered or permitted” to work (commonly

referred to as “workin off the clock™).

Suffered or Permitted to Work - If an employer knows or has reason to know that a non-exempt
employee starts work early or continues to work late, it is considered work time. 29 C.F.R. §785.11.

This includes knowing or having reason to know that an employee works at home, e.g., as when a
Building Principal’s secretary calls for substitutes early in the morning. 29 C.F.R. §785.12.

If an employee works additional straight time, at the regular rate of pay, or overtime hours without
authorization, that employee must still be compensated but may be disciplined for violating School
Board policy.

Volunteering to Perform Regular Work - Non-exempt employees may not volunteer to perform their
regular work duties off-the-clock and without compensation. 29 U.S.C. §203(e)(4)(A). An employee

5:35-AP3 Page 1 of 2
@2444-2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



must be paid even if he or she offers to do the work on his or her own time. Employees may not waive
wage and hour law requirements.

Volunteering to Perform Services that Are Not the Same as Regular Work - Non-exempt
employees may volunteer to perform services under these conditions:

1. The volunteer services are not the same as or similar to the employee’s regular work duties,

2. The employee offers the services freely and without coercion, direct or implied, and

3. The employee provides the services without promise of compensation although a volunteer
may be paid “expenses, reasonable benefits, or a nominal fee to perform such services.” 29
U.S.C. §203(e)(4)(A), 29 C.F.R. §553.101 and 103.

A fee is not nominal if it is a substitute for compensation or tied to productivity. 29 C.F.R. §553.106(e).
While the specific circumstances in each case must be analyzed, the District will generally limit
nominal pay to employees for volunteer services to no more than 20% of what the District would
otherwise pay to hire an employee for the same services. See Wage and Hour Division (WHD) Opinion
Letters FLSA 2005-51 (11-10-05); FLSA 2006-28 (8-7-06); and FLSA 2006-28 (10-7-06). See also
WHD Opinion Letters FLSA 2004-6 (7-14-04);-and FESA-2004-8{9-7-04) for an examples of a non-
exempt school employees serving as a volunteer athletic @@aches. U.S. Dept. of Labor WHD opinion
letters are available at: http://www.dol.gov/agencies@fid/of "* -letters/request/existing-guidance.

Examples of Hours Worked for Non-Exempt EmploVe

eved @ iesiand free to leave the duty post
for at least 30 minutes. Teacher aides whesmust sup€rvise students during their lunch are not

considered relieved of duties. Employgés™ Bifidesk and answer phones or otherwise
perform work are not considered reli§ y

attcndance is outside the employee’s regular

Attendance at in-services, meetings, or J&gi )
; { i€ activity is not related to the employee’s job,

is unable to use ctively for his/her own purposes while on-call.

Transporting material to a worksite before the start of the workday.

Time spent preparing for work, e.g., bus drivers doing safety checks before the route or securing the
bus after the route.

Clean-up work at the end of a shift.

Travel time during the workday from one job site to another, e.g., non-exempt school nurses traveling
from one school to another.

Travel time during the regular working hours, even if it is the weekend.

Attending a Board meeting at night either to take minutes or perform some other required or assigned

duty.

5:35-AP3 Page 2 of 2
© 2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June 20492024 5:35-AP4

General Personnel

Administrative Procedure - Fair Labor Standards Act 12-Step Compliance Checklist

Important - School officials should contact the Board Attorney for application of the Fair Labor
Standards Act (FLSA) to specific situations. The information contained in this procedure, and any
information provided in the hyperlinks contained in it, should be confirmed with the Board Attorney
before its application to a specific situation.

The U.S. Dept. of Labor, Wage and Hour Division, administers the FLSA. It posts an encyclopedic
amount of information on the FLSA on its website at: www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/hrg.htm#8.

Checklist for compliance with the FLSA:

1.

Classify employees as exempt or non-exempt.
Identify which employees are covered by thgsoveshi
exempt, and which employees are exempt frgf't
pProcedure 5:35-AP1, Fair Labor Standard$d ol
traditionally exempt and non-exempt. Include @
he or she is exempt or non-exempt. g y ¥
An exemption from the FLSA overtime pasie: nsatory time requirements is the exception,
rather than the rule. Any uncertainty siould B&xesolvedii favor of finding the employee to be
non-exempt and the overtime compg 45 thiburden is on the school system to prove that
exemptions are applicable. ;
Make sure all employees b
administrative procedures Bf#

gyrequirements of the FLSA, i.e., non-
erkime requirements. See aAdministrative
mgitions, for a list of school employees
eath employee’s file stating whether

T il

elegfovertime, and compensatory time. See Board
abor Standards Act, and aAdministrative pProcedure

Notify non-exempt emiployees of their expected work hours in a workweek.

Be clear that the salary of non-exempt employees is paid for a 40-hour workweek. Supervisors
may regularly schedule employees to work 37.5 hours per week and leave the remainder as
possible flexible time. However, to avoid the possibility of straight-time claims for hours
worked between 37.5 and 40, supervisors need to clearly communicate that the District pays
employees a salary for up to 40 hours of work and that the District retains the right to request
that the employee perform additional duties up to 40 hours without additional pay.

Keep precise records of the hours worked by every non-exempt employee by using a good
timesheet, time clock, computerized check-in system, or other method. Make sure individual
employees keep and sign their weekly record of hours worked. Print an acknowledgment
similar to the following on every time sheet: “I acknowledge that I have reviewed this time
sheet and that it accurately records all of the time that I worked for the District on the dates
indicated and that I did not work for the District at any other times during the workweek that
are not recorded on this timesheet.”

5:35-AP4 Page 1 of 2

©201453-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



5. Annually train District supervisory staff, as well as supervisors when first assigned supervisory
duties, on FLSA compliance issues, including:
a. What counts as compensable work time (see aAdministrative oProcedure 5:35-AP3,
Compensable Work Time for Non-Exempt Employees Under the FLSA);
b. How timesheets must be completed for non-exempt employees; and
c. Their duty to monitor timesheets and verify time worked.
6. Train all non-exempt staff when hired and regularly thereafter on the following topics:
a. Board policy requirements;
b. What counts as compensable time; and
¢. How to complete timesheets correctly.
7. Require non-exempt employees who want to volunteer to execute a Volunteer Agreement. See
eExhibit 5:35-E, Volunteer Agreement Executed by a Non-Exempt Employee.
Non-exempt employees may only volunteer to perform services on behalf of the school that do
not involve the same types of duties they regularly perform in their jobs. Further, in order to be
a bona fide volunteer (1) the volunteer services may not be the same as or similar to the
employee’s regular work duties, (2) the employee must freely and voluntarily, i.e., without any
direct or 1mp11ed coercion or requlrement agige t@perfe the volunteer services, and (3) the
fitse of oM pensation; however, a volunteer may

Under the FLSA, for information about nomihal yegs.
8. Have all non-exempt employees 31gn thefellowing @@guments:

T be subject to discipline; and

reviewed it, and that they u 1 s :
fiie- worked over 40 hours per week will be

b. If applicable, an agreement e

g igeiyie’Compensatory Time-Off.
A Business stal momtor weekly time records.
CoRi inuously monitors weekly time records for accuracy and

@yee Records Required by the Fair Labor Standards Act.
11. Post all federal a ired employment posters.
Make sure that all ment posters are widely posted, e.g., in the teachers’ lounge, school
office, cafeteria kitchen, bus garage, janitor’s closet, and other places where employees gather.
12. Consult the Board Attorney about FLSA compliance.

pProcedure 57

5:35-AP4 Page 2 of 2
©26-+4-20 21 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Jure-2040June 2024 5:120-E

General Personnel

Exhibit - Code of Ethics for lllinois Educators

Code of Ethics for Illinois Educators, Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) (23 Iil. Admin.Code

22.20

a)

Responsibility to Students

The Illinois educator is committed to creating, promoting, and implementing a learning
environment that is accessible to each student, enables students to achieve the highest academic
potential, and maximizes their ability to succeed in academic and employment settings as a
responsible member of society. Illinois educators:

1. Embody the Standards for the School Support Bgrsonnel Endorsements (23 I1l. Admin.Code
Part 23), the Illinois Professional Teaching S4gn 3 IIl. Admin.Code Parts 24 and 130),
and Standards for Administrative Endorse dmin.Code Part 29), as applicable to
the educator, in the learning environmen

economic status;

3. Maintain a professional relations i 1 at all times;

4. Provide a curriculum based igPexgiPta Br each student that addresses individual
differences through the desj d adaptation of effective instruction; and

5. butes that will enhance skills and knowledge

b) Responsibili

[linois edu® ittc @il establishing high professional standards for their practice and

striving to meS{ge M rough their performance. Illinois educators:

1. Assume resp0 ili A countability for their performance and continually strive to
demonstrate pro 4 understanding of current trends in both content knowledge and
professional practi®

2. Develop and implemient personal and professional goals with attention to professional
standards through a process of self-assessment and professional development;

3. Represent their professional credentials and qualifications accurately; and

4. Demonstrate a high level of professional judgment.

¢) Responsibility to Colleagues and the Profession

The Tllinois educator is committed to collaborating with school and district colieagues and other

professionals in the interest of student learning. [llinois educators:

1. Collaborate with colleagues in their respective schools and districts to meet local and State
educational standards;

2. Work together to create a respectful, professional, and supportive school climate that allows all
educators to maintain their individual professional integrity;

3. Seek out and engage in activities that contribute to the ongoing development of the profession;

5:120-E Page 1 of 2

©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



4. Promote participation in educational decision-making processes;
5. Encourage promising candidates to enter the education profession; and
6. Support the preparation, induction, mentoring, and professional development of educators.

d) Responsibility to Parents, Families and Communities

The Illinois educator will collaborate, build trust, and respect confidentiality with parents, families,
and communities to createeffectiveinstructionand learning environments for each student. Tllinois
educators:

1. Aspire to understand and respect the values and traditions of the diversity represented in the
community and in their learning environments;

2. Encourage and advocate for fair and equal educational opportunities for each student;

3. Develop and maintain professional relationships with parents, families, and communities;

4. Promote collaboration and support student learning through regular and meaningful
communication with parents, families, and communities; and

5. Cooperate with community agencies that provide resources and services to enhance the

learning environment.
e) Responsibility to ISBE
Illinois educators are committed to complia hool Code (105 ILCS 5/) and its
implementing regulations,and to State and feder: ations relevant to their profession.
linois educators:
1. Provide accurate communication to I all educator licensure matters;
2. Maintain appropriate educator lice t; and
3. Comply with State and federal la
5:120-E Page 2 of 2

©2648-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




June 26492024 5:130

General Personnel

Responsibilities Concerning Internal Information 1

District employees are responsible for maintaining: (1) the integrity and security of all internal
information, and (2) the privacy of confidential records, including but not limited to: student school
records, personnel records, and the minutes of, and material disclosed in, a closed School Board
meeting. Internal information is any information, oral or recorded in electronic or paper format,
maintained by the District or used by the District or its employees. The Superintendent or designee
shall manage procedures for safeguarding the integrity, security, and, as appropriate, confidentiality of
internal information.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State and federal law controls the content of this policy to the extent that: (1) the unauthorized disclosure of student
school records is prohibited by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. §1232g) and the I1l. School Student
Records Act (105 ILCS 10/); (2) the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) (5 ILCS 140/) exempts from disclosure certain
private or personal information, employee evaluations, school security and response plans, and maps; (3) if a district offers a
self-insured group health plan or flexible spending account, it must establish clear procedutes to protect the employees’ health
information (45 C.F.R. §164.502); (4) the Ill. Personnel Record Review Act governs the release of an employee’s disciplinary
action (820 ILCS 40/); (5) the Student Online Personal Protection Act requires a district and third partv operators with whom
it contracts to take reasonable measures to protecl certain online student dataand (36) any person who knowingly destroys,
removes, conceals, or alters any public record with the intent to defraud any party commits a Class 4 felony (50 ILCS 205/4).
These are examples of the laws requiring the safekeeping of district and school records.

This policy contains an item on which collective bargaining may be required. Any policy that impacts upon wages, hours,
and terms and conditions of employment, is subject to collective bargaining upon request by the employee representative,
even if the policy involves an inherent managerial right. If a local collective bargaining agreement contains a provision on
these responsibilities, it will supersede this policy and the board policy should state, *“Please refer to the applicable collective
bargaining agreement.” For employees not covered, the policy should reflect the board’s current practice.

This sample policy’s intent is to safeguard district records accessed or created by employees. This includes protecting
the district from unauthorized release of confidential records or the destruction of records. While the legal guidance is sparse,
districts should take steps to avoid security breaches. Some districts may have more legal obligations than others. School
districts that are considered covered entities under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA)
(Pub.L. 104-191) are required to comply with the HIPAA Privacy Rule. See f/n 1 of sample policy 7:340, Student Records,
for further discussion of HIPAA. Furthermore, districts that allow foreign exchange students to attend their schools may need
to put safeguards in place in order to protect data that is transferred to the Student and Exchange Visitor Information System
(SEVIS). See f/n 18 of sample policy 7:50, Schoo! Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools, for
further discussion of SEVIS.

To help maintain the integrity of records, districts should prevent their over-accumulation. Not all internal information
must be preserved even if it is a public record for purposes of FOIA. According to the Local Records Act (50 ILCS 205/) a
record must be retained only when it contains: (1) evidence of the district’s organization, function, policies, procedures, or
activities; or (2) informational data appropriate for preservation. While this is a slippery slope without definitive parameters,
recorded information may generally be deleted that are conversational or personal, meeting notices, spam, email of a transient
nature, duplicate material sent from other staff members, and draft material. However, no district record, no matter its form,
may be destroyed if it is subject to a litigation hold. See sample administrative procedure 2:250-AP2, Protocols for Record
Preservation and Development of Retention Schedules. For guidance on Board member use and retention ofemail, see sample
exhibit 2:140-E, Guidance for Board Member Communications, Including Email Use.

5:130 Page 1 of 2
©24414-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use



LEGAL REF.:

CROSS REF.:

5:130

20 U.S.C. §1232¢. Family Educational

and Privacy Rights Act,

S : es—45 C.F.R.

§164.502-, Uses and Disclosures of Protected Health Information: General
Rules.

Hi-Ereedom-of-lnformation-Aet-5 ILCS 140/_11l. Freedom of Information Act.

Loeal-Reeords-Aet-50 ILCS 205/, Local Records Act,

105 ILCS 10/_11L. Scheol Student Records Act.

105 ILCS 85. Student Online Personal Protection Act,

Personnel-Record-Review-Aet-820 ILCS 40/, Personnel Record Review Act.

2:140 (Communications To and From the Board), 2:250 (Access to District Public
Records), 5:150 (Personnel Records), 7:340 (Student Records). 7:345 (Use of
Educational Technologies: Student Data Privacy and Security)

Page 2 of 2
© 252004 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June 20492024 5:180

General Personnel

Temporary lliness or Temporary Incapacity !

A temporary illness or temporary incapacity is an illness or other capacity of ill-being that renders an
employeephysically ormentally unable to performassigned duties. Duringsucha period, the employee
can use accumulated sick leave benefits.2 However, income received from other sources (worker’s
compensation, District-paid insurance programs, etc.) will be deducted from the District’s
compensation liability to the employee. The School Board’s intent is that in no case will the employee,
who is temporarily disabled, receive more than 100 percent of his or her gross salary. Those insurance
plans privately purchased by the employee and to which the District does not contribute, are not
applicable to this policy.

If illness, incapacity, or any other condition causes a teacher or other licensed employee to be absent in
one school year, after exhaustion of all available leave, for more than 90 consecutive work days, such
absence may be considered a permanent disability and the Board may begin dismissal proceedings
subject to State and federal law, including the Americans with Disabilities Act.3 The Superintendent

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content. This policy contains an item on which collective bargaining may be
required. Any policy that impacts upon wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment, is subject to collective
barpaining upon request by the employee representative, even if the policy involves an inherent managerial right.

This policy is consistent with the minimum requirements of State law. The local collective bargaining agreement may
contain provisions that exceed these requirements. When a policy’s subject matter is superseded by a bargaining agrecment,
the board policy can state, “Please refer to the applicable collective bargaining agreement.” For employees not covered, the
policy should reflect the board’s current practice.

2 Temporary mental or physical incapacity as determined by a medical examination is not cause for dismissing a teacher.
105 ILCS 5/10-22.4 and 5/24-13.

3 A teacher’s contractual continued service status is not affected by an absence caused by temporary illness or temporary
incapacity. 105 ILCS 5/24-13. Two cases, decided before the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)(42 U.S.C. §12101 et
sea,) was enacted, held that this statute grants school boards the power to define, through policy, temporary illness or
incapacity. School Dist 151 v. ISBE, 154 IlLApp.3d 375 (1st Dist. 1987); Elder v. School Dist. No.127 1/2, 60 Il App.2d 56
(1st Dist. 1965).

Important: Until February 2014, this paragraph in the PRESS sample policy applied to all employees. We limited its
application to teachers in response to feedback that the paragraph should align with the statute. Section 105 ILCS 5/24-13,
which this paragraph implements, applies only to teachers and, thus, we amended the paragraph to make it applicable only to
teachers. This change may trigger a bargaining requirement with a bargaining unit for educational support personnel.

Despite the statute’s limitation to licensed employees, many boards apply this language to educational support personnel.
Consult the board attorney about whether to apply this language to educational support personnel. For boards that wish to
apply this language to both licensed and educational support personnel, strike teacher—orotherticensed from the text of the
first two sentences of this paragraph and correct the grammar.

The lllinois appellate court decisions cited above upheld a board policy designating when a temporary [illness or]
incapacity becomes permanent for the purpose of being a cause of dismissal. The court approved using 90 days of absence
due to illness, after the exhaustion of sick days, as the point at which the district considers termination. The court upheld a
hearing officer decision noting that a policy providing for a 90-school-day absence following exhaustion of sick leave was
sufficient under Section-105 ILCS 5/24-13. The court noted that applying that particular policy over a two-year period would
not be appropriate because the two-year period would have the effect of allowing the school board to define a temporary
illness or incapacity out of existence; i.e., making it impossible for a teacher to qualify for such an absence. Important: a
district should consult the board attorney before determining that a teacher’s temporary illness or incapacity became
permanent.

5:180 Page 1 of 2
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




may recommend this paragraph’s use when circumstances strongly suggest that the teacher or other
licensed employee returned to work intermittently in orderto avoid this paragraph’s application. This
paragraph shall not be considered a limitation on the Board’s authority to take any action conceming
an employee that is authorized by State and federal law.

Any employee may berequired to have an examination, at the District’s expense, by a physician who
is licensed in Illinois to practice medicine and surgery in all its branches, a licensed advanced practice
registered nurse, or a licensed physician assistant if the examination is job-related and consistent with
business necessity. 4

LEGAL REF.: 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act.
105 ILCS 5/10-22.4, 5/24-12, and 5/24-13.
Elder v. School Dist. No.127 1/2, 60 Ill. App.2d 56 (1st Dist. 1965).
School District No. 151 v. ISBE, 154 Ill.App.3d 375 (1st Dist. 1987).

CROSS REF.: 5:30 (Hiring Process and Criteria), 5:40 (Communicable and Chronic Infectious

Disease), 5:185 (Family and Medical Leave), 5:250 (Leaves of Absence), 5:330
(Sick Days, Vacation, Holidays, and Leaves)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

The point at which any employee’s temporary disability becomes permanent must be analyzed using the Americans with
Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. §12101 gt seq.), also referred to as the ADA or the ADA Amendments Act (ADAAA)(Pub. L
110-325). This federal law prohibits employers from discriminating against individuals with a disability who can perform the
essential functions of a job with or without reasonable accommodation. A district should regularly analyze each position’s job

description to ensure that it identifies the position’s essential functions. Consult the board attorney concerning compliance
with the ADA.

4 The State law (105 ILCS 5/24-5-amended-by-P-A—100-513), allowing boards to require physicals of current employees
Jrom time to time, has been superseded by the ADA, 42 U.S.C. §12112(d)(4). The ADA allows medical inquiries of current
employees only when they are job-related and consistent with business necessity or part of a voluntary employee wellness
program. Id. Districts may deny jobs to individuals with disabilities who pose a direct threat to the health or safety of others
in the workplace, provided that a reasonable accommodation would neither eliminate the risk nor reduce it to an acceptable
level. 42 U.S.C. §12113;29 C.F.R. §1630.2(r).

Note that while examination by a spiritual leader/practitioner is sufficient for leaves, the statute does not authorize an
examination by a spiritual leader/practitioner for district-ordered physicals of an employee. The difference may present a

constitutional issue; contact the board attorney for an opinion if the employee wants to use an examination by a spiritual
leader/practitioner.

5:180 Page 2 of 2
©20449-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Oectober2023 June 2024 5:200

Professional Personnel

Terms and Conditions of Employment and Dismissal !

The School Board delegates authority and responsibility to the Superintendent to manage the terms and
conditions for the employment of professional personnel. The Superintendent shall act reasonably and
comply with State and federal law as well as any applicable individual employment contract or
collective bargaining agreement in effect. The Superintendent is responsible for making dismissal
recommendations to the Board consistent with the Board’s goal of having a highly qualified, high
performing staff. 2

School Year

Teachers shall work according to the school calendar adopted by the Board, which shall have a
minimum of 176 student attendance days and a minimum of 180 teacher work days, including teacher
institute days.3 Teachers are not required to work on legal school holidays unless the District has
followed applicable State law that allows it to hold school or schedule teachers’ institutes, parent-
teacher conferences, or staff development on the third Monday in January (the Birthday of Dr. Martin
LutherKing, Jr.); February 12 (the Birthday of President Abraham Lincoln); the firstMonday in March
(known as Casimir Pulaski’s birthday); thesecond Monday in October (Columbus Day); and November
11 (Veterans Day). 4

The foommotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content. This policy contains items on which collective bargaining may be
required. Any policy that impacts upon wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment, is subject to collective
bargaining upon request by the employee representative, even if the policy involves an inherent managerial right. The local
collective bargaining agreement may contain provisions that exceed these requirements. In such cases, the board policy should
be amended to state, “Please refer to the applicable collective bargaining agreement.”

Evaluation, tenure, and dismissals changed significantly from 2013 to 2016 as P.As 96-861, 97-8, and 98-513 were
implemented. These public acts are referred to as Education Reform or Education Reform Acts.

2 This paragraph is consistent with the IASB’s Foundational Principles of Effective Governance, at:

www.iash.com/principles_popup.cfmwww-iash-comiASBinedia/Documents/foundprinpdf.  Boards have three

options for using this paragraph: (1) use it as an introduction to the policy; (2) use it alone leaving the specific other
topics for administrative implementation; or (3) do not use it.

3 105 [LCS 5/10-19. See sample policy 6:20, School Year Calendar and Day.

41051LCS 5/24-2(b). See sample policy 5:330, Sick Days, Vacation, Holidays, and Leaves, for a holiday listing as well
as a discussion of the case finding the State-mandated school holiday on Good Friday unconstitutional. 105 ILCS 5/24-2,
amended by P.A.s 102-14, 102-15, 102-334, 102-411, and 103-395, prohibits districts from making a deduction “from the
time or compensation of a school employee on account of any legal or special holiday.”

10 TLCS 5/1-24, added by P.A. 103-467 and scheduled to be repealed on 1-1-25, designated 2024 Election Day as a legal
school holiday for the purposes of 105 ILCS 5/24-2 and requires any school closed on 2024 Election Day to make itself
available to an election authority as a polling place on that date. No waiver exists for 2024 Election Day. 105 ILCS 5/24-2(b)
and (e), amended by P.A.s 102-15 and 103-467.

5:200 Page | of 4
©2423-202 1 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



School Day

Teachers are required to work the school day adopted by the Board.S Teachers employed for at least
four hours perday shall receive a duty-free lunch equivalent to the student lunch period, or 30 minutes,
whichever is longer. 6

The District accommodates employees who are nursing mothers according to provisions in State and
federal law. 7

Salary

Teachers shall be paidaccordingto the salaries fixedby the Board, but in no case lessthan the minimum
salary provided by the School Code.8 Teachers shall be paid at least monthly on a 10- or 12-month
basis. ?

Assignments and Transfers 10

The Superintendent is authorized to make teaching, study hall, extra class duty, and extracurricular
assignments. In orderof priority, except as otherwise provided by law, assignments shall be made based
on the District’s needs and best interests, employee qualifications, and employee desires.

The footmotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

3 A school day is required to consist of a minimum of five clock hours under the direct supervision of a teacher or non-
teaching personnel or volunteer personnel that provides non-teaching or supervisory duties as specified in 105 ILCS 5/10-
22.34(a) in order to qualify as a full day of attendance. 105 ILCS 5/10-19.05(a) and (j-5), amended by P.A. 103-560—ef 11—
24. See www.isbenetschool-calendar for 11l State Board of Education’s_(ISBE) instructional day changes notice regarding
this law. See 105 ILCS 5/10-19.05, amended by P.A. 103-560—ef——-24, for additional exceptions to the attendance
calculation.

6105 1LCS 5/24-9.

T29U.S.C. §218(d), added by Pub.L. 117-328; 42 U.S.C. §2000gg et seq., added by Pub.L. 117-328; 740 ILCS 137/;
820 ILCS 260/. Consult the board attorney to ensure the district is properly accommodating nursing mothers. See sample
administrative procedure 5:10-AP, Workplace Accommodations for Nursing Mothers.

8 105 ILCS 5/10-20.7, 5/10-21.1, 5/24-1, and 5/24-8, amended by P.A. 103-515. The Commission on Government
Forecasting and A ccountability is required to annually certify and publish the teacher minimum salary to be used for the 2024-
2025 school year and each year thereafter. Salaries are a mandatory subject of collective bargaining. 115 ILCS 5/10. Annually,
by Oct. 1, each district must: (1) during an open school board meeting, report salary and benefits information for the
superintendent, administrators, and teachers; (2) publish that information on the district’s website, if any; and (3) provide this
information to ISBE. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.47. According to a Public Access Counselor (PAC) Informal Mediation letter
interpreting 5 [LCS 120/7.3, an IMRF employer must post on its website the names ofemployees having a total compensation
package that exceeds $75,000 per year. 2012 PAC 19808 (Informal Mediation by the Tll. Attorney General’s Public Access
Counselor (PAC)); see PAC Annual Report for 2012 at
https:/foiapac.ilas. gov/viewpdfaspx?P=—/content/pdf/Public_Access Counselor Annual Report 2012.pdf).

9 105 1LCS 5724-21.

10 pistricts are required to have a policy on the distribution of the listed assignments. 23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.420(d).

Absent an individual or collective bargaining agreement, the board has unilateral discretion to assign or retain a teacher
to or in an extracurricular duty. Betebenner v. Bd. of Educ., 336 [lL.App. 448 (4th Dist. 1949); Dist. 300 Educ. Assoc. v. Bd
of Educ., 31 1. App.3d 550 (2nd Dist. 1975); Lewis v. Bd. of Educ., 181 Il App.3d 689 (5th Dist. 1989).

5:200 Page 2 of 4
©202t 2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



School Social Worker Services Outside of District Employment

School social workers may not provide services outside of their District employment to any student(s)
attending school in the District. School socialworker has the meaningstated in 105ILCS 5/14-1 092,11

Dismissal

The District will follow State law when dismissing a teacher. 12

The Footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

105 ILCS 5/22-965¢a}, added by P.A. 103-46-e:—--1-24 _and amended by P.A. 103-564, requires school districts, when
hiring or assigning educators for physical education, music, or visual arts, to prioritize the hiring or assigning of educators
who hold an educator license and endorsement in those areas. The law also requires ¢ducators in these areas o obtain short-
term approval if they are not licensed n the content area. or. il no short-term _approval is available. thev must meet criteria
specified bv ISBE. Id. at (b). Educators must obtain an endorsement in the area being taught prior to the end of the short-term
approval period to continue (o maintain the educator'’s emplovment for subsequent school vears. prefessional—educater

Id. at (b). In the aliernative. educators do not need o be licensed. in s ; - SBE 5
if thev meet the requirements of Title 23 of the [llinois Administrative Code except for Section 1.710. 1d. at (d). Heweves
Bt — e ‘hetherthe-licensure—eq FRRERIS— " = = R s o 5 “‘ '1'_

11 Optional. This subhead provides information to district employees and the community that 105 ILCS 5/14-1.09a
prohibits school social workers from moonlighting by providing services to students attending the districts in which they are
employed. Delete “540-20-65-544-1-09a" from the Legal References if the board deletes this subhead.

12 AJl dismissal laws in the chart below were amended by the Education Reform Acts. 105 ILCS 5/24A-5.5, requires
districts to develop and implement a local appeals process for unsatisfactory ratings issued to teachers under 105 ILCS 5/24A -
5, amended by P.A.s 102-252, and 102-729. Districts must: (1) develop the process in cooperation with the bargaining unit or
teachers, if applicable, and (2) include an assessment of the original rating by a panel of qualified evaluators agreed to by the
PERA joint committee (105 ILCS 5/24A-4(b)).

Non-tenure Teacher Discharge 105 ILCS 5/24-11, amended by P.A.s 102-552 and
103-500.

Tenured and Non-tenure Teachers 105 ILCS 5/24-12(b), amended by P.A.s 103-398-e

Reduction in Force 4-1-24 and 103-500, and (c)

Tenured Teacher Discharge 105 ILCS 5/24-12(d) (prior reasonable wamning

Where Cause Remediable required), amended by P.A.s 102-708 and 103-
354 e 4124,

105 ILCS 5/24-12(d) (procedural mandates),
amended by P.A.s 102-708 and 103-354—ef—
24

105 ILCS 5/10-22.4 (general authority)

Tenured Teacher Discharge 105 ILCS 5/24-12(d) (no prior warning required)

Where Cause Irremediable amended by P.A.s 102-708 and 103-354-—e—1-
L

105 ILCS 5/24-12(d) (procedural mandates),
amended by P.A.s-HH-S3101-643—sad 102-
708 and 103-354ef—-1-24,

105 ILCS 5/10-22.4 (general authority)

Tenured Teacher Discharge 105 ILCS 5/24A-5(m) (participation in remediation
Failure to complete remediation plan with a rating of plan after unsatisfactory evaluation)
Proficient or Excellent 105 ILCS 5/24-12(d)X1)

105 ILCS 5/24-12(d) (procedural mandates),
amended by P.A.s 102-708 and 103-354-ef-1-
124

105 ILCS 5/10-22.4 (general authority)

5:200 Page 3 of 4
©@2023.2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
{linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Evaluation

The District’s teacher evaluation system will be conducted under the plan developed pursuant to State
law. 13

On an annual basis, the Superintendent will provide the Board with a written report which outlines the
results of the District’s teacher evaluation system.

LEGAL REF.: 29 U.S.C. §218(d), Pub. L. 117-328, Pump for Nursing Mothers Act.

42 U.S.C. §2000gg et seq., Pub. L. 117-328, Pregnant Workers Fairness Act.

105 ILCS 5/10-19, 5/10-19.05,5/10-20.65, 5/14-1.09a, 5/22-963, 5/22 4, 5/24-16.5,
5/24-2,5/24-8, 5/24-9,5/24-11, 5/24-12, 5/24-21, 5/24 A-1 through 24A-20.

820 ILCS 260/, Nursing Mothers in the Workplace Act.

23 [l Admin.Code Parts 50 (Evaluation of Educator Licensed Employees) and 51
(Dismissal of Tenured Teachers).

Cleveland Bd. of Educ. v. Loudermill, 470 U.S. 532 (1985).

CROSS REF.: 5:120 (Employee Ethics; Code of Professional Conduct; and Conflict of Interest),
5:290 (Employment Termination and Suspensions), 6:20 (School Year Calendar
and Day)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

Tenured Teacher Discharge — Optional Alternative 105 ILCS 5/24-16.5(d) (provide written notice)
Evaluative Dismissal Process for PERA Evaluation 105 ILCS 5/24-16.5 (pre-remediation and
Failure to complete remediation plan with a Proficient remediation procedural mandates)

or better rating 105 ILCS 5/24A-2.5 105 TLCS 5/24-16.5(e) and (f) (school board makes

final decision with only PERA-trained board
members participating in vote)

Tenured Teacher Discharge — Unsatisfactory PERA 105 ILCS 5/24A-5(n), amended by P.A. 102-252
evaluation within 36 months of completing a (forego remediation and proceed to dismissal)
remediation plan 105 ILCS 5/24A-2.5 105 ILCS 5/24-12(d) (procedural mandates),

amended by P.A. 102-708.
105 ILCS 5/10-22.4 (general authority)

Educational Support Personnel Employees (non- 105 ILCS 5/10-23.5, amended by P.A. 102-854.

| licensed)
Probationary Teacher 105 ILCS 5/24-11, amended by P.A.s 102-552, 102-
(non-tenure teacher) 854, and 103-500.

Various components of a RIF (e.g., impact and decision to RIF) and an evaluation plan (e.g., development,

implementation, and impact) may be subject to mandatory collective bargaining. Central City Educ. Assoc. v. IELRB, 149
111.2d 496 (Iil. 1992).

105 ILCS 5/22-965+= - — SR
follow the employee contract language for filling posmons

Teacher RIF procedures were changed by 105 ILCS 5/24-12(b), amended by P.A. 103-398 and 103-500, and (c). See
PERA Overview for School Board Members, question 15, “What is the process for selecting teachers for a reduction in
force/layoff (RIF)” at: www.iasb.com/law/PERA overview.pdf.

State law does not prohibit a PERA joint committee from agreeing to put a teacher on a remediation plan if the teacher
receives a second needs improvement (rather than unsatisfactory) rating after being on a professional development plan. Bd.
of Educ. Rockford Public Sch. v. Rentsch, 212 N.E.3d 565 (Ill. App.-€+ 2nd-BHst- 2022).

According to a binding opinion from the Ill. Public Access Counselor, a board must identify an employee by name in a
motion to dismiss him or her. PAQ 13-16. As this may be a significant change in practice with possible other legal
consequences, a board should consult with the board attorney on this issue before dismissing an employee.

13 105 1LCS 5/24A-5, amended by P.A.s 102-252,.102-729, and 103-85. Teacher evaluation plans are covered in PERA
Overview for School Board Members at: www.iash.com/law/PERAoverview.pdf,

4- provides that in the event of a reduction in force, schools may

5:200 Page 4 of 4
@22 2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[Ninois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Ceteber2019June 2024 5:250-AP

Professional Personnel
Administrative Procedure - School Visitation Leave 1

Eligible employees

These administrative procedures apply to both professional staff and educational service personnel. An
employee is eligible for a-school visitation leave if he or she has worked for the District at least six
consecutive months immediately before the request and works at least one-half of the full-time
equivalent position. 820 ILCS 147/1046. Periods when school is not in session will not count as a break
in consecutive service. 2

School Visitation Leave

An employee is entitled to eight hours during any school gear, no more than four hours of which may
be taken on any given day, to attend school confereu€es, Bghayvioral meetings, or academic meetings
related to the employee’s child, if the conference BEmectH not be scheduled during non-work
hours. Employees must first use all accrued vacatiofgieaye ohal leave, compensatory leave, and
any other leave that may be granted to the employee, eXCepi disability leave. 820 ILCS 147/15.

Request
An employee must request a school conferg
advance; in an emergency situation, 24 ho
employer to schedule the leave so as t
denied if granting the leave would 1

@ve in writing at least seven days in
sired. The employee must consult with the

for such a leave, subject to the requirements relating to reduction
ral Fair Labor Standards Act. 820 ILCS 147/20. The employee
will y benefits, nor will the District terminate any employee for an

absence due solely to thei@mgloVee's attendance at a school conference. behavioral meeting. or
academic meeting. 820 ILCS™

Verification

An employee returning from a-school visitation leave must provide the Building Principal with
verification of the visitation from the school administrator of the school visited. Failure to provide this
verification within two working days of the visitation will subject the employee to the standard
disciplinary procedures for unexcused absences from work. 820 ILCS 147/30.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 The School Visitation Rights Act applies to only those districts employing at least 50 people. 820 [LCS 147/403.
Modify this procedure to align with board policy. Customize it to reflect the district’s practice, particularly to specify the
district’s treatment of eligible employees.

2 This provision is not in State law, but is consistent with other laws concerning school employees.

5:250-AP Page 1 of 2
©24244-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[lfinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attomney before use.



LEGAL REF.: 820 ILCS 147/, School Visitation Rights Act.

Q\

5:250-AP Page 2 of 2
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attormey before use.



Detober-June 20402024 5:285

Educational Support Personnel

Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus and Commercial Vehicle Drivers 1

The District shall adhere to State and federal law and regulations requiring a drug and alcohol testing
program for school bus and commercial vehicle drivers. The Superintendent or designee managges a
program to implement State and federal law defining the circumstances and procedures for the testing 2

The footmotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State and federal law controls this policy’s content. The federal Omnibus Transportation Testing Act of 1991 requires
that all persons subject to commercial driver’s license requirements be tested for alcohol, marijuana, cocaine, amphetamines,
opiates (including heroin), and phencyclidine (PCP). Cannabis remains a Schedule I (c)(17) conirolled substance under federal
law (21 U.S.C. §812) meaning it has no currently accepted medical use in treatment. Federal drug testing requirements for
commercial and school bus drivers, including random testing, are unaffected by the legalization of cannabis for medical and
recreational use at the State level. See_sample procedure 5:285-AP, Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus and Commercial
Vehicle Drivers and U.S. Dept. of Transportation’s Recreational Marijuana Notice (12-3-12) ("We want to make it perfectly
clear that the state initiatives will have no bearing on the Department of Transportation’s regulated drug testing program. The
Department of Transportation’s Drug and Aleohol Testing Regulation — 49 CFR Part 40 — does not authorize the use
of Schedule I drugs, including marijuana, for any reason.”)(emphasis added) and Medéeal-Recreational Marijuana Notice
(4-259-129), available at: www _transporiation.sov/odape/program-guidance. State law continues to permit the imposition of
civil and criminal penalties for being school bus permit drivers who use cannabis while on duty. 410 ILCS 705/10-35(a)(9).

625 ILCS 5/6-106.1c contains State law requirements for reasonable suspicion drug and alcohol testing of school bus
driver permit holders. If an employer has reasonable suspicion to believe that a school bus driver permit holder is under the
influence of alcohol, drugs, or intoxicating compounds, the employer must require the permit holder to undergo testing at a
licensed testing facility before driving any vehicle for which a school bus driver permit is required. The employer’s reasonable
suspicion must be based on specific, contemporaneous observations of the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors. 49
CFR §382.307. State law makes employers of school bus driver permit holders who do not hold commercial driver’s licenses
subject to federal law regarding reasonable suspicion testing. The employer must report to the Ill. Secretary of State if the
permit holder refuses testing or if the testing reveals the presence of alcohol, drugs, or intoxicating compounds. A school bus
permit holder whose test discloses any amount of alcohol or drugs, or who refuses testing, will have his or her school bus
permit suspended for three years.

State law also allows for drug and alcohol testing for any driver on a public roadway; i.c., implied consent. 625 ILCS
5/11-501.1.

Drug testing by government entities constitutes asearch of an individual, thereby invoking State and federal constitutional
law. In determining whether post-employment testing of a school bus driver is permissible, a court will balance the privacy
interests of the employee against the district’s interest. rmati Broth of Team
Transportation, 932 F.2d 1292 (9th Cir. 1991). For districts that employ staff members in positions requiring a commercial
driver’s license, see the U.S. Dept. of Transportation - Office of the Secretary, Office of Drug and Alcohol Policy and
Compliance’s guidance and best practices document titled What Employers Need to Know About DOT Drug and Alcohol
Testing, available at: www_transportation.gov/odapc/employer_handbook.

2 An optional provision for districts that contract-out their transportation services:
This policy shall not be implemented, and no administrative procedures will be needed, until it is reasonably
foreseeable that the District will hire staff for a position(s) requiring a commercial driver’s license.

5:285 Page 1 of 2
©24--2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



LEGAL REF.:

49 U.S.C. §31306, Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing (Omnibus Transportation Employee
Testing Act of 1991, P.L. 102-143).
49 C.F.R. Parts 40 (Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol
Testing Programs), 382 (Controlled Substance and Alcohol Use and Testing),
and 395 (Hours of Service of Drivers).
625 ILCS 5/6-106.1 and 5/6-106.1c.

CROSS REF.: 4:110 (Transportation), 5:30 (Hiring Process and Criteria), 5:280 (Duties and
Qualifications)
5:285 Page 2 of 2
D2945-2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June 29-1-9_@24 5:310

Educational Support Personnel
Compensatory Time-Off !

This policy governs the use of compensatory time-off by employees who: (1) are covered by the
overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act,29 U.S.C. §201 etseq., and (2) are notrepresented
by an exclusive bargaining representative.

Employees may be given 1-1/2 hours of compensatory time-off in lieu of cash payment for each hour
of overtime worked. Other than as provided below, at no time may an employee’s accumulated
compensatory time-offexceed 240 hours, which represents compensation for 160 hours of overtime.2
An employee whose work regularly includes public safety, emergency response, or seasonal activities
may accumulate a maximum of 480 hours of compensatory time, which represents compensation for
320 hours of overtime.3 If an employee accrues the maximum number of compensatory time-off hours,
the employee: (1)is paid forany additional overtime hours worked, at the rate of one and one half times
the employee’s regular hourly rate of pay, and (2) does not accumulate compensatory time-off until the
employee uses an equal amount of accrued time-off. 4

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 The federal regulations implementing the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) govemns the use of comp-time. 29 C.F.R.
§6§553.21-553.28 and 553.50. See_sample policy 5:35, Compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act, for discussion of the
FLSA. In order for a district to offer comp-time, it must have a compensatory time-off policy or the topic must be covered in
an applicable collective bargaining agreement. This policy contains an item on which collective bargaining may be required.
Any policy that impacts upon wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment, is subject to collective bargaining upon
request by the employee representative, even if the policy involves an inherent managerial right. School officials should
consult with the board attorney before adopting this policy.

The terms comp-time and compensatory time-off mean paid time-off that is earned and accrued by a non-exempt
employee in lieu of overtime pay for over 40 hours worked in one workweek. Compensatory time-off in lieu of overtime pay
must be at the premium rate of 1.5 hours of compensatory time for each hour of overtime worked (just as the monetary rate
for overtime is calculated at 1.5 times the regular rate of pay). As a condition forusing comp-time in lieu of overtime pay, the
employer and employee must have an agreement or understanding before the work is performed. Further, the employee’s
decision to accept comp-time must be made freely. For employees represented by an exclusive bargaining agent, the agreement
to use comp-time must be between the district and the bargaining agent.

For non-exempt employees who are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement, the agreement or understanding
concerning comp-time must be between the district and employee. See_sample exhibit 5:310-E, Agreement to Receive
Compensatory Time-Off- If the district had a regular practice of comp-time before April 15, 1986, that is deemed an agreement.
Notice to the non-exempt employees that comp-time will be given in lieu of overtime pay for overtime through bulletin board
notices is sufficient to constitute an agreement or understanding, provided that the decision to accept compensatory time-off
is made freely.

2 This sample policy contains the maximum hours that the FLSA allows an employee to accumulate. It is a ceiling that
an employee may hit several times, butnever go over without using some ofthe time-off. A school board may forfeit flexibility
and set this ceiling lower.

3 Seasonal activities include activities during periods of significantly increased demand, that are ofareguiar and recurring
nature. A seasonal activity is not limited strictly to those operations that are very susceptible to changes in the weather.
However, mere periods of short but intense activity do not make an employee’s job seasonal. However, the 480 hour accrual
timit will not apply to office personnel or other employees who may perform such seasonal activities only in emergency
situations, even if they spend substantially all of their time in a particular workweek engaged in such activities.

4 The FLSA permits a board to require that employees reduce their accunulated compensatory time or face having their

supervisor schedule the compensatory time-off for them. Christensen et al. v, Harris County et al., 529 U.S. 576 (2000). Such
an optional provisions follows:

5:310 Page 1 of 2
©20192024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Iilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



An employee who has accrued compensatory time-off'shall be permitted to use such time in at least
half-day components provided such requests do not unduly disrupt the District’s operations.S The
employee’s supervisor must approve a request to use compensatory time -off.

Upon termination of employment, an employee will be paid for unused compensatory time at the higher
of:

1. The average regularrate received by such employee during the last three years of employment;
or
2. The final regular rate received by such employee.
Compensatory time-off is time during which the employee is not working and is, therefore, not counted
as “hours worked” for purposes of overtime compensation.

Implementation

The Superintendent or designee shall implement this policy in accordance with the FLSA. In the event
of a conflict between the policy and the FLSA, the latter shall control.

LEGAL REF.: FairbaborStandardsAet-29 U.S.C. §201 et seq.. Fair Labor Standards Act; 29
C.F.R. Part 553.

CROSS REF.: 5:35 (Compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act), 5:185 (Family and Medical
Leave), 5:270 (Employment At-Will, Compensation, and Assignment)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

Notwithstanding the above and to avoid hardship to the District, an employee’s supervisor may
require the employee to reduce accumulated compensatory time, or schedule the compensatory
time-off for the employee, so that the employee does not accumulate more than 75 hours of
compensatory time, which represents compensation for 50 hours of overtime.

5 Optional.

5:310 Page 2 of 2
L1024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June 260452024 5:310-E

Educational Suggort Personnel

Exhibit - Agreement to Receive Compensatory Time-Off

The School Board has a policy of granting compensatory time-off to non-exempt employees in lieu of
overtime pay for time worked in excess of 40 hours in any workweek. I have either received a copy of
the policy or been told where it may be found or downloaded. I understand that:

il

2.

3.

I mustobtain my supervisor's express authorization to work overtime beforeworkingin excess
of 40 hours in any workweek.

I will earn compensatory time-offatarate of notless than one andone-half (1.5)hours foreach
one hour of overtime worked.

I will be allowed to use accrued compensatory time-off within a reasonable period after making
arequest to use it, provided that my absence would not unduly disrupt operations considering
factors like emergency requirements for sta ilability of qualified substitute staff.
My supervisor may require that [ use my a atory time-off within a certain time
period, may prohibit my use of accruedc e-off on certain days, may require
that I cash out my compensatory time-offa inze period, and may otherwise
limit my use of compensatory time-off.

I agree to receive compensatory time-offin li i or time worked in excess of 40 hours

in any workweek, and I accept this asac

Employee Signature Date

ignature (g Date

5:310-E Page 1 of 1

©20649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of Schoo! Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Jupe20-0 June 2024 6:110

Instruction

Programs for Students At Risk of Academic Failure and/or Dropping Out of School and
Graduation Incentives Program !

The Superintendent or designee shall develop, maintain, and supervise a program for students at risk
of academic failure or dropping out of school. The program shall includeeducationand support services
addressing individual learning styles, career development, and social needs, and may include without
limitation one or more of the following:

Parent-teacher conferences

Counseling services by social workers and/or guidance counselors

Counseling services by psychologists

Psychological testing

Truants’ alternative and optional education program 2

Alternative school placement

Community agency services

Alternative learning opportunities program, in conformity with the Alternative Learning
Opportunities Law, as it may be amended from time to time 3

Graduation incentives program 4

e Remediation program 3

The footmotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content.

2 105 [LCS 5/2-3.66-amended B A 100165 authorizes the Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) to award grants to
school districts, educational service regions, and community college districts.

3105 ILCS 5/13B-1 et seq. Districts are not required to establish an alternative learning opportunities program. However,
if they do, State law requires that the program “provide a flexible standards-based learning environment, innovative and varied
instructional strategies, a student-centered curriculum, social programs, and supplemental social, health, and support services
to improve the educational achievement of students at risk of academic failure.” 105 ILCS 5/13B-20. The program must also
meet the requirements in 105 ILCS 5/13B-45. Alternative learning opportunities programs “may include, without limitation .
evening high school, in-school tutoring and mentoring programs, in-school suspension programs, high school completion
programs to assist high school dropouts in completing their education, high school completion programs o allow students
eligible for remote learning under Section 34-18.81 to complete their education while incareersted in an institution or facility
ol the Departiment of Correclions. support services, parental involvement programs, and programs to develop, enhance, or
extend the fransition for students transferring back into the regular school program, an adult education program, or a post-
secondary education program.” 105 ILCS 5/13B-20.5. umended by P 102-966, See 105 ILCS 5/13B-25.10, as well as other
requirements for general State aid and evidence-based funding (the statute references both types of funding), for additional
requirements to receive State funds for creating this program.

4 Required by 105 ILCS 5/26-16-ssusdedbe 2 A_L00 155
5105 ILCS 5/10-20. 9a(b) requires remedial assistance for students who are not promoted to the next higher grade.

6:110 Page 1 of 2
©2040-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Any student who is below the age of 20 years is eligible to enroll in a graduation incentives program if
he or she: 6

Is considered a dropout according to State law;

Has been suspended or expelled;

[s pregnant or is a parent;

Has been assessed as chemically dependent; or

Is enrolled in a bilingual education or English Language Learners program.

=l g

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/2-3.41, 5/2-3.66, 5/10-20.9a, 5/13B, 5/26-2a, 5/26-13, 5/26-14, and
5/26-16.

CROSS REF.: 6:280 (Grading and Promotion), 6:300 (Graduation Requirements), 7:70
(Attendance and Truancy)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

6 Required by 105 [LCS 5/26-16—umsaded-5-LA106—153, Graduation incentives programs are entitled to claim general
State aid and evidence-based funding (the statute references both types of funding). A district must ensure that its graduation
incentives program receives supplemental general State aid, transportation reimbursements, and special education resources,
if appropriate, for students enrolled in the program. 105 ILCS 5/26-2a defines dropout as “any child enrolled in grades 9
through 12 whose name has been removed from the district enrollment roster for any reason other than the student’s death,
extended illness, removal for medical non-compliance, expulsion, aging out, graduation, or completion of a program of studies
and who has not transferred to another public or private school and is not known to be home-schooled by his or her parents or
guardians or continuing school in another country.”

6:110 Page 2 of 2
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of Schoo! Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Fune2049June 2024 6:120-AP1, E2

Instruction

Exhibit - Special Education Required Notice and Consent Forms

Below is the URL to Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) updated Special Education Required Notice
and Consent Forms and instructions to understand the purpose and use of each form. The forms are the

official versions of the State-required forms. The URL also provides access to each form in languages
other than English.

www.isbe.net/Pages/Special-Education-Reguired-Notice-and-Consent-Forms.aspx

Q\

6:120-AP1, E2 Page 1 of 1
©2645-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Jure2019June 2024 6:120-AP2

Instruction

Administrative Procedure - Access to Classrooms and Personnel

Access to classrooms and personnel is permitted in limited situations by 105 ILCS 5/14-8.02(g-5).
Guidelines follow:

1.

These guidelines apply to access requested by the parent/guardian of a student receiving special
education services or being evaluated for eligibility, an independent educational evaluator, or
a qualified professional retained by or on behalf of a parent/guardian or student. A qualified
professional means “an individual who holds credentials to evaluate the child in the domain or
domains for which an evaluation is sought or an intern working under the direct supervision of
a qualified professional, including a master’s or doctoral degree candidate.” These individuals
are referred to in this procedure as visitors.
Visitors will be afforded reasonable access togsiu
buildings and to the student. To minimi
parent(s)/guardian(s) or qualified proft
parent(s)/guardian(s) or student is allowed ac
one class period.] A visitor may request tfie
additional observations based on ingd
documentation in support of such a
additional observations in his or initighpre . The administrator may grant, deny, or
modify the request, and the a isWtogeti Bhall be final.

Visitors must comply with:

facilities, personnel, classrooms, and
reasonable access means that the
d by or on behalf of athe

istrator to grant longer or
ances and provide any supporting

b. Applig : including those laws protecting the confidentiality of
federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act and

c. itors to and Conduct on School Property. Visitors may not
j process.
If the visitor 19%RR2 Hian, he or she will be afforded reasonable access as described

above for the p
a. Observing [
program, or
b. Visiting an educational placement or program proposed for the child by the
Individualized Education Program (IEP) team.
If the visitor is an independent educational evaluator or a qualified professional retained by or
on behalf of a parent/guardian or student, he or she must be afforded reasonable access of
sufficient duration and scope for the purpose of conducting an evaluation of the student, the
student’s performance, the student’s current educational program, placement, services, or
environment, or any educational program, placement, services, or environment proposed for

her child in the child’s current educational placement, services, or

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 Sate law is silent on the frequency and length of access. These provisions may be omitted or changed. If the frequency
or length of access is limited, the procedure should allow a visitor to request longer or additional access (as in the next
sentence).

6:120-AP2 Page 1 of 2

©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



the student, including interviews of educational personnel, student observations, assessments,
tests, or assessments of the student’s educational program, services, or placement or of any
educational program proposed by the IEP team, services, or placement. If one or more
interviews of school personnel are part of the evaluation, the interviews must be conducted at
a mutually agreed upon time, date, and place that do not interfere with the school employee’s
school duties. The Building Principal or designee may limit interviews to personnel having
information relevant to the student’s current educational services, program, or placement or to
a proposed educational service, program, or placement.

6. Prior to visiting a school, school building, or school facility, a visitor must complete 6:120-
AP2, El, Request to Access Classroom(s) or Personnel for Special Education Evaluation
and/or Observation Purposes. This form serves to:

a. Inform the Building Principal or designee in writing of the proposed visit(s), the
purpose, and the duration, and
b. Identify requested dates/times for the visit(s) to facilitate scheduling.

7. The student’s parent/guardian must consent in writing to the student being interviewed by the
named evaluator as part of a visit. The parent/guardian will grant this consent by completing
6:120-AP2, E1, Request to Access Classrgo Personnel for Special Education
Evaluation and/or Observation Purposes.

8. The student’s parent/guardian, or the stude
an Authorization to Release Student Recor
evaluator or a qualified professional retaine
will be given access to student school rgg sonnel who would likely release such

g ks over the age of 12 and the records
ormation, the student must also be

is over the age of 18, must execute

contain mental health and/or devel
requested to sign the Authori

observation by or disclosure eirds or information to a visitor.
9. The visitor must acknowl : at he or she is obligated to honor students’
confidentiality : c-disclosure of such records and/or information.

10.
. pal or designee will accompany any visitor for the duration of
the visit, includi LT interviews of staff members.
11. If the visitor is a sional retained by the parent/guardian, the visitor must provide
identification and credEntials before the visit.
12. This procedure applies to any public school facility, building, or program and to any facility,
building, or program supported in whole or in part by public funds. The student’s case manager
or other School District designee must facilitate such visit(s) when the student attends a
program outside of the District, such as at a private day program or residential program,
provided it is supported in whole or in part by public funds.

6:120-AP2 Page 2 of 2
©2045-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Fune2019June 2024 6:120-AP2, E1

Instruction

Exhibit - Request to Access Classroom(s) or Personnel for Special Education
Evaluation and/or Observation Purposes

Student name: DOB:

School attending: Grade:

The following information must be completed by individuals requesting to access a school building,
facility, and/or educational programs or to interview School District personnel or the student named
above for the purpose of assessing the student’s special education needs. Please complete this form and
return it to the Building Principal or Program Director where the student is enrolled. He or she will
contact you to coordinate your visit:

Parent/Guardian (Complete this section if the persg e request is the parent/guardian.)

Name: Phone:

Address:

] I am the parent/guardian of the above-
following classroom/settings:

and wish to observe my child in the

for the purpose of:

O dent and wish to observe the following
d for my child:

Observations ar Gl one class period per school quarter.

Independent Evalu Rlified Professional (Complete this section if the person making

the request is not the pa )

Name: Agency/Company:

Phone: Email address:

Address:

My professional training and/or licensure or certification, if applicable, is (check all that apply):

[] Teacher, certified in the areas of: Itlinois certified? [ JY [_IN

[ Clinical Psychologist ] School Psychologist

[] Licensed Clinical Social Worker [] Licensed Social Worker

[] School Social Worker [] Occupational Therapist

[ Physical Therapist [ Speech/Language Pathologist

] Audiologist ] Psychiatrist

6:120-AP2, E1 Page 1 of 2

©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
1llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



[] Registered Nurse [] Certified School Nurse
[ Other qualified professional (list credentials):

I have been requested by the above named student’s parent/guardian to conduct an evaluation of the
student for the purpose of:

As part of this evaluation, I am requesting the following for the length of time noted (check all that
apply):

O Observation of student in the following classroom(s)/setting(s):
Duration;

O Opportunity to interview the following personnel believed to work with the student:
Duration:

(]  Opportunity to interview the student.

O I will need more than one hour or one class periogfor my visit for the following reason(s):

O Student records, as noted in the attached, ization to Release Student Record

Information.

I understand that the District will allow
educational programs or individual(s) I have 2l ated to the purpose of my visit. I have been
provided with a copy of 6:120-AP2, W:d Personnel, and agree to comply with
its terms and conditions. I furthe ing my visit, [ must honor all students’
confidentiality rights and refrain of such records, andfer-information, and/or

Individual Requiiimc i : Date

Parent/Guardian V i be completed whenever an independent evaluator or other
qualified professional riggie

I, , am the parent/guardian of the above-named student, and I
confirm that I have requested dn evaluation of my child by the individual named herein, for the stated
purpose(s). If requested above, I consent to my child being interviewed by the named evaluator as part
of this visit understanding that the District has not conducted a background check on the evaluator. I
have no reason to believe the evaluator poses a safety risk to my child or others. I further understand
and agree that it is my responsibility to notify the District in writing if I end my working relationship
with the named evaluator prior to the completion of the tasks outlined herein and that the District
otherwise will work with the evaluator to provide reasonable access to the school, school building,
school facility, personnel, or my child at mutually agreed upon times and in a manner that is least
disruptive to the school setting or my child’s academic program.

Parent/Guardian Signature Date

6:120-AP2, E1 Page 2 of 2
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



May-2022 June 2024 6:140

Instruction

Education of Homeless Children 1

Each child of a homeless individual and each homeless youth has equal access to the same free,
appropriate public education as provided to other children and youths, including a public pre-school
education.2 A homeless childis defined as provided in the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act
and the Education for Homeless Children Act.3 The Superintendent or designee shall act as or appoint
a Liaison for Homeless Children to coordinate this policy’s implementation. 4

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 §tate and federal law control this policy’s content. This sample policy contains the basic requirements of the Education
for Homeless Children Act (105 ILCS 45/), as well as the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. §11431 et
seq.). Other policies that are relevant to the education of homeless children are listed in the Cross References, e.g., school
admissions and immunizations.

2 For high school districts, delete “including a public pre-school education™ at the end of the sentence.

3 Under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. §11434a(2)),_homeless children and youths &
means individuals who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence (within the meaning of seetiondl us.c
§11302(a)(1)): and +2+includes;

(i) children and youths who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or
a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack ofalternative adequate
accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; or are abandoned in hospitals;
(ii) children and youths who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or
ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings (within the meaning of section
11302(a)(2)(C));
(iii) children and youths who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus
or train stations, or similar settings; and
(iv) migratory children (as such term is defined in section 6399 oftitle 20) who qualify as homeless for the purposes
of this part because the children are living in circumstances described in clauses (i) through (iii).
Note: Section §11434a(2) no longer includes children “awaiting foster care placement” within the definition of homeless
children and youths.

Under the Education for Homeless Children Act (105 ILCS 45/1-5), Homeless person, child, or youth includes, but is
not limited to, any of the following:

(1) An individual who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime place of abode.

(2) An individual who has a primary nighttime place of abode that is:
(A) a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary living
accommodations (including welfare hotels, congregate shelters, and transitional housing);
(B) an institution that provides a temporary residence for individuals intended to be
institutionalized; or
(C) a public or private place notdesigned for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation
for human beings.

See www.ishe.net/Pages/Homeless.aspx for helpful informational resources and training with regard to the education of
homeless children in [llinois. See https://nche.ed. gov/legislation/mekinney -
VENLO/ /el 4 sclleiclan for the U.S. Dept. of Education’s information about federal
requirements.

4 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(H(I)(iD).

6:140 Page 1 of 3
©2822-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved,
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




A homeless child may attend the District school that the child attended when permanently housed orin
which the child was last enrolled. A homeless child living in any District school’s attendance area may
attend that school. 3

The Superintendent or designee shall review and revise rules or procedures that may act as barriers to
the enrollment of homeless children and youths. In reviewing and revising such procedures,
consideration shall be given to issues concerning transportation, immunization, residency, birth
certificates, school records and other documentation, and guardianship.® Transportation shall be
provided in accordance with the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act and State law.” The
Superintendent or designee shall give special attention to ensuring the enrollment and attendance of
homeless children and youths who are not currently attending school.8 If a child is denied enrollment
or transportation under this policy, the Liaison for Homeless Children shall immediately refer the child
or his or her parent/guardian to the ombudsperson appointed by the Regional Superintendent and
provide the child or his or her parent/guardian with a written explanation for the denial.? Whenever a
child and his or her parent/guardian who initially share the housing of another person due to loss of
housing, economic hardship, or a similar hardship continue to share the housing, the Liaison for
Homeless Children shall, after the passage of 18 months and annually thereafter, conduct a review as
to whether such hardship continues to exist in accordance with State law. 10

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.
S 105 ILCS 45/1-10.

6 The first two sentences in this paragraph are required by 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(7). 410 ILCS 535/25.3 amended b2 A
+80-38&. requires fees for certified copies of birth records be waived for individuals whose homeless status has been verified.

A public school homeless liaison or school social worker may verify homeless status, in accordance with procedures
established by the State Registrar of Vital Records. Id.

Ta2uUs.C. §11432(g)(D)(I)(iii), 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(4)(A), and 105 ILCS 45/1-15. The School Code and Education for
Homeless Children Act permit school districts to usetheir State transportation funds to provide financial assistance to children
who are homeless or who qualify as at risk of becoming homeless when: (1) the financial assistance is not in excess of the
district’s actual costs for providing the transportation to the student, and (2) the district is not otherwise claiming the
expenditures through another State or federal grant. 105 ILCS 5/29-5 (transportation reimbursement), amended by P.A. 102-
539, and 105 ILCS 45/1-17 (homeless assistance). A child is considered at risk of becoming homeless if the child’s
parent/guardian, other person who enrolls the child, or unaccompanied minor provides documented evidence that the child’s
living situation will no longer be fixed, regular, and adequate within eight weeks, resulting in the child becoming homeless.
105 ILCS 45/1-17(d). Prior to providing such financial assistance, a district must enter into a written housing plan with the
parent/guardian, person who enrolled the child, or unaccompanied minor. Id. at 1-17(c). Financial assistance may include: (1)
mortgage or rental assistance that will allow a child to remain permanently in his/her living situation or obtain a new living
situation; and/or (2) assistance with unpaid bills, loans, or other financial debts that results in housing being inadequate. Id. at
1-17(a). See sample adminisirative procedure 6:140-AP, Education of Homeless Children, fin 1, for a discussion of issues that
districts should consider in developing such plans.

8 Required by 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(7)(C).

9 Required by 105 ILCS 45/1-25_ 23 Hl.Admin.Code §1.241. The Ill. State Board of Education’s Homeless Dispute
Resolution Procedures (pushshed—Sepmbes 2007 apd updated Beesmberlchruary  20244) are available at:
www.isbe.net/Pages/Homeless.aspx.

Use this alternative for districts in suburban Cook County: replace “Regional Superintendent” with “Intermediate Service
Center Executive Director.”

10 Optlonal 105 ILCS 45/1 25(a—5) Asan alternatlve a school board may omit this sentence Of bse-dParnis

pipiy

- - g s hange
the word “shall™ o may.” Any change requlred as a result ot this review becomes ettecﬂve at the close of the school year.
Any person who knowmgly or willfully presents false information in any review commits a Class C misdemeanor.

6:140 Page 2 of 3
©2622-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



LEGAL REF.:

CROSS REF.:

ADMIN. PROC.:

6:140

42 U.S.C. §11431 et seq., McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.
105 ILCS 45/, Education for Homeless Children Act.
23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.241.

2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 4:110 (Transportation), 4:1 40 (Waiverof
Student Fees), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:30 (Student Assignment
and Intra-District Transfer), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To
and From Non-District Schools), 7:60(Residence), 7:100 (Health, Eye, and Dental
Examinations; Immunizations; and Exclusion of Students)

6:140-AP (Education of Homeless Children)

Page 3 of 3
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




May-2022June 2024 6:140-AP

Instruction

Administrative Procedure - Education of Homeless Children

Actor Action
School Board Upon recommendation of the Superintendent, determines whether to expend
Prelimi transportation funds to provide financial homeless prevention assistance to
reliminary . .
Step the parents/guardians (or persons who enroll students) of children who are

homeless or at risk of becoming homeless, in accordance with the provisions
of 105 ILCS 5/29-5 (amended by P.A. 102-539); 105 ILCS 45/1-17. See
duties of the Liaison for Homeless Children below for specific eligibility
requirements,

Superintendent Serves as or designates an
coordinator for other feds
Children. 42 US.C. §1143

Under the McKinney-Vghty ssistance  Act (42 US.C.

ate staff person, who may also be a

.. s, to serve as a Liaison for Homeless
Preliminary :

Steps

traller parks, or camping grounds due to the
ative adequate accommodations; are living in
Cy Or transmonal shelters; or are abandoned in hospitals;
Note: Sectiond2 U.S.C. §11434a(2) no longer includes
chil dren “awaiting foster care placement” within the
y  definition of homeless children and youths.
Qhildren and youths who have a primary nighttime residence that is
! a’public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a
regular sleeping accommodation for human beings (within the
meaning of Seetion42 L1.S.C. §11302(a)(2)(C));

3. Children and youths who are living in cars, parks, public spaces,
abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or
similar settings; and

4. Migratory children (as such term is defined in seetien20 U.S.C.
§6399-ef+itle-26) who qualify as homeless for purposes of this part
because the—ehildren—aretheir living siluations are covered byia
elatses (1). (2). or threueh-(3) above.

Under the Education for Homeless Children Act, 105 ILCS 45/1-5,
homeless person, child, or youth includes, but is not limited to, any of the
following:

1. An individual who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime
place of abode.

6:140-AP Page 1 of 8
©20622-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor

Action

2. An individual who has a primary nighttime place of abode that is:

a. A supervised publicly or privately operated shelter
designed to provide temporary living accommodations
(including welfare hotels, congregate shelters, and
transitional housing);

b. An institution that provides a temporary residence for
individuals intended to be institutionalized; or

c. A public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used
as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings.

Children

Duties

Liaison for Homeless

Reviews and uses the information provided at:
www.isbe.net/Pages/Homeless.aspx to become aware of the resources and
training materials provided by the Ill.ireis State Board of Education (ISBE)
with-regard-teregarding the education of homeless children. For information
ahout federal requirements and technical assistance from the National
C:,ntnr for HOleEbb Edu\,atm iy 1 ind ed by the U.S. Dept. of Education. Ssee
: 24 ..E."m s} -l |'II'[D.‘: ’!nche ed. E{)Wiei’_la

" in, District programs. 42 U.S.C.

services for which they are eligible, and make referrals
 cal at, mental health and substance abuse, housing, and other
iat@services. 42 US.C. §1 1432(g)(6)(A)(iii)-(iv).

ents/guardians of educational and related opportunities available
ildren, and provide them with meaningful opportunities to
ate in their children’s education. 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(6)(A)(V).

Disseminates public notice of the educational rights of homeless children
and youths in the-locations where they receive services (such as schools,
shelters, public libraries, and soup kitchens). 42 U.S.C.

§11432(g)(6)(A)(vi).

Mediates enrollment disputes to:

1. Ensure the child/youth is immediately enrolled in the school in
which enrollment is sought, pending resolution of the dispute;

2. Provide the homeless child/youth’s parent/guardian with a written
explanation of the school's decision regarding school selection or
enrollment, including their rights to appeal the decision;

3. Complete the dispute resolution process as expeditiously as
possible; and

6:140-AP

Page 2 of 8
D2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Hlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use




Duties

Actor Action
Liaison for Homeless 4. In the case of an unaccompanied youth, ensure that the youth is
Children. cont'd immediately enrolled in school pending resolution of the dispute.

42 US.C. §11432(@)3XE)()-(iv)y and 42 US.C.

§11432(g)(6)(A)(vii).
Fully informs the parent/guardian of a homeless child/youth, and any
unaccompanied youth, of all transportation services and assist in accessing
transportation services. 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(6)(A)(viii). Convene a
meeting with the parent/guardian and teacher of the child if the travel time
to a homeless child’s school of origin is longer than one hour each way, or
if the travel time is shorter, but the District wishes to evaluate whether such

travel is in the best interest of the child’s development and education. 105
ILCS 45/1-15.

Assists unaccompanied youth in placement/enrollment decisions, consider
the youth’s wishes in those decisions, and provide notice to the youth of the
right to appeal such decisigas. 42L8.C. §11432(g)(3)(B)(iv).

Assists children/youths W ( . immunizations or medical records
in obtaining necessary i nd/or medical records. 42 U.S.C.
§11432(g)(3)(C)(ii). il

If needed, verificsy. giiild

oir cless status so they may obtain free
dtes, in a@@erdance with procedures established
by the State Reg fWitalhRecords. 410 ILCS 535/25.3, amended by
P.A. 102-114 2 4

"local social service agencies that provide
th “well as with community and school personnel

ofithe provision of education and related services to homeless
uflis. 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(5)(A) and (g)(6)(C).

s'@ hardship review whenever a child and his or her parent/guardian
itially share the housing of another person due to loss of housing,
i€ Mardship, or a similar hardship continue to share the housing; a
“Bardship’review should be performed after the passage of 18 months and

annally thereafter. 105 ILCS 45/1-25(a-5).

Makes a recommendation to the Superintendent regarding whether the
Board should authorize financial homeless prevention assistance for
families with children who are homeless or at risk of being homeless. 105
ILCS 5/29-5, famended by P.A. 102-539); 105 ILCS 45/1-17.

In those cases where the parties agree it is in the best interest of the child
and District to do so, prepares a written housing plan (Plan) to provide
financial assistance in an amount that will allow a child who is homeless or
at risk of being homeless to remain permanently in his/her home or obtain

6:140-AP

Page 3 of 8

Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use




Actor

Action

Liaison for Homeless

Children. cont'd

Duties

new housing.! Financial assistance may include: (1) mortgage or rental
assistance that will allow a child to remain permanently in his/her living
situation or obtain a new living situation; and/or (2) assistance with unpaid
bills, loans, or other financial debts that result in housing being inadequate.
105 ILCS 45/1-17(a).

Before entering into any such Plan, verifiesy that all of the following
requirements have been met in order for the District to claim the financial
assistance against its State transportation funds:

1. The District has attempted to provide the—financial assistance
through its local homeless assistance agency that is part of the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Act’s continuum of care. 105 ILCS
45/1-17(b).

2. The amount of the-financial assistance will not exceed the District’s
actual costs for providing transportation for the child. 105 ILCS
5/29-5, amended bg,P. ARl02-539.

3. The District is 4@ : claiming the transportation costs in
another State or f&gerdb 05 ILCS 5/29-5, amended by P.A.
102-539. .4

40" a child ar risk of becoming
person who enrolled the child, or
[ ded documented evidence showing

tuation will, within eight weeks, cease to be
ite and will result in the child becoming
g proof includes, but is not limited to:
eviction notice, utility shut-off or
notice, or written statement from the
, person who enrolled the student, or
atiied minor. 105 ILCS 45/1-17(d).

hild or his/~e#her parent/guardian to the ombudsperson

the Regional Superintendent whenever a school denies a
§/child enroliment or transportation, and provides the child or his/
arent(s)/guardian(s) with a written statement of the basis for the
105 ILCS 45/1-25(a).

Parents/guardians

Assignment

Choose the child’s attendance center between the following options (105
ILCS 45/1-10 controls because it exceeds the rights granted to
parents/guardians in federal law):

1. Continuing the child’s education in the school of origin for as long
as the child remains homeless or, if the child becomes permanently

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 105 ILCS 45/1-17(c). The law does not detail the specific contents of a Plan; a plan should be locally developed in

6:140-AP

consultation with the board attorney and/or the district’s auditor. There are several critical issues to consider in developing a
Plan: (1) will the financial assistance be provided directly to third parties such as landlords, utility companies, etc., or will it
be paid directly to parents/guardians (where there may be more potential for fraudulent activity); (2) what documentation, if
any, the district will require to substantiate payment of rent, bills, etc., under the Plan; (3) the duration of the Plan and how
often it will be reviewed; and (4) any other controls which should be implemented for auditing purposes.

Page 4 of 8
©2622-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use




Actor

Action

housed, until the end of the academic year during which the housing
is acquired; or

2. Enrolling the child in any school that non-homeless students who
live in the attendance area in which the child or youth is actually
living are eligible to attend.

The term school of origin means the school that the child attended when
permanently housed or the school in which the child was last enrolled. 42
U.S.C. §11432(g)(3)(I) and 105 ILCS 45/1-5.

If the child is attending his/her school of origin, make a good faith effort to
provide or arrange for transportation to and from the school of origin,
including authorizing relatives, friends, or a program for homeless persons
to provide the child with transportation.

Building Principal
Where Homeless
Student Will be
Enrolled

Enrollment

Sﬁ&l—!—i[mmediately enrolls the homeless child/youth, even if the child/youth
is unable to produce records nofig all  required for enrollment, e.g., previous

al Te@ords, proof of residency, or other
(C)(l) and 105 ILCS 45/1-20.

ended by the child/youth to
U.S.C. §11432(2)(3)(C)(ii)

) Mmmunizations, or immunization or
ately refers the child/youth’s parent/guardian

. Transportation services;

2. Educational services for which the child/youth meets the eligibility
criteria, such as services provided under Title I of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act of 1965 or similar State or local
programs, educational programs for children with disabilities, and
educational programs for English learners;

3. Programs in career and technical education;

4. Programs for gifted and talented students; and

5. School nutrition programs.

ShathsRequires a parent/guardian of a homeless child/youth, if available, to

submit contact information. 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(3)(H) and 105 ILCS 45/1-
20.

6:140-AP

Page 5 of 8
©2622-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor

Action

Transportation
Director and Building
Principal Where
Homeless Student
Wil be Enrolled

Transportation

Ensure transportation is provided to a homeless child/youth, at the request
of the parent/guardian (or in the case of an unaccompanied youth, the
Liaison), to and from the school of origin. 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(1)(J)(iii);
42 US.C. §11432(g)(4)(A). State law, found at 105 ILCS 45/1-15, is
superseded by federal law. The term school of origin means the school that
the student attended when permanently housed or the school in which the
student was last enrolled. 42 U.S.C. §11432(g)(3)X(I). Transportation shall
be arranged as follows:

1. If the homeless child/youth continues to live in the area served by
the school district in which the school of origin is located, the
child/youth’s transportation to and from the school of origin shall
be provided or arranged by the district in which the school of origin
is located.

2. Ifthe homeless child/youth’s living arrangements in the area served
by the district of jorigim tegminate and the child/youth, though

providing thesiuds t t nsportanon to and from the school of
ig local e i@l agencies are unable to agree upon
v and costs for transportation shall be

Children
Dispute

Wirc anv issue related to the homeless status or
ated claim of a child/vouth or the child/youth's
empts to resolve any disagreement. 23 [Il.Admin.Code

B: The District must structure dispute resolution as informally
Wossible to eive a child/youth or the child/vouth's parent/guardian
#hy necessary assistance navigating the process. 23 [1L.Admin.Code

V5 1241((b)2).

Does not delay enrollment. transportation. or other services before or during
dispute resolution: continues providing those services until the conclusion
of the dispute resolution process (including any appeals). 23 [ll. Admin.Code
§1.241(b)(3).

Superintendent or
Designee

Dispute

If a dispute is not resolved by the Liaison for Homeless Children. asises;
shat-informsends a letter to the homeless child/vouth or the child/youth’s
parents/guardians, the Regional Superintendent (or [ntermediate Service
Center Executive Director). and the State Coordinator of Homeless Children
and Youth (State Coordinator) indicating the District's position on the
dispute and including information on (23 [1l.Admin.Code §1.241(c)):

1. eoftThe availability of an ombudspersoniavestigates:

2. sSources ferol low-cost or free legal assistance:: and-

6:140-AP

Page 6 of 8
©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor Action
3. eDther advocacy services in the community: and
4. The dispuie resolution procedure.
l-I:GS—4aK—I—2§—The Homeless Fam1ly Placement Act governs shelter
placement. 310 ILCS 85/1.
Regional No later than 10 school days after receiving the Superintendent or
Superintendent (or Designee's dispute lefter. appoints an ombudsperson to provide resource
[ntermediate Service | information and resolve disputes at schools within the region relating to the
Center Executive rights of homeless children under 105 [LCS 45/. 105 ILCS 45/1-25(a); 23
Director) [1l.Admin.Code §1.241(d).
Dispute
Ombudsperson Within five school days 2 ng notice of the dispute, if possible.
Dispute convenes a meeting wit and atfempts to resolve the dispute. [d.
~pLle During dispute resol budsperson (23 [ll.LAdmin.Code
§1.24 1(d)(1)~(h)):
¢ dispute resolution process
pective expectations:
nts that will be used by the other
sentation of relevant facts by all parties: and
or _the child/vouth or the child/youth's
arentfzuardian from a legal representative knowledgeable
ederal and State laws concerning homeless students'
ed¥cational rights:
Require each party to make an opening statement;
Limit the amount of time each party may use to present
information:
Pose guestions to each party:
Limit any redundant testimony or testimony that is not
directly related to homelessness claims; or
e. Make allowances for the child/vouth or child/vouth's
parent/guardian. e.o.. in how evidence or arguments are
presented,
No later than 10 school days after the conelusion of the dispute resolution
meeting. if possible. makes a written determination using a form supplied
by ISBE. The form must include all components set forth in 23
l.Admin.Code §1.24 1 (d)(5) A)=(1). including notice of the parties' right to
appeal the final determination by submitting a written appeal request within
five school davs to the State Coordinator. 23 [1l.Admin.Code §1.241(d). ().
6:140-AP

Page 7 of 8
©2822-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
{llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Piease review this material with your school board attorney before use.




N

Actor

Action

State Coordinator

After receiving a written appeal request. obtains from the ombudsperson all

Dispute

documents. notes. transcrits, and any other materials used by the parties to
present their cases. May request additional relevant information. 23
HILAdmin.Code §1.24 [(e)(1).

No later than 15 school days after receiving a written appeal request. makes
a final determination and notifies the parties of its decision. May. if
necessary. extend the timeline for an additional five school days but must
inform the parties of any extension. 23 [1l.Admin.Code §1.241(e)(2).

State Superintendent

If it is determined that a District's actions giving rise to a dispute are

of Education or

inconsistent with applicable law. may require the District to take any action

Designee necessary to comply with the law. 23 [I.Admin.Code §1.241(f).
Dispute If the District does not comply. places the District's recognition status on
probation in accordance with 28 [ll.Admin.Code §1.20(b). 1d.
6:140-AP Page 8 of 8

©2022-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Qetebes2049]une 2024 6:170-AP2, El

Instruction

Administrative Procedure - District Annual Report Card Required by Every Student
Succeeds Act (ESSA)

Districts must disseminate an annual report card that includes information on the District as a whole
and each school served by the District, with aggregate and disaggregated information for each required
subgroup of students, including: (a) student achievement on academic assessments (designated by
category), (b) graduation rates, district performance, teacher qualifications, and (c) other required
information required by 20 U.S.C. §6311(h)(2)(C) of ESSA.

District Annual Report Card
The Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) will ensure that the District:
1. Collects the appropriate data for its annual report card, including:

a. ISBE’s State Report Card Information (see ISBE An
Requirements in 20 U.S.C. §6311(h)(1)(C) sebbioad tsion
same manner as [SBE is required to present it, as that information appli
and each of its schools, including:

i. Information that shows how students in the L}
assessments described in 20 U.S.C. §62

§6311(h2)CY:

ii. Information that shows how each|

iii.

¥ District, whether or not such
ual ISBE report card (20 U.S.C.

2. Excludes “results on the Illinois
8 of the National Assessment of {
results (20 U.S.C. §6311(h)(1}(C)(xii)).

R Anpuul ReportCard-Redues

it reading and mathematics in grades 4 and
% compared to the national average of such

benehuded-rereli- st Hie-Sabariun - g ey i

senthe aecountabiliysystem:
e — bl gtk dib eastrs e o LiRte - L araetass 4
t-.'a-‘ ."3“!- | s s > An o : . 1:

6:170-AP2, E1 Page 1 of 3
©2645-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mlinois Association of School Boards All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attomey belore use

' Commented [MB1]: Since 20 U.S C §6311(h)(1)(C)1s
cited here, the recitation of its contents, below, is deleted as
redundant



B et ot ternn-prosress-esablished undersuch-subsection

‘ ’ IijF !I .-I!"duﬂl‘ ‘I“d ‘.. 1 . ‘_
6:170-AP2, El Page 2 of 3

©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use



5 rens—and-dudl-or :
and ik-or FeT-er frograms:
| o a0 0 7 -

LEGAL REF.: 20 U.S.C. §6311(h)(1)XC) and (h)2)(C).
Pub. L. 115-224, Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century
Act.

6:170-AP2, E1l Page 3 of 3
©26+9-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
1llinois Association of School Boards All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board atlomey before use.



Oetober2649june 2024 6:150

Instruction

Home and Hospital Instruction !

A student who is absent from school, or whose physician, physician assistant, or advanced practice
registered nurse anticipates that the student will be absent from school, because of a medical condition
may be eligible for instruction in the student’s home or hospital.2 Eligibility shall be determined by
State law and the Ill.ineis State Board of Education rules governing (1) the continuum of placement
options for students who have beenidentified for special education services or (2) the home and hospital
instruction provisions for students who have not been identified for special education services.3
Appropriate educational services from qualified staff will begin no later than five school days after
receiving a written statement from: (1) a physician licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches,
(2) a licensed physician assistant, or (3) a licensed advanced practice registered nurse.4 Instructional or

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content. The following State laws and ISBE rules govern homebound and
hospital instruction: 105 ILCS 5/14-13.01 (reimbursement for home and hospital instruction along with factors to qualify for
it); 105 ILCS 5/18-4.5 (reimbursement for home and hospital instruction); 105 ILCS 5/10-19.05(e)—zdded-bx—L5100-12 (an
instructional session of one clock hour may be counted as % day of attendance, however, a student must receive four or more
instructional clock hours to count as a full day of attendance); 23 Ill.Admin.Code §226.300 (home/hospital service fora special
education student); 23 [ll.Admin.Code §1.520.

See ISBE guidance, Home/Hospital Instruction and Reimbursement Questions and Answers available at:
www.isbe.netDocuments/Home-Hospital QA pdf,

2 105 ILCS 5/14-13.01—amended-by-2 A 100 413 defines the standards for determining when a student is eligible to
receive home or hospital instruction. A student qualifies when aphysician, physician assistant, or advanced practice registered
nurse anticipates a student’s absence due to a medical condition. The law defines “ongoing intermittent basis” to mean a
medical condition of such a nature and severity that it is anticipated that the student will be absent from school due to the
medical condition for periods of at least two days at a time multiple times during the school year totaling at least 10 days or
more of absences. 225 1S 6345010 smended a2 A 00 S13 sevicad the Nusse SeactiveAotto-add

2P inats, ab srofsragazg g5 ge o oa bl on s rp i e 3 o o Elea iz y 2Jasarrorcs 3ev foersariacls
defipiion—of od e secardinab: thic-poliey rellocs—that-changen-lerm rale

e iad eyt

aetion—iidi]

3105 ILCS 5/14-13.01(a-5 )—amunded by L4 10042 requires that all students provide a written statement from a
physician, physician assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse stating the existence of a medical condition, the impact
on the child’s ability to participate in education, and the anticipated duration or nature of the child’s absence from school.
However, ISBE rules at 23 II.Admin.Code §226.300 (students qualifying for special education services) and 23
[l Admin.Code §1.520 (students not qualifying for special education services) have not yet been amended to reflect that this
written statement may come from a physician assistant or an advanced practice registered nurse; they still state that such a
written statement must come from a physician. ISBE’s Medical Certification for Home/Hospital Instruction form, form 34-
58, reflects that the written statement may come from a “physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches, APRN, or
PA.” Available at: wiww.ishe.net/Documents/Medical-certification-hom ¢-hospital-instruction.pdf,

A student with health needs may be protected by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. §1401(3) or
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (29 U.S.C. §794(a)).

4105 ILCS 5/14-13.01(a-5)—ampupded-te A 100 L3 and LU0-263. There is no requirement that a student be absent
from school for aminimum number of days before he or she qualifies for home or hospital instruction. 105 ILCS 5/14-13.01(a).
The statute—sssendud 52 A LG0 143 allows schools to begin home or hospital instruction upon receipt of a written statement

from a physician, physician assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse but requires it to begin no later than five school
days after receipt of the written statement.

Both 23 I Admin.Code §§226.300(g) and 1.520(f) require home or hospital instructors to meet the requirements listed
in 23 [Il.Admin.Code §1.610, i.e., proper licensure as required by Sestss i liabheSehoulLadet 105 ILCS 5/21B-15).

6:150 Page 1 of 2
©26-18-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



related services for a student receiving special education services will be determined by the student’s
individualized education program.

A student who is unable to attend school because of pregnancy will be provided home instruction,
correspondence courses, or other courses of instruction (1) before the birth of the child when the
student’s physician, physician assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse indicates, in writing, that
she is medically unable to attend regular classroom instruction, and (2) for up to three months after the
child’s birth or a miscarriage. 3

Periodic conferences will be held between appropriate school personnel, parent(s)/guardian(s), and
hospital staff to coordinate course work and facilitate a student’s return to school.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-19.05(e), 5/10-22.6a, 5/14-13.01, and 5/18-4.5.
23 Ill.Admin.Code §§1.520, 1.610, and 226.300.

CROSS REF.: 6:120 (Education of Children with Disabilities), 7:10 (Equal Educational
Opportunity), 7:280 (Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

5 105 ILCS 5/10-22.6a—sssandad b 0 A 100 443 Number (2) does not require a written statement from a physician,
physician assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse.

6:150 Page 2 of 2
£2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



OectoberJune 28232024 6:230

Instruction

Library Media Program !

The Superintendent or designee shall manage the District’s library media program to comply with (1)
State law and I11. State Board of Education (ISBE) rule and (2) the following standards:

1. The program includes an organized collection of resources available to students and staff to
supplement classroom instruction, foster reading for pleasure, enhance information literacy,
and support research, as appropriate to students of all abilities in the grade levels served.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 Suaie law and ISBE rule controls some aspects of this policy’s content._+hewever—dDistricts are-rot-reguired-te—aaopt
a-policy—ea-ans—subject maller covered—in-tthal want to be eligible for the State school library grant funding must adopl
Standard #3 or its alternative (see the pext paragraph. below): otherwise. no policy is required, 75 ILCS 10/8.7. added by P.A.
103-100. Standards #1-4 restate requirements in 23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.420(0). Standard #2 implements the rule’s requirement
that each “district’s annual budget shall include an identifiable allocation for resources and supplies for the program.”
However, the rule allows a unit district serving fewer than 400 students or an elementary or high school district serving fewer
than 200 students to forego the allocation requirement; thus, they may use the following alternative to standard #2: “Resources
are sufficient to meet students’ needs.”

= ~ o =

i, = i3 () (]

off 1124 Regarding Standard #5. fin order to be eligible for a School Library Grant, a district must also be a member in
good standing of a regional mullitype library system (e.g., Illinois Heartland Library System or Reaching Across Illinois
Library System) or have applied for membership and been approved for membership in such a system within specific
timeframes. 23 IILAdmin.Code §3035.120. The American Library Association’s (ALA) Library Bill of Rights (available at
htips-/www.ala.ore/advocacy/intfreedom/librarvbill) includes the following:

1. Books and other library resources should be provided for the interest, information, and enlightenment of all
people of the community the library serves. Materials should not be excluded because of the origin,
background, or views of those contributing to their creation.

2. Libraries should provide materials and information presenting all points of view on current and historical issues.
Materials should not be proscribed or removed because of partisan or doctrinal disapproval.

3. Libraries should challenge censorship in the fulfillment of their responsibility to provide information and
enlightenment.

4. Libraries should cooperate with all persons and groups concerned with resisting abridgment of free expression
and free access to ideas.

5. A person’s right to use a library should not be denied or abridged because of origin, age, background, or views.

6. Libraries which make exhibit spaces and meeting rooms available to the public they serve should make such
facilities available on an equitable basis, regardless of the beliefs or affiliations of individuals or groups
requesting their use.

7. All people, regardless of origin, age, background, or views, possess a right to privacy and confidentiality in
their library use.

8. Libraries should advocate for, educate about, and protect people’s privacy, safeguarding all library use data,
including personally identifiable information.

If the board prefers the alternative language permitted by 75 ILCS 10/8.7, added by P.A. 103-100—e8—--24, for
Standard #5, substitute with the following:

The practice of banning books or other materials within the District's library media program is prohibited.

If a board adopts the alternative language for Standard #5. the district must also implement administrative_procedure
6:230-AP. Responding to Complaints About Library Media Resources. using the alternative language in i fin 1. A district
5 ati is applving for a State School Libr i i : 1

[1l. State Librarv as part igibili ification for the ; It
Standards #6 and #7 may be customized or deleted, and other standards may be added.

6:230 Page 1 of 2
©2422- 121 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



2. Financial resources for the program’s resources and supplies are allocated to meet students’
needs.

3. Students in all grades served have equitable access to library media resources.

4. The advice of an individual who is qualified according to ISBE rule is sought regarding the
overall direction of the program, including the selection and organization of materials,
provision of instruction in information and technology literacy, and structuring the work of
library paraprofessionals.

5. The program adheres to the principles of the American Library Association's Library Bill of
Rights, which indicate that materials should not be proscribed or removed because of partisan
or doctrinal disapproval.

6. Staff members are invited to recommend additions to the collection.

7. Students may freely select resource center materials as well as receive guided selection of
materials appropriate to specific, planned learning experiences.

Parents/guardians, employees, and community members who believe that library media program
resources violate rights guaranteed by any law or Board policy may file a complaint using Board policy
2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure. 2 :

The Superintendent or designee shall establish criteria consistent with this policy for the review of
objections. Parents/guardians, employees, and community members with suggestions or complaints
about library media program resources may complete a Library Media Resource Objection Form. The
Superintendent or designee shall inform the parent/guardian, employee, or community member, as
applicable, of the District’s decision. 3

LEGAL REF.: 75 ILCS 10/8.7.
23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.420(0).

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 6:60 (Curriculum Content), 6:170 (Title I
Programs), 6:210 (Instructional Materials), 6:260 (Complaints About Curriculum,
Instructional Materials, and Programs)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

2 Limiting the scope of complainants in this policy to parents/guardians, employees, and community members aligns
with sample policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure.

3 The issue of school library book removals is an unsettled area of law that is often litigated; consult the board attorney
for advice regarding challenges to school library books or other library resources. In the only U.S. Supreme Court case to
address this issue, Island Trees Union Free Sch. Dist. No. 26 v. Pico, 457 U.S. 853 (1982), the Court issued a plurality (not a
majority) opinion finding a board could not remove books it had characterized as "anti-American, anti-Christian, anti-Semitic,
and just plain filthy," if the removal was motivated by partisan or political reasons; to do so would violate students'
Constitutional right to receive information and ideas. Four dissenting justices, however, disagreed that students have a right

to receive information and ideas under the First Amendment and would have deferred to the judgment of the local school
board.

6:230 Page 2 of 2
©2023-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



| dson
Oscteber-June 20232024

Students

6:230-AP

Administrative Procedure - Responding to Complaints About Library Media Resources

Actor Action

Parents/Guardians, | Submits any feedback or complaints about the District’s library media resources

Employees, or to the Building Principal, using exhibit 6:230-AP, E, Library Media Resource
Community Objection Form.
Members

Building Principal | Directs any parent/guardian, employee, or community member wishing to
submit formal feedback or a complaint regarding the District’s library media
resources to complete exhibit 6:230-AP, E, Library Media Resource Objection
Form.

If the complaint alleges a violatis or board policy, refers the complaint
to the District Complaint Man ocessing under Board policy 2:260,
Uniform Grievance Procedurés

Transmits the Library Media Rése ] rm to the Superintendent or
designee for further action.

Superintendent, in | Determines on a case-p§scase @aetion, if any, will be taken in response
consultation with to a complaint about % ay “Miedia resource. In making a determination,
the School Jibrayy aresource is aligned with the criteria set forth
Librarian i icyl6" ibr gdia Program, specifically, does the resource

h the principles of the American Library Association’s Library
ights regarding selection of materials, which include: 1

Books and other library resources should be provided for the
interest, information, and enlightenment of all people of the
community the library serves. Materials should not be excluded

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

1 [f a board has adopted the alternative language for Standard #5 in sample policy 6:230, Library Media Program (see
£/ 1), delete item #5 and insert the following sentence immediately below the numbered list:
In accordance with the Board's inherent authority to prohibit the practice of banning specific books or other library
materials as stated in policy 6:230. Library Media Program. and to prevent censorship of material and ensure the
protection of library users' intellectual freedom. rRejects any requests that books or other materials within the
District's library media program be removed merely because individuals or groups object to the material -be-banned.
This_alternative language conforms with the requirements of 23 [1.LAdmin.Code §§3035.120 and 3035.140(e).
implementing the School District Library Grant Program. A district applving for this grant should submit policy 6:230. Library
Media Pragram. and this administrative procedure to the 111 State Library as part of the eligibility certification for the grant.

6:230-AP Page 1 of 2
©2025-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Tlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorey before use.




Actor

Action

because of the origin, background, or views of those
contributing to their creation.

b. Libraries should provide materials and information presenting
all points of view on current and historical issues. Materials
should not be proscribed or removed because of partisan or
doctrinal disapproval.

c. Libraries should challenge censorship in the fulfillment of their
responsibility to provide information and enlightenment.

Consults with the Board Attorney regarding responses to complaints about
library resources.

Prepares and sends a written response to the person who submitted the Library
Media Resowrce Objection Form, informing the person of the District’s
decision.

Notes on the Library Media Reso bjection Form the date on which the
response was provided and a es sponse to the form.

6:230-AP

Page 2 of 2
©2023-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.




Fure2019June 2024 6:280-AP

Instruction

Administrative Procedure - Evaluating and Reporting Student Achievement

Actor

Action

Teacher

Informs students about the grading system at the beginning of each school year or
term, whichever is applicable.

Explains that grades: (1) assess progress toward education goals and assist in the
improvement of that progress, (2) will be given by the teacher, using his or her
professional judgment, inan impartial and consistent manner, and (3) will reflect
excessive absences.

ted through such performance

Assesses student achievement as demo
e D n order of importance and are not

indicators as the following (these
exclusive):
1. Preparation of assignmentSgideluding ' @@mpleteness, accuracy, legibility,
and promptness. Ji

2. Contribution to classroom disc
3. Demonstrated under; ;
4. Application of ski nowle few situations.

5. Organization, preseéntatiom,”

6. Originality afidteasonifig fwhen working through problems.
7 i ;- itations and projects.

8 tests, q , and final examinations.

hic improvement and achievement using standardized
OFes, letter grades, and/or other assigned numerical

plete should be assigned when a student experiences an
absence at the end of the term or during final examinations;

Whenever it becomes evident that a student is in danger of failing, arranges a
special conference with the parent(s)/guardian(s) or sends the parent(s)/guardian(s)
a written report.

Building
Principal or
designee

Supervises implementation of this administrative procedure.

Ensures that parent(s)/guardian(s) are informed of their child’s progress at regular
intervals, but at least four times a year, and whenever the student’s performance
requires special attention.

Divorced or separated parents will both be informed unless a court order
requires otherwise. For further information. see Answers to FAQs Regarding
Students with Divorced or Divorcing Parenls, published by the {11. Council of
School Attorneys and available at:

6:280-AP

Page 1 of 3
©20649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
1llinois Association of School Boards, All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use




Actor

Action

www.iasb.com/[ASB/media/Documents/FAQDivorcedorDivorcingParents. pdf.

All grades and symbols must be appropriately explained.

Establishes an appropriate means of communication whenever he or she becomes
aware that a parent/guardian is unable to understand written communications from
the school or oral communications made during conferences related to his/her
child’s progress or school activities.

Develops a timetable for deficiency reports.

Supervises the various methods for communicating with parents/guardians
including;:

1. Parent-teacher conferences, conducted on a regular basis. They may be

scheduled on different days and at different times to accommodate the
various grade levels and attendance centers.
Open houses, parent educatign i
Interim reports, through w;
teachers believe addition
to be available to meet wi
time.

w N

contact parents/guardians whenever
ould be shared. Teachers shall try

Building
Principal or
designee

[Elementary
schools

only]

Makes the final decision regarg
from the classroom teacher
appropriate.

: #ent’s motivation, self-image, and social
all not be promoted for purely social reasons.

¥priate remedial assistance, that may include, without limitation, a
summer briG®€ program of no less than 90 hours, tutorial sessions, increased or
concentrated instructional time, modifications to instructional materials, and
retention in grade. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.9a(b).

Building
Principal or
designee

[Secondary
schools

only]

Makes a recommendation to the Superintendent regarding:

1. Whether a 4.0 or a 5.0 (or another alternative) system should be used for
calculating grade point average (GPA); .

2. Whether advanced placement, honors, and accelerated courses will have
additional points added toward calculating GPA and class rank, i.e.,
weighted grades;

3. Which courses” grades will be used in computing GPA and class rank;

4. How to determine academic scholars, class valedictorian, salutatorian,
and/or honor roll; and

6:280-AP

Page 2 of 3
©26+9-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use




Actor

Action

5. Whether a pass/fail option will be offered and, if so, the guidelines for that
option.

Parents/
Guardians

Attend parent-teacher conferences.

Provide a study-conducive atmosphere and supervise their child’s completion of
course work.

Sign or otherwise acknowledge receipt of their child’s report cards and other
assessment notices and provide appropriate feedback to their child.

Whenever a question or concern arises, leave a message at the school for the
appropriate teacher or other school staff member.

In order to object to a grade or retention/promotion decision, first confer with the
appropriate teacher and, if still not satisfied, contact the Building Principal.

Building
Principal or
designee

[All
schools]

Confers with any parent/guardian and/onstudent who objects to a gradeortoa
retention/promotion decision.

Discusses with the teacher the re bjection was made to a grade or
to a retention/promotion decision

Determines whether to change the i otion decision based on
the existence of any of reason i oard policy 6:280, Grading and
Promotion, i.e.:

A miscalculation ¢
aMicular grade or score;
udent to do extra work that may impact the

bange the grade or retention/promotion decision and, if so,
the nature and reason for the change and signs the changed

6:280-AP

Page 3 of 3
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attormey before use.



Oetober2019June 2024 6:300-E1

Instruction

Exhibit - Application for a Diploma for a Service Member Killed in Action or for Veterans
of WWII, the Korean Conflict, or the Vietnam Conflict

Complete and submit to the Superintendent.

Please print:

Name to Appear on Diploma Phone
Address Birth Date
City S

For Veterans of WWII, the Korean Conflict, or th

The applicant is requesting a high school diplog
as established by School Board policy:

1. Served in the U.S. Armed Forces d

m Co

he or she meets the following criteria

ar [1, the Korean Conflict, or the Vietham

Conflict.

Please check one or mor

O World War LRe ber 31, 1946, including the induction petiod of
ber 6, 1941

O Kore January 31, 1955, including the induction period of

3 1,1961 — May 7, 1975
2. Lefthigh sc erve in the U.S. Armed Forces.
Resided within
high school.

4. Has not received a |

(87

Applicant’s Name (printed) Signature Date

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 This exhibit uses dates of eligible service listed in Ill. Dept. of Veterans Affairs administrative rules at 95
[IL. Admin.Code §101.10.

6:300-E1 Page 1 of 2
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[ltinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



For Service Members Killed in Action

The applicant is requesting a high school diploma on behalf of a service member who was killed in
action and attests that the deceased service member meets each of the following criteriaas established

by Board policy:
1. Was killed in action while performing active military duty with the U.S. Armed Forces.
2. Left high school in order to serve in the U.S. Armed Forces.
3. Resided within an area currently within the School District at the time he or she withdrew from
high school.
4. Has not received a high school diploma or a GED (high school equivalency).
Applicant’s Name (printed)  Signature Date
6:300-E1 Page 2 of 2

©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Fure2049june 2024 7:40-AP

Students
Administrative Procedure - Placement of Nonpublic School Students Transferring Into

the District

Actor Action

Parent(s)/guardian(s) of a | Shall perform all school admission requirements contained in School
nonpublic school student | Board policy 7:50, School Admissions and Student Transfers To and
transferring into the From Non-District Schools, and administrative procedure 7:50-AP,
District Administrative-Proeedure—School Admissions and Student Transfers
To and From Non-District Schools.

Building Principal or Meets with parent(s)/guardia
designee

(s) to discuss appropriate placement.

Inquires about the studeh! interests, concerns, and goals.

twenty-nine other langué C Language Surveys tab at:
WWW, :sbe net/Paggs ] 2

b lity, is homeless, has limited English
: . of a migrant or refugee family, has special medical

" Course credit awarded to students transferring from a non-graded
school or a school that is not recognized by the state education
agency, will be given the grade of “P” for passing with no letter or
numerical designation for the level of proficiency.

Completes other enrollment procedures.

7:40-AP Page 1 of 1
©2013-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of Schoo! Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attormey before use



June 20492024 7:240-AP2

Students

Administrative Procedure - Extracurricular Drug and Alcohol Testing Program

Testing Procedures

1.

The Building Principal or designee shall, from time-to-time throughout the school year, randomly
select extracurricular participants for drug and alcohol testing. Testing may occur on any day,
Monday through Saturday. Names will be drawn from a pool of all student participants. Each
student participant may be tested at any time during the year.

No student will be given advance notice or early warning of the testing.

Drug and/or alcohol testing may be performed by breath alcohol testing and/or urinalysis. Upon
being selected for breath alcohol testing, a student must provide an adequate amount of breath so
that the measuring device can measure any alcohol co entration in the breath. Upon being selected
for a urinalysis test, the student shall provide a fresh” urine according to the quality
control standards and policy of the laboratory ¢ urinalysis.

4. A staff member will accompany the student un uces an adequate urine specimen.
If unable to produce a specimen, the student wil unces of fluid. If unable to
produce a specimen within two hours, the studen Building Principal’s office
and told he or she is ineligible for particig acurricular activity. In addition, the
student’s parent(s)/guardian(s) will be te the student is unable to produce a
sample for the testing procedure and he ested at a later date in order to be eligible.

5. All specimens registering below 9 g 8 degrees Fahrenheit will be invalid. The
head strip on each specimen bo of the urine specimen by temperature. If a
specimen is invalid, the studen providad specimen.

6. A student will be a8 curricular activities for the remainder of the school year if
he or she tamp i : the collection. This will be reported to the student’s
parent(s)/gug

7. Immediatel aken, the student may return to class with an admit slip or pass
with the time h ction site

8. Each specimen is Joratory for testing for alcohol, controlled substances (that may
include all drugs list Blled substances under Illinois law), and “performance enhancing”
drugs, such as steroids.

Chain of Custody

1. The laboratory will provide training and direction to appropriate staff members, set up the
collection environment, guarantee specimens, and supervise the chain of custody. To maintain
anonymity, the student will be assigned a number.

2. The Building Principal or designee will escort students to the collection site. No student is allowed
to go to his or her locker before being escorted to the collection site. The Building Principal or
designee should minimize classroom interruptions. Student participants may be summoned after
school, perhaps during practice time.

3. Before a student’s urine is tested by the laboratory, he or she must sign any form that may be
required by the testing laboratory. If a student chooses, he or she may notify the administrator that
he or she is taking a prescription medication.

7:240-AP2 Page 1 of 3

©2019.2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Test Results
1.

A sanitized kit containing a specimen bottle will be given to each student. The bottle will remain
in the student’s possession until a seal is placed upon the bottle and the student signs that the
specimen is sealed. The seal may be broken only by the lab testing the specimen.

If the seal is tampered with or broken, after leaving the student’s possession and prior to arriving
at the lab, the specimen is invalid. The student will remain eligible for extracurricular activities
subsequent to a retest.

The supervisor obtaining the urine specimen will be of the same gender as the student. Students
will be instructed to remove all outerwear and wash their hands in the presence of the supervisor
before entering the restroom stall. The stall door will be closed while the student provides a urine
specimen. The supervisor will wait outside the restroom stall. The student will have two minutes
to produce a urine specimen. The commode will contain a blue dye so the water cannot be used to
dilute the sample. The faucets in the restrooms will be turnedshut off.

After it is sealed, the specimen will be transported to the testing laboratory by laboratory personnel.
The testing laboratory will report the results to the Building Principal or designee.

In order to maintain confidentiality, the student’s name will not be on the urine specimen container.
Instead, the student’s random identification number wjll appear on the container.

The Building Principal or designee will be not
shows that drug residues are in the student’s g at least two different types of
analyses). The Building Principal or desig student and his or her
parent(s)/guardian(s). The student or his/-et-her paren i may submit any documented

nt testing “positive” (i.e., if the test

In addition, the student or parent(s)/guarg e the urine specimen be tested again

B designee will meet with the student and
his or her parent(s)/guardian(s) al¥nt(s)/guardian(s) will be given the names of
counseling and assistagee ay not participate in extracurricular activities
until a “follow-yg the Building Principal or designee and the results are
“negative.”
A “follow 3 uilding Principal or designee after such an interval of
time that theGRs i found would normally be eliminated from the body. If this
s dent will be allowed to resume extracurricular activities. If a
e “follow up” test, or any later test, the previous procedure shall
be repeated. In additio ool District reserves the right to continue testing at any time during
the remaining school yed¥@fly participating student who had a verified “positive” test.
Information on a verified “positive” test result will be shared on a need-to-know basis with the
student’s coach or sponsor. The results of “negative” tests will be kept confidential.

Drug testing result sheets will be returned to the Building Principal or designee identifying students
by number and not by name. Names will not be kept in open files or on any computer. Result sheets
will be locked and secured in a location to which only the Building Principal or designee has access.

Financial Responsibility

1.

Under this policy, the District will pay for all initial random drug tests and all initial “follow up”
drug tests. Once a student has a verified “positive” test result and has subsequently tested negative
from a “follow up” test, any future “follow up” drug test that must be conducted will be paid for
by the student’s parent(s)/guardian(s).

A request for another test of a “positive” utine specimen is the financial responsibility of the
student’s parent(s)/guardian(s).

7:240-AP2 Page 2 of 3

©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomney before use.




3. Counseling and subsequent treatment by non-school agencies is the financial responsibility of the
student’s parent(s)/guardian(s).

Confidentiality
Under this drug and alcohol testing program, no staff, coach, or sponsor shall divulge any information
to anyone about a particular student or disposition of the student involved, other than in response to a
legal subpoena.

Other Rules

Apart from this drug and alcohol testing program, the I1l. High School Association as well as each
activity’s coaching staff or sponsor may have their own training rules and requirements. Coaches and
sponsors have the necessary authority to enforce those rules. Any student-participant who violates a
team or activity rule or requirement is subject to the consequences as defined in those rules and
requirements.

Q&

7:240-AP2 Page 3 of 3
©204+3-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



June 20492024

7:250-AP1

Students

Administrative Procedure - Measures to Control the Spread of Head Lice at School

Actor

Action

School Nurse

Involves parent organization in the development and implementation of
programs regarding prevention and treatment.

Provides information regarding control to staff, students, and
parents/guardians. Information provided to parents/guardians may include
that set forth in row 2, below.

Provides information material and/or in-service to school personnel on:
1. Confidentiality requiremegits
2. Identification .
3. Preventing transmissi _
4. Precautions against SEHEO] fation and cross-contamination, e.g.,
a. Carpets shoulf'Bgxa ed freqy
b. Cloth-coyere ed a Is, sleeping mats, pillows, sofas,
or stuffe ¢ should be discouraged

5. Treatment a
Readmissi

Parent/Guardian

' ting and managing head lice outbreaks by regularly
ir chilgieen’s hair and providing immediate treatment if lice are

your child’s hair and scalp regularly for eggs.
bt allow your child to use other children’s combs, brushes, hats,

£¥ou find your child does have head lice and you decide to keep him

or her out of school, please follow the school’s student absence
procedures.

e Follow your family’s chosen protocol for treatment of the entire
family. Both over-the-counter and prescription medications are
available for treatment of lice.

e Hats, combs, brushes, and bed linens should be cleaned thoroughly.
After the medicated shampoo, you can loosen the eggs with scalp
rinses of vinegar, and then slide the eggs off the hair shaft with
tweezers, a special fine tooth comb, or your fingernails.

® Review information from the Center for Disease Control (CDC) about
Prevention and Control at:
www.cdc.gov/parasites/lice/head/prevent.htm! and Treatment FAQ at
www.cdc.gov/parasites/lice/head/gen_info/fags _treat.html.

7:250-AP1

Page 1 of 3
©2:-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



Actor

Action

Staff

To prevent the spread of head lice infestations, reports all suspected cases of
head lice to the school nurse or designee as soon as possible.

School Nurse

Inspects the head of any student reasonably suspected of having head lice as
soon as possible.

Checks the siblings of any student with head lice and notifies other schools
where siblings attend.

Checks any of the student’s contacts for the presence of lice.

Provides the student’s parent(s)/guardian(s) with information regarding head
lice treatment.

If more than one student is affected in any class, determines whether to
examine all students in the class and/or provides information about head lice
to all parents/guardians of studentgin the class.

Building Principal

s whether to exclude the student
—to—head contact in the school

If eggs (nits) or lice are fou
from attendance or limit th

Staff

Parent/Guardian

School Nurse

eggs (nits i one so that the student may return.

Note: DaBe this row and/or the re-inspection (nit-free) requirement if
the admi ation determines the requirement is (a) unnecessary to
succe y manage head lice and/or (b) results in unnecessary
. Many nit-free requirements may unnecessarily exclude
hts from school. School nurses should discuss the following pros
and cons of No Nit Policies with their Building Principals and/or
Superintendents:

Pros: A nit-free requirement simply eliminates any subjective call for
school personnel as to whether the nit is dead or alive. The National
Pediculosis Association recommends the No Nit Policy as the public
health standard intended to keep children lice free, nit free, and in
school, www.headlice.org/downloads/nonitpolicy.htm.

Cons: The National Association of School Nurses takes the position that
the management of head lice should not disrupt the educational process.
No disease is associated with head lice, and in-school transmission is
considered to be rare. Further, when transmission occurs, it is generally
found among younger-age children with increased head-to-head contact:

7:250-AP1

Page 2 of 3
©2019-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor Action

www.nasn.org/nasn/advocacy/professional-practice-documents/position-
statements/ps-head-lice.

Building Principal | Notifies parent(s)/guardian(s) whose excluded student has not returned to
school within five days of the following:

School attendance laws

Action that may be taken if absence continues

Resources for treatment information

Q\

7:250-AP1 Page 3 of 3
©:2514-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



OeteberJune 20492024 7:270-E2

Students

Exhibit - School Medication Authorization Form - Medical Cannabis

To be completed by the child’s parent(s)/guardian(s). Anew form must be completedeveryschoolyear.
Keep in the school nurse’s office or, in the absence of a school nurse, the Building Principal’s office.

Student’s Name: Birth Date:
Address:

Home Phone: Cell Phone: Emergency Phone:
School: Grade: Teacher:

To be completedby the student 'sphysician, physicianassi
practice RN with prescriptive authority.

ntwith prescriptive authority, or advanced

Prescriber’s Printed Name:
Office Address:
Office Phone:

Medication name:

Purpose:

Dosage:
IDPH registry ID card fg
IDPH registry ID i d cWBiver is valid [insert dates]:

Attach copies

Time medication 13 he administgl® or under what circumstances:

Prescription date: Order date: Discontinuation date:

Diagnosis requiring medication:

Is it necessary for this medication to be administered during the school day? [ Yes L1No
Expected side effects, if any:

Time interval for re-evaluation:

Other medications student is receiving:

Prescriber’s Signature Date

7:270-E2 Page 1 of 2
©2649.2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Tilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




For only parents/guardians of students who want to grant their child permission to self-administer
a medical cannabis infused product under direct supervision by a school nurse or administrator:

[ grant permission for my child to self-administer his or her medical cannabis infused product required
under an asthma action plan, an Individual Health Care Action Plan, an Hiineis—Food-Aallergy
Eemergency Aaction planand Freatment-Authorization-Eorm, a plan pursuant to Section 504 of the
federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or a plan pursuant to the federal Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act. 105 ILCS 5/10-22.21b, amended by P.A. 103-175404-205;e££1+1-20. I understand
that my child’s self-administration will only occurunder direct supervision by a school nurse or school

administrator. 105 ILCS 5/22-33(b-5 )-amended-by-RPA101 370 eff 1 1 20,

Medical cannabis infused product child is permitted to self-administer:

Please initial to indicate (1) receipt of this information, and (2) authorization Sfor your child to self-
administer a medical cannabis infused product.

Parent/Guardian Initials

By signing below, I acknowledge, understand an

1. The only individual(s) who may possessan
or on the school bus is: a) his/her registered
of Public Health (IDPH); or b) a schg

2. Bothmy child and his/her registereg

ras identified by the IIl. Dept.

| administrator.

possess valid registry identification
g provided/will provide to the District.

3. After administering the m Y

immediately remove the premises or the school bus.

4. The designated casagiver m i ¥ medical cannabis infused product in a manner
that, in th ket or school, would create a disruption to the school’s
educatio i use exposure of the product to other students.

5. Childregge or vape medical cannabis. Medical cannabis-infused
products ils, ointm @M, foods, and other products that contain usable cannabis but are

C Pht to restrict or otherwise stop allowing the administration of

medical cannabis Id if the District or school would lose federal funding as a result.

7. Tlagreeto indemnify 38 hold harmlessthe School Districtand its employeesand agents against
any claims, except a claim based on willful and wanton conduct, arising out of the
administration of medical cannabis that I authorize by my signature below.

Parent/Guardian Printed Name:

Address (if different from Student’s above):

Home Phone: Cell Phone: Emergency Phone:
Parent/Guardian Signature Date
7:270-E2 Page 2 of 2

©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June2019March 2024 7:280-AP

Students

Administrative Procedure - Managing Students with Communicable or _Infectious
Diseases

If a student’s communicable or infectious disease affects his or her ability to participate in the District’s
educational programs, he or she shall be treated as a disabled person under Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, unless the student has already qualified for and is receiving services through
an IEP under the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act. For students with an [EP, the District’s
aAdministrative pProcedure, 6:120-AP1, Special Education Procedures Assuring the Implementation
of Comprehensive Programming for Children with Disabilities, must also be followed and it will
control whenever there is a conflict with these procedures.

Rules and guidance from the I11. State Board of Education (ISBE) and Iil. Dept. of Public Health (IDPH)
should be consulted and supersede these procedures. Guidagcesdocuments and important information
include: "

1. Communicable Disease School Nurse GuidegieyiSed
https://dph.illinois.cov/topics-services/disea
nurse-guidance.htmlwww-idphstate--

2. Management of Chronic Infectious D
IDPH, available at https://wordpress 46
Chronic-ID-in-schoolchildren. pd 4

3. The Department of Public Healdl

Mllinois (20 ILCS 2310/)

Administrative Code of 111

302, available at
Bas/infectious-diseases/cd-school-

ol , revised in 2003 by ISBE and
Betionprevention/files/2011/05/IDPH-

I =y . = =Te.

Professional Regulation Law of the Civil
both expanded the statutory authority of the

Parents/Guardians uilding Principal where their child is enrolled if their child
unicable or infectious disease. See eExhibit 7:280-E2,
g and Exclusion Requirements for Common Communicable

s, for a list of communicable or infectious diseases.

Building Principal or Upon having knowledge of a known or suspected case or carrier of a

designee communicable disease:

a. Notifies the local health authority as required by 77 Il.LAdmin.Code
§690.200. The local health authority is a full-time official health
department, as recognized by IDPH, having jurisdiction over a particular
area, including city, village, township, and county boards of health. If
there is not a local health authority recognized by IDPH, the local health
authority is IDPH. 77 [11.Admin.Code §690.10. See also ¢Exhibit 7:280-
E2, Reporting and Exclusion Requirements for Common Communicable
Diseases, identifying the diseases for which there is mandatory
reporting. Note: The Communicable Disease Report Act, 745 ILCS 45/,

7:280-AP Page 1 of 5
©244 2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Actor

Action

grants immunity from slander or libel to persons who in good faith make
such reports.

b. Follows directions for temporarily excluding a student from school
according to the local health authority direction and 77 I11.Admin.Code
Part 690.

Keeps the school open where a student with a communicable disease attends,

except in the event of an emergency. 77 Ill.Admin.Code §690.30(c)(1).

District staff

Observes all rules of IDPH regarding communicable and chronic infectious
disease. See the Legal References below for a list of these rules.

Collects and maintains the student’s medical information in a manner that
ensures the strictest confidentiality and in accordance with federal and State
laws regarding student records. Consult with the Board Attorney to ensure
compliance with such laws.! 77 [1l.Admin.Code 690.30(c)(5).

Superintendent or
designee

Confirms that all required.d @priate notices are made. 2

fanic Infectious Disease Review

Committees).

Communicable and
Chronic Infectious

Disease Review Team

Arranges a megh
physician, lggal F

1€577as well as persons with knowledge of the
he purpose of the meeting is to:

géxCluded student will return to school. This
“based on whether the student poses a high risk of
of a communicable and chronic infectious disease to other

fee and diarrhea and vomiting-free for 24 hours without the use of

efifeducing. antidiarrheal. or antiemetic medications and other

ationswhite—aeute—symptoms—are—present, 77 [ll.Admin.Code

§690.30(c)(2).

erform a pre-placement evaluation. 34 C.F.R. §104.35.

c. Make a placement decision based on the pre-placement evaluation. The
placement decision shall include any needed related services. 34 C.F.R.
§104.35.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

1 ppy regulations provide that. "Identifiable information on a student or staff [member]. such as name and contact

information (including current address and phone). seating charts on [buses] and in the classroom. and rosters for
extracurricular activities. shall be reported to the Department or local public health authority for any notifiable disease or

condition within the timeframes specified in this Part.” 77 Il Admin.Code §690.30(c)(5). Consult with the board attorney to
ensure that any reports required by this provision to IDPH or the local public health authority comnly with federal and State

laws regarding student records.

2 The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) makes sample letters to parents available for certain infectious
diseases, such as measles and pertussis, on its website at www.cde.gov.

7:280-AP

Page 2 of 5
©:26+5-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor Action

d. If there is a reason to believe that the student may have a disability
requiring special education and related services, the child shall be
referred for a special education evaluation. Referrals may also be made,
atany time, by any concerned person, including but not limited to District
personnel, the student’s parent(s)/guardian(s), a community service
agency employee, a professional having knowledge of a child’s
problems, a child, or an ISBE employee. See the District’s Special
Education Procedures Assuring the Implementation of Comprehensive
Programming for Children with Disabilities3 23 1ll.Admin.Code
§226.110.

Reports the meeting results to the Superintendent.

Superintendent or Notifies the student’s parents/guardians when an excluded student can
designee return to school and of the placement decision. If the student will not attend
school, every reasonable effort,shall be made to provide the student with an
adequate alternative educationiStateyregulations and school policy
regarding homebound in apply.

Communicable and At least annually while a
Chronic Infectious arranges a meeting with th
Disease Review Team | physician, local healt

tagious or infectious disease,
itfs)/guardian(s), personal

well as persons with knowledge of the
i the student’s education placement

Managing a Student with a Communi€ab : sease Who Demonstrates Behavior that
Could Result In Infecting Other

Actor

Parents/Guardian
any staff memb

ing Principal if a student with a communicable or
ows a lack of control of bodily secretions, has open

Building Principal ately notifies the Superintendent of the above.
Superintendent or Upon being notified that a student is demonstrating behavior that could
designee spread his or her disease, convenes the Communicable and Chronic

Infectious Disease Review Team.

If appropriate, notifies parents of students of possible exposure if their
student may have been exposed to a communicable or infectious disease
due to behaviors exhibited by a student having such a disease.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

3 Sample Special Education Procedures Assuring the Implementation of Comprehensive Programming for Children with
Disabilities are available at: www iash.com/law/icsaspeced.cfm.

7:280-AP Page 3 of 5
@24115-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor

Action

Communicable and
Chronic Infectious
Disease Review Team

Arranges a meeting with the student’s parent(s)/guardian(s), personal
physician, local health authorities, as well as persons with knowledge of the
placement options available. The purpose of this meeting is to:

a. Determine whether the student’s temporary removal from the classroom
is appropriate because the student poses a high risk of transmitting a
communicable and chronic infectious disease or whether another
response exists to reduce the risk of transmission. A student suspected of
being infected with a notifiable disease for which isolation is required
shall be refused admittance until fever-free and diarrhea and vomiting-
free for 24 hours without the use of fever reducing. antidiarrheal. or
antiemetic medications and other medications .while-aeute-symptoms-are
present 77 I1l.Admin.Code §690.30(c)(2).

b. Perform a pre-placement evaluation if the student will continue to attend
school. 34 C.F.R. §104.35.

c. Make a placement decusmased on the pre-placement evaluation. The
placement decision shall inélidé’any needed related services. 34 C.F.R.
§104.35. If the studef Jeontinue to attend school, determine the
student’s appropriateediicationalipplacement. The team shall also
determine if the studentnee ied servi
regular classroom.

Superintendent or
Designee

Reporls the meeting§

: an(s) whether the student will attend
gnd school or participate in school

£ ery reasonable effort shall be made to

andgequate alternative education; however, an

ul tvidualized Education Program (IEP) will control.
amsand school policy regarding homebound instruction apply.

school. If the.
activities with’
provide ¢he

Communicable@
Chronic Infectiot
Disease Review Te

ysician, local health authorities, as well as persons with
of the placement options available, to review the removal and to
ne whether the condition precipitating the removal has changed.

General Post-Evaluation Procedures

Actor Action

Parents/Guardians May appeal their child’s exclusion from school or educational placement to
the School Board within 10 days of being notified of the action.

Parents/Guardians When their child returns to school after an absence due to a communicable
and chronic infectious disease, present a certificate from a physician
licensed in Illinois stating that the child qualifies for re-admission to school
under the rules of IDPH that regulate periods of incubation,
communicability, quarantine, and reporting.

7:280-AP Page 4 of 5

©:2445-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your schoo! board attorney before use




LEGAL REF.: 105 €S 540211120 U.S.C. §1232g, Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act.
29 U.S.C. §701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
42 U.S.C. §12101 et seg., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.
34 C.F.R. §§104.34 and 104.35.
105 ILCS 5/10-21.11.
410 ILCS 315/, Communicable Disease Prevention Act.
23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 226.
77 11L.Admin.Code Parts 665, 690, 693, 695, 696, and 697.

CROSS REF.: 2:150(Committees)-5:40 (Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease)

ADMIN PROC.:  2:150-AP_(Superintendent Committees). 4:180-AP! (School Action Steps for
Pandemic Influenza or Other Virus/Disease

QK

7:280-AP Page 5 of 5
@2044-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



November202+March 2024 7:280-E2

Students

Exhibit - Reporting and Exclusion Requirements for Common Communicable Diseases

The following chart contains requirementsfromrulesadopted by the Ill. Dept. of Public Health (IDPH).
They provideroutine measures for the control of communicable diseases by establishing progressive
initiatives for implementing disease-reporting and exclusions measures. School personnel must notify
the local health authority if they have knowledge of a known or suspected case or carrier of
communicable disease, and such reports must be kept confidential. 77 Ill. Admin.Code §690.200.

Diseases and Conditions, 77 [lI.Admin.Code §690.100

The following are declared to be contagious, infectious, or communicable and may be dangerousto the
public health. The Section number associated with the listed diseases or conditionsindicates the Section
of the rules explaining the repertable-notifiable diseag@ore@dition. Diseases and conditions are listed
alphabetically by class. Every class has a differefit ti

Standard precautions refers to infection prevention 2 :
apply to all patients regardless of diagnosis or presumedins

risk of transmission of infectious agents thatgan
known case patieator indirect contact with
§690.10. B v

Droplet precautions refersto infe
to reduce the risk of tr ‘
suspended in the aicand are
§690.10. '

Case refers to '.‘:'.f'-';- iving or decease
adition. 77 I11. Ad

ugh direct contact with the suspecied or
fegtious items or surfaces. 77 [1l. Admin.Code

ontrol measures for healthcare settings designed
s via large particle droplets that do not remain
ghing, sneezing, or talking. 77 I1l. Admin.Code

The following notifiable dise es or conditions shall be reported by telephone immediately (within
three hours) upon initial clinical suspicion of the disease or condition to the local health authority, who
shall then report to IDPH immediately (within three hours).

Disease_or Condition Precaution and Exclusion Rules
Any unusual case of a disease or Contacts shall be evaluated to determine the need for

condition eaused-by-an-infectious- quarantine and/or for symptoms monitoring follow-up for
agentnot listed in IDPH regulations that | a period of time following exposure. The local health

is of urgent public health significance | authority shall implement appropriate control measures.
(including, but not limited to, cowpox,
Reye’s syndrome, glanders, amoebic
meningoencephalitis, orf, monkeypox,
hemorrhagic fever viruses, infection

from a laboratory-acquired

7:280-E2 Page 1 of 11
©2u21-20)2 1 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



recombinant organism, or any disease
or condition non-indigenous to the
United States), §690.295

Anthrax, §690.320 Standard-precautionsshal-befollowed—Contact

Neo-restrictionsitexposure-isfrom-infected animals-or
animalbproduets-A search shall be made for history of
exposure to infected animals or animal products and
traced to the place of origin. All anthrax cases shall be
reviewed carefully for consideration of a bioterrorist
event. No restrictions on contacts.

55 2EoHe

D
rt
(]

Botulism, Foodborne, tatestinal- ke cagniition shat-be swed—No restrictions.
§690.327 '

Brucellosis (if suspected to be a 7 -
bioterrorist event or part of an o rogitigns-shall B followed when-dressing does e
outbreak), §690.330 = : =%

Coronav1rus Novel mcludmg— 8 N m f8recommendations as information

- a9y fics kndvn about the transmissibility of the novel
corof@immi®’ 1PDH will make recommendations for
(SARS), and Middle control 0 "contacts based on transmissibility and severity
Respiratory Syn ome S) 1IIness caused by the novel strain. Smdafd-ﬁeeeuﬂeﬂs;
§690.361 : 3 = - |2

7:280-E2 Page 2 of 11
©2021-2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Assoc:atlon of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Diphtheria, §690.380

Standard-precautionsshatt-be-fellowed The case shall be
isolated until two successive cultures from both throat and
nose (and skin lesions in cutaneous diphtheria) are
negative for diphtheria bacilli or when a virulence test
proves the bacilli to be avirulent. The first culture shall be
taken not less than 24 hours after completion of antibiotic
therapy and the second culture shall be taken not less than
24 hours after the first. If culturing is unavailable or
impractical. isolation mav be ended after 14 davs of
effective appgppriate antimicrobial therapy.

Influenza A, Novel or Variant Virus,
§690.469

ArLAroen bram omy e et

- e EEETEITREML - g wlsweiT rt 5.

Sh fhake recommendations as information
becol oW n about the transmissibility of the novel or
variaNiiiifienza virus. IDPH will make recommendations
for control of contacts based on transmissibility and
verity of the illness caused by the novel or variant
enza A strain.

(See the f/ns of sample policy 4:180, Pandemic
Preparedness;, Management,; and Recovery, for
information and resources regarding influenza epidemics
in schools; administrative procedure 4:180-AP1, School
Action Steps for Pandemic Influenza or Other
Virus/Disease; and administrative procedure 4:180-AP2,
Pandemic Influenza Surveillance and Reporting.)

Measles. suspect, probable or
confirmed, §690.520

All cases, including suspect cases, with measles shall
isolate themselves at home and shall be excluded from
school. work, and childcare facilities for at least four days
after appearance of the rash.

Plague, §690.570

7:280-E2

Page 3 of 11

©2024-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




= t-Cases.
their clothing, their living quarters and any pets shall be
treated to eliminate fleas. Contacts to pneumonic plague
and bubonic plague shall be monitored daily for seven
days by the local health authority or other designated
individual.

Poliomyelitis, §690.580 Oceurrenceofasinslecase-of polioryelitis-duetowild

asCSBEsHSPe ted cases with polio who
ispital shalt isolate themselves at home.
fded from school. work. or any child care
‘Wetermines the person is no longer

isolation is no longer needed.

are not in th
angeshaline

| il 8
" g jons-shall-be-followed-The local health
bioterrorist event or part of an 8\ | authdfbesfiduld investigate. No specific restrictions on
outbreak), §690.59548 " contacts.

Q-fever (if suspected to be a

Smalipox, §690, - Vs i oxposure immunization—within-three-to-four day

exposure-Cases shall be admitted to a health care setting.

Tularemia (if suspected to be a Standard-precautionsshall-be-foHowed-No specific

bioterrorist event or part of an restrictions.
outbreak), §690.725

Any suspected bioterrorist threat or Cases and contacts shall be evaluated to determine need
event, §690.800 for isolation.

Class I(b) Diseases or Conditions

The following notifiable diseases or conditions shall be reported as soon as possible during normal
business hours by telephone (some rules state that facsimile or electronic reporting are also acceptable,
the Disease column indicates “F” for facsimile or “E” for electronic in those instances), but within 24

7:280-E2 Page 4 of 11
©2021-202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




hours, i.e., within eight regularly scheduled business hours after identifying the case, to the local health
authority, who shall then report to IDPH as soon as possible, but within 24 hours.

Disease

Precaution and Exclusion Rules

Acute  Flaccid Myelitis  (AFM).

No general restrictions.

§690.290

Botulism (intestinal, wound and other),
§690.327 (F or E)

Standard-precautonsshatl-befollewed—No restrictions.

Brucellosis (not part of suspected
bioterrorist event or part of an
outbreak), §690.330

Standard precautions shall be followed. Contact
precautions shall be followed when dressing does not
adequately contain drainage. No restrictions on contacts.

Chickenpox (Varicella), §690.350 (F or
E)

Children shall be excluded from school or child care
facilities for a minimum of five days after the appearance
of eruption (with day zero being the first day of rash
appearance) ®r until vesicles become dry/crusted.
whichevglis [OfEr

[«
i

Cholera, §690.360 (F)

EHTO = - -

= 5 ;

T

Hored S - Ee-6

Thours-Contacts should be asked about
ring the period of household exposure and for

ter last exposure.

o specific restrictions.

Cases shall avoid public swimming pools while
symptomatic and for two weeks after the date diarrhea has
ceased. Specific precautions for food handlers must be
followed.

Haemophilus influenzae, ‘eniasit
and-etherinvasivedisease, §690 441 (F)

fellewedNo specific restrictions. Brepletprecautionsshalt
be_foll | antil 24 ] Bl initias £ offoct

Hantavirus
§690.442 (F)

pulmonary syndrome,

aptiyrierabia-therap—
Standard—precautions—shall—be—foHowed—No specific

restrictions on contacts.

Hemolytic uremic syndrome, post-
diarrheal, §690.444 (F)

See requirements for the applicable disease that preceded
the HUS (when preceding cases are either E.Coli (Section
§690.400) or Shigellosis (Section §690.640) standard
precautions shall be followed and contact precautions shall
be followed for diapered or incontinent persons or during
institutional outbreaks until absence of diarrhea for 24
hours).

7:280-E2

Page 5 of 11

©2421-21111 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Hepatitis A, §690.450 (F or L)

afisconsetefsymptoms:See §690.450

Influenza. (Laboratory Confimed

The death of a child younger than 18 years of age with

Deaths in persons youngerthan 18 vears

laboratory-confirmed influenza shall be reported.

of age), §690.465

Influenza. (Laboratory Confirmed
Testing via Electronic Laboratory
Reporting (ELR) only_and Intensive
Care Unit Admissions )-admissions-nte
intensivecare-unit, §690.468 (F or E)

suidanee: No specific restrictions. IDPH will
bof contacts based on transmissibility
ness caused by the influenza strain.

TeCOMmme;
and sev.

Melioidosis due to Burkholderia
pseudumaﬂei 5690.530

ty o f bl
b Bhrici

‘,

No spe

.l‘\

"ﬂh

Mumps, §690.550 (F or E)

ﬁ.-
TR
i ¥
&7

Sassea Bt et = Heoa 0

-Suspect.

able. and confirmed cases as defined in Section 690.10
shall be excluded from school, child care facilities or the
workplace until five days after onset of symptoms
(parotitis). Susceptible close contacts to confirmed and
probable cases shall be excluded from school. child care
facilities or the workplace from days 12 through 25 after

exposure.

Neisseria meningitidis, eningitis-and
invasive disease and purpura fulminans,

§690.555 (F or E)

ofeffectiveantimicrobiaktherapy-No specific restrictions. |

Any suspected or Confirmed Qutbreak
of a Disease of Known or Unknown
Etiology that may be a Danger to the
Public Health, Whether the Disease,
Infection, Microorganism, or Condition
is speclfled in the Rule Outhreaksfor

including but

not limited to, foodborne, healthcare-

Make a report to local health authority within 24 hours s for |
investigation. If outbreak has occurred, the local health
authority makes a final report to IDPH. Cases are evaluated
to determine need for isolation.

7:280-E2

Page 6 of 11

©2221-202 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




associated. zoonotic disease. and
waterborne outbreaks), §690.565 (E)

Pertussis (whooping cough), §690.750

weeks-afteronsetofparexysmalcoush-oruntithe endof
the-coughwhichevereomesfirst-Cases shall be excluded

from school, child care facilities. or the workplace until five
days of appropriate antibiotic therapy has been completed.
All household contacts and community -based contacts
determined bythe local health authority to be at risk should
we davs of a course of approprate

Q-fever (not suspected in bioterrorist
attack or part of an outbreak), §690.595

hall be followed. No restrictions for

Rabies, human, §690.600 (F or E)

ed-Cases of suspect

Rabies, potential human exposure_and
animal rabies, §690.601 (F or E)
Definition of exposed person to

g be admnttcd to a health care facﬂltv

Respiratory Svnc

No specific restrictions.

Infection (Lahg Bt
Testing via ELIE®

Cases shall isolate themselves and be excluded from
school, child care facilities or the workplace for seven days
after rash onset. Susceptible contacts shallewld be excluded
from school or the workplace from days seven through 23
following rash onset after last exposure.

SARS-CoV2 Infection (COVID-19)

All cases shall isolate themselves at home per CDC

(Laboratory Confirmed Testing via

recommendations or as directed by the local health

ELR Only. Pediatric Deaths, and

authority.

Intensive Care Unit Admissions).
§690.635

Staphylococcus aureus infections with
intermediate or high level resistance to
Vancomycin, §690.661 (F)

No specific restrictions. IDPHFhe-Department will issue
specific recommendations forthe control of contacts on a
case-by-case basis.

7:280-E2

Page 7 of 11

©2621-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Streptococcal infections, Group A,
invasive and sequelae to Group A
streptococcal infections_In Persons
Admitted to the Hospital or Residing in
a Residential Facility. including
antibiotic susceptibility test resuls,
§690.670 (F)

therapy-No specific restrictions.

Tularemia (not suspected to be
bioterrorist event or part of an
outbreak), §690.725

Standard precautions shall be followed. No restrictions on
contacts.

Typhoid fever_and Paratyphoid fever

Cases with typhoid fever in non-sensitive occupations shall

(including S. Typhi. S. Paratyphi A. S.

not return to their occupation until the following are

Paratyphi B (tartrate negative). and S.

completed: i) termination of the acute illness (absence of

Paratvphi C cases), §690.730 (F)

fever): and ii)y ec.eml of education on transmission of the
bacteriu t‘« phmd fever frorn lhe Inca] heahh

authon . -- - o g 3
m

Typhus, §690.740 (F or E)

ed-Proper delousm g for
louse- bome tvphus is required. The local health authority
1l monitor all immediate contacts for clinical signs for
weeks.

> B

Class I Diseases 0f &

The following diseas:
electronically during no
shall then report to the ID

eported as soon as possible by mail, telephone, facsimile or
s hours, but within seven days, to the local health authority which
in threesewves days.

e} T

i B AT
¥ieas), §690.322

Arboviral InfectionsGneludingbutnot
I. . I g I-F 1} 1EE‘slﬂaIitis St.

centacts-No general restrictions.

Campylobacteriosis, §690.335

absentfor24-heurs-No specific restrictions.

Cryptosporidiosis, §690.365

ases shall avoid
swimming in public recreational water venues (e.g.,

swimming pools, whirlpool spas, wading pools, water

7:280-E2
©2024

Page 8 of 11

2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




parks, interactive fountains, lakes) while symptomatic and
for 2 weeks after cessation of diarrhea.

Cyclosporiasis, §690.368

Standard-precautions-shall-be-foHowed-No specific

restrictions for contacts.

Hepatitis B-and-Hepatitis D, §690.451

Standard-precautions-shall-befoHowedNo specific_
restrictions. Ne-restrictions-on-contacts-Contacts to cases
or carriers of hepatitis B should be tested for susceptibility
to hepatitis B virus.

Hepatitis C_Acute Infection. Perinatal

and Non-Acute Confirmed Infection,
§690.452

Siandard <orrsshallbe followed =

eontaets-No specific restrictions.

Histoplasmosis, §690.460

eentaets-No specific restrictions.

Legionellosis, §690.475

Leptospirosis, §690.490

GBH-EEGE—NO SpeECitl FC I'EStl'lC[lOl'lS

Patients in health care facilities. including, but not limited
to. long-term acute care hospitals and skilled nursing
facilities, should comply with the local health authority's

clinical disease. potential for
transmission of genetic elements. or

recommendations for control measures as supported by
IDPH or CDC procedures and best practices for control of

opportunities for effective control

transmission.

effects, §690.445

Psittacosis due to chlamydia psittaci,
§690.590

Sinadasd . hatbefollowed N =
eontacts=No specific restrictions.

Salmonellosis including Paratyphi V

Cases shall avoid swimming in public recreational water

var. L(+) tartrate+ (other than S.
typhietd A., S Paratyphi B (tartrate

venues (e.g.. swimming pools. whirlpool spas. wading
pools. water parks, interactive fountains, lakes) while

negative). and S. Paratyphi C cases-

symptomatic and for two weeks after cessation of

fever), §690.630

diarrhea.Standard precautions—shall-befollowedContact
precavtonsshall-befollowed for-diapered-orincontinent

7:280-E2
D020

Page 9 of 11

2121 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

[llinois Assoc1at|on of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Shigellosis, §690.640

Cases shall avoid swimming in public recreational water
venues (e.g.. swimming pools. whirlpool spas. wading
pools, water parks, interactive fountains, lakes) while
symptomatic. and for two weeks after cessation of

diarrhea.Standard-precautionsshat-befollowed—Contaet

absentfor24-hours-

Toxic shock syndrome due to
Staphylococcus aureus infection,
§690.695

contaets-No specific restrictions.

Streptococcus pneumoniae, invasive
disease in children -essyounger than
five years, §690.678

e = o = P ot ot =

:._- b

restrictions.

~ian~ =T =

Tetanus, §690.690

&
*-

Tickborne Disease, including African
Tick Bite Virusehehehiosis,
Aanaplasmosis, Babesiosis, Bourb@
Virus, Ehrlichiosis Heartland
Lyme disease, and-B&e

spotted fever Ri

Mfic restrictions.

centacts-No specific restrictions.

Reporting requirement is limited to health care
professionals (includes nurses and health coordinators or
health care settings). Report electronically or by facsimile,
followed up with a phone call to local TB authority, or if
none, to [DPH.

Exclude case if considered to be infectious according to
IDPH’s rules and regulations for the control of TB or as
recommended by the local health authority.

Vibriosis (Other than Toxigenic Vibrio
cholera O1 or O 139Nen-cheleraibrio
infeetions), §690.745

E'EEEHE'E““I hll-be fehow ]” E“:E !lEEi ; .:"E!.E"“!“E"E

ceases-No specific restrictions.

7:280-E2

Page 10 of 11

©2421-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Reporting of Sexually Transmissible Infections, 77 Ill. Admin.Code 693.30

The following sexually transmitted infections are reportable by health care professionals only (which
includes advanced practice nurses, licensed nurses (including school nurses), or other persons licensed
or certified to provide health care services of any kind to the local health department, or if none exists,
to IDPH. Reports are strictly confidential and must be made within seven days afterthe diagnosis or
treatment.

Infection Exclusion Rules

Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome | A person may only be isolated with that person’s consent
(AIDS) or upon order of a court in those cases there the public’s
health and welfare are significantly endangered and where
all other reasonable means have been exhausted and no
less restrictive alternative exists. 77 1ll. Admin.Code
§693.60(b).

HIV Infection

Syphilis

Gonorrhea

Chlamydia

Chancroid

Exclusion Criteria for Non-Reportable Di§ga

There are a number of diseases and ilifes
to be reported under IDPH rules. Houve
require exclusion fro;

either never been reportable or no longerneed
gse conditions may still pose a health risk and
&2 chart which includes diseases and illnesses that

5:(as well as more common diseases those that do need to be
dmschool. Please refer to 77 11l. Admin.Code §690.110, and

es/publications/commchartschool-

032817.pdf

7:280-E2 Page 11 of 11

[llinois Association of School Boards, All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June2049June 2024 7:170

Students

Vandalism !

The School Board will seek restitution from students and their parents/guardians for vandalism or other
student acts that cause damage to school property. 2

LEGAL REF.: 740 ILCS 115/, Parental Responsibility Law.

CROSS REF.: 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:190 (Student Behavior)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content.

2 The Parental Responsibility Law makes parents/guardians of unemancipated minors who are 11 through 18 years of
age liable for actual damages. Parents/guardians may be liable up to $20,000 for the first act or occurrence of a willful or
malicious act. If a pattern or practice of willful or malicious acts by a minor is found by a court to exist for another separate
act or occurrence, parents/guardians may be liable up to $30,000. 740 ILCS 115/5.

7:170 Page 1 of 1
20482024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
1llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



June 260492024 8:25-AP

Community Relations

Administrative Procedure - Advertising and Distributing Materials in Schools Provided
by Non-School Related Entities

Requests from Community, Educational, Charitable, Recreational, or Other Organizations
Actor Action

Community, Educational, Direct to the Building Principal all requests to advertise events
Charitable, Recreational, or pertinent to students’ interests or involvement.

OtfeOrganizations Specifically describe the material or content proposed to be

displayed, distributed, included in the school’s website, and/or
included on District-isgued electronic learning devices.

Request specific
distributed.

aterial to be displayed or

Building Principal Refers all materi ndent or designee for screening
to ensure compli policy and procedures. 1

Superintendent or designee ributing or posting it to ensure

olicy and procedures, including

3t be student-oriented, have the

name prominently displayed, and clearly

on is not affiliated with the District.

right, or (d) be defamatory, obscene, vulgar, or indecent. 2
rmines the appropriate location for the content, provided that
distribution by staff is done without discussion.

nforms the organization whether its request is accepted or
rejected.

Removes all materials and/or content that are out-of-date from the
building, website, and/or District-issued learning devices.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

1 An administrator in the central office enhances coordination and ensures that all buildings in the district are operating
uniformly. For districts that wish to leave the screening of materials to building principals, replace: “Superintendent or
designee” in the next row with “Building Principal” and delete this row.

2 Consult the Board Attorney. Allowing one organization to distribute non-religious materials at school, but prohibiting
the distribution of religious materials by another, may negate indemnification for school administrators and the district. See
Morgan v. Swanson, 755 F.3d 757 (5th Cir. 2014) (granting, after several years of reversals, remands, and procedural motions,
qualified immunity to an elementary school principal who allowed parents to distribute non-religious materials but prohibited
another parent from distributing religious materials during an in-class winter party).

8:25-AP Page 1 of 3
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Community, Educational,
Charitable, Recreational, or
Other Organizations

Deliver the material or content to the school. The school will not
make copies.

Provide in electronic format any information that the Building
Principal agreed to publish on the school’s website or District-
issued learning devices.

Actor

Requests from Commercial Companies to Advertise and/or Distribute Material

Action

Commercial Companies

Direct to the Superintendent all requests to advertise on school
grounds, in school publications, or on District-issued learning
devices.

Specifically identify the requested location for advertisements, i.e.:
(a) athletic field fences, (b) athletic, theater, or music programs, (c)
student newspapers or yearbooks, (d) scoreboards, and/or (e) other
appropriate locatio

Prominently dis ny's name on all advertising.

Provide a copy 0
Superintendent.

Superintendent

tities, and will not: (a) disrupt the
blate the rights or invade the privacy of
} trademark or copyright, or (d) be

ve a commercial request related to graduation, class
lass rings.

11 other commercial requests, makes a dispositional
mendation during an open School Board meeting.

er the Board’s decision, takes all appropriate steps.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

3 The Student Online Personal Protection Act (SOPPA) (105 ILCS 85/-added by-PA_100-315) provides safeguards to
protect the privacy and security of data about students when it is collected by educational technology companies. It specifically
prohibits targeted advertising (presenting advertisements to students where they are selected based on information obtained
or inferred over time from that students’ online behaviors, usage of applications, or covered information (as defined by
SOPPA)). For more discussion about SOPPA, see f/n 5 in sample policy 8:25. Advertising and Distributing Materials in
Schools Provided by Non-School Related Entities.

8:25-AP

Page 2 of 3

©20449-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Winois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use



Actor Action

School Board From time-to-time, by Board resolution, determines minimum fees
for advertising space. All fees are subject to negotiation and Board
approval. Current minimum fees are:

Athletic field fences $
Athletic, theater, or music programs $
Student newspapers or yearbooks $
Scoreboards $

Other appropriate locations $

QK

8:25-AP Page 3 of 3
©2649-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Oectober2649June 2024 8:95-E1

Community Relations

Exhibit - Letter Notifying Parents/Guardians of School Visitation Rights
On District letterhead

Date

Dear Parents/Guardians:

The School Visitation Rights Act permits employed parents/guardians, who are unable to meet with
educators because of a work conflict, the right to time off from work to attend necessary educational or
behavioral conferences at their child’s school. Pleasereview the following copy of this Actto determine
if you are entitled to a school visitation leave.

Sincerely,

Superintendent

o ok o ke deskok ok ok dRokok ok ko dolok skokok ek oo skakok ok kR ok s s kool ok e ek 3k ok sk ok ok e e ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok

147/1. Short title
This Act may be cited as the School Visi
147/5. Policy

The General Assembly of the
system reliant upon pagg
guardians who are

of time during thg
their children af

147/10. Definition
As used in this Act:

of this Act is to permit employed parents and
ators because of a work conflict the right to an allotment
ry educational or behavioral conferences at the school

(a) “Employee” means a p who performs services for hire for an employer for:

(1) atleast 6 consecutive months immediately preceding a request for leave under this Act; and

(2) an average number of hours per week equal to at least one-half the full-time equivalent
position in the employer’s job classification, as defined by the employer’s personnel policies
or practices or in accordance with a collective bargaining agreement, during those 6 months.

“Employee” includes all individuals meeting the above criteria butdoes not include an independent
contractor.

(b) “Employer” means any of the following: a State agency, officer, or department, a unit of local
government, a school district, an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, or a
nonprofit organization.

8:95-El Page 1 of 3
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Ilinois Association of Schoo! Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



(¢) “Child” means a biological, adopted or foster child, a stepchild ora legal ward of an employee and
who is enrolled in a primary or secondary public or private school in this State ora state which
shares a common boundary with Illinois.

(d) “School” means any public or private primary or secondary school or educational facility located
in this State or a state which shares a common boundary with Illinois.

(e) “School administrator” means the principal or similar administrator who is responsible for the
operations of the school.

147/15. School conference and activity leave

(a) Anemployer must grant an employee leave of up to a total of 8 hours during any school year, and
no more than 4 hours of which may be taken on any given day, to attend school conferences,
behavioral meetings, or academic meetings related to the employee’s child if the conference or
meeting cannot be scheduled during non-work hours; however, no leave may be taken by an
employee of an employer that is subject to this Act unless the employee has exhausted all accrued
vacation leave, personal leave, compensatory leave and any other leave that may be granted to the
employee except sick leave and disability leave. Bef{@& arganging attendance at the conference or
activity, the employee shall provide the emplo i tten request for leave at least 7 days in
advance of the time the employee is required t jtation right. In emergency situations,
no more than 24 hours’ notice shall be required. usgconsult with the employer to
schedule the leave so as not to disrupt unduly

(b) Nothing in this Act requires that the leay,

(c) Forregularly scheduled, non-emergen itati allmaketime available for visitation
during regular school hours and eyen

147/20. Compensation

An employee who utilizg i fforded by this Act may choose the opportunity
to make up the time 2 . : by this Act on a different day or shift as directed by the
employer. Ane o T ts under this Act shall not be required to make up the
time taken, bu ake up the time taken, such employee shall not be
ployee who does make up the time taken shall be paid at the
g time. Employers shall make a good faith effort to permit an
employee to make up tf for the purposes of this Act. If no reasonable opportunity exists
for the employee to make me taken, the employee shall not be paid for the time. A reasonable
opportunity to make up the tilffe taken does not include the scheduling of make-up time in a manner
that would require the payment of wages on an overtime basis. Notwithstanding any other provision of
this Section, if unpaid leave under this Act conflicts with the unreduced compensation requirement for
exempt employees under the federal Fair Labor Standards Act, an employer may require an employee
to make up the leave hours within the same pay period.

147/25. Notification

The State Superintendent of Education shall notify each public and private primary and secondary
school of this Act. Each public and private school shall notify parents or guardians of the school’s
students of their school visitation rights. The Department of Labor shall notify employers of this Act.

147/30. Verification

Upon completion of school visitation rights by a parent or guardian, the school administrator shall
provide the parent or guardian documentation of the school visitation. The parent or guardian shall

8:95-E1 Page 2 of 3
©2049-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



submit such verification to the employer. The State Superintendent and the Director of the Department
of Labor shall suggest a standard form of documentation of school visitation to schools for use as
required by this Section. The standard form of documentation shall include, but not be limited to, the
exact time and date the visitation occurred and ended. Failure of a parent or guardian to submit the
verification statement from the school to his or her employer within 2 working days of the school
visitation subjects the employee to the standard disciplinary procedures imposed by the employer for
unexcused absences from work.

147/35. Employee rights

No employee shall lose any employee benefits, except as provided for in Section 20 of this Act, for
exercisinghis orherrights under this Act. Nothingin this Actshall be construed to affectan employer’s
obligation to comply with any collective bargaining agreement or employee benefit plan. Nothing in
this Act shall prevent an employer from providing school visitation rights in excess of the requirements
of this Act. The rights afforded by this Act shall not be diminished by any collective bargaining act or
by any employee benefit plan.

An employer may not terminate an employee for an abse,
the employee’s attendance at a school conferencegge
provided in Section 135.

147/40. Applicability

This Act applies solely to public and private employcrs
Illinois, and to their employees.

147/45. Violation

Any employer who violates this Act i
for each offense.

147/49. Limits on lea

No employer that uired to grant school visitation leave to an employee if
granting the lea % of the employer’s work force or 5% of an employer’s
work force shi ence or activity leave at the same time.

from work if the absence is due solely to
i meeting, or academic meeting, as

mploy ast 50 or more individuals in

se and may be fined not more than $100

8:95-El Page 3 of 3
©2040-2024 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.







District Type: ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

School District School Business Services Division
Joint Agreement
SCHOOL DISTRICT/JOINT AGREEMENT BUDGET FORM *
Accounting Basis: July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024
Cash
Accrual Balanced budget; no Deflcit Reduction
Is this an amended budget? Yes Plan is required.
Date of Amended Budget: o 06/25/24
(MM/DD/YY)
District Name: | La Harpe CSD 347 |
District RCDT No: o 26034347004

If your FY2023 AFR states that you need to do a deficit reduction plan and your FY2024 budget is balanced, please state the

measures you took to have your budget become balanced. (Bckgrnd-Assumpt 25-26})

Budget of La Harpe CSD 347 , County of Hancock/Henderson/McDonough ;
State of Hlinois, for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024
WHEREAS the Board of Education of La Harpe CSD 347 ) ) "
County of Hancock/Henderson/McDonough , State of lfiinois, caused to be prepared in tentative form a budget, and the Secretary

of this Board has made the same conveniently available to public inspection for at least thirty days prior to final action thereon;

AND WHEREAS a public hearing was held as to such budget on the 25th  day of June o 20 24
notice of said hearing was given at least thirty days prior thereto as required by law, and all other legal requirements have been complied with;

NOW, THEREFORE, Be it resolved by the Board of Education of said district as follows:

Section 1: That the fiscal year of this school district be and the same hereby is fixed and declared to be
beginning ~ July1,2023 and ending June 30, 2024

Section 2: That the following budget containing an estimate of amounts available in each Fund, separately, and expenditures from each be

+d the same is hereby adopted as the budget of this school district for said fiscal year.

ADOPTION OF BUDGET
The budget shall be approved and signed below by members of the School Board. Adopted this 25th  day of _ J_line_ , 20
by a roll call vote of ) Yeas, and Nays, to wit:
** MEMBERS VOTING YEA: _ ) * MEMBERS VOTING NAY: -

* Based on the 23 lllinois Administrative Code-Part 100 and inconformity with Section 17-1 of the School Code.
** Type in the members who voted "YEA" nor "NAY". Actual school board member signatures are not required for electronic submission.

(1) A certified copy of this document must be filed with the county clerk within 30 days of adoption as required
by Section 18-50 of the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/18-50).

(2) Districts are required to submit the adopted/amended budget electronically to ISBE within 30 days of adoption or by October 30,
whichever comes first. Budgets are submitted to School Finance Report (SFR}): nitps //sect isbe.net/attachmgridefault.aspx
Please type the member signatures before submitting to ISBE. We do not accept PODF copies.

SD50-36/JA50-39  2/23

24

H:\My Documents\Budgetiamended fy24 6/19/2024







¥202/61/9 yzh1 pepusweyebpng\siuswunood A H
5 i ) 0 0 0 ) ) i] _ - 310 5024N0S IR0 101 oy
.“ - * .‘ = ey o . S - i | = = . | ) T T oesz | 319YMas|3 PaNIsSE|) 10N $324N0S J3AYI0 .Wvl
_ . L [ — = = - i - - - - | 1 0062 1 5paaj0Jd ueol 3@t [a
s — — e e = — e e | LA
T i o _ o008 | puny s123lo14 |ejide) o1 sasuesl £
| e 0 .u.o..n____ _ 5pUOg NUIABY LD I5391U ABd 01 pUn4 IAISS 1930 01 J3JSUBIY v
i _ a0 o .§h 1 spuog anuanay Uo [edidulid Atd 01 pun4 3314353930 0} Jajsuel] Lt
V [ o 0064 m $95€97 /8 ASYOH Uo 153131V| >N& 0] 23)A185192Q 01 J9j5uest Dv
! ——
| — m— | _ | powE sas5e31 (g AS5VO UD [edidUN Aed D1 221AJ35 13 O) fagsuelt BE
¢ { - i 1Y i ! i 3x14 J0) uonesuadilD) JO 3|E!
i | ._ | oosz  S1SSY paxg 40) ot > s | 8¢
H 3 -4 —— — e . B = _ | oERL _ PIOS SpUO@ UO 153191U| PANIY £
I - — S a— - - - 8| e i - orzt _ plos spuog uo wnlwaid | §E
Q. - S| [ N ——— - - ﬁ — - —e - i _ i | , P1os spuog uo jedpuug - [GE
" i 7 ! __ B " {od4) saNo® 10 3| TE
; 0 _ pung 3311495 1930 [
| | _ 0LTL | oyspa@doid - U1 pue puog A13JeS 1§ A3.d d414 PAIBINLUNIDY S52X3 JO 13)5uel]
—— 13 + p————
1 " 09t | puny NS0 03 5paal0td 5 153121U 7§ X2 A13JBS 7§ AD1d D114 55307 JO JaJSURl) ce
|
[ 1 S—
_ 0StL # pun4 RO 01 punj 5103[01d |elded wouy Jajsuel| 1€
= ) o oL 152491 JO JaJsULI| 0¢
= TP ——————— 1 ¥ = =1 N | _ OETL ” spuny Suowy Jajsuel .m.
[ = ) |m _ 0T l 15321u] pUng ysed SUNJOA JO J3jsuelr) T4
I — L —— — - - - — 4 1 g TR
_ f - [oue | i ;mmw M:a“s - ,QHHEW_,MQM g
T S OAL L e e e e TP L | T | un4 ys UPLIOA
i = ._Iouzm | - - _u 4 Yysed dupIOM 3YT Y |z|,_|n |@M.
SaNnd m:O_x<> INOHd zm"_mzs_._. L ININVINE3d| 6T
1 ¥ . ( [24
| ¥ -— i 1 ; SaNN4 40 S3SN/SIDANOS 5:.5 €c
| osT'YT S lectve 0 TrE'EL 2189 I ¥50'TTZ | we'ie saumipuacKa/suswasINGsla cC
— > m!_.._m:qs__.f.n..auu.__ 332.1Q J0 553943
o — o |seriel T Teveve Zie8Iz Tleeroey | 9w samypusdea/nuawasingsigjewel | 1T
io I - R U LV 1o 0 | eBe _ ﬂcu.._.,...z ..__..mm Q). 0] FNHPUBEE [SIUBISSINGSIT 0z
e == === —_——— — e ey — —_— ~-4 = —
00'BIT | 0 1B'5VT 691 8929V 99LTZ8'T .._.__._v_a__é..ﬁ..!_s.:a_auea_az 6l
* - — — = it = s g i
0 | Y 0 0 0N 0 B 8
0 | [ o 0 716912 0
o 0 0 a 0 0
= ] L e — —_—t ———
D ! 10 g AT
000" wwa | 0 05L'v8 ._wv v | B9T'9EY
_ T £ Tl sev'zs i _
jewvor | mﬂdﬁ ~—Temwz |0 |o9eeost | 66rBOE | BvaOIe | | LRIV [o09'6E6T mu::ng\zn_wuwz etos
i == ~1 e i _.,i[I — — - il bl sl — = m.:mz;m._ e o oy
o L = e — = £
| 520'92 9sTZ8T i Kl | 9zsToat ~[e6eof | 8wE'DIC ZZELYI s_,_.mztam_ﬂs_uza jeso1
0 o _ o 0 Mor — —— i L62'E29
0 0 0 9L '65T 0 0 | pesE®
| o 0 N 0 0
_ ! ; = =, | —— (N
920'9Z ﬁmmﬂ.mwa [FA474 0 | 975°091T mmm 67T 818’07 | SE0'E9S | 9222051
(spunj AARDY JUBPMS INOYNM) SINNIATYH/S1dI3DTY
| EYIPIZ | 8sY'vL 979'stl o jog't 160'SST 09528 | TYO'E6T fozT'TiLT [ €202 ‘T AInr o se T{spuny
' ) ! | _ | ) i | ANARIY JUBPMS INOYNM) IINYTVE ANNE ONINNIDIE GILYINILST
= R R o | \ Mpnies | = = = = | i
' hpjes \ Jeos /juswaiiay ERITETE 7] __ | # _ AjuQ 5J2quINN 3oy 193u3 :uondudsag
| '3 uonuanaid a1d | wol ysed Supjiom s13foid jended Jediuniy uopeuodsues) assIged | ® suopesadp | |euonednpl "oy
_. (0s) | (08) {oz2) (09} ] (0s) (ov) (o£) | foz) | (ot} | *sq1 0Z-ZT dX3153 puD [1-9 N3y3s3 U0 D30p buridiua uibag [
| Py ] r | I H | 9 4 3 | a | 2 g | v

Aewwng 18






yzAl pepusieyebpngisiuawnood ANy H

¥202/61/9
e —_———— ’
TI9HEE To00'E 7000891 ] 1o SBTLEL Tevave 716 91C EEATC wimipusdi (0l [2El
.a et —— = T _ _— e |.| ——— O T Q sYpauag wonrmwia) me
= _ . | _ 0 _ o 0 ! Jusiudinby panendeyuon [OEL
zataz | ) ! o _ i | ooE'z ae9rT 009'Ty | oos | spafao /o [6Ek
ersst | T i 0 _ - e ¥ 000' 005 fpno ende |82 1
059'EES = = | s o 05598 00T'08s oor siepmep g sagddns /21
vhO'ZED 1 | 005'E8 |0 1 00901 0 | wEpLT | o0¢ saowng paseuaing  |BZ L
vio'ves ! |0 | o | sercet 000TL e 6EE'TEE | oot _ swauag sssoidur  |GEL
ot | = | 005'V8 | o 000017 8Lyt | oot | suies (Gl
B = - ] Wi ||_ = | JWEN tﬂ*ﬂo ﬂﬂﬁ
t _.r ™ - Rundss = l - I I zel
' Aajes | |E1908 fjuswaay asueujuley #
Pa(qo Ad |e10L | %3 uonuanald a1 _ uoL ysed Suppom 3loid fended uopeyodsues) EVIVEIS L E] g suonesadp |euoneanp3 327 _ uonduasag
i (0s) ! (o8} to0) i fos) | fov) (o) oz} (o) i ¥4
- — - e 1 S S N . o L I J— e i i _ — — — -
(135140 Jofery Ag) spung AVAIDY 6SPRIS INCUUA SIENLIONIAXE 40 ANYINNNS ocl
Gl
G99°LET vI9'88 664611 0 LI 606'8TZ _ LLRBYO'T | bZ0Z ‘OE SUNT IO |
R | | e — I 5 (spung AARYY IMIRNIS Y s321n05 i) DNYTVS ONNS INIONZ QILVINILSS
o = = = = i a B 5 | S pung _o»mu:__wov.sam S0 (EI0L FA SN
- TR 7 Rl i S T E— -.I_un —— ) .ucism!:s.._aioh oLl
el #_1.--. S— — - N .
| B j i = | 0 S : 1453
__ 0 = —— — m — = i 0 a%::m 0 5a2UN0S L0 (EI0L cLL
S [ e o _I e .
| i 441
SaNN4 40 mm:\mmuzng vaHio| Lt
0 | tre'sz | gIg'es $SO'TIZ sasnypuadxa/sjuswissingsia DLl
o | — . } waa q..mw.._.._._w>o n-._._a__s..tﬁn_uuna a4 o s5AIKT
0 — 1 mmﬂ nmﬁ T [sveve == u.u.u A | smnypuadea/siuowosingsia s (801
=T e ¥ i . | ogly | sjuswAed ,J|EYSE UD,, 1O} S3IMIpUadX3/51UaWSSINGsIQ
0 0 i B BOL
o B TTevseL 8995 , Smipuda/aunusingug vaigieos /01
[ I o lo
e 0 0 jo
o B 0 - 0 ooz
| D gt o c ——
|0 | 18p'sYT BIT'9EW TZ0'ZE8
| = | [ | Svs'99LT .
(spuny AyaRaY JuaPNIS Im s32inos 1) mzE._nzu,_xw\mpzm_swmz:mm_n ool
.Mma.u.ﬂl ...... ELTHE T ﬂm . N M| ‘B6L60E o = mvﬁﬁWM' ....M..m.n.w..lmlm |..| Il sanuaAay /s1d]233Y (BI0), )
in 13 B - 10 <o =18 _ o | B66E suslAed JIEYDE UQ,, 40} S3NUBARY/SId1I3Y 86
b | P | A— S e B i
| 9209z . ELTWT 0 | 66Z"60E srE0rL _ 909'096'C | FAnuaAaY fadiaay 12210 18104 16
0 o o | ~ o 0 | LB2'ETY AAHNS: 05
o I o — 1 ¥3L'65T 0 | pes'Erg |
| 0 0
| !
| 92052 | ostzgT leave o ozg'03r | SESEEL 8y8'0zz | se0'eas | szc'erst :
_ {Spung AuAow UBPNIS YAIM 532N0S Ilv) SINNIATY/SLAIADRY| E6
| £69'VTE | 8svbL | ezser o i T 160" ["ogs’ | zv0" 574
1 _ F_ 9/8'LT _ 160°SST 095’78 | r0'e6T _ 980'6ZLT | £20Z ‘T A JO se (Spund AJIAIDY 1UBPMIS 16
| | | | ‘ m | _ Swipnouy 5321006 i) IINVIVE NN ONINNIDIE GILVINILST 1104
. ! ) T T s _ I __ Edl
Aojes " | |E120S /IUBWINY | __ duBURUIEN | # AJuQ s1aquInn 2joym 133u3 :uondudsag
3 UOPURADA BIH | uoy yse) Sunpom syoloid |eyide) feduny uopzeuod 1 | @3mssigaq g suonesado | |euonzeanpl Yy
| (0s) : (08) {oz) | (o9) {os) {op) 1 (o€) | (oz) ] {ot) 5G0) 07-21 dx3153 PuD TT-9 A3YIS U0 BIop bupaiua uibag 1
1 | b | r [ [ H 9 [ 3 | 3 | a | 2 [ 8| v
t ebed Aewwns i






yzh pepusweysbpngysjuswinood AN\:H

¥202/61/9
s4ce €202 Ad (|en1dy) Jano (p2128png)
$20ZA4 104 (3582179Q) 95834U| WU PIIBWAST °6
0T8'ErT 0 0 0Z8'EvT SLTLST 0 0 SLTLST sjelol|'8
‘9A0QE PapN|oul pue me| 91e1s
g 2 Ag paJinbas suonesi|go uoisuad Jay10 Jo JusW311Y AlJe3 - DNpaq|-L
0 0 0 0 0197 saoialas 1oddns [e11Ua) JO uoDRIId| "9
0 0 0 0 0452 $9IIAJS [BUISIU| |G
007'8L 0 0 002'8L o1z'oL 01T'0L 015C s901A49S Lioddng sssutsng JO UoRIBIA|Y
0 0 0 0 o6tz UO(1BJISIUIWPY |00YIS - 5331195 1ioddns JSYIO|'E
0 0 0 0 0E€T S3OIAI9S UOIIRIISIUIWPY BBy [e123dS|'Z
079'9917 0 079’597 59698 59698 0zee S2IIAJDS UOIIRJISIUIIPY SAIINISXT|"T
pung puf pun4 P
e101 pun4 J0L JURUIIBIA |e30L punj Uoy dueuNUIBA *ON "}oung uondiasag
Jeuoneanpl |euoneanp3
13 suonesadp 13 suonesado
(08) (174] (o1) (08) (02) (o1)
20T JEoA [BIS1d ‘sainyipuadxy pa1adpng £20Z JE3A |BISI4 “S2in3puadxd jendy pajewisy

(2p0) |00Y2S BY1 4O §'T-LT LUOHIAS)
13IHSHYOM S1SOD FAILLVULSININGAY 30 NOLLY.LINT G3LVINILLSS

J1egquInN LaDY
:3WeN 1911151 [00YDS

Y00LYEVEQNIT
LY€ aS) ddaey

51507 aAleisIulWpY JO UOHENWI
-podas 1847 Yiim uopauN{uod up pawgns 3¢ Aew pue (¢-0g Wiod 38SI) pioday jeldUBUL [ENUUY U1 JO PU3 3U3 03 PAYDENIE S| 133YSHIOAN SIS0 dANBASIUILPY 1O UOIENWIT jeldiyo 3y |

;38 3)ISqaM 3dS| Y3 UO PUNOD} B OS|E UBD 133YSHIOA SIS0D DANBASIUILIPY JO uonewn [eniyo uy

‘(aseanap) aseasou] 99e1uddsad pajewnsa syl 21ndwod 0 saunyipuadxa |enoe palewnss JedA Joud syl pasu -a8ed s1y3 01 pa1dod s1 UoKEWIoU!
198png "saunpuadxa  £70TA4 [ENIIE JIAO S2UNHPUAUXD pa133png  ¥Z0TA4 JO dseanul jua2Jad 5,1013SIp By} S1BWNSS 0} ssan0.d Sune8png ay3 Bunnp 3sn J0j PSPUIIUL S1 133YSHIOM 3U L

J3ay53J0}y] 53500 SN1IDAIS|UIlIpY JO UOMID3WIT 3y} o uolsspugns oo Jof p23da33D ag Jou jjim pup Aju0 123Yy$}I0/\ SIS0 2NIDNSILILPY fo uonpywry paIDWIIS3 UD SI SIYL
{Ajup asn |p301 404}
(Ajuo S314351Q 100YdS) S1S0 IAILVHLSININGY 40 NOLLVLINIT dILVINLLSI

g¢ abed







May 2024 Model Student Handbook Update

Download List of Changes

Please note that this is not a final update for the 2024-25 school year. We will issue another update
in early August, once the General Assembly has adjourned and the Governor has signed all

legislation.
Handbook Description Status
Procedure Number
& Title
MSH 1.40 Revised and updated to comply with PRESS. Revised
Visitors
MSH 1.210 This new procedure is provided as an additional New
Free and Reduced- | resource. The information provided herein is
Price Food Services; | required by federal law and may be placed in the
Meal Charge student handbook or otherwise provided to
Notifications parents.
MSH 4.15-E This new procedure is provided as an additional New
Exhibit — School resource. It contains discretionary information
Bus Safety Rules that may be placed in the student handbook or
otherwise provided to parents.
MSH 5.70 This new procedure is optional, however, P.A. New
Targeted School 101-455, as amended by P.A. 102-791 and P.A.
Violence Prevention | 103-175, requires school districts to implement a
Program threat assessment procedure.
MSH 5.70-E This new procedure is provided as an additional New
Exhibit — Targeted resource. It contains discretionary information
School Violence that may be placed in the student handbook or
Prevention and otherwise provided to parents.
Threat Assessment
Education
MSH 6.40 Revised and updated to comply with PRESS and Revised

Prevention of and
Response to
Bullying,
Intimidation, and
Harassment

State law.




MSH 6.42 Pursuant to Public Act 103-472, the Racism Free New
Discrimination and | Schools Act (effective August 1, 2024), a school
Harassment on the district is required to have a separate policy on
Basis of Race, discrimination and harassment on the basis of race,
Color, and National | color, and national origin.
Origin Prohibited
MSH 6.45 Revised and updated to comply with PRESS and Revised
Harassment & Teen | Public Act 103-472.
Dating Violence
Prohibited
MSH 10.70 Pursuant to Public Act 103-504, schools must New
PUNS Database include in their student handbook certain
Information for information on PUNS (Prioritization of Urgency
Students and Parents | of Need for Services), including contact
or Guardians information for the PUNS-trained employee.
MSH 12.110 This procedure is updated to comply with PRESS | Revised
Sex Offender and revised to incorporate the pertinent
Notification Law information from MSH procedure 12.120, Sex
Offender & Violent Offender Community
Notification Laws.
MSH 12.120 This MSH procedure is being deleted, as the Deleted
Sex Offender & pertinent information is now contained in MSH
Violent Offender procedure 12.110, Sex Offender Notification Law.
Community

Notification Laws




Updated June 25, 2024 Page |0

La Harpe
Student
Handbook

We build the future one child at a time.

4U4 wWest IVlain Street
La Harpe, lllinois 61450
217-659-3713



Acceptable Use of Networks

Access to Non-School Sponsored Publications
Access to Student Social Networks
Accommodating Breastfeeding Students
Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities
Animals on School Property

Annual Notice — Ed. Tech. Student Privacy
Anti-Bias Education Policies

Asbestos Notification

Attendance

Attendance at Dances

Awareness & Prevention of Child Abuse
Birth Certificate Requirements

Bring Your Own Tech Program

Bus Conduct

Bus Transportation

Cafeteria Rules

Care of Students with Diabetes

Class Schedules

Communicable Diseases

Community Use of School Facilities
Complaints about Curriculum, Instructional Materials
CPR & AED Training

Discipline of Students with Disabilities
Education of Children with Disabilities
Emergency School Closings

English Learners

Equal Education Opportunities & Sex Equity
Exemption from PE

Extra-Curricular

Extra-Curricular & Athletics Code of Conduct
Faith’s Law

Family Life & Sex Education

Field Trips

Fines, Fees & Charges

General Building Conduct

General School Information

Grading & Promotion

Guidance & Counseling

Guidelines for Distribution of Non-School Publications
Harassment & Teen Dating Violence

Head Lice

Home & Hospital Instruction

Homeless Education

Homework

Honor Roll

Immunization, Eye & Dental Examinations
Introductory Information

Invitations & Gifts

Make-Up Work

OO0 NNNNOOO M

11
11
1
11
13
13
13
13
13
14
14
14
14
15
15
15
15
16
17
22
22
22
23
23
2

23
24
24
25
26
26
26
27
27
27
3

28
28

Table of Contents

Mandated Reporters

Parent Notices Required by ESSA

Parking

Parent Organizations & Booster Clubs
Pesticide Application Notice

Playground & Recess Rules

Preamble

Prevention of Anaphylaxis

Prevention of & Response to Bullying
Related Service Logs

Release During School Hours

Release Time for Religious Instruction/Observation
Request to Access Classroom for Spec. Ed.
Resources for Biking & Walking Safety
Safety Drill Procedures & Conduct

School Breakfast & Lunch Program

School Dress Code

School Operations During Health Emergency
School Staff/Faculty

School Visitation Rights

School Volunteers

School Wellness

School Year Calendar & Day

Search & Seizure

Sex Offender Notification Law

Sex Offender & Violent Offender Law

Sexual Abuse & Prevention Resource Guide
Staff Development — Professional Development
Standardized Testing

Student Absences

Student Appearance

Student Athlete Concussions & Head Injuries
Student Behavior

Student Biometric Information

Student Medication

Student Privacy

Student Privacy Protections

Student Records

Student Testing & Assessment Program
Student Use of Electronic Devices

Students with Food Allergies

Suicide & Depression Awareness & Prevention
Targeted School Violence Prevention
Teacher Qualifications

Treats & Snacks

Truancy

Unsafe School Choice Option

Video & Audio Monitoring Systems

Visitors

Volunteers

Page |1

28
28
29
29
29
29

30
30
32
32
32
32
32
33
33
33
34

34
34
35
35
35
36
36
36
37
37
38
40
40
40
44
45
45
46
47
49
49
50
50
50
51
52
52
52
52
52
53



Updated June 25, 2024 Page |2

2024-2025 Student Handbook
La Harpe District 347 School Information
5eneral School Information
The School Board governs the school district, and is elected by the community. Current School Board members are:
Dustin Detherage, President ddetherage@laharpeeagles.com
Jake Allen, Vice President jallen@laharpeeagles.com
Dana Blythe dblythe@laharpeeagles.com
Bill Collins beollins@laharpeeagles.com
Leandra Deitrich Ideitrich@laharpeeagles.com
Josh Gebhardt jgebhardt@laharpeagles.com
Josh Walker jwalker@laharpeeagles.com

The School Board has hired the following administrative staff to operate the school:

Dr. Janet Gladu, Superintendent jgladu@laharpeeagles.com
Susan Pratt, Special Education Coordinator spratt@laharpeeagles.com
Ashlee Goettsche Guidance, Homeless Liaison, Title IX Coordinator  agoettsche@Iaharpeeagles.com
Ryan Hopper, Principal and Athletic Director rhopper@laharpeeagles.com

The school is located and may be contacted at: 404 West Main Street La Harpe, IL 61450 (217)659-3713
Central Office 659-7739

Laura Jones - Finance Manager
Shelly Rahn — Admin. Assist.

laurajones@laharpeeagles.com
srahn@laharpeeagles.com

Elementary/Junior High Office 659-3713

Brittany Teesdale- Building Secretary teesdale@laharpeeagles.com

Laura Jones
Denise Kost

Finance Manager
Paraprofessional

Faculty and Staff
Aaron Baker Custodial/Maintenance abaker@laharpeeagles.com
Sharon Berlett Special Education sberlett@laharpeeagles.com
Susan Bray Title | sbray@laharpeeagles.com
Melissa Burt Band/Music mburt@laharpeeagles.com
Dave Clover Girls' Basketball dclover@laharpeeagles.com
Betty Collins Cafeteria collins@laharpeeagles.com
Ashiey Cox 3 grade acox@laharpeeagles.com
Michelle Detherage Paraprofessional mdetherage@Iaharpeeagles.com
Haley Dixon Elementary Special Ed hdixon@laharpeagles.com
Mallorie Downing Custodial/Maintenance mdowning@laharpeeagles.com
Kassandra Duerre Paraprofessional kduerre@laharpeeagles.com
Steve Fernetti Paraprofessional sfernetti@laharpeeagles.com
Carrie Finch PreK cfinch@laharpeeagles.com
Cindy Fry Paraprofessional cfry@laharpeeagles.com
Julie Garrison 2" grade jgarrison@laharpeeagles.com
Kayla Gebhardt Paraprofessional kgebhardt@Ilaharpeeagles.com
Janet Gladu Superintendent jgladu@laharpeeagles.com
Ashlee Goettsche Counselor agoettshce@laharpeeagles.com
Tim Graves Transportation tgraves@laharpeeagles.com
Lorrie Harl Paraprofessional Iharl@laharpeeagles.com
Jennifer Hensley Kindergarten jhensley@laharpeeagies.com
Joe Hincks 8th Sponsor/Social Science jhincks@laharpeeagles.com
Ryan Hopper Asst. Principal/AD rhopper@laharpeeagies.com
Wayne Humphrey Transportation whumphrey@Ilaharpeeagles.com
"~ Rebecca Huston 4t grade rhuston@laharpeeagles.com

laurajones@laharpeeagles.com
dkost@laharpeeagles.com



Kayla Martin Paraprofessional kmartin@laharpeeagles.com
Mark Mathew Transportation mmathew@laharpeeagles.com
Carissa Moore Social Worker cmoore@laharpeeagles.com
Erin Neff Paraprofessional eneff@laharpeeagles.com
Donna Nell Transportation dnell@laharpeeagles.com
Karen Nudd Board Treasurer

Courtney Painter Art cpainter@laharpeeagles.com
Shane Painter Boys' Basketball

Darcie Palmer Paraprofessional dpalmer@laharpeeagles.com
Nichelle Pence Physical Education npence@laharpeeagles.com
Aubrey Porter ELA/Asst. Volleyball aporter@laharpeeagles.com
Peyton Porter 7" Sponsor/Math pporter@laharpeeagles.com
Susan Pratt Spec. Ed. Coordinator/Teacher  spratt@laharpeeagles.com
Jeni Richardson Cafeteria jrichardson@laharpeeagles.com
Shelly Rahn Admin Asst srahn@laharpeeagles.com
Tanieka Rodeffer Paraprofessional trodeffer@laharpeeagles.com
Joanna Sholl Technology Director jsholl@laharpeeagles.com
Randy Shumaker Transportation

Michael Siegfried Maintenance Director msiegfried@laharpeeagles.com
Amy Simmons 6 Sponsor/Science asimmons@laharpeeagies.com
Brandie Stokke Paraprofessional bstokke@laharpeeagles.com
Leesa Swanson Cafeteria Iswanson@laharpeeagles.com
Brittany Teesdale Building Secretary & Volleyball teesdale@lahampeeagles.com
Jadrien VanFleet 1stgrade vanfleet@laharpeeagles.com
Jacki Wibbell Asst. Volleyball Coach

Page |3

PREAMBLE: La Harpe Community District #347 welcomes new and retuming students to La Harpe Elementary and Junior High

School. We are proud of the advantages and opportunities offered to our students. The mission of La Harpe schools is accomplished
through the joint efforts of the School Board, Administration, Teachers, Parents, Community, and Students. We want the community to
be proud of La Harpe and for our students to uphold the principles of our school.

Along with the academic learning offered here, we hope the students will learn a sense of responsibility and justice so that their years at
La Harpe School will be happy and successful and in their years beyond school they will be responsible citizens. This handbook is a
statement of the policies, traditions, and practices governing La Harpe schools. This handbook of information is prepared for all
students, teachers, and parents as a guide in matters which we must understand for good citizenship and efficiency in running the
school. All handbook and school rules apply to all school- sponsored events. Many questions you may have can be answered by the
information given here. Any situation not specifically covered in this handbook is left to the discretion of the administration. We
welcome the opportunity to help you at La Harpe Schools.

INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION

The lllinois School Code states anyone seeking to enroll a student in any public school in lllinois must follow and meet specific
residency requirements. The school district reserves the right to evaluate residency evidence presented. If requested for evaluation, a
proof of residency form is to be completed and returned to the school. Merely presenting the items of proof does not guarantee
admission. Proof of Residency must be completed within 30 days of request, or the family will be billed for tuition to continue
attendance in our schools. Tuition for the 2024-2025 school year will be $10,997.06 as established by ISBE. Families will be billed
from the date of enrollment or the first day of the student school year, whichever is later.

WARNING - If a student is determined to be a nonresident of the District for whom tuition must be charged, the persons enrolling the
student are liable for non-resident tuition from the date the student began attending a District school as a non-resident.
A person who knowingly enrolls or attempts to enroll in this School District on a tuition-free basis a student known by that person to be
a nonresident of the District is guilty of a Class C misdemeanor, except in very limited situation as defined in State law.



Page |4

A person who knowingly or willfully presents to the School District any false information regarding the residency of a student for the
~purposes of enabling that student to attend any school in the District without the payment of a nonresident tuition charge is guilty of a
slass C misdemeanor.

Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks

All use of the District's electronic networks shall be consistent with the District's goal of promoting educational excellence by facilitating
resource sharing, innovation, and communication. These procedures do not attempt to state all required or prohibited behavior by
users. However, some specific examples are provided. The failure of any user to follow these procedures will result in the loss of
privileges, disciplinary action, and/or legal action.

Terms and Conditions
The term electronic networks include all of the District's technology resources, including, but not limited to:
1. The District's local-area and wide-area networks, including wireless networks (Wi-Fi), District-provided Wi-Fi hotspots, and any
District servers or other networking infrastructure;
2. Access to the Internet or other online resources via the District's networking infrastructure or to any District-issued online account
from any computer or device, regardless of location;
3. District-owned and District-issued computers, laptops, tablets, phones, or similar devices.

Acceptable Use - Access to the District’s electronic networks must be: (a) for the purpose of education or research, and be consistent
with the District's educational objectives, or (b) for legitimate business use.

Privileges - Use of the District's electronic networks are a privilege, not a right, and inappropriate use may result in a cancellation of
those privileges, disciplinary action, and/or appropriate legal action. The system administrator or Building Principal will make all
decisions regarding whether or not a user has violated these procedures and may deny, revoke, or suspend access at any time. His or
her decision is final.

Unacceptable Use - The user is responsible for his or her actions and activities involving the electronic networks. Some examples of
unacceptable uses are:
a. Using the electronic networks for any illegal activity, including violation of copyright or other intellectual property rights or contracts,
or transmitting any material in violation of any State or federal law;
Using the electronic networks to engage in conduct prohibited by board policy;
Unauthorized downloading of software or other files, regardless of whether it is copyrighted or scanned for malware;
Unauthorized use of personal removable media devices (such as flash or thumb drives);
Downloading of copyrighted material for other than personal use;
Using the electronic networks for private financial or commercial gain;
Wastefully using resources, such as file space;
Hacking or attempting to hack or gain unauthorized access to files, accounts, resources, or entities by any means;
Invading the privacy of individuals, including the unauthorized disclosure, dissemination, and use of information about anyone that
is of a personal nature, such as a photograph or video;
Using another user's account or password;
Disclosing any network or account password (including your own) to any other person, unless requested by the system
administrator;
Posting or sending material authored or created by another without his/her consent,
Posting or sending anonymous messages;
Creating or forwarding chain letters, spam, or other unsolicited messages;
Using the electronic networks for commercial or private advertising;
Accessing, sending, posting, publishing, or displaying any abusive, obscene, profane, sexual, threatening, harassing, illegal, or
knowingly false material;
Misrepresenting the user's identity or the identity of others; and
r.  Using the electronic networks while access privileges are suspended or revoked.

D@ o o0

= ‘T

T o537

o



Page |5

Network Etiquette - The user is expected to abide by the generally accepted rules of network etiquette. These include, but are not limited
to, the following: .

a. Be polite. Do not become abusive in messages to others.

b.  Use appropriate language. Do not swear, or use vulgarities or any other inappropriate language.

¢. Do not reveal personal information, including the addresses or telephone numbers, of students or colleagues.

d.  Recognize that the District's electronic networks are not private. People who operate District technology have access to all email

and other data. Messages or other evidence relating to or in support of illegal activities may be reported to the authorities.
e. Do not use the networks in any way that would disrupt its use by other users.
f. Consider all communications and information accessible via the electronic networks to be private property.

No Warranties - The District makes no warranties of any kind, whether expressed or implied, for the service it is providing. The District
will not be responsible for any damages the user suffers. This includes loss of data resulting from delays, non-deliveries, missed-
deliveries, or service interruptions caused by its negligence or the user's errors or omissions. Use of any information obtained via the
Internet is at the user’s own risk. The District specifically denies any responsibility for the accuracy or quality of information obtained
through its services.

Indemnification - By using the District's electronic networks, the user agrees to indemnify the District for any losses, costs, or damages,
including reasonable attorney fees, incurred by the District relating to, or arising out of, any violation of these procedures.

Security - Network security is a high priority. If the user can identify or suspects a security problem on the network, the user must
promptly notify the system administrator or Building Principal. Do not demonstrate the problem to other users. Keep user account(s)
and password(s) confidential. Do not use another individual's account without written permission from that individual. Attempts to log-
on to the network as a system administrator will result in cancellation of user privileges. Any user identified as a security risk may be
denied access to the networks.

Vandalism - Vandalism will result in cancellation of privileges and other disciplinary action. Vandalism is defined as any malicious
attempt to harm or destroy data of another user, the Internet, or any other network. This includes, but is not limited to, the uploading or .
creation of malware, such as viruses and spyware.

Telephone Charges - The District assumes no responsibility for any unauthorized charges or fees, including telephone charges, texting
or data use charges, long-distance charges, per-minute surcharges, and/or equipment or line costs.

Copyright Web Publishing Rules - Copyright law and District policy prohibit the re-publishing of text or graphics found on the Internet or
on District websites or file servers/cloud storage without explicit written permission.

a. For each re-publication (on a website or file server) of a graphic or a text file that was produced externally, there must be a notice
at the bottom of the page crediting the original producer and noting how and when permission was granted. If possible, the notice
should also include the web address of the original source.

b. Students engaged in producing web pages must provide library media specialists with email or hard copy permissions before the
web pages are published. Printed evidence of the status of public domain documents must be provided.

c. The absence of a copyright notice may not be interpreted as permission to copy the materials. Only the copyright owner may
provide the permission. The manager of the website displaying the material may not be considered a source of permission.

d. The fair use rules governing student reports in classrooms are less stringent and permit limited use of graphics and text.

e. Student work may only be published if there is written permission from both the parent/guardian and student.

Use of Email - The District's email system, and its constituent software, hardware, and data files, are owned and controlled by the
District. The District provides email to aid students in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities, and as an education tool.
a. The District reserves the right to access and disclose the contents of any account on its system, without prior notice or permission
from the account's user. Unauthorized access by any student to an email account is strictly prohibited.
b.  Each person should use the same degree of care in drafting an email message as would be put into a written memorandum or
document. Nothing should be transmitted in an email message that would be inappropriate in a letter or memorandum.
c. Electronic messages transmitted via the District's Internet gateway carry with them an identification of the user's Internet domain.
This domain is a registered name and identifies the author as being with the District. Great care should be taken, therefore, in the



Page |6

composition of such messages and how such messages might reflect on the name and reputation of the District. Users will be
held personally responsible for the content of any and all email messages transmitted to external recipients.

1 d. Any message received from an unknown sender via the Internet, such as spam or potential phishing emails, should either be
immediately deleted or forwarded to the system administrator. Downloading any file attached to any Internet-based message is
prohibited unless the user is certain of that message's authenticity and the nature of the file so transmitted.

e. Use of the District's email system constitutes consent to these regulations.

Internet Safety
Internet access is limited to only those acceptable uses as detailed in these procedures. Intemet safety is supported if users will not

engage in unacceptable uses, as detailed in these procedures, and otherwise follow these procedures.

Staff members will supervise students while students are using District Intemet access to ensure that the students abide by the Terms
and Conditions for Internet access contained in these procedures.

Each District computer with Internet access has a filtering device that blocks entry to visual depictions that are: (1) obscene, (2)
pornographic, or (3) harmful or inappropriate for students, as defined by the Children's Intemet Protection Act and as determined by the
Superintendent or designee.

The system administrator and Building Principals shall monitor student Internet access.

Access to Non-School Sponsored Publications

Non-School Sponsored Publications Accessed or Distributed on Campus

Creating, distributing, and/or accessing non-school sponsored publications shall occur at a time and place and in @ manner that will not
cause disruption, be coercive, or result in the perception that the distribution or the publication is endorsed by the School District.

Students are prohibited from creating, distributing, and/or accessing at school any publication that:
' 1. Will cause a material and substantial disruption of the proper and orderly operation and discipline of the school or school
activities;
2. Violates the rights of others, including but not limited to material that is libelous, slanderous or obscene, invades the privacy of
others, or infringes on a copyright;

3. Is socially inappropriate or inappropriate due to maturity level of the students, including but not limited to material that is
obscene, pomographic, or pervasively lewd and vulgar, contains indecent and vulgar language, or sexting as defined by
School Board policy and the Student Handbook;

4. s reasonably viewed as promoting illegal drug use;

5. Is distributed in kindergarten through eighth grade and is primarily prepared by non-students, unless it is being used for school
purposes. However, material from outside sources or the citation to such sources may be allowed, as long as the material to
be distributed or accessed is primarily prepared by students; or

6. Incites students to violate any Board policies.

Accessing or distributing on-campus includes accessing or distributing on school property or at school-related activities. A student
engages in gross disobedience and misconduct and may be disciplined for: (1) accessing or distributing forbidden material, or (2) for
writing, creating, or publishing such material intending for it to be accessed or distributed at school.

Non-School Sponsored Publications Accessed or Distributed Off-Campus

A student engages in gross disobedience and misconduct and may be disciplined for creating and/or distributing a publication that: (1)
causes a substantial disruption or a foreseeable risk of a substantial disruption to school operations, or (2) interferes with the rights of
other students or staff members.

Access to Student Social Networking Passwords & Websites

School officials may investigate or require a student to cooperate in an investigation if there is specific information about activity on the

student's account on a social networking website that violates a school disciplinary rule or policy. In the course of an investigation, the
~ student may be required to share the content that is reported in order to allow school officials to make a factual determination.



Page |7

Accommodating Breastfeeding Students

Students who choose to breastfeed an infant after returning to school are provided reasonable accommodations. A student who is a
nursing mother may take reasonable breaks during the school day to express breast milk or breastfeed her infant. Reasonable
accommodations include, but are not limited to:

Access to a private and secure room, other than a bathroom, to express breast milk or breastfeed an infant.

Permission to bring onto school campus a breast pump or other equipment used to express breast milk.

Access to a power source for a breast pump or any other equipment used to express breast milk.

Access to a place to store expressed breast milk safely.

Reasonable breaks to accommodate the student's need to express breast milk or breastfeed an infant child.

The opportunity to make up work missed due to the student's use of reasonable accommodations for breastfeeding.

S e

Complaints regarding violations of this procedure should be made to the District's Complaint Manager or Non-Discrimination
Coordinator.

Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities

Individuals with disabilities will be provided an opportunity to participate in all school-sponsored services, programs, or activities.
Individuals with disabilities should notify the superintendent or building principal if they have a disability that will require special
assistance or services and, if so, what services are required. This notification should occur as far in advance as possible of the school-
sponsored function, program, or meeting.

Animals on School Property

In order to assure student health and safety, animals are not allowed on school property, except in the case of a service animal
accompanying a student or other individual with a documented disability. This rule may be temporarily waived by the building principal
in the case of an educational opportunity for students, provided that (a) the animal is appropriately housed, humanely cared for, and
properly handled, and (b) students will not be exposed to a dangerous animal or an unhealthy environment.

Annual Notice to Parents about Educational Technology -Vendors Under the Student Online Personal Protection Act
School districts throughout the State of lllinois contract with different educational technology vendors for beneficial K-12 purposes such
as providing personalized leaming and innovative educational technologies, and increasing efficiency in school operations.

Under lllinois” Student Online Personal Protection Act, or SOPPA (105 ILCS 85/), educational technology vendors and other entities
that operate Internet websites, online services, online applications, or mobile applications that are designed, marketed, and primarily
used for K-12 school purposes are referred to in SOPPA as operators. SOPPA is intended to ensure that student data collected by
operators is protected, and it requires those vendors, as well as school districts and the Iii. State Board of Education, to take a number
of actions to protect online student data.

Depending upon the particular educational technology being used, our District may need to collect different types of student data,
which is then shared with educational technology vendors through their online sites, services, and/or applications. Under SOPPA,
educational technology vendors are prohibited from selling or renting a student's information or from engaging in targeted advertising
using a student's information. Such vendors may only disclose student data for K-12 school purposes and other limited purposes
permitted under the law.

In general terms, the types of student data that may be collected and shared include personally identifiable information (PI1) about
students or information that can be linked to PIl about students, such as:
» Basic identifying information, including student or parent/guardian name and student or parent/guardian contact information,
username/password, student ID number
Demographic information
Enrollment information
Assessment data, grades, and transcripts
Attendance and class schedule
Academic/extracurricular activities
Special indicators (e.g., disability information, English language learner, free/reduced meals or homeless/foster care status)

e © @ o © o



Page |8

Conduct/behavioral data

Health information

Food purchases

Transportation information

In-application performance data

Student-generated work

Online communications

Application metadata and application use statistics
Permanent and temporary school student record information

Operators may collect and use student data only for K-12 purposes, which are purposes that aid in the administration of school
activities, such as:

Instruction in the classroom or at home (including remote learning)
Administrative activities

Collaboration between students, school personnel, and/or parents/guardians
Other activities that are for the use and benefit of the school district

Anti-Bias Education Policies

Pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/27-23.6, La Harpe Community School District347 does not have a specific Board Policy titles “Anti-Bias
Education”. However, the following policies may address intergroup conflict and are available online or by contacting the
Superintendent at the La Harpe Community School District Central Office (217-659-7739) or jgladu@laharpeeagles.com:

Policy Title

6:70 Teaching About Religions

6:80 Teaching About Controversial Issues

7:10 Equal Education Opportunities

7:20 Harassment of Students Prohibited

7:180 Preventing Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment

Asbestos Notification

The following is provided in accordance with the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA) and Policies of the Board of
Education of the District. This notification has the intent to inform workers, building occupants and their legal guardians of activities
related to asbestos containing building materials in the school. Copies of the inspection reports and the management plans are
available for inspection during normal office hours in each school in the District. Periodic surveillance is conducted at least every 6
months as long as asbestos materials remain in the buildings. The District will continue its efforts to maintain all asbestos containing
materials remaining in an intact state and undamaged condition. School maintenance and custodial personne! have received the
required asbestos awareness training.

Attendance

lllinois law requires that whoever has custody or control of any child between six (by September 1)) and seventeen years of age shall
assure that the child attends school in the district in which he or she resides, during the entire time school is in session (unless the child
has already graduated from high school). lllinois law also requires that whoever has custody or control of a child who is enrolled in the
school, regardiess of the child's age, shall assure that the child attends school during the entire time school is in session.

Attendance at School Dances
Attendance at school-sponsored dances is a privilege.

Only students who attend the school may attend school-sponsored dances, unless the principal or designee approves a student's
guest in advance of the event. A guest must be “age appropriate,” defined as students attending La Harpe Schools in grades 5 - 8.

All school rules, including the school's discipline code and dress code are in effect during school-sponsored dances.



Page |9

Students who violate the school's discipline code will be required to leave the dance immediately and the student's parent/guardian will
be contacted. The school may also impose other discipline as outlined in the school’s discipline code.

Awareness & Prevention of Child Sexual Abuse, Grooming Behaviors, & Boundary Violations
Child sexual abuse, grooming behaviors, and boundary violations harm students, their parent/guardian, the District's environment, its
school communities, and the community at large, while diminishing a student's ability to learn.

Warning Signs of Child Sexual Abuse
Warning signs of child sexual abuse include the following.

Physical signs:
o  Sexually transmitted infections (STIs) or other genital infections
e  Signs of trauma to the genital area, such as unexplained bleeding, bruising, or blood on the sheets, underwear, or other
clothing
e Unusual weight gain or loss

Behavioral signs:
o Excessive talk about or knowledge of sexual topics
Keeping secrets
Not talking as much as usual
Not wanting to be left alone with certain people or being afraid to be away from primary caregivers
Regressive behaviors or resuming behaviors that the child had grown out of, such as thumb sucking or bedwetting
Overly compliant behavior
Sexual behavior that is inappropriate for the child's age
Spending an unusual amount of time alone
Trying to avoid removing clothing to change or bathe

Emotional signs:
« Change in eating habits or unhealthy eating patterns, like loss of appetite or excessive eating
o Signs of depression, such as persistent sadness, lack of energy, changes in sleep or appetite, withdrawing from normal

activities, or feeling “down”

Change in mood or personality, such as increased aggression

Decrease in confidence or self-image

Anxiety, excessive worry, or fearfuiness

Increase in unexplained health problems such as stomach aches and headaches

Loss or decrease in interest in school, activities, and friends

Nightmares or fear of being alone at night

Self-harming behaviors or expressing thoughts of suicide or suicidal behavior

Failing grades

Drug or alcohol use

Warning Sians of Grooming Behaviors

School and District employees are expected to maintain professional and appropriate relationships with students based upon students’
ages, grade levels, and developmental levels.

Prohibited grooming is defined as (i) any act, including but not limited to, any verbal, nonverbal, written, or electronic communication or
physical activity, (i) by an employee with direct contact with a student, (iii) that is directed toward or with a student to establish a
romantic or sexual relationship with the student. Examples of grooming behaviors include, but are not limited to, the following
behaviors:

o  Sexual or romantic invitations to a student

e Dating or soliciting a date from a student

e Engaging in sexualized or romantic dialog with a student



e © o @ & ©» & ¢ ¢ 0o

Page |10

Making sexually suggestive comments that are directed toward or with a student

Self-disclosure or physical exposure of a sexual, romantic, or erotic nature

Sexual, indecent, romantic, or erotic contact with a student

Failing to respect boundaries or listening when a student says “no”

Engaging in touching that a student or student's parents/guardians have indicated as unwanted

Trying to be a student's friend rather than filling an adult role in the student's life

Failing to maintain age-appropriate relationships with students

Talking with students about personal problems or relationships

Spending time alone with a student outside of their role in the student's life or making up excuses to be alone with a student
Expressing unusual interest in a student's sexual development, such as commenting on sexual characteristics or sexualizing
normal behaviors

Giving a student gifts without occasion or reason

Spending a lot of time with a student

Restricting a student's access to other adults

Warning Signs of Boundary Violations

School and District employees breach employee-student boundaries when they misuse their position of power over a student in a way
that compromises the student's health, safety, or general welfare. Examples of boundary violations include:

.......................

Favoring a certain student by inviting the student to *hang out" or by granting special privileges

Engaging in peer-like behavior with a student

Discussing personal issues with a student

Meeting with a student off-campus without parent/guardian knowledge and/or permission

Dating, requesting, or participating in a private meeting with a student (in person or virtually) outside of a professional role
Transporting a student in a school or private vehicle without administrative authorization

Giving gifts, money, or treats to an individual student

Sending a student on personal errands

Intervening in a serious student problem instead of referring the student o an appropriately trained professional
Sexual or romantic invitations toward or from a student

Taking and using photos/videos of students for non-educational purposes

Initiating or extending contact with a student beyond the school day in a one-on-one or non-group setting
Inviting a student to an employee’s home

Adding a student on personal social networking sites as contacts when unrelated to a legitimate educational purpose
Privately messaging a student

Maintaining intense eye contact with a student

Making comments about a student's physical attributes, including excessively flattering comments

Engaging in sexualized or romantic dialog

Making sexually suggestive comments directed toward or with a student

Disclosing confidential information

Self-disclosure of a sexual, romantic, or erotic nature

Full frontal hugs

Invading personal space

If you believe you are a victim of child sexual abuse, grooming behaviors, or boundary violations, or you believe that your child is a
victim, you should immediately contact the Building Principal, a school counselor, or another trusted adult employee of the School.
Additional Resources include:

National Sexual Assault Hotline at 800. 656.HOPE (4673)

National Sexual Abuse Chatline at online.rainn.org

Illinois Department of Children and Family Services Hotline at 1.800.25. ABUSE (2873)



Page |11

Birth Certificate Requirements for Enroliment

Families enrolling in the District for the first time must present an original or certified copy of the child's birth certificate or other
governmental documentation (e.g., passport, visa) along with a completed affidavit explaining why the birth certificate cannot be
produced. If acceptable documentation is not presented, the person enrolling the student will be notified in writing that they must
provide a certified copy of the child's birth certificate within 30 days. If acceptable documentation is not provided within 30 days, District
personnel shall notify law enforcement authorities for investigation.

Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program; Responsible Use and Conduct

Our school allows students to participate in a curriculum-based Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program. A Parent/Guardian must
authorize their student's participation in the program by completing the Participation in Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program
Responsible Use and Conduct Agreement. Your student must also sign the Internet Acceptable Use agreement to participate in the
program.

The violation of any laws, school board policies or student handbook procedures while participating in the program may result in the
loss of your student's privilege to participate in the program and other discipline. Remember that you are legally responsible for your
student's actions.

The teacher’s role is that of instructor in your student's classroom. Teachers cannot spend time fixing technical difficulties with BYOT
devices. Parents/guardians and their students share the responsibility for technical support and providing a properly charged BYOT
device. If a BYOT device has technical difficulties: (1) a school-owned device may be provided, if available, or (2) students may be
asked to partner with another student who has a functioning BYOT device during a lesson. The school also expects you and your
student to keep the BYOT device free from viruses, malware, and/or any other harmful programs that could damage the school
district's electronic network. Finally, the right to privacy in your student's BYOT device is limited while it is on any school property.

Bus Conduct
Students are expected to follow all school rules when riding the school bus. A student may be suspended from riding the bus for up to
10 consecutive school days for engaging in gross disobedience or misconduct, including but not limited to, the following:
1. Violating any school rule or school district policy.
Willful injury or threat of injury to a bus driver or to another rider.
Willful and/or repeated defacement of the bus.
Repeated use of profanity.
Repeated willful disobedience of a directive from a bus driver or other supervisor.
Such other behavior as the building principal deems to threaten the safe operation of the bus and/or its occupants.

oo A wN

If a student is suspended from riding the bus for gross disobedience or misconduct on a bus, the School Board may suspend the
student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10 days for safety reasons.

A student suspended from riding the bus who does not have alternate transportation to school shall have the opportunity to complete or
make up work for equivalent academic credit. It shall be the responsibility of the student's parent or guardian to notify the school that
the student does not have alternate transportation.

Bus Transportation

The district provides bus transportation to and from school for all students living 1.5 miles or more from the school. A list of bus
stops will be published at the beginning of the school year before student registration. Parents must, at the beginning of the school
year, select one bus stop at which a student is to be picked up, and one stop at which a student is to be dropped off. Students are
not permitted to ride a bus other than the bus to which they are assigned. Exceptions must be approved in advance by the building
principal.

While students are on the bus, they are under the supervision of the bus driver. In most cases, bus discipline problems can be
handled by the bus driver. In the case of a written disciplinary referral, student bus problems will be investigated and handled by
the building principal.



Page |12

Students are expected to follow all school rules while on the bus. Students may be suspended from riding the school bus for up to
. 10 consecutive school days for violating school rules or for engaging in other gross disobedience or misconduct. The school board
nay suspend the student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10 days for safety reasons. The district's regular
suspension procedures shall be used to suspend a student's privilege to ride a school bus.

A student who is suspended from riding the school bus and who does not have alternative transportation to school shall be allowed
the opportunity to make up all missed work for equivalent academic credit. It is the responsibility of the student's parent or
guardian to notify the school that the student does not have alternative transportation to school.

In the interest of the student's safety and in compliance with State law, students are also expected to observe the following:

1. Dress properly for the weather. Make sure all drawstrings, ties, straps, etc. on all clothing, backpacks and other items, are
shortened or removed to lessen the likelihood of them getting caught in bus doors, railings or aisles.

2. Arrive on time at the bus stop, and stay away from the street while waiting for the bus.

3. Stay away from the bus until it stops completely and the driver signals you to board. Enter in single file without pushing.
Always use the handrail.

4. Take a seat right away and remain seated facing forward. Keep your hands, arms, and head inside the bus.

5. Talk quietly on the bus. No shouting or creating loud noises that may distract the driver. Tablets, iPods®, iPads®, smart
phones, and other electronic devices must be silenced on the bus unless a student uses headphones.

6. Help keep the bus neat and clean. Keep belongings out of the aisle and away from emergency exits. Eating and drinking
are not allowed on the bus.

7. Always listen to the driver's instructions. Be courteous to the driver and other students. Sit with your hands to yourself and
avoid making noises that would distract the driver or bother other passengers. Remain seated, keeping your hands, arms,
and head inside the bus at all times.

8. Wait until the bus pulls to a complete stop before standing up. Use the handrail when exiting the bus.

9. Stay out of the danger zone next to the bus where the driver may have difficulty seeing you. Take five giant steps away
from the bus and out of the danger zone, until you can see the driver and the driver sees you. Never crawl under a bus.

10. If you must cross the street after you get off the bus, wait for the driver's signal and then cross in front of the bus. Cross
the street only after checking both ways for traffic.

11. Never run back to the bus, even if you dropped or forgot something.

Video and audio cameras may be active on busses to record student conduct and may be used for the purposes of investigation
into misconduct or accidents on the bus.

For questions regarding school transportation issues, contact: Ryan Hopper at (217) 659-3713.

Cafeteria Rules
1. Students shall not save seats for other students.



Page |13

Students shall walk to lunch and shall be orderly and quiet during lunch.

Trays shall be stacked neatly after placing silverware in its proper container. No food shall leave the cafeteria.

Loud talking, yelling, screaming, and other disruptions are prohibited.

Students shall not throw food, milk cartons or other items.

Students shall not trade food.

Students shall follow the instructions of the lunchroom aides and show proper respect toward all cafeteria personnel.
Students shall remain seated while in the cafeteria except to return to the lunch line or return trays.

Students shall immediately become silent when staff or presenters make announcements in the cafeteria.

Students shall report spills and broken containers to cafeteria staff immediately.

Students shall be dismissed from the cafeteria by the lunch room supervisor.

oovseeNooakwN

- O

Misbehavior will result in disciplinary action in according to the school's disciplinary procedures.

Care of Students with Diabetes

If your child has diabetes and requires assistance with managing this condition while at school and school functions, a Diabetes Care

Plan must be submitted to the building principal. Parents/guardians are responsible for and must;

a. Inform the school in a timely manner of any change which needs to be made to the Diabetes Care Plan on file with the school for
their child.

b.  Inform the school in a timely manner of any changes to their emergency contact numbers or contact numbers of health care
providers.

c. Sign the Diabetes Care Plan.

d. Grant consent for and authorize designated School District representatives to communicate directly with the health care provider
whose instructions are included in the Diabetes Care Plan.

For further information, please contact the building principal.

Class Schedules

The school year is 176 days divided into two semesters. For grades 5 through 8, there are eight, 45-minutes class periods per school
day. All classes meet five days a week unless otherwise stated. Students have a 3 to 4-minute passing period between classes. Lunch
is served after period 5. All class schedules are posted to the districts’ website.

Communicable Diseases
The school will observe recommendations of the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding communicable diseases.
1. Parents are required to notify the school nurse if they suspect their child has a communicable disease.
2. Incertain cases, students with a communicable disease may be excluded from school or sent home from school following
notification of the parent or guardian.
3. The school will provide written instructions to the parent and guardian regarding appropriate treatment for the communicable
disease.
4. Astudent excluded because of a communicable disease will be permitted to return to school only when the parent or guardian
brings to the school a letter from the student's doctor stating that the student is no longer contagious or at risk of spreading the
communicable disease.

Community Use of School Facilities

While our schools have been constructed primarily to educate students, the Board believes that its facilities should also serve as
community centers for education, civic, cultural and other uses consistent with the public interest, when such use does not interfere
with school functions or the safety of students or employees.

School facilities are available to community organizations during non-school hours when such use does not: (1) interfere with any
school function or affect the safety of students or employees, or (2) affect the property or liability of the School District. The use of
school facilities for school purposes has precedence over all other uses. The District reserves the right to cancel previously scheduled
use of facilities by community organizations and other groups. The use of school facilities requires the prior approval of the
Superintendent or designee and is subject to applicable procedures.



Page |14

People on school premises must abide by the District's conduct rules at all times.

“he use of District facilities for personal or private parties is prohibited, including birthday celebrations, anniversary celebrations,
wedding receptions, memorial services, and similar activities.

Official student groups, including co- and extra-curricular programs are granted the use of school facilities at no cost. School-related
organizations, government agencies, and non-profit organizations may rent school facilities commensurate to the board's costs. A fee
schedule and other terms of use shall be prepared by the Superintendent and be subject to approval by the School Board.

Complaints About Curriculum, Instructional Materials, and Programs

Parents or guardians have the right to inspect all instructional materials used as a part of their child's education. If you believe that
curriculum, instructional materials, or programs violate rights guaranteed by any law or Board policy, you may file a complaint under the
District's Uniform Grievance Policy.

Parents or guardians with other suggestions or complaints about curriculum, instructional materials, or programs should complete a
Curriculum Objection Form, which is available from the school office. A parent or guardian may also request that their child be exempt
from using a particular instructional material or program by completing a Curriculum Object Form.

CPR & AED Training Information
A video on hands-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) and automated extemal defibrillators (AED) is provided through IHSA
(Illinois High School Association) and can be accessed at hitps://www.ihsa.org/Resources/Sports-Medicine/CPR-Training

La Harpe Community School District 347 encourages parents and staff to view this video.

Discipline of Students with Disabilities

Behavioral Interventions

Sehavioral interventions shall be used with students with disabilities to promote and strengthen desirable behaviors and reduce
identified inappropriate behaviors. The School Board will establish and maintain a committee to develop, implement, and monitor
procedures on the use of behavioral interventions for children with disabilities.

Discipline of Special Education Students

The District shall comply with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 and the lllinois State Board of
Education’s Special Education rules when disciplining special education students. No special education student shall be expelled if the
student's particular act of gross disobedience or misconduct is a manifestation of his or her disability.

Isolated Time Out, Time Out, and Physical Restraint

Isolated time out, time out, and physical restraint shall only be used if the student's behavior presents an imminent danger of serious
physical harm to the student or others, and other less restrictive and intrusive measures were tried and proven ineffective in stopping it.
The School may not use isolated time out, time out, or physical restraint as discipline or punishment, convenience for staff, retaliation,
as a substitute for appropriate educational or behavioral support, a routine safety matter, or to prevent property damage in the absence

of imminent danger of serious physical harm to the student or others. The use of prone restraint is prohibited.

Discrimination and Harassment on the Basis of Race, Color, and National Origin Prohibited

Discrimination and harassment on the basis of race, color, or national origin negatively affects a student's ability to learn and an
employee's ability to work. Providing an educational and workplace environment free from such discrimination and harassment is an
important District and School goal. The District and School do not discriminate on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, or national
origin in any of its education programs or activities and comply with federal and State non-discrimination laws.

Examples of Prohibited Conduct
Examples of conduct that may constitute discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin include: disciplining students more

harshly and frequently because of their race, color, or national origin; denying students access to high-rigor academic. courses,
extracurricular activities, or other educational opportunities based on their race, color, or national origin; denying language services or



Page |15

other educational opportunities to English learners; and assigning students special education services based on a student's race, color,
or national origin.

Harassment is a form of prohibited discrimination. Examples of conduct that may constitute harassment on the basis of race, color, or
national origin include: the use of racial, ethnic or ancestral slurs or stereotypes; taunts; name-calling; offensive or derogatory remarks
about a person's actual or perceived race, color, or national origin; the display of racially-offensive symbols; racially-motivated physical
threats and attacks; or other hateful conduct.

Making a Report or Complaint; Investigation Process

Individuals are encouraged to promptly report claims or incidences of discrimination or harassment based on race, color, or national
origin to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, a Complaint Manager, or any employee with whom the student is comfortable speaking.
Reports will be processed under the District's Uniform Grievance Procedure.

Reports and complaints of discrimination or harassment will be confidential to the greatest extent practicable, subject to the District's duty
to investigate and maintain an educational environment that is productive, respectful, and free of unlawful discrimination, including
harassment.

Federal and State Agencies

If the District fails to take necessary corrective action to stop harassment based on race, color, or national origin, further relief may be
available through the lllinois Dept. of Human Rights (IDHR) or the U.S. Dept. of Education's Office for Civil Rights. To contact IDHR, go
to: https://dhr.illinois.gov/about-us/contact-idhr.html or call (312) 814-6200 (Chicago) or (217) 785-5100 (Springfield).

Prevention and Response Program

The District maintains a prevention and response program to respond to complaints of discrimination based on race, color, and national
origin, including harassment, and retaliation. The program includes procedures for responding to complaints which:

1. Reduce or remove, to the extent practicable, barriers to reporting discrimination, harassment, and retaliation;

2. Permit any person who reports or is the victim of an incident of alleged discrimination, harassment, or retaliation to be accompanied
when making a report by a support individual of the person's choice who complies with the District's policies and rules;

3. Permit anonymous reporting, except that an anonymous report may not be the sole basis of any disciplinary action;

4. Offer remedial interventions or take such disciplinary action as may be appropriate on a case-by-case basis;

5. Offer, but do not require or unduly influence, a person who reports or is the victim of an incident of harassment or retaliation the option
to resolve allegations directly with the accused; and

6. Protects a person who reports or is the victim of an incident of harassment or retaliation from suffering adverse consequences as a
result of a report of, investigation of, or a response to the incident.

Enforcement

Any District employee who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be subject to
remedial action and/or disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

Any District student who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be subject to
remedial action and/or disciplinary action, including but not limited to, suspension and expulsion, consistent with the student discipline
information in this handbook.

Any third party who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be addressed in
accordance with the authority of the Board in the context of the relationship of the third party to the District, e.g., vendor, parent, invitee,

etc. Any person making a knowingly false accusation regarding prohibited conduct will likewise be subject to remedial and/or disciplinary
action.

Retaliation Prohibited

Retaliation against any person for bringing complaints, participating in the complaint process, or otherwise providing information about
discrimination or harassment based on race, color, or national origin is prohibited.

Individuals should report allegations of retaliation to the Building Principal, an administrator, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, and/or a
Complaint Manager.




Page |16

Education of Children with Disabilities
|tis the intent of the district to ensure that students who are disabled within the definition of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act are identified, evaluated and provided with appropriate educational services.

The School provides a free appropriate public education in the least restrictive environment and necessary related services to all
children with disabilities enrolled in the school. The term “children with disabilities” means children between ages 3 and the day before
their 22 birthday for whom it is determined that special education services are needed, except those children with disabilities who turn
22 years of age during the school year are eligible for special education services through the end of the school year. Itis the intent of
the school to ensure that students with disabilities are identified, evaluated, and provided with appropriate educational services.

A copy of the publication “Explanation of Procedural Safeguards Available to Parents of Students with Disabilities” may be obtained
from the school district office.

Students with disabilities who do not qualify for an individualized education program, as required by the federal ind ividuals with
Disabilities Education Act and implementing provisions of this lllinois law, may qualify for services under Section 504 of the federal
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 if the student (i) has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities,
(ii) has a record of a physical or mental impairment, o (iii) is regarded as having a physical or mental impairment.

For further information, please contact:
Superintendent Janet Gladu

Central Office

(217) 659-7739

Emergency School Closings

In cases of bad weather and other local emergencies, please listen to any local radio or television station to be advised of school
closings or early dismissals. School closings for any reason will be announced by 6:30 a.m. If bad weather or other emergency occurs
Juring the day, please listen to local media stations for possible early dismissal information.

For your child's safety, make certain your child knows ahead of time where to go in case of an early dismissal.
If we dismiss early for an emergency, all after-school functions are automatically cancelled.

English Learners
The school offers opportunities for resident English Learners to achieve at high levels in academic subjects and to meet the same
challenging State standards that all children are expected to meet.

Parents/guardians of English Leamers will be informed how they can: (1) be involved in the education of their children; (2) be active
participants in assisting their children to attain English proficiency, achieve at high levels within a well-rounded education, and meet the
challenging State academic standards expected of all students; and (3) participate and serve on the District's Transitional Bilingual
Education Programs Parent Advisory Committee.

For questions related to this program or to express input in the school's English Learners program, contact Superintendent Janet Gladu
at (217) 659-7739.

Equal Education Opportunities & Sex Equity

Equal educational and extracurricular opportunities are available to all students without regard to race, color, nationality, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, ancestry, age, religion, physical or mental disability, status as homeless, immigration status, order of
protection status, or actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy.

No student shall, based on sex, sexual orientation, or gender identity be denied equal access to programs, activities, services, or
benefits or be limited in the exercise of any right, privilege, advantage, or denied equal access to educational and extracurricular
programs and activities.



Page |17

Any student or parent/guardian with a sex equity or equal opportunity concem should contact: Ashlee Goettsche — 217-659-371 3
agoettsche@laharpeeagles.com

Exemption from Physical Education Requirement (K-8)

In order to be excused from participation in physical education, a student must present an appropriate excuse from his or her
parent/guardian or from a person licensed under the Medical Practice Act. The excuse may be based on medical or religious
prohibitions. An excuse because of medical reasons must include a signed statement from a person licensed under the Medical
Practice Act that corroborates the medical reason for the request. An excuse based on religious reasons must include a signed
statement from a member of the clergy that corroborates the religious reason for the request. Upon written notice from a student's
parent/guardian, a student will be excused from engaging in the physical activity components of physical education during a period of
religious fasting.

A student in grades 7-8 may submit a written request to the building principal requesting to be excused from physical education courses
because of the student's ongoing participation in an interscholastic or extracurricular athletic program. The building principal will evaluate
requests on a case-by-case basis.

Students with an Individualized Education Program may also be excused from physical education courses for reasons stated in Handbook
Procedure - Exemption from PE Requirement.

Special activities in physical education will be provided for a student whose physical or emotional condition, as determined by a person
licensed under the Medical Practices Act, prevents his or her participation in the physical education course.

State law prohibits the School District from honoring parental excuses based upon a student's participation in athletic training, activities,
or competitions conducted outside the auspices of the School District.

Students who have been excused from physical education shall return to the course as soon as practical. The following considerations
will be used to determine when a student shall return to a physical education course:

1. The time of year when the student's participation ceases; and

2. The student's class schedule.

A student who is eligible for special education may be excused from physical education courses in either of the following situations:
1. Heor she (a) is in grades 3-12, (b) his or her IEP requires that special education support and services be provided during
physical education time, and (c) the parent/guardian agrees or the IEP team makes the determination: or
2. He orshe (a) has an IEP, (b) is participating in an adaptive athletic program outside of the school setting, and (c) the
parent/guardian documents the student's participation as required by the Superintendent or designee.

A student requiring adapted physical education will receive that service in accordance with the student’s Individualized Education
Program.

Extra-Curricular:
Student Council Grades 6-8. Four students from each grade level (6-8)—uwill be selected by their classmates for student council. They
will work with the student council advisor in planning activities for the junior high. In order to participate in Student Council a student
must meet the following criteria;
* Allcandidates must have 3 teacher signatures serving as a reference for their candidacy.
No suspensions of any kind. If students receive a suspension, they will be removed from Student Council immediately.
If a Student Council member is on the ineligible list 3 times, they will be removed from Student Council immediately.
If a Student Council member receives 3 detentions, they will be removed from Student Council immediately.
Attendance at School Board meetings as a Student Board Member is highly encouraged.

® o o o

Band and/or Chorus Grades 5-8. Students will be participating in programs and IESA contests.
*Students in 6-8 are not required to take Band or Chorus. Since these courses are electives, it is assumed that the students want to be
there. Students will not be allowed to drop the courses once they have started until the end of the semester.



Page |18

.. *5h Grade Band-Please keep in mind that it exciting to begin band and then, when it requires a little work and effort, the enthusiasm
/ears off. Students who stay with their instrument throughout the year see a great improvement for their efforts.

Playing the instrument becomes enjoyable and rewarding to a child's self-esteem and feelings of accomplishment. Because of this,
we hope parents will encourage their children to remain in band for the entire year and show pride in their accomplishments as they
attempt to leam a new skill. Students will be allowed to drop band, with written parent permission, up until the end of the 3¢ week of
the quarter.

Extracurricular and Athletic Activities Code of Conduct

La Harpe 5/6 Grade and 7/8 Grade Athletic Teams are in a Cooperative Agreement with Dallas City. Sports offered are 6/7/8
Baseball, 5/6 Girls Basketball, 7/8 Girls Basketball, 5/6 Boys Basketball, 7/8 Boys Basketball, 5/6 Volleyball, 7/8 Volleyball, 5-8 Girls
Track, 5-8 Scholastic Bowl, 5-8 Boys Track, and Cross Country 5-8.

Inclement Weather: If school is cancelled due to weather conditions, all athletic and extra-curricular activities will be cancelled. If
weather conditions worsen on a Saturday or later in an evening, the decision to cancel will be made by the athletic director or
administrator. Coaches, parents, and media will be notified of the cancellation.

Non-participants at practice: Only athletes who are members of the team are to be present at practice. There should not be any
younger siblings, friends, or parents of athletes present.

Athletic Council: The athletic council shall exist of the principal, athletic director, and all head coaches. The athletic council deals
with readmission to a sport or activity after dismissal, ejections from games, and other instances as needed.

Athletic Prices
Admission: Students, Senior Citizens (55 or older) $2.00
Adults $3.00

This Extracurricular and Athletic Activities Code of Conduct applies, where applicable, to all school-sponsored athletic and
extracurricular activities that are not part of an academic class nor otherwise carry credit for a grade.

Requirements for Participation in Athletic Activities
A student must meet all academic eligibility requirements and have the following fully executed documents on file in the school office
before being allowed to participate in any athletic activity: '
1. Acurrent certificate of physical fitness issued by a licensed physician, an advanced practice nurse or physician assistant. The
preferred certificate of physical fitness is the lllinois High School Association's “Pre-Participation Physical Examination Form.”
2. A permission slip to participate in the specific athletic activity signed by the student's parent/guardian.
3. Signed documentation agreeing to comply with the School District's policies and procedures on student athletic concussions
and head injuries.

Illinois Elementary School Association

Eligibility for most athletics is also governed by the rules of the Illinois Elementary School Association and, if applicable, these rules will
apply in addition to this Extracurricular and Athletic Activities Code of Conduct. In the case of a conflict between IESA and this Code,
the most stringent rule will be enforced.

Academic Eligibility
Selection of members or participants in extracurricular and athletic activities is at the discretion of the designated teachers, sponsors,
and coaches.

La Harpe Junior High is a member of the lllinois Elementary School Association, the Sand Valley Conference, and the Hancock
County Junior High Athletic Organization. In order to represent La Harpe Elementary/
.~ Junior High, students must meet eligibility rules of the IESA. In addition, the following rules and regulations must be met prior to and



Page |19

during athletic participation:
e Bein attendance at least 2 day the day of the game. This can be waived with extenuating circumstances by the principal.
Proof of a physical examination must be on file prior to participation in any sport including practices.
e Students serving a school suspension are not eligible to play during their suspension.
e Students must be passing all subjects. Grades are cumulative throughout the grading period.

In order to be eligible to participate in extracurricular and athletic activities, a student must maintain passing grades in all classes. Any
student failing to meet academic requirements will be suspended from the sport or activity for 7calendar days or until all academic
requirements are met, whichever is longer. Grades are cumulative throughout the grading period. Eligibility is turned in Wednesday
afternoon of each week for the following week (Monday through Saturday). Coaches, students, and parents are notified of ineligibility.

Students who are ineligible may not participate in games but are expected to be at practices and attend all athletic events. The athlete
is to sit on the bench with the team, not in uniform, and remain with the team throughout the game.

Students who are ineligible for three weeks may be in danger of being dismissed from the team. The athletic council will make the
determination.

Students must use their legal name when participating in athletic or extra-curricular activities.

Absence from School on Day of Extracurricular or Athletic Activity

A student who is absent from school after noon is ineligible for any extracurricular or athletic activity on that day unless the absence
has been approved in writing by the principal. Exceptions may be made by the designated teacher, sponsor or coach for justifiable
reasons, including: 1) a pre-arranged medical absence; 2) a death in the student's family; or 3) a religious ceremony or event.

A student who has been suspended from school is also suspended from participation in all extracurricular and athletic activities for the
duration of the suspension.

A student who is absent from school on a Friday before a Saturday event may be withheld from Saturday extracurricular or athletic
activities at the sole discretion of the designated teacher, sponsor or coach.

Code of Conduct

This Code of Conduct applies to all extracurricular and athletic activities and is enforced 365 days a year, 24 hours a day.

This Code does not contain a complete list of inappropriate behaviors. Violations will be treated cumulatively, with disciplinary penalties
increasing with subsequent violations. A student may be excluded from extracurricular or athletic activities while the school is
investigating the student's conduct.

Students and their parents/guardians are encouraged to seek assistance from the Student Assistance Program for alcohol or other
drug problems. Participation in an alcohol or drug counseling program will be taken into consideration in determining consequences for
Code of Conduct violations.

The student shall not:

1. Violate the school rules and School District policies on student discipline including policies and procedures on student
behavior;

2. Ingest or otherwise use, possess, buy, sell, offer to sell, barter, or distribute a beverage containing alcohol (except for religious
purposes);

3. Ingest or otherwise use possess, buy, sell, offer to sell, barter, or distribute tobacco or nicotine in any form;

4. Ingest or otherwise use, possess, buy, sell, offer to sell, barter, or distribute any product composed purely of caffeine in a
loose powdered form or any illegal substance (including mood-altering and performance enhancing drugs or chemicals) or
paraphernalia;

5. Use, possess, buy, sell, offer to sell, barter, or distribute any object that is or could be considered a weapon or any item that is
a look alike weapon. This prohibition does not prohibit legal use of weapons in cooking and in athletics, such as archery,
martial arts practice, target shooting, hunting, and skeet;




Page |20

6. Attend a party or other gathering and/or ride in a vehicle where alcoholic beverages and/or controlled substances are being

consumed by minors;
| 7. Actin an unsportsmaniike manner;

8. Violate any criminal law, including but not limited to, assault, battery, arson, theft, gambling, eavesdropping, vandalism and
reckless driving;

9. Haze or bully other students;

10. Violate the written rules for the extracurricular or athletic activity;

11. Behave in a manner that disrupts or adversely affects the group or school;

12. Be insubordinate or disrespectful toward the activity’s sponsors or team's coaching staff; or

13. Falsify any information contained on any permit or permission form required by the extracurricular or athletic activity.

Hazing is any humiliating or dangerous activity expected of a student to belong to a team or group, regardless of his or her willingness
to participate. Bullying includes cyber-bullying (bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication) and means any
physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that
has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

1. Placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student's or students’ person or property;

2. Causing a detrimental effect on the student's or students’ physical or mental health;

3. Interfering with the student's or students’ academic performance; or

4. Interfering with the student's or students’ ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided
by a school.

Examples of prohibited conduct include name-calling, using derogatory slurs, stalking, sexual violence, causing psychological harm,
threatening or causing physical harm, threatened or actual destruction of property, or wearing or possessing items depicting or implying
hatred or prejudice of one of the characteristics stated above.

Concussions and Head Injuries:
Student athletes must comply with lllinois' Youth Sports Concussion Safety Act and all protocols, policies and bylaws of the Illinois High
School Association before being allowed to participate in any athletic activity, including practice or competition.

A student who was removed from practice or competition because of a suspected concussion shall be allowed to return only after
all statutory prerequisites are completed, including without limitation, the School District's return-to-play and return-to-learn
protocols.

Drugs, Alcohol and Tobacco

Except with respect to prescription drugs used by the person for whom such drugs were

prescribed in the manner intended by the prescribing medical doctor, the possession, use, distribution, purchase or sale of any
alcoholic beverage, drug, drug paraphernalia, controlled substance, look alike, tobacco or tobacco product or any other substance
which, when taken into the human body is intended to alter mood or mental state, including any item or substance which is
represented by a student to be, or is believed by a student to be any of the foregoing, regardless of the true nature or appearance of
the substance, is prohibited in school buildings, on school buses and on all other school property or school related events at any
time. This prohibition shall include all school sponsored or school related activities, whether held before or after school, evenings or
weekends and shall additionally include a prohibition of use by a student athlete in any instance where the school can demonstrate a
reasonable connection to the school program or school athletic program. For purposes of this procedure, students who are under
the influence of prohibited substances shall be treated in the same manner as though they had prohibited substances in their
possession.

Dual-Activity Participation

If a conflict arises between two activities, students are to participate in the competition rather than the practice. If two competitions

are conflicting, a conference with the athletic director, coaches, parents, and students involved will be held to decide. If there is a

conflict between a school sport and a traveling team, the student must attend the school sport event or there will be a penalty of
. sitting the next game or match (whatever is missed).




Page |21

Due Process Procedures

Students who are accused of violating the Code of Conduct are entitled to the following due process:

The student should be advised of the disciplinary infraction with which he or she is being charged.

The student shall be entitled to a hearing before an appropriate administrator.

The student will be able to respond to any charges leveled against him or her.

The student may provide any additional information he or she wishes for the administrator to consider.

The administrator, with the help of other staff members if needed, may interview material witnesses or others with evidence
concemning the case.

If the administrator finds, after reviewing the evidence, that the violation occurred, he or she will impose sanctions on the
student, as follows:

abronp =

a.

Sanctions for violations other than drug and alcohol will be based on the nature of the offense and the number of
offenses, and may include suspension from all extracurricular or athletic activities for one of the time periods described
below:

e A specified period of time or percentage of performances, activities or competitions;

e The remainder of the season or for the next season; or

e The remainder of the student's school career.

Sanctions for alcohol and other drug violations, including tobacco, nicotine in any form, mood-altering or performance

enhancing drugs, products composed purely of caffeine in a loose powdered form, paraphernalia or any other illegal

substance, will be based on the following:

First violation

e Use, ingestion, possession, buying, selling, offering to sell, bartering, or distributing: A suspension of one third of the
total number of performances, activities, or competitions or the remainder of the season, whichever is shorter. This
penalty will be reduced if the student is enrolled in a school-approved alcohol or drug counseling program.

e Attendance at a party or riding in a vehicle where alcoholic beverages and/or controlled substances are being
consumed by minors: A suspension of one sixth of the total number of performances, activities or competitions, or the
remainder of the season, whichever is shorter.

e The student will be required to practice with the group, regardless of the violation (unless suspended or expelled fron
school).

Second violation

e Use, ingestion, possession, buying, selling, offering to sell, bartering, or distributing: A suspension of 12 weeks or 1
season, including suspension from all performances, activities, or competitions during this period. To participate
again in any extracurricular or athletic activity, the student must successfully participate in and complete a school-
approved alcohol or drug counseling program and follow all recommendations from that program.

e Attendance at a party or riding in a vehicle where alcoholic beverages and/or controlled substances are being
consumed by minors: A suspension of one third of the season and all extracurricular group performances, activities,
or competitions during this period.

e The student may be required to practice with the group (unless suspended or expelied from school).

Third violation

e Use, ingestion, possession, buying, selling, offering to sell, bartering, or distributing: A suspension from
extracurricular or athletic activities for the remainder of the student's school career.

e Attendance at a party or riding in a vehicle where alcoholic beverages and/or controlled substances are being
consumed by minors: A suspension of one calendar year from the date of the suspension, including all extracurricular
and athletic activities during this period.

7. The appropriate administrator will make a written report of his or her decision and rationale. The student may appeal the
decision to the Principal or Principal's designee.

All students remain subject to all the School District's policies and the school's student/parent handbook.

Grievance Procedure

Whenever a problem or grievance develops in an athletic activity, the following chain of command is to be followed by the person
with the grievance:



Page |22

e As soon as practical, the person must first attempt to solve the problem with the coach/sponsor involved. This process
shall be completed in a prompt and timely manner. The student should try to appropriately communicate his/her concerns
with the coach/sponsor first before the parents step in on behalf of their child.

e Parents should talk to the coach/sponsor if the student/coach conversation does not resolve the
issue. If the situation is not resolved, the participant may appeal to the athletic director or principal.

e Ifthereis still a grievance, the participant may discuss the issue with the superintendent.

o Ifthe grievance cannot be resolved after the above steps, the final decision regarding the grievance shall be with the Board
of Education for District #347. It is the responsibility of the party in grievance to appropriately contact the coach/sponsor
first and then to follow the chain of command.

Interscholastic Philosophy Statement/Guidelines
We believe interscholastic athletics and extra-curricular activities are an integral part of the total curriculum of the school. Itis
believed the following statements reflect our goal: Activities must be for all boys and girls who are physically able to participate.

Athletics and extra-curricular activities must be educational and contain learning experiences that fit into the overall educational
program; be controlled by school authorities, both local and state; and have leadership by regular members of the school staff or
those who have been duly appointed by the School Board.

At the 5M/6" grade level, the emphasis will be on fun, physical development, skills, social experience, and good sportsmanship.
Coaches will strive to have equal playing time for all students on the team.

At the 7t/8" grade level, the emphasis will be placed on achieving team goals, therefore, students will participate in games
according to the competition level of each individual game, fielding the most qualified and skilled players on the team, at the
discretion of the coaches. Playing time will be determined by game situations and coach's discretion.

Students will play at their grade level unless circumstances (such as number of players, skill level, respectful attitude, level of
sompetition, eligibility, work ethic, post-season |ESA series) warrant a move to a higher level.

Modification of Athletic or Team Uniform
Students may modify their athletic or team uniform for the purpose of modesty in clothing or attire that is in accordance with the
requirements of the student's religion or the student's cultural values or modesty preferences.

Responsibilities of Participants
Participation in extra-curricular programs is available to all eligible students, providing they are willing to assume certain responsibilities.

All students have a right to participate in an activity or sport but actual participation is a privilege and must be eamed. Therefore,
students are required to:
e Display high standards of social behavior at school, at games/events, and on social media sites.
Display outstanding sportsmanship.
e Remember that they are students first, and athletes or participants
second. Pay proper respect to our flag, officials, and opponents.
o Notify the coach of their legal name for the
roster. Be at practice and give his/her best at
practice.
o Abide by handbook policies.

Rules in Effect

The rules set forth in this Athletic Code are in effect throughout the school year from the first practice

session for any particular sport during a particular school term until the last day of that sport or until the last day of the school term
whichever comes last and twenty-four hours a day, whether or not school is in session and including vacation periods, and holidays.
The rules apply on and off campus and whether or not the misconduct occurs at school or a school- sponsored activity or in some
‘other locale. The rules apply to an athlete from the beginning of practice in the first sport in which the athlete attempts until the
completion of any school year or the completion of the athlete’s season whichever comes last.



Page |23

Student Athlete Concussions and Head Injuries

A student athlete who exhibits signs, symptoms, or behaviors consistent with a concussion in a practice or game will be removed
from participation or competition at that time. A student athlete who has been removed from an interscholastic contest for a possible
concussion or head injury may not return to that contest unless cleared to do so by a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its
branches in lllinois or a certified athletic trainer. If not cleared to return to that contest, a student athlete may not return to play or
practice until the student athlete has provided his or her school with written clearance from a physician licensed to practice medicine
in all its branches in lllinois or a certified athletic trainer working in conjunction with a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its
branches in lllinois.

Student athletes must comply with lllinois' Youth Sports Concussion Safety Act and all protocols, policies and bylaws of the lllinois
Elementary School Association before being allowed to participate in any athletic activity, including practice or competition.

A student who was removed from practice or competition because of a suspected concussion shall be allowed to return only after all
statutory prerequisites are completed, including without limitation, the School District's return-to-play and retum-to-leam protocols

Training Rules
Participants are expected to set a good example in regard to conduct. Rules are in effect from the beginning of practice or the
beginning of the school year, whichever comes first, until the end of the school year.

Head coaches/sponsors will conduct a parent meeting at the beginning of each season. At the meeting, the coach/sponsor will hand
out expectations for the season, including consequences for behavior and missed practices.

Travel

Sponsors/Coaches will be in charge of students from the time they leave school until they return. Al athletes shall travel to athletic
events and return home from athletic events with the team on which the athlete competes by use of school approved means of
transportation unless other arrangements have been approved by the coach/sponsor and administration. At the request of an
athlete's parent or guardian athletes may ride home with the parent or guardian (the student must be signed out with the coach by
the parent). Parents may give permission, by note or phone call to the coach, for their child to ride home with another responsible
adult. Due to the Coop, students may be dropped off at school with no coach on the bus, therefore, it is really important for parents to
be at the school when the bus arrives. Any student athlete found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject to discipline in
accordance with the school district's athletic discipline policies, rules and regulations as provided herein.

Faith’s Law Notifications

Employee Conduct Standards

School districts are required o include in their student handbook the District's Employee Code of Professional Conduct. These
standards, in part, define appropriate conduct between school employees and students. A copy of these standards can be found on
the District's website or requested from the Superintendent’s office.

Family Life & Sex Education Classes

Students will not be required to take or participate in any class or courses in comprehensive sex education, including in grades 6-12,
instruction on both abstinence and contraception for the prevention of pregnancy and sexually transmitted diseases, including HIV/AIDS;
family life instruction, including in grades 6-12, instruction on the prevention, transmission, and spread of AIDS; instruction on diseases:
recognizing and avoiding sexual abuse; or instruction on donor programs for organ/tissue, blood donor, and transplantation, if his or her
parent or guardian submits a written objection. The parent or guardian's decision will not be the reason for any student discipline, including
suspension or expulsion. Nothing in this Section prohibits instruction in sanitation, hygiene or traditional courses in biology.

Parents or guardians may examine the instructional materials to be used in any district sex education class or course.

Field Trips

Field trips are a privilege for students. Students must abide by all school policies during transportation and during field-trip activities,
and shall treat all field trip locations as though they are school grounds. Failure to abide by school rules and/or location rules during a
field trip may subject the student to discipline.



Page |24

All students who wish to attend a field trip must receive written permission from a parent or guardian with authority to give permission.
Students may be prohibited from attending field trips for any of the following reasons:

Failure to receive appropriate permission from parent/guardian or teacher;
Failure to complete appropriate coursework;

Behavioral or safety concerns;

Denial of permission from administration;

Other reasons as determined by the school.

Fines, Fees, and Charges; Waiver of Student Fees

The school establishes fees and charges to fund certain school activities. Students will not be denied the opportunity to participate in
curricular and extracurricular programs of the school district due to the inability of their parent or guardian to pay fees or certain
charges. Students whose parent or guardian is unable to afford student fees may receive a fee waiver. A fee waiver applies to all fees
related to school, instruction, and extracurricular activities.

Applications for fee waivers may be obtained from the school office and may be submitted by a parent or guardian of a student who
has been assessed a fee. As student is eligible for a fee waiver if at least one of the following prerequisites is met:

1. The student currently lives in a household that meets the same income guidelines, with the same limits based on household
size, that are used for the federal free meal's programs;

2. The student's parent is a veteran or active-duty military personnel with income at or below 200% of the federal poverty line.

3. The student is homeless, as defined by the Mc-Kinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.

The building principal will give additional consideration where one or more of the following factors are present:
Anillness in the family;

Unusual expenses such as fire, flood, storm damage, etc.;

Unemployment;

Emergency situations; or

When one or more of the parents/guardians are involved in a work stoppage.

The building principal will notify the parent/guardian promptly as to whether the fee waiver request has been granted or denied.
Questions regarding the fee waiver application process or an appeal of the District's decision to deny a fee waiver should be addressed
to the Building Principal.

Pursuant to the Hunger-Free Students' Bill of Rights Act, the school is required to provide a federally reimbursable meal or snack to a
student who requests one, regardless of whether the student has the ability to pay for the meal or snack or owes money for earlier
meals or snacks. Students may not be provided with an alternative meal or snack and the school is prohibited from publicly identifying
or stigmatizing a student who cannot pay for or owes money for a meal or snack.

Fines for loss or damage to school property are waived for students who meet certain eligibility guidelines.

Free and Reduced-Price Food Services; Meal Charge Notifications
The following notification is provided to all households of students at the beginning of each school year as federally required notification
regarding eligibility requirements and the application process for the free and reduced-price food services that are listed in Board policy
4:130, Free and Reduced-Price Food Services, and 4:140, Waiver of Student Fees. This noification is also provided to households of
students transferring to the District during the school year. For more information, see

, and/or contact the Building Principal or designee.

Free and Reduced-Price Food Services Eligibility
When the parents/guardians of students are unable to pay for their child(ren)'s meal services, meal charges will apply per a student's
eligibility category and will be processed by the District accordingly.



Page |25

A student's eligibility for free and reduced-price food services shall be determined by the income eligibility guidelines, family-size income
standards, set annually by the U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, and distributed by the Ill. State Board of Education.

Meal Charges for Meals Provided by the District

The Building Principal and District staff will work jointly to prevent meal charges from accumulating. Every effort to collect all funds due
to the District will be made on a regular basis and before the end of the school year. Contact your Building Principal or designee about
whether your child(ren)'s charges may be carried over at the end of the school year, i.e., beyond June 30th.

Unpaid meal charges are considered delinquent debt when payment is overdue as defined by Board policy 4:45, Insufficient Fund Checks
and Debt Recovery and the Hunger-Free Students’ Bill of Rights Act (105 ILCS 123/). The District will make reasonable efforts to collect
charges classified as delinquent debt, including repeated contacts to collect the amounts and, when necessary, requesting that the
student's parent(s)/guardian(s) apply for meal benefits to determine if the student qualifies for such benefits under Board policy 4:130,
Free and Reduced-Price Food Services. The District will provide a federally reimbursable meal or snack to a student who requests one,
regardless of the student's ability to pay or negative account balance.

When a student's funds are low and when there is a negative balance, reminders will be provided to the staff, students, and their
parent(s)/guardian(s) at regular intervals during the school year. State law allows the Building Principal to contact parents(s)/guardian(s)
to attempt collection of the owed money when the amount owed is more than the amount of five lunches [or insert lower amount]. If a
parent/guardian regularly fails to provide meal money for the child(ren) that he/she is responsible for in the District and does not qualify
for free meal benefits or refuses to apply for such benefits, the Building Principal or designee will direct the next course of action. Continual
failure to provide meal money may require the District to notify the Ill. Dept. of Children and Family Services (DCFS) and/or take legal
steps to recover the unpaid meal charges, up to and including seeking an offset under the State Comptroller Act, if applicable.

General Building Conduct

Students shall not arrive at school before 7:30a.m. and classes begin at 8:00 a.m. and students are dismissed at 3:00 p.m. each day.
The following rules shall apply, and failure to abide by the rules may result in discipline;

Hats and bandanas shall not be worn in the building. Any hat brought to school shall be removed before entering.

Students shall not run, talk loudly or yell in the hallways nor shall they push, shove or hit others.

Students shall not write on walls, desks or deface or destroy school property.

Chewing of gum is not permitted in the school building.

Skateboards are not permitted at school.

Water guns, play guns, and/or real guns are not permitted at school.

No radios, tape players, CD players, cameras are permitted without permission from the principal.

Grading & Promotion

School report cards are issued to students on a quarterly basis. For questions regarding grades, please contact the classroom
teacher.

The decision to promote a student to the next grade level is based on successful completion of the curriculum, attendance,
performance on standardized tests and other testing. A student will not be promoted based upon age or any other social reason not
related to academic performance.

One or all of the criteria below should be used as guidelines upon which the decision to retain should be based:
1. The student has final grades that justify retention (grades of F for all four quarters, 2 or more F's in fourth quarter).
2. Performance on state and national achievement tests may reinforce the need for retention.
3. Current academic and maturity factors combine to indicate success at the next grade level will be extremely unlikely
or impossible for the student.
4. Sub-standard achievement is the result of frequent or prolonged absence, lack of effort, or physical/social
immaturity.

School report cards are issued to students every quarter which is about nine weeks. Midterm reports are sent home during the 5
week for students with a grade of D or lower. Some teachers may send home low C notices. Grades are based on a 4.0 scale (A=4.0
B=3.0, C=2.0, D=1.0, F=0). Cumulative grades are averaged each quarter. The following scale is used for letter grades:



Page |26

98-100 A+ 88-89 B+ | 7879 C+ 68-69 D+ 0-59 F
93-97 A 83-87 B 73-17 C 63-67 D
90-92 A- 80-82 B- 70-72 C- 60-62 D-

For questions regarding grades, please contact the classroom teacher.

The decision to promote a student to the next grade level is based on successful completion of the curriculum, attendance,
performance on standardized tests and other testing. A student will not be promoted based upon age or any other social reasons
not related to academic performance.

Guidance & Counseling
The school provides a guidance and counseling program for students. The school's counselors are available to those students who
require additional assistance. .

Guidelines for Student Distribution of Non-School-Sponsored Publications
A student or group of students seeking to distribute more than 10 copies of the same material on one or more days to students must
comply with the following guidelines:
1. The student(s) must notify the Building Principal of the intent to distribute, in writing, at least 24 hours before distributing the
material. No prior approval of the material is required.
2. The material may be distributed at times and locations selected by the Building Principal, e.g., before the beginning or ending of
classes at a central location inside the building.
3. The Building Principal may impose additional requirements whenever necessary o prevent disruption, congestion, or the
) perception that the material is school-endorsed.
4. Distribution must be done in an orderly and peaceful manner, and may not be coercive.
5. The distribution must be conducted in a manner that does not cause additional work for school personnel. Students who
distribute material are responsible for cleaning up any materials left on school grounds.
6. Students must not distribute material that:

a.  Will cause a material and substantial disruption of the proper and orderly operation and discipline of the school or school
activities;

b. Violates the rights of others, including but not limited to, material that is libelous, slanderous or obscene, invades the privacy
of others, or infringes on a copyright;

c. s socially inappropriate or inappropriate due to the students’ maturity level, including but not limited to, material that is
obscene, pomographic, or pervasively lewd and vulgar, contains indecent and vulgar language, or sexting as defined by
School Board policy and Student Handbook;

d. Is reasonably viewed as promoting illegal drug use;

e. s distributed in kindergarten through eighth grade and is primarily prepared by non-students, unless it is being used for
school purposes. However, material from outside sources or the citation to such sources may be allowed, as long as the
material to be distributed or accessed is primarily prepared by students; or

f  Incites students to violate any Board policy.

7. Astudent may use the School District's Uniform Grievance Procedure to resolve a complaint.
8. Whenever these guidelines require written notification, the appropriate administrator may assist the student in preparing such
notification.

A student or group of students seeking to distribute 10 or fewer copies of the same publication on one or more days to students must
distribute such material at times and places and in a manner that will not cause substantial disruption of the proper and orderly
operation and discipline of the school or school activities and in compliance with paragraphs 4, 5, 6, and 7.



Harassment & Teen Dating Violence Prohibited




Page |28

Harassment Prohibited
No person, including a school or school district employee or agent, or student, shall harass, intimidate, or bully a student on the basis of actual
r perceived race; color; national origin; military status; unfavorable discharge status from military service; sex; sexual orientation; gender
identity; gender-related identity or expression; ancestry; age; religion; physical or mental disability; order of protection status; status of being
homeless: actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy; physical appearance; socioeconomic status; academic status;
association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics; or any other distinguishing
characteristic. The District will not tolerate harassing, intimidating conduct, or bullying whether verbal, physical, sexual, or visual, that affects
the tangible benefits of education, that unreasonably interferes with a student's educational performance, or that creates an intimidating,
hostile, or offensive educational environment. Examples of prohibited conduct include name-calling, using derogatory slurs, stalking, sexual
violence, causing psychological harm, threatening or causing physical harm, threatened or actual destruction of property, or wearing or
possessing items depicting or implying hatred or prejudice of one of the characteristics stated above.

Sexual Harassment Prohibited
The School and District shall provide an educational environment free of verbal, physical, or other conduct or communications constituting
harassment on the basis of sex as defined and otherwise prohibited by State and federal law.

Teen Dating Violence Prohibited

Engaging in teen dating violence that takes place at school, on school property, at school-sponsored activities, or in vehicles used for
school-provided transportation is prohibited. For purposes of this policy, the term teen dating violence occurs whenever a student who is 13
to 19 years of age uses or threatens to use physical, mental, or emotional abuse to control an individual in the dating relationship; or uses
or threatens to use sexual violence in the dating relationship.

For more information about this issue, please see the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's educational materials at:
www.cdc.gov/injury/features/dating-violence/index.html.

Making a Report or Complaint

Students are encouraged to promptly report claims or incidences of bullying, intimidation, harassment, sexual harassment, or any other
prohibited conduct to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Dean of Students, a Complaint
Manager, or any employee with whom the student is comfortable speaking. A student may choose to report to an employee of the student's
same gender.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:

Ashlee Goettsche

404 West Main Street

La Harpe, lllinois 61450

(217) 659-7739

agoettsche@laharpeeagles.com

Complaint Managers:

Janet Gladu Ryan Hopper

404 West Main Street 404 West Main Street

La Harpe, lllinois 61450 La Harpe, lllinois 61450
(217) 659-7739 (217) 659-3713
jgladu@laharpeeagles.com rhopper@laharpeeagles.com

Any person making a knowingly false accusation regarding prohibited conduct will likewise be subject to discipline.

Investigation Process
Reports and complaints of discrimination or harassment will be confidential to the greatest extent practicable, subject to the District's duty to
investigate and maintain an educational environment that is productive, respectful, and free of unlawful discrimination, including harassment.

Enforcement



Page | 29

Any District employee who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be subject to remedial
action and/or disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

Any District student who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be subject to remeaial
action and/or disciplinary action, including but not limited to, suspension and expulsion, consistent with the student discipline information in
this handbook.

Any third party who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be addressed in accordance
with the authority of the Board in the context of the relationship of the third party to the District, e.g., vendor, parent, invitee, etc. Any person
making a knowingly false accusation regarding prohibited conduct will likewise be subject to remedial and/or disciplinary action.

Retaliation Prohibited
Retaliation against any person for bringing complaints, participating in the complaint process, or otherwise providing information about
discrimination or harassment based on race, color, or national origin is prohibited.

Individuals should report allegations of retaliation to the Building Principal, an administrator, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, and/or a
Complaint Manager.

Head Lice

The school will observe the following procedures regarding head lice.

1. Parents are required to notify the school nurse if they suspect their child has head lice.

2. Infested students will be sent home following notification of the parent or guardian.

3. The school will provide written instructions to parent or guardian regarding appropriate treatment for the infestation.

4. Astudent excluded because of head lice will be permitted to return to school only when the parent or guardian brings the student
to school to be checked by the school nurse or building principal and the child is determined to be free of the head lice and €ggs
(nits). Infested children are prohibited from riding the bus to school to be checked for head lice.

Home & Hospital Instruction
A student who is absent from school, or whose physician, physician assistant or licensed advance practice registered nurse anticipates
his or her absence from school, because of a medical condition may be eligible for instruction in the student's home or hospital.

Appropriate educational services from qualified staff will begin no later than five school days after receiving a written statement from a
physician, physician assistant, or licensed advanced practice registered nurse. Instructional or related services for a student receiving
special education services will be determined by the student's individualized education program.

A student who is unable to attend school because of pregnancy will be provided home instruction, correspondence courses, or other
courses of instruction before (1) the birth of the child when the student's physician, physician assistant, or licensed advanced practice
nurse indicates, in writing, that she is medically unable to attend regular classroom instruction, and (2) for up to 3 months after the
child's birth or a miscarriage.

For information on home or hospital instruction, contact: Janet Gladu at (217) 659-7739.

Homeless Child’s Right to Education
When a child loses permanent housing and becomes a homeless person as defined at law, or when a homeless child changes his or her
temporary living arrangements, the parent or guardian of the homeless child has the option of either:
e continuing the child's education in the school of origin for as long as the child remains homeless or, if the child becomes
permanently housed, until the end of the academic year during which the housing is acquired; or
o enrolling the child in any school that non-homeless students who live in the attendance area in which the child or youth is
actually living are eligible to attend.

Assistance and support for homeless families includes:
e Food bank and meal programs: Christian Church Food Pantry
e  Food for Thought - See Brittany Teesdale - Building Secretary



Page |30

e Local service organizations: Goodwill 1522 East Carroll Street, Macomb (309)421-0595 & Salvation Army 505 North Randolph
Street, Macomb (309) 326-4824.

o Family shelters: Genesis Garden 307 East Carroll Street, Macomb (309) 326-3075

e Medical services: Hancock County Health Department (217) 357-2171

Homework
Homework is used as a way for students to practice what they have learned in the classroom. The time requirements and the frequency
of homework will vary depending on a student's teacher, ability and grade level.

Students who are absent from school for a valid cause (an excused absence) may make up missed homeworkina reasonable timeframe.

Honor Roll
5h g 7t and 8t Grade students will be recognized in the following manner at the end of each nine-week grading period:
e High Honors: Students must have a GPA of 3.85 or higher.
e Honors: Students must have a GPA of 3.50 — 3.84.
e Honorable Mention: Students must have a GPA of 3.25-3.49. (Students may have no grade lower than a “C” to be eligible for
Honor Roll)

Immunization, Health, Eye & Dental Examinations

Regquired Health Examinations and Immunizations

All students are required to present appropriate proof of a health examination and the immunizations against, and screenings for,
preventable communicable diseases within one year prior to:

1. Entering kindergarten or the first grade;
2. Entering the sixth and ninth grades; and
3. Enrolling in an lllinois school for the first time, regardiess of the student's grade.

Proof of immunization against meningococcal disease is required for students in grades 6 and 12. A diabetes screening must be
included as part of the health exam (though diabetes testing is not required). Students between the age of one and seven must
provide a statement from a physician assuring that the student was “risk-assessed” or screened for lead poisoning. Beginning with the
2017-2018 school year, an age-appropriate developmental screening and an age-appropriate social and emotional screening are
required parts of each health examination.

Failure to comply with the above requirements by October 15 of the current school year will result in the student's exclusion from
school until the required health forms are presented to the school, subject to certain exceptions. A student will not be excluded from
school due to his or her parent/guardian'’s failure to obtain a developmental screening or a social and emotional screening.

New students who register mid-term have 30 days following registration to comply with the heaith examination and immunization
requirements. If a medical reason prevents a student from receiving a required immunization by October 15, the student must present,
by October 15, an immunization schedule and a statement of the medical reasons causing the delay. The schedule and statement of
medical reasons must be signed by an appropriate medical professional.

Eye Examination
All students entering kindergarten or the school for the first time must present proof by October 15 of the current school year of an eye

examination performed within one year. Failure to present proof by October 15, allows the school to hold the student's report card until
the student presents: (1) proof of a completed eye examination, or (2) that an eye examination will take place within 60 days after
October 15.

Dental Examination

All students entering kindergarten, second, sixth and ninth grades must present proof by May 15 of the current school year of having
been examined by a licensed dentist within the last 18 months. Failure to present proof allows the school to hold the child's report card
until the student presents: (1) proof of a completed dental examination, or (2) that a dental examination will take place within 60 days




Page |31
after May 15.

Exemptions
A student will be exempted from the above requirements for:

1. Medical grounds if the student's parent/guardian presents to the building principal a signed statement explaining the objection;

2. Religious grounds if the student's parent/guardian presents to the building principal a completed Certificate of Religious
Exemption;

3. Health examination or immunization requirements on medical grounds if a physician provides written verification:

4. Eye examination requirement if the student's parent/guardian shows an undue burden or lack of access to a physician
licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches who provides eye examinations or a licensed optometrist; or

5. Dental examination requirement if the student's parent/guardian shows an undue burden or a lack of access to a dentist.

Invitations & Gifts
Party invitations or gifts for classmates should not be brought to school to be distributed. Items such as these are of a personal nature

and should be mailed home using the list in the school directory. The office is unable to release addresses and phone numbers of
students who are not listed in the school directory.

Make-Up Work
If a student's absence is excused or if a student is suspended from school, he/she will be permitted to make up all missed work, including

homework and tests, for equivalent academic credit. Students who are unexcused from school will not be allowed to make up missed
work.

Mandated Reporters

All school personnel, including teachers and administrators, are required by law to immediately report any and all suspected cases of
child abuse or neglect to the lllinois Department of Children and Family Services.

Parent Notices Required by Every Student Succeeds Act

1. Teacher Qualifications: A parent/guardian may request, and the District will provide in a timely manner, the professional
qualifications of your student's classroom teachers, including, at a minimum, whether:

2. The teacher has met the State qualifications and licensing criteria for the grade levels and subject areas in which the teacher provides

instruction.

The teacher is teaching under emergency or other provisional status.

The teacher is teaching in the field of discipline of the certification of the teacher.

Paraprofessionals provide services to the student and, if so, their qualifications.

Testing Transparency: The State and District requires students to take certain standardized tests. A parent/guardian may request,

and the District will provide in a timely manner, information regarding student participation in any assessments mandated by law or

District policy, which shall include information on any applicable right you may have to opt your student out of such assessment.

7. Annual Report Card: Each year, the District is required to disseminate an annual report card that includes information on the District
as a whole and each school served by the District, with aggregated and disaggregated information for each required subgroup of
students including: student achievement on academic assessments (designated by category), graduation rates, district performance,
teacher qualifications, and certain other information required by federal law. When available, this information will be placed on the
District's website at laharpeeagles.org

8. Parent & Family Engagement Compact

9. Unsafe School Choice Option: The unsafe school choice option allows students to transfer to another District school or fo a public
charter school within the District under certain circumstances.

10. Student Privacy: Students have certain privacy protections under federal law.

11. English Learners: The school offers opportunities for resident English Learners to achieve at high levels in academic subjects and
to meet the same challenging State standards that all children are expected to meet.

12. Homeless Students: For information on supports and services available to homeless students, see handbook procedure.

SO0k w

For further information on any of the above matters, please contact the building principal.



Page |32

__Parking

she school has two locations available for school visitor parking.
(hose dropping of and picking up children may do so in the north parking lot between 7:45 am and 3:00 pm.

Vehicles MAY NOT be parked or located in the bus lanes or fire lanes at ANY TIME. Bus lanes and fire lanes are clearly marked.
Vehicles located in these locations may be ticketed and/or towed by the police.

Parent Organizations & Booster Clubs
Parent organizations and booster clubs are invaluable resources to the District's schools. While parent organizations and booster clubs
have no administrative authority and cannot determine District policy, the School Board welcomes their suggestions and assistance.

Parent organizations and booster clubs may be recognized by the Board and permitted to use the District's name, a District school's
name, or a District school's team name, or any logo attributable to the District provided they first receive the Superintendent or
designee's express written consent. Consent to use one of the above-mentioned names or logos will generally be granted if the
organization or club has by-laws containing the following:

1. The organization’s or club’s name and purpose, such as, to enhance students’ educational experiences, to help meet educational
needs of students, to provide extra athletic benefits to students, to assist specific sports teams or academic clubs through financial
support, or to enrich extracurricular activities.

The rules and procedures under which it operates.

An agreement to adhere to all Board policies and administrative procedures.

A statement that membership is open and unrestricted, meaning that membership is open to all parents/guardians of students

enrolled in the school, District staff, and community members.

5. A statement that the District is not, and will not be, responsible for the organization’s or club's business or the conduct of its

members, including on any organization or club websites or social media accounts.

An agreement to maintain and protect its own finances.

/. A recognition that money given to a school cannot be earmarked for any particular expense. Booster clubs may make
recommendations, but cash or other valuable consideration must be given to the District to use at its discretion. The Board's legal
obligation to comply with Title [X by providing equal athletic opportunity for members of both genders will supersede an
organization or club’s recommendation.

SENCORED

»

Permission to use one of the above-mentioned names or logos may be rescinded at any time and does not constitute permission to act
as the District's representative. At no time does the District accept responsibility for the actions of any parent organization or booster
club regardless of whether it was recognized and/or permitted to use any of the above-mentioned names or logos. The Superintendent
shall designate an administrative staff member to serve as the recognized liaison to parent organizations or booster clubs. The liaison
will serve as a resource person and provide information about school programs, resources, policies, problems, concemns, and emerging
issues. Building staff will be encouraged to participate in the organizations.

Pesticide Application Notice

The district maintains a registry of parents/guardians of students who have registered to receive written or telephone notification prior to
the application of pesticides to school grounds. To be added to the list, please contact:

Janet Gladu

(217) 659-7739

jgladu@laharpeeagles.com

Notification will be given before application of the pesticide. Prior notice is not required if there is imminent threat to health or property.

Playground and Recess Rules

Recess is a privilege. Students who misbehave at recess or when outside of the classroom will be given a verbal waming, limitation of

the activity, or continued misbehavior will result in a teacher or office referral. Obey the supervisors and be respectful. All students are
__Jexpected to participate in recess activities unless a note is sent from a parent or guardian stating otherwise and giving the reason.



Page |33

e When the whistle sounds, stop and listen for directions.

Stay in the designated area for play. Do not leave the playground without permission from the supervisor.

Use the playground equipment as it was designed to be used. Do not climb up the slides. Swing straight. Watch for
people running by.

Treat other people with respect and care.

Do not wrestle, fight, or play karate-type games. Do not shove other students.

Do not spit or use curse words.

Do not bully or threaten other students.

Play games safely and use good sportsmanship.

No throwing of snowballs, rocks, dirt or wood chips.

Only school-supplied equipment is to be brought out to the playground. (Personal toys/athletic equipment should be left at
home.)

Prevention of Anaphylaxis

While t is not possible for the School or District to completely eliminate the risks of an anaphylactic emergency, the District maintains a
comprehensive policy on anaphylaxis prevention, response, and management in order to reduce these risks and provide
accommodations and proper treatment for anaphylactic reactions. Parent(s)/quardian(s) and students who desire more information or
who want a copy of the District's policy may contact the Building Principal,




Page |34




Page |35

Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment

Bullying, intimidation, and harassment diminish a student's ability to learn and a school's ability to educate. Preventing students from
engaging in these disruptive behaviors and providing all students equal access to a safe, non-hostile learning environment are importa
district and school goals.

Bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, national origin, military status, unfavorable discharge from military service, sex,
sexual orientation, gender orientation, gender-related identity or expression, ancestry, age, religion, physical or mental disability, physical
appearance, socioeconomic status, academic status, order of protection status, homelessness, actual or marital status, parenting status,
pregnancy, parenting status, association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived
characteristics, or any other distinguishing characteristic is prohibited in each of the following situations:
1. During any school-sponsored education program or activity.
2. While in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at designated school bus stops waiting for
the school bus, or at school-sponsored or school-sanctioned events or activities.
3. Through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer network, or other similar electronic
school equipment.
4. Through the transmission of information from a computer that is accessed at a non-school-related location, activity, function,
or program or from the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used by the school district or
school if the bullying causes a substantial disruption to the educational process or orderly operation of a school.

Bullying includes cyber-bullying and means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made
in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or
more of the following:

1. Placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student's or students’ person or property;

2. Causing a substantially detrimental effect on the student's or students’ physical or mental health:

3. Substantially interfering with the student's or students’ academic performance; or

4. Substantially interfering with the student's or students’ ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, «
privileges provided by a school.

Cyberbullying means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, including without limitation any transfer of
signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic
system, photo-electronic system, or photo-optical system, including without limitation efectronic mail, Internet communications, instant
messages, or facsimile communications. Cyberbullying includes the creation of a webpage or weblog in which the creator assumes the
identity of another person or the knowing impersonation of another person as the author of posted content or messages if the creation
or impersonation creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying. Cyberbullying also includes the distribution by
electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed
by one or more persons if the distribution or posting creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying.

Bullying may take various forms, including without limitation one or more of the following: harassment, threats, intimidation, stalking,
physical violence, sexual harassment, sexual violence, theft, public humiliation, destruction of property, or retaliation for asserting or
alleging an act of bullying. This list is meant to be illustrative and non-exhaustive.

Students are encouraged to immediately report bullying. A report may be made orally or in writing to the building principal,
nondiscrimination coordinator, district complaint manager or any staff member with whom the student is comfortable speaking. All school
staff members are available for help with a bully or to make a report about bullying. Anyone, including staff members and
parents/guardians, who has information about actual or threatened bullying is encouraged to report it to the district complaint manager
or any staff member. Anonymous reports are also accepted by phone call or in writing.



Page |36

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:
Ashlee Goettsche

04 West Main Street
La Harpe, Iflinois 61450
(217) 659-7739
agoettsche@laharpeeagles.com

Complaint Managers:

Janet Gladu Ryan Hopper

404 West Main Street 404 West Main Street

La Harpe, lllinois 61450 La Harpe, lllinois 61450
(217) 659-7739 (217) 659-3713
jgladu@laharpeeagles.com rhopper@laharpeeagles.com

A reprisal or retaliation against any person who reports an act of bullying is prohibited. A student's act of reprisal or retaliation will be
treated as bullying for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial actions.

A student will not be punished for reporting bullying or supplying information, even if the school's investigation concludes that no bullying
occurred. However, knowingly making a false accusation or providing knowingly false information will be treated as bullying for purposes
of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial actions.

Students and parents/guardians are also encouraged to read the following school district policies: 7:20, Harassment of Students
Prohibited and 7:180, Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation and Harassment.

Sonsistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights, the school shall make diligent efforts to notify a
parent or guardian within 24-hours after the school's administration is made aware of a student's involvement in an alleged bullying
incident. The term “bullying incident" includes individual instances of bullying, as well as all threats, suggestions, or instances of
self-harm determined to be a result of bullying. Notification to a parent or guardian shall include, as appropriate, the availability of
social work services, counseling, school psychological services, other interventions, and restorative measures.

PUNS (Prioritization of Urgency of Need for Services) Database Information for Students and Parents or Guardians

The Hlinois Department of Human Services (IDHS) maintains a statewide database known as the PUNS database (Prioritization of
Urgency of Need for Services) that records information about individuals with intellectual disabilities or developmental disabilities who
are potentially in need of services.

IDHS uses the data on PUNS to select individuals for services as funding becomes available, to develop proposals and materials for
budgeting, and to plan for future needs. The PUNS database is available for children with intellectual disabilities or developmental
disabilities with unmet service needs.

Registration to be included on the PUNS database is the first step toward receiving developmental disabilities services in this State. A
child who is not on the PUNS database will not be in the queue for State developmental disabilities services.

For more information and to sign up for PUNS, see the lllinois Department of Human Services PUNS information page at
https://www.dhs state.il.us/page.aspx?item=41131.

You may also contact the following District employee for assistance:
Susan Pratt, Special Education Coordinator

4 04 West Main Street

La Harpe, lliinois 61450



Page |37

(21&0 659-3713
spratt@laharpeeagles.com

Related Service Logs

For a child with an individualized education program (IEP), the school district must create related service logs that record the type of
related services administered under the child's IEP and the minutes of each type of related service that has been administered. The
school will provide a child's parent/guardian a copy of the related service log at the annual review of the child's IEP and at any other
time upon request.

Release During School Hours

For safety and security reasons, a prior written or oral consent of a student's custodial parent/guardian is required before a student is
released during school hours: (1) at any time before the regular dismissal time or at any time before school is otherwise officially
closed, and/or (2) to any person other than a custodial parent/guardian.

Early Dismissal Announcement
The Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable efforts to issue an announcement whenever it is necessary to close school
early due to inclement weather or other reasons.

Release Time for Religious Instruction & Observance
A student will be released from school, as an excused absence, to observe a religious holiday or for religious instruction. The student’s
parent/guardian must give written notice to the building principal at least 5 calendar days before the student’s anticipated absence(s).

Students excused for religious reasons will be given an opportunity to make up all missed work, including homework and tests, for
equivalent academic credit.

Request to Access Classroom or Personnel for Special Education

Evaluation or Observation

The parent/guardian of a student receiving special education services, or being evaluated for eligibility, is afforded reasonable access
to educational facilities, personnel, classrooms, and buildings. This same right of access is afforded to an independent educational
evaluator or a qualified professional retained by or on behalf of a parent or child.

For further information, please contact the building principal.

Resources for Biking & Walking Safety Education

Pedestrian Safety Programs

Pedestrian Safer Jouney by the Federal Highway Administration - Includes age-appropriate videos with follow-up quizzes and
discussion guides on safe walking. The material is divided into three age rages: 510 9, 10 to 14, and 15 to 18. Also includes a list of
additional resources and curricula from around the country for teachers and parents/caregivers. Available at:
www.pedbikeinfo.org/pedsaferjourney/index.html.

Child Pedestrian Safety Curriculum by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration - Teaches and encourages pedestrian safety
for students in grades kindergarten through 5. It is organized into five lessons: walking near traffic, crossing streets, crossing
intersections, parking lot safety, and school bus safety. Each lesson builds upon previous set of skills learned. Available at:
www.nhtsa.gov/pedestrian-safety/child-pedestrian-safety-curriculum

WalkSafe by the University of Miami KidZ Neuroscience Center — organized into three levels for grades kindergarten- 1, 2, 3, and 4-5,
and includes lessons using videos, outside simulation activities, and art projects. Supplemental materials include handouts, flashcards,
and pre- and post-assessment tests. Available at: kidzneurosciencecenter.com/walksafe.

Bicycle Safety Programs
Bicycle Safer Joumney by the Federal Highway Administration — Includes age-appropriate videos with follow-up quizzes and discussion
guides on safe bicycling. The material is divided into three age ranges: 5to 9, 10 to 14, and 15 to 18. Also includes a list of additional




Page |38

resources and curricula from around the country for teaches and parents/caregivers. Available at:
www.pedbikeinfor.org/bicyclesaferjourney/index.html

Bikeology by Shape America and the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration — Aligns with the National Standards for
kindergarten -12 Physical Education and includes lessons and assessments for skills and knowledge. Supplemental materials include a
parent guide to reinforce the curriculum. Available at: https://www.shapeamerica.org/search-results.aspx?g=bikeology

BikeSafe by the University of Miami KiDZ Neuroscience Center — Contains four off-bike lessons to teach bicycle safety skills to middle
school-aged children through interactive simulations, modeling, and creative activities. Supplementary materials include student
worksheets and parent tip sheets. An on-bike lesson plan is also provided. Available at: https:/kidznc.org/bikesafe

Bike Safety Quiz by Ride llinois — Teaches kids, adults, and motorists how to share the road safety. Interactive quizzes for each
audience cover safety techniques and relevant state laws. Available at: www.bikesafetyquiz.com

Safety Drill Procedures & Conduct

Safety drills will occur at times established by the school board. Students are required to be silent and shall comply with the directives
of school officials during emergency drills. There will be a minimum of three (3) evacuation drills, a minimum of one (1) severe weather
(shelter-in-place) drill, a minimum of one (1) law enforcement lockdown drill to address a school shooting incident, and a minimum of
one (1) bus evacuation drill each school year. There may be other drills at the direction of the administration. The law enforcement
lockdown drill will be announced in advance and a student's parent/guardian may elect to exclude their child from participating in this
drill. All other drills will not be preceded by a warning to students.

School Breakfast & Lunch Program

Breakfast is served every school day from 7:30 a.m. to 7:55 a.m. Lunch is served every school day from 11:00 a.m. to 12:35 p.m.,
except when there is a 11:30 a.m. or earlier dismissal.

All students eat breakfast and lunch for free. Adult prices for breakfast - $2.50 and lunch $3.60. Extra milk and room milk may be
surchased for $0.40.

School Bus Safetv Rules

1. Be aware of moving traffic and pay attention to your surroundings.

2. Dress properly for the weather. Make sure all drawstrings, ties, straps, etc. on all clothing, backpacks and

other items, are shortened or removed to lessen the likelihood of them getting caught in bus doors, railings

or aisles.

Artive on time at the bus stop and stay away from the street while waiting for the bus.

4. Stay away from the bus until it stops completely and the driver signals you to board. Enter in single file

without pushing. Always use the handrail.

Take a seat right away and remain seated facing forward. Keep your hands, arms, and head inside the bus.

6. Talk quietly on the bus. No shouting or creating loud noises that may distract the driver. Tablets,
computers, smart phones, smart watches, and other electronic devices must be silenced on the bus unless
a student uses headphones.

7. Help keep the bus neat and clean. Keep belongings out of the aisle and away from emergency exits. Eating
and drinking are not allowed on the bus.

8. Always listen to the driver’s instructions. Be courteous to the driver and other students. Sit with your
hands to yourself and avoid making noises that would distract the driver or bother other passengers.

9. Wait until the bus pulls to a complete stop before standing up. Use the handrail when exiting the bus.

10. Stay out of the danger zone next to the bus where the driver may have difficulty seeing you. Take at least
five giant steps (10 feet) away from the bus and out of the danger zone, until you can see the driver and
the driver sees you. Never crawl under a bus.

11. If you must cross the street after you get off the bus, wait for the driver’s signal and then cross in front of
the bus. Cross the street only after checking both ways for traffic, even after the driver’s signal.

W

W



Page |39
12. Never run back to the bus, even if you dropped or forgot something.

Additional resources follow:

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration - School Bus Safety
https://one.nhtsa.gov/people/injury/buses/getting to school/schoolbus2.html
U.S. Department of Transportation - School Bus Safety Campaign Material
www.trafficsafetymarketing.gov/get-materials/school-bus-safety/evergreen-campaign-material

e National Safety Council - Tips for a Safe Ride
www.nsc.org/home-safety/tools-resources/seasonal-safety/back-to-school/bus
[11. State Police - School Bus Safety https://isp.illinois.gov/StaticFiles/docs/TrafficResources/5-542.pdf
I1l. State Board of Education - School Bus Safety What Parents Should Know
www.isbe.net/Documents/bus_safety parents.pdf

e Il State Board of Education - Instructions To School Bus Riders

School Dress Code

Students are expected to wear clothing in a neat, clean, and well-fitting manner while on school property and/or in attendance at school
sponsored activities. Students are to use discretion in their dress and are not permitted to wear apparel that causes a substantial
disruption in the school environment.

e Studentdress (including accessories) may not display sexual innuendo, lewd, vulgar, obscene, or offensive language or
symbols, including gang symbols.

e Hats, coats, bandannas, sweat bands, and sunglasses may not be worn in the building during the school day and kept in their
locker until the end of the school day.

e Hair styles, dress, and accessories that pose a safety hazard are not permitted in the shop, laboratories, or during physical
education.

e Clothing with holes, rips or tears that reveal buttocks and or undergarments require tights or leggings undemeath. Clothing
that is otherwise poorly fitting that reveals buttocks and/or undergarments may not be worn at school.

e The length of shorts or skirts must be appropriate for the school environment.

o Low rise shorts, skirts, pants or jeans will not be permitted. Shirts must touch the top of pants.

e Shirts, tops, and dresses - Straps on tank tops must be at least one inch wide. Necklines must be high enough to cover
cleavage. The stomach and back need to be covered when seated and bending over. Strapless, sheer and halter-type shirts
are not permitted.

e Tops/shirts are to be worn at all times including Physical Education and athletic practice. Cut up shirts with large arm holes

are not allowed at any time.

Appropriate footwear must be worn at all times.

Hoods shall not be worn at any time.

Ifthere is any doubt about dress and appearance, the superintendent/principal will make the final decision.

Student whose dress causes a substantial disruption of the orderly process of school functions or endangers the health
or safety of the student, other students, staff or others may be subject to discipline.

e 8th grade graduates will wear robes for graduation.

Dress for Recess
Mittens and/or gloves and hats need to be brought to school along with boots or other appropriate warm shoes for outside recess in the
cold. Students will go outside unless it is raining or muddy or extremely cold.

School Operations During a Pandemic or Other Health Emergency

A pandemic is a global outbreak of disease. Pandemics happen when a new virus emerges to infect individuals and, because there is
little to no pre-existing immunity against the new virus, it spreads sustainably. Your child’s school and district play an essential role,
along with the local health department and emergency management agencies, in protecting the public's health and safety during a
pandemic or other health emergency.



Page |40

During a pandemic or other health emergency, you will be notified in a timely manner of all changes to the school environment and
_ schedule that impact your child. Please be assured that even if school is not physically in session, it is the goal of the school and district
" provide your child with the best educational opportunities possible.

Additionally, please note the following:

1. All decisions regarding changes to the school environment and schedule, including a possible interruption of in-person learning, will
be made by the superintendent in consultation with and, if necessary, at the direction of the Governor, lllinois Department of Public
Health, local health department, emergency management agencies, and/or Regional Office of Education.

2. Available leaming opportunities may include remote and/or blended leaming. Blended learning may require your child to attend
school on a modified schedule.

3. Students will be expected to participate in blended and remote instruction as required by the school and district. Parents are
responsible for assuring the participation of their child. Students who do not participate in blended or remote learning will be
considered truant.

4. Al school disciplinary rules remain in effect during the interruption of in-person leaming. Students are subject to discipline for
disrupting the remote learing environment to the same extent that discipline would be imposed for disruption of the traditional
classroom.

5. Students and parents will be required to observe all public health and safety measures implemented by the school and district in
conjunction with state and local requirements.

6. During a pandemic or other health emergency, the school and district will ensure that educational opportunities are available to all
students.

7. School personnel will work closely with students with disabilities and other vulnerable student populations to minimize the impact of
any educational disruption.

8. Students who have a compromised immune system, live with an individual with a compromised immune system, or have a medical
condition that may impact their ability to attend school during a pandemic or other public health emergency should contact school
officials. :

9. During a pandemic or other health emergency, teachers and school staff will receive additional training on health and safety
measures.

10. In accordance with school district or state mandates, the school may need to conduct a daily health assessment of your child.

' Parents and students will be notified of the exact assessment procedures if this becomes necessary.

11 Parents should not send their child to school if their child exhibits any symptoms consistent with the pandemic or other health
emergency.

12. Please do not hesitate to contact school or district officials if you have any concerns regarding your child's education, health or
safety.

School Visitation Rights

The School Visitation Rights Act permits employed parents/guardians, who are unable to meet with educators because of a work conflict,
the right to time off from work under certain conditions to attend necessary school functions such as parent-teacher conferences,
academic meetings and behavioral meetings. Letters verifying participation in this program are available from the school office upon
request.

School Volunteers

All school volunteers must complete the “Volunteer Information Form" and be approved by the building principal prior to assisting at the
school. Forms are available in the school office. Some teachers utilize parent volunteers in the classroom. The individual teachers
make this decision. Teachers who desire parent volunteers will notify parents. For school-wide volunteer opportunities, please contact
the building principal.

Volunteers are required to check in and out at the main office and receive a visitor badge before going to their destination.

School Wellness

La Harpe CSD 347's wellness policy, district wellness committee, and school wellness teams promote healthy eating, physical activity,

nutrition education, and wellness. Families and students are welcome and invited to participate in the school weliness teams that help

organize site-based activities and events to promote wellness goals. Families are asked to select healthy, store-bought and labeled,
__offerings for school snacks and school sponsored events, including fundraisers. All food served to students must meet the U.S.



Page |41

Department of Agriculture’s Nutrition Smart Snack rules. These nutrition guidelines can be found in the La Harpe Community School
District's Weliness policy or online at https:/foodplanner.healthiergeneration.org/calculator More information is available on the district
website and policy manual.

School Year Calendar & Day

School Calendar

The Board of Education, upon the Superintendent's recommendation and subject to State regulations, annually establishes the dates
for opening and closing classes, teacher institutes and in-services, the length and dates of vacation, and the days designated as legal
school holidays. The school calendar shall have a minimum of 185 days to ensure 176 days of student attendance.

Commemorative Holidays

The teachers shall include instruction relative to commemorative persons, activities or events as designated in School Code on the
commemorative holiday or at any other time during the school year and at any point in the curricufum when such instruction is deemed
appropriate. The Board of Education may, from time to time, designate a regular school day as a commemorative holiday.

School Day
The Board of Education establishes the length of the school day with the recommendation of the Superintendent and subject to State

law requirements, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure compliance with observances required by State law are followed during
each day of school attendance.

Search & Seizure

In order to maintain order safety and security in the schools, school authorities are authorized to conduct reasonable searches of
school property and equipment, as well as of students and their personal effects. “School authorities” includes school liaison police
officers.

School Property and Equipment as well as Personal Effects Left There by Students

School authorities may inspect and search school property and equipment owned or controlled by the school (such as, lockers, desks,
and parking lots), as well as personal effects left there by a student, without notice to or the consent of the student. Students have no
reasonable expectation of privacy in these places or areas or in their personal effects left there.

The building principal may request the assistance of law enforcement officials to conduct inspections and searches of lockers, desks,
parking lots, and other school property and equipment for illegal drugs, weapons, or other illegal or dangerous substances or materials,
including searches conducted through the use of specially trained dogs.

Students Searches

School authorities may search a student and/or the student's personal effects in the student's possession (such as, purses, wallets,
knapsacks, book bags, lunch boxes, etc.) when there is a reasonable ground for suspecting that the search will produce evidence the
particular student has violated or is violating either the law or the school or district's student rules and policies. The search will be
conducted in a manner that is reasonably related fo its objective of the search and not excessively intrusive in light of the student's age
and sex, and the nature of the infraction.

School officials may require a student to cooperate in an investigation if there is specific information about activity on the student's
account on a social networking website that violates the school's disciplinary rules or school district policy. In the course of the
investigation, the student may be required to share the content that is reported in order for the school to make a factual determination.
School officials may not request or require a student or his or her parent/guardian to provide a password or other related account
information to gain access to the student’s account or profile on a social networking website.

Seizure of Property

If a search produces evidence that the student has violated or is violating either the law or the school or district's policies or rules,
evidence may be seized and impounded by school authorities, and disciplinary action may be taken. When appropriate, evidence may
be transferred to law enforcement authorities.

Questioning of Students Suspected of Committing Criminal Activity




Page |42

Before a law enforcement officer, school resource officer, or other school security person detains and questions on school grounds a
student under 18 years of age who is suspected of committing a criminal act, the building principal or designee will: (a) Notify or
“ttempt to notify the student's parent/guardian and document the time and manner in writing; (b) Make reasonable efforts to ensure the
student's parent/guardian is present during questioning or, if they are not present, ensure that a school employee (including, but not
limited to, a social worker, psychologist, nurse, guidance counselor, or any other mental health professional) is present during the
questioning; and (c) If practicable, make reasonable efforts to ensure that a law enforcement officer trained in promoting safe
interactions and communications with youth is present during the questioning.

Sex Offender Notification Law
State law prohibits a convicted child sex offender from being present on school property when children under the age of 18 are present,
except for in the following circumstances as they relate to the individual’s child(ren):
1. To attend a conference at the school with school personnel to discuss the progress of their child.
2. To participate in a conference in which evaluation and placement decisions may be made with respect to their
child's special education services.
3. To attend conferences to discuss issues conceming their child such as retention or promotion.

In all other cases, convicted child sex offenders are prohibited from being present on school property unless they obtain written permission
from the superintendent or school board.

Anytime that a convicted child sex offender is present on school property — including the three reasons above - he/she is responsible for
notifying the principal's office upon arrival on school property and upon departure from school property. It is the responsibility of the
convicted child sex offender to remain under the direct supervision of a school official at all times he/she is in the presence or vicinity of
children.

A violation of this law is a Class 4 felony.

Information about sex offenders or violent offenders against youth is available to the public on the lllinois State Police (ISP) website.
The ISP website contains the following:

Illinois Sex Offender Registry, https://isp.illinois.gov/Sor/Disclaimer

Illinois Murderer and Violent Offender Against Youth Registry, https://isp.illinois.gov/MVOAY/Disclaimer



Page |43

Frequently Asked Questions Concerning Sex Offenders, https://isp.illinois.gov/Sor/FAQs

Sexual Abuse Response and Prevention Resource Guide

The lllinois State Board of Education (ISBE) maintains a resource guide on sexual abuse response and prevention. The guide contains
information on and the location of children’s advocacy and centers, organizations that provide medical evaluations and treatment to
victims of child sexual abuse, organizations that provide mental health evaluations and services to victims and families of victims of
child sexual abuse, and organizations that offer legal assistance to and provide advocacy on behalf of victims of child sexual abuse.
This guide can be accessed through the ISBE advocacy on behalf of victims of child sexual abuse. This guide can be accessed
through the ISBE website at www.isbe.net or you may request a copy of this guide by contacting the school's office.

Staff Development - Professional Development Programs

In order to achieve a balanced educational ecosystem for La Harpe CSD students, District 347 is committed to requiring professional
development program for staff members. The goal of the program is to update and improve the skills of staff members in order to
achieve and maintain a high level of job performance and satisfaction. The professional development program shall include the
following:

e Training in Abuse and Neglected Child Report Act and Erin's Law Training. This training will be required annually for all staff.

» Training in Health conditions of students that include chronic health conditions; anaphylactic reactions and management;
management of asthma, prevention of asthma symptoms, and emergency response to asthma in a school setting; basics of
seizure recognition and first aid and emergency protocols guidelines issued by the CDC; the basics of diabetes cares; current
best practices regarding identification and treatment of attention deficit hyperactivity disorder; and how to respond to an
incident involving life-threatening bleeding. These trainings will occur within 6 months of employment and at least every 5
years for all employees.

e Training in social emotional learning.

e Training in developing cultural competency which includes how to understand and limit implicit bias and implicit racial bias.

o Training in identifying the warning signs of mental illness, trauma, and suicidal behavior in your and appropriate intervention
and referral guidelines.

e Training in domestic and sexual violence and the needs of expectant and parenting youth.

o Training in the professionals and accommodations for students that includes Americans with Disabilities Act and
homelessness.

e Training in educator ethics and responding to child sexual abuse and grooming behaviors including: teacher-student conduct;
school employee-student conduct; and evidence-informed training on preventing, recognizing, reporting, and responding to
child sexual abuse and grooming.

« Training in effective instruction in violence prevention and conflict resolution.

Training regarding the adverse consequences of school exclusion, classroom management strategies, culturally responsive
discipline and appropriate supportive resources.

Annual training for school nutrition personnel.

Coaching staff must complete concussion awareness training.

Training in hazardous and toxic materials, for staff that works with such toxins.

Annual training in sexual harassment prevention.

Title IX training.

Training for all staff on the prevention of discrimination and harassment based on race, color, and national origin in school.
PUNS training for Special Education Coordinator. The district's Special Education Coordinator is the official PUNS employee.



Page |44

Standardized Testing
Students and parents/guardians should be aware that the State and District require students to take certain standardized tests,
“;cluding the following: IAR, ISA, and AlMsweb.

Parents/Guardians are encouraged to cooperate in preparing students for the standardized testing, because the quality of the
education the school can provide is partially dependent upon the school's ability to continue to prove its success in the state’s
standardized tests. Parents/Guardians can assist their students to achieve their best performance by doing the following:

1. Encourage students to work hard and study throughout the year;
2. Ensure students get a good night's sleep during the night before exams;
3. Ensure students eat well the morning of the exam, particularly ensuring they eat sufficient protein;
4, Remind students and emphasize the importance of good performance on standardized testing;
5. Ensure students are on time and prepared for tests, with appropriate materials;
6. Teach students the importance of honesty and ethics during the performance of these and
other tests;
7. Encourage students to relax on testing day.
Student Absences

Subject to specific requirements in State law, the following children are not required to attend public school: (1) any child attending a
private school (including a home school) or parochial school, (2) any child who is physically or mentally unable to attend school
(including a pregnant student suffering medical complications as certified by her physician), (3) any child lawfully and necessarily
employed, (4) any child over 12 and under 14 years of age while in confirmation classes, (5) any child absent because of religious
reasons, including to observe a religious holiday, for religious instruction, or because his or her religion forbids secular activity on a
particular day(s) or time of day, and (6) any child 16 years of age or older who is employed and is enrolled in a graduation incentives
program.

For students who are required to attend school there are two types of absences: excused and unexcused. Excused absences include:
iliness (including up to 5 days per school year for mental or behavioral health of the student), observance of a religious holiday or
avent, death in the immediate family, family emergency, situations beyond the control of the student as determined by the school
Joard, circumstances that cause reasonable concern to the parent/guardian for the student's mental, emotional, or physical health or
safety, attending a military honors funeral to sound TAPS, attend a civic event, or other reason as approved by the building principal.
Students eligible to vote are also excused for up to two hours to vote in a primary, special, or general election.

Additionally, a student will be excused for up to 5 days in cases where the student's parent/guardian is an active-duty member of the
uniformed services and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or
combat-support postings. The Board of Education, in its discretion, may excuse a student for additional days relative to such leave or
deployment. A student and the student's parent/guardian are responsible for obtaining assignments from the student's teachers prior to
any excused absences and for ensuring that such assignments are completed by the student prior to his or her return to school.
Students who are excused from school will be given a reasonable timeframe to make up missed homework and classwork
assignments.

All other absences are considered unexcused. Pre-arranged excused absences must be approved by the building principal.
The school may require documentation explaining the reason for the student's absence.

In the event of any absence, the student's parent/guardian is required to call the school at (217) 659-3713 before 8:00 a.m. to explain
the reason for the absence. If a call has not been made to the school by 10:00 a.m. on the day of a student's absence, a school official
will call the home to inquire why the student is not at school. If the parent/guardian cannot be contacted, the student will be required to
submit a signed note from the parent/guardian explaining the reason for the absence. Failure to do so shall result in an unexcused
absence. Upon request of the parent/guardian, the reason for an absence will be kept confidential.

Vacations and Special Events during the school year
e Parents are strongly encouraged to schedule family vacations with the school year in mind to ensure that students attend
a maximum number of days.

Y e Requests by parents to have children excused from school for vacations and special events must be filed with the



Page |45

administration. Parents will be asked to fill out a “Parent/Guardian Consent-Vacation During School in Session” form. With
the form on file, students will be marked “Absent-Excused”. With no form on file, students will be marked “Absent-

Unexcused”.

e Prior to the student's departure, there is no requirement that a teacher will have work ready for the student, but teachers
may provide work to do.

e Students will be expected to complete an “Independent Study Contract” before leaving in which activities will be due upon
return.

e Students will be expected to turn in all work that was missed in addition to the activities chosen on the Independent Study
Contract. All work will be made up within the time allotment (one day for each day gone) including homework, projects,
quizzes, and tests. Work that is not made up or turned in on time will receive a “0” score.

Activity Eligibility
* Inorderto be eligible to participate in an extra-curricular activity (including practices) students must be in attendance
at least Y of the day of an activity and arrive no later than 11:15am.
e On School Improvement Days they must be in attendance by 10:15am.
e Any person whose absence is excused for any reason other than illness or injury for any portion of the day may participate
in any activity at the discretion of the superintendent/principal.

Leaving School during the Day
* Appointments: Appointments should be made with the student’s schedule in mind. Appointments should be made so that
students will miss a minimum amount of school time. The procedure to be followed is:
o Students who have appointments during the school day should have a note from a parent stating what time
they will be picked up, the doctor’s or dentist's name, time, date and location of the appointment.
o All students must sign out in the office and receive permission to leave from the superintendent/principal or her
designee.
o Students are expected to retum to school as soon as the appointment has concluded and report to the office.
 lliness: Students, who becomes ill during the school day, must follow the procedure below:
o Students must be checked out in the school's office by their parent or guardian.
o Students who leave the school building without following the above guidelines will be considered
unexcused and may receive a suspension.
o A phone call after the student has left without permission will not suffice.

Tardies
On the 34 unexcused tardy in a class, students will be given a detention by the teacher. Each successive unexcused tardy will result
in a detention for each additional occurrence.

In the event of any absence, the student's parent/guardian is required to call the school at (217) 659-3713 before 8:00 a.m. to explain
the reason for the absence. If a call has not been made to the school by 10:00 a.m. on the day of a student's absence, a school
official will call the home to inquire why the student is not at school. If the parent/guardian cannot be contacted, the student will be
required to submit a signed note from the parent/guardian explaining the reason for the absence. Failure to do so shall result in an
unexcused absence. Upon request of the parent/guardian, the reason for an absence will be kept confidential.

Hunting
Students wanting to hunt need to turn into the office a copy of their permit and complete a “Request to be absent” form. If a teacher

does not sign their form, due to failing or low grades in the class, students will not be excused from that class period.

Diagnostic Procedures for Identifying Student Absences and Support Services to Truant or Chronically Truant Students

State law requires every school district to collect and review its chronic absence data and determine what systems of support and
resources are needed to engage chronically absent students and their families to encourage the habit of daily attendance and promote
success. This review must include an analysis of chronic absence data from each attendance center.




Page |46

Furthermore, State law provides that school districts are encouraged to provide a system of support to students who are at risk of
_ reaching or exceeding chronic absence levels with strategies and are also encouraged to make resources available to families such as
~ jose available through the State Board of Education's Family Engagement Framework to support and engage students and their
ramilies to encourage heightened school engagement and improved daily school attendance.

"Chronic absence" means absences that total 10% or more of school days of the most recent academic school year, including
absences with and without valid cause, and out-of-school suspensions.

The School and District use the following diagnostic procedures for identifying the causes of unexcused student absences: Interviews
with the student, his or her parent/guardian and any school officials who may have information about the reasons for the student's
attendance problems.

Supportive services to truant or chronically truant students include: parent conferences, student counseling, family counseling, and
information about existing community services

Student Appearance

A student's appearance, including dress and hygiene, must not disrupt the educational process or compromise standards of health and
safety. The school does not prohibit hairstyles historically associated with race, ethnicity, or hair texture, including, but not fimited to,
protective hairstyles such as braids, locks, and twists. The school will not prohibit students from wearing or accessorizing the student's
graduation attire with items associated with the student's cultural, ethnic, or religious identity or any other protected characteristic or
category identified in the lllinois Human Rights Act. Students who disrupt the educational process or compromise standards of health
and safety must modify their appearance.

Student Athlete Concussions and Head Injuries
Student athletes must comply with lllinois’ Youth Sports Concussion Safety Act and all protocols, policies and bylaws of the lllinois High
School Association before being allowed to participate in any athletic activity, including practice or competition.
A student who was removed from practice or competition because of a suspected concussion shall be allowed to return only after all
statutory prerequisites are completed, including without limitation, the School District's return-to-play and return-to-leam protocols.
N
Student Behavior
Prohibited Student Conduct
Students may be disciplined for gross disobedience or misconduct, including but not limited to the following:
1. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, selling or offering tobacco or nicotine materials, including electronic cigarettes, e-
cigarettes, vapes, vape pens or other vaping related products.
2. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling alcoholic beverages. Students who are under the influence of an alcoholic
beverage are not permitted to attend school or school functions and are treated as though they had alcohol in their possession.
3. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, selling or offering for sale:

a. Any illegal drug, controlled substance, or cannabis (including marijuana, hashish, and medical cannabis unless the
student is authorized to be administered a medical cannabis infused product under Ashley’s Law).

b. Any anabolic steroid unless it is being administered in accordance with a physician's or licensed practitioner's
prescription.

c. Any performance-enhancing substance on the lllinois High School Association’s most current banned substance list
unless administered in accordance with a physician's or licensed practitioner's prescription.

d. Any prescription drug when not prescribed for the student by a physician or licensed practitioner, or when used in a
manner inconsistent with the prescription or prescribing physician's or licensed practitioners instructions. The use or
possession of medical cannabis, even by a student for whom medical cannabis has been prescribed, is prohibited
unless the student is authorized to be administered a medical cannabis infused product under Ashley’s Law.

e. Any inhalant, regardless of whether it contains an illegal drug or controlled substance: () that a student believes is, or
represents to be capable of, causing intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system;
or (b) about which the student engaged in behavior that would lead a reasonable person to believe that the student
intended the inhalant to cause intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system. The
prohibition in this section does not apply to a student's use of asthma or other legally prescribed inhalant medications.

f  “Look-alike" or counterfeit drugs, including a substance that is not prohibited by this policy, but one: (a) that a student

- believes to be, or represents to be, an illegal drug, controlled substance, or other substance that is prohibited by this




o o

~

10.

1.

12.
13.

14.
15.

16.
17.
18.
19.

20.

21.

Page | 47

policy; or (b) about which a student engaged in behavior that would lead a reasonable person to believe that the student
expressly or impliedly represented to be an illegal drug, controlled substance or other substance that is prohibited by
this policy.

g. Drug paraphemalia, including devices that are or can be used to: (a) ingest, inhale, or inject cannabis or controliea
substances into the body; and (b) grow, process, store, or conceal cannabis or controlled substances.

h.  Any substance inhaled, injected, smoked, consumed or otherwise ingested or absorbed with the intention of causing a
physiological or psychological change in the body, including without limitation, pure caffeine in a tablet or powdered
form.

Students who are under the influence of any prohibited substance are not permitted to attend school or school functions and
are treated as though they have the prohibited substance, as applicable, in their possession.

Using, possessing, controlling or transferring a "weapon” or violating the procedures listed below under the Weapons Prohibition
section of this handbook procedure.

Using or possessing an electronic paging device.

Using a cellular telephone, smartphone, video recording device, personal digital assistant (PDA), or similar electronic device in
any manner that disrupts the educational environment or violates the rights of others, including using the device to take
photographs in locker rooms or bathrooms, cheat, or otherwise violate student conduct rules. Prohibited conduct specifically
includes, without limitation, creating and sending, sharing, viewing, receiving or possessing an indecent visual depiction of
oneself or another person through the use of a computer, electronic communication device or cellular telephone, commonly
known as “sexting." Unless otherwise banned under this policy or by the building principal, all cellular phones, smartphones and
other electronic devices must be kept powered-off and out-of-sight during the regular school day unless: (a) the supervising
teacher grants permission; (b) use of the device is provided in a student's individualized education program (IEP); (c) it is used
during the student's lunch period; or (d) it is needed in an emergency that threatens the safety of students, staff, or other
individuals..

Using or possessing a laser pointer unless under a staff member's direct supervision and in the context of instruction.
Disobeying rules of student conduct or directives from staff members or school officials. Examples of disobeying staff directives
include refusing a staff member's request to stop, present school identification or submit to a search.

Engaging in academic dishonesty, including cheating, intentionally plagiarizing, wrongfully giving or receiving help during a
academic examination, altering report cards and wrongfully obtaining test copies or scores.

Engaging in bullying, hazing or any kind of aggressive behavior that does physical or psychological harm to a staff person or
another student or encouraging other students to engage in such behavior. Prohibited conduct specifically includes, without
limitation, any use of violence, intimidation, force, noise, coercion, threats, stalking, harassment, sexual harassment, public
humiliation, theft or destruction of property, retaliation, hazing, bullying, bullying using a school computer or a school computer
network or other comparable conduct.

Engaging in any sexual activity, including without limitation, offensive touching, sexual harassment, indecent exposure (including
mooning) and sexual assault.

Engaging in teen dating violence.

Causing or attempting to cause damage to, stealing, or attempting to steal, school property or another person’s personal
property.

Entering school property or a school facility without proper authorization.

In the absence of a reasonable belief that an emergency exists, calling emergency responders (calling 9-1-1); signaling or setting
off alarms or signals indicating the presence of an emergency; or indicating the presence of a bomb or explosive device on
school grounds, school bus or at any school activity.

Being absent without a recognized excuse.

Being involved with any public-school fraternity, sorority, or secret society.

Being involved in a gang or engaging in gang-like activities, including displaying gang symbols or paraphernalia.

Violating any criminal law, including but not limited to, assault, battery, arson, theft, gambling, eavesdropping, vandalism and
hazing.

Engaging in any activity, on or off campus, that interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the school environment, school
operations, or an educational function, including but not limited to, conduct that may reasonably be considered to: (a) be a threat
or an attempted intimidation of a staff member; or (b) endanger the health or safety of students, staff, or school property.
Making an explicit threat on an Intenet website against a school employee, a student, or any school-related personnel if the
Internet website through which the threat was made is a site that was accessible within the school at the time the threat wa.



Page |48

made or was available to third parties who worked or studied within the school grounds at the time the threat was made, and
the threat could be reasonably interpreted as threatening to the safety and security of the threatened individual because of his
or her duties or employment status or status as a student inside the school.

22. Operating an unarmed aircraft system (AUS) or drone for any purpose on school grounds or at any school event unless granted
permission by the building principal.

For purposes of these rules, the term “possession” includes having control, custody, or care, currently or in the past, of an object or
substance, including situations in which the item is: (a) on the student's person; (b) contained in another item belonging to, or under the
control of, the student, such as in the student's clothing, backpack, or automobile; () in a school's student locker, desk, or other school
property; (d) at any location on school property or at a school-sponsored event; or () in the case of drugs and alcohol, substances
ingested by the person.

Efforts, including the use of positive interventions and supports shall be made to deter students, while at school or a school-related event,
from engaging in aggressive behavior that may reasonably produce physical or psychological harm to someone else.

No disciplinary action shall be taken against any student that is based totally or in part on the refusal of the student's parent/guardian to
administer or consent to the administration of psychotropic or psychostimulant medication to the student.

When and Where Conduct Rules Apply
The grounds for disciplinary action also apply whenever the student's conduct is reasonably related to school or school activities, including
but not limited to:

1. On, or within sight of, school grounds before, during, or after school hours or at any time;

2. Off school grounds at a school-sponsored activity or event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship fo school;

3. Traveling to or from school or a school activity, function, or event;

4. Anywhere, if the conduct interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the school environment, school operations, or an
educational function, including but not limited to, conduct that may reasonably be considered to: (a) be a threat or an attempted
intimidation of a staff member: or (b) endanger the health or safety of students, staff, or school property; or

5. During periods of remote leamning.

%

Disciplinary Measures

School officials shall limit the number and duration of expulsions and out-of-school suspensions to the greatest extent practicable, and,

where practicable and reasonable, shall consider forms of non-exclusionary discipline before using out-of-school suspensions or

expulsions. School personnel shall not advise or encourage students to drop out of school voluntarily due to behavioral or academic

difficulties. Potential disciplinary measures include, without limitation, any of the following measures:

Notifying parents/guardians.

Disciplinary conference.

Withholding of privileges.

Temporary removal from the classroom.

Return of property or restitution for lost, stolen or damaged property.

In-school suspension.

After-school study or Saturday study provided the student's parent/guardian has been notified. (If transportation arrangements

cannot be made in advance, an alternative disciplinary measure will be assigned to the student.)

8. Community service.

9. Seizure of contraband: confiscation and temporary retention of the personal property that was used to violate school rules.

10. Suspension of bus riding privileges.

11. Suspension from school and all school activities for up to 10 days. A suspended student is prohibited from being on school
grounds.

12. Expulsion from school and all school activities for a definite time period not to exceed 2 calendar years. An expelled student is
prohibited from being on school grounds.

13. Transfer to an alternative program if the student is expelled or otherwise qualifies for transfer under State law.

14. Notifying juvenile authorities or other law enforcement whenever the conduct involves criminal activity, such as, illegal drugs
(controlled substances), “look-alikes," alcohol or weapons or in other circumstances as authorized by the reciprocal reporting
agreement between the District and local law enforcement agencies.

NookRswn =



Page |49

The above list of disciplinary measures is a range of options that will not always be applicable in every case. In some circumstances, it
may not be possible to avoid suspending or expelling a student because behavioral interventions, other than a suspension or expulsion,
will not be appropriate and available, and the only reasonable and practical way to resolve the threat and/or address the disruption is
suspension or expulsion.

Isolated Time Out, Time Out and Physical Restraint

Isolated time out, time out, and physical restraint shall only be used if the student's behavior presents an imminent danger of serious
physical harm to the student or others and other less restrictive and intrusive measures were tried and proven ineffective in stopping it.
The school may not use isolated time out, time out, and physical restraint as discipline or punishment, convenience for staff, retaliation,
a substitute for appropriate educational or behavioral support, a routine safety matter, or to prevent property damage in the absence of
imminent danger of serious physical harm to the student or others. The use of prone restraint is prohibited.

Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment is iflegal and will not be used. Corporal punishment is defined as slapping, paddling, or prolonged maintenance of
students in physically painful positions, or intentional infliction of bodily harm. Corporal punishment does not include reasonable force as
needed to maintain safety for students, staff, or other persons, or for the purpose of self-defense or defense of property.

Weapons Prohibition

A student who is determined to have brought one of the following objects to school, any school-sponsored activity or event, or any activity

or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school shall be expelled for a period of not less than one year but not more than 2

calendar years:

1. A firearm, meaning any gun, rifle, shotgun, weapon as defined by Section 921 of Title 18 of the Unites States Code, firearm as
defined in Section 1.1 of the Firearm Owners Identification Card Act, or firearm as defined in Section 24-1 of the Criminal Code of
1961. The expulsion period may be modified by the superintendent, and the superintendent's determination may be modified by the
board on a case-by-case basis.

2. Aknife, brass knuckles or other knuckle weapon regardless of its composition, a Billy club, or any other object if used or attempted
to be used to cause bodily harm, including “look alikes” of any firearm as defined above.

3. The expulsion requirement may be modified by the superintendent, and the superintendent's determination may be modified by the
board on a case-by-case basis.

Gang & Gang Activity Prohibited

‘Gang" is defined as any group, club or organization of two or more persons whose purposes include the commission of illegal acts. No
student on or about school property or at any school activity or whenever the student's conduct is reasonably related to a school activity,
shall: (1) wear, possess, use, distribute, display, or sell any clothing, jewelry, paraphemalia or other items which reasonably could be
regarded as gang symbols; commit any act or omission, or use either verbal or non-verbal gestures, or handshakes showing membership
or affiliation in a gang; or (2) use any speech or commit any act or omission in furtherance of the interest of any gang or gang activity,
including, but not limited to, soliciting others for membership in any gangs; (3) request any person to pay protection or otherwise intimidate,
harass or threaten any person; (4) commit any other illegal act or other violation of district policies, (5) or incite other students to act with
physical violence upon any other person.

Re-Engagement of Returning Students

The building principal or designee shall meet with a student returning to school from an out-of-school suspension, expulsion or alternative
school setting. The goal of this meeting shall be to support the student's ability to be successful in school following a period of exclusion
and shall include an opportunity for students who have been suspended to complete or make-up missed work for equivalent academic
credit.

Expulsion
The Board of Education is authorized to expel students guilty of gross disobedience or misconduct for the remainder of the school term
or for a shorter period as determined by the Board. A student and/or parent shall be due the following procedural protection:

1. Prior to expulsion, a student shall be provided written notice of the charges and the time and place of the hearing. If the charges are
denied, the student shall have an opportunity for a hearing at the time and place designated in the notice, conducted by the Board or



Page |50

a hearing officer appointed by the Board. If a hearing officer is appointed by the Board, he/she shall report to the Board the evidence
presented at the hearing and the Board shall take such final action as it finds appropriate.

"\ The Board shall provide written notice to the parents or guardian of the time, place and purpose of the hearing by registered or
certified mail and request the appearance of the parents or guardian at the expulsion hearing.

3. During the expulsion hearing, the student and his/her parents or guardian may be represented by counsel, present witnesses and
other evidence on his/her behalf, and cross examine adverse witnesses.

4. The expulsion hearing shall be a bifurcated proceeding. First, the Board or hearing officer shall hear the evidence on the issue of
whether the student is guilty of gross disobedience or misconduct charges. After presentation of the evidence or receipt of the hearing
officer's report, the Board shall decide the issue of guilt. Ifthe Board finds the student guilty of the gross disobedience or misconduct as
charged, it shall then hear evidence on the appropriate level of discipline to be meted out. After presentation of the evidence or receipt
of the hearing officer's report, the Board shall decide whether expulsion or some lesser form of discipline shall be imposed upon the
student.

Due Process

The students, parents, or legal guardian may appeal any disciplinary action by sending a written notice of appeal within two (2) school
days to the building principal. Upon receipt of the appeal, the superintendent/principal will set up a meeting with the parents or legal
guardian within two (2) days. The parent/guardian may appeal the Superintendent/principal's decision to the Board of Education at the
next scheduled Board of Education meeting. The decision of the Board of Education will be final.

Behavior Intervention Guidelines

The school and district will comply with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and the llinois State Board of Education's
Special Education rules when disciplining students with disabilities. Behavioral interventions will be used with students with disabilities
to promote and strengthen desirable behaviors and reduce identified inappropriate behaviors. No special education student shall be
expelled if the student’s particular act of gross disobedience or misconduct is a manifestation of his or her disability as determined
through a manifestation hearing. Any special education student whose gross disobedience or misconduct is not a manifestation of his
or her disability may be expelled pursuant to the expulsion procedures.

)

.1 fundamental principle is that positive, non-aversive interventions designed to develop and strengthen desirable student behavior
should be used, whenever possible. Undesirable behavior should be reduced by developing, strengthening or generalizing desirable
behavior to displace the undesirable behavior.

While positive approaches alone will not always succeed in managing extremely inappropriate behavior, the use of more restrictive
behavior interventions should be approached with caution. The use of restrictive interventions for students with disabilities should be
based on assessment, planning, supervision, evaluation, documentation, and protective measures. The

use of restrictive interventions should maintain respect for human dignity and personal privacy and adhere to professionally accepted
instructional practices.

District #347 must establish and maintain a committee to develop policies and procedures on the use of behavioral
interventions for students with disabilities who require behavioral interventions.

The use of positive behavioral interventions will be promoted and include, but are not limited to, the following components:

1. Behavior Intervention Committee; Committee chair - Counselor Ashlee Goettsche, RTIB Elementary - Julie Garrison, Jennifer
Hensley, Carrie Finch, and Junior High — Sharon Berlett, Joe Hincks, and Niki Pence.

2. Designation of behavioral interventions by level of restrictiveness;

3. Identification of behavioral intervention consultant;

4. Procedures for the development of behavioral management plans for students with disabilities having significant behavioral
and/or emotional needs and for such students requiring restrictive interventions;

5. Procedures for the documentation of emergency use of restrictive interventions;

6. Provisions for parent involvement;

7. Provisions for staff training and professional development.

__These identified components shall be detailed in District Behavioral Guidelines for Students with Disabilities.



Page |51

District #347 Board shall (1) fumish a copy of its local policies and procedures to parents and guardians of all students with individualized
education plans within 15 days after the policies and procedures have been adopted by the School Board or at the time an individualized
education plan is first implemented for the student and at the beginning of each school year thereafter, and require that each school
inform its students of the existence of the policies and procedures annually.

Student Biometric Information

Before collecting biometric information from students, the school must seek the permission of the student's parent/quardian or the
student, if over the age of 18. Biometric information means information that is collected from students based on their unique
characters, such as a fingerprint, voice recognition or retinal scan.

Student Medication

Taking medication during school hours or during school-related activities is prohibited unless it is necessary for a student's health and
well-being. When a student's licensed health care provider and parent/guardian believe that it is necessary for the student to take a
medication during school hours or school-related activities, the parent/guardian must request that the school dispense the medication
to the child by completing a “School Medication Authorization Form.”

No school or district employee is allowed to administer to any student, or supervise a student's self-administration of, any prescription
or non-prescription medication until a completed and signed School Medication Authorization Form is submitted by the student's
parent/guardian. No student is allowed to possess or consume any prescription or non-prescription medication on school grounds or at
a school-related function other than as provided for in this procedure.

Self-Administration of Medication

A student may possess and self-administer an epinephrine injector (e.g., EpiPen®) and/or an asthma inhaler or medication prescribed
for use at the student's discretion, provided the student's parent/guardian has completed and signed a School Medication Authorization
Form.

Students who are diabetic may possess and self-administer diabetic testing supplies and insulin if authorized by the student's diabetes
care plan, which must be on file with the school.

Students with epilepsy may possess and self-administer supplies, equipment and medication, if authorized by the student's seizure
action plan, which must be on file with the school.

Students may self-administer (but not possess on their person) other medications required under a qualified plan, provided the
student's parent/guardian has completed and signed a School Medication Authorization Form.

The school district shall incur no liability, except for willful and wanton conduct, as a result of any injury arising from a student's self-
administration of medication, including asthma medication or epinephrine injectors, or medication required under a qualifying plan. A
student's parent/guardian must indemnify and hold harmless the school district and its employees and agents, against any claims, except
a claim based on willful and wanton conduct, arising out of a student's self-administration of an epinephrine injector, asthma medication,
and/or a medication required under a qualifying plan.

Administration of Medical Cannabis

In accordance with the Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program, qualifying students are allowed to utilize medical cannabis
infused products while at school and school events. Please contact the building principal for additional information. Discipline of a student
for being administered a product by a designated caregiver pursuant to this procedure is prohibited. The District may not deny a student
attendance at a school solely because he or she requires administration of the product during school hours.

Undesignated Medications

The school may maintain the following undesignated prescription medications for emergency use: (1) Asthma medication; (2)
Epinephrine injectors; (3) Opioid antagonists; and (4) Glucagon. No one, including without limitation, parents/guardians of students,
should rely on the school or district for the availability of undesignated medication. This procedure does not guarantee the availability of
undesignated medications. Students and their parents/guardians should consult their own physician regarding these medication(s).




Page |52

_ Emergency Aid to Students
“"“lothing in this policy shall prohibit any school employee from providing emergency assistance to students, including administering
«nedication.

Student Privacy
The District has adopted and uses several policies and procedures regarding student privacy, parental access to information and
administration of certain physical examinations to students. Copies of these policies are available upon request.

Student Privacy Protections

Surveys

All surveys requesting personal information from students, as well as any other instrument used to collect personal information from
students, must advance or relate to the District's educational objectives, or assist students’ career choices. This applies to all surveys,
regardless of whether the student answering the questions can be identified or who created the survey.

Surveys by Third Parties

Before a school official or staff member administers or distributes a survey or evaluation created by a third party to a student, the
student's parent/guardian may inspect the survey or evaluation, upon their request and within a reasonable time of their request. This
applies to every survey: (1) that is created by a person or entity other than a district official, staff member, or student, (2) regardless of
whether the student answering the questions can be identified, and (3) regardless of the subject matter of the questions.

Parents who object to disclosure of information concerning their child to a third party may do so in writing to the Building Principal.

Surveys Requesting Personal Information

School officials and staff members will not request, nor disclose, the identity of any student who completes any survey or evaluation
(created by any person or entity, including the school or district) containing one or more of the following items:

Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or the student's parent/guardian.

Mental or psychological problems of the student or the student's family.

Behavior or attitudes about sex.

lllegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior.

Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom students have close family relationships.

Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those with lawyers, physicians, and ministers.

Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or the student's parent/guardian.

Income other than that required by law to determine eligibility for participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance
under such program.

@ N oA WN

The student’s parent/guardian may: (1) inspect the survey or evaluation upon, and within a reasonable time of, their request, and/or (2)
refuse to allow their child to participate in the survey. The school will not penalize any student whose parent/guardian exercised this
option.

Instructional Material
A student's parent/guardian may inspect, upon their request, any instructional material used as part of their child's educational
curriculum within a reasonable time of their request.

The term “instructional material’ means instructional content that is provided to a student, regardless of its format, printed or
representational materials, audio-visual materials, and materials in electronic or digital formats (such as materials accessible through
the Internet). The term does not include academic tests or academic assessments.

Prohibition on Selling or Marketing Students’ Personal Information

No school official or staff member may market or sell personal information concerning students (or otherwise provide that information to

others for that purpose). The term personal information means individually identifiable information including: (1) a student or parent's
__irstand last name, (2) a home or other physical address (including street name and the name of the city or town), (3) a telephone




Page |53

number, (4) a Social Security identification number or (5) driver's license number or State identification-card.

Unless otherwise prohibited by law, the above paragraph does not apply: (1) if the student's parent/guardian have consented; or (2) to
the collection, disclosure or, use of personal information collected from students for the exclusive purpose of developing, evaluating or
providing educational products or services for, or to, students or educational institutions, such as the following:

el .

5.
6.

College or other postsecondary education recruitment, or military recruitment.

Book clubs, magazines, and programs providing access to low-cost literary products.

Curriculum and instructional materials used by elementary schools and secondary schools.

Tests and assessments to provide cognitive, evaluative, diagnostic, clinical, aptitude, or achievement information about students
(or to generate other statistically useful data for the purpose of securing such tests and assessments) and the subsequent analysis
and public release of the aggregate data from such tests and assessments.

The sale by students of products or services to raise funds for school-related or education-related activities.

Student recognition programs.

Under no circumstances may a school official or staff member provide a student's personal information to a business organization or
financial institution that issues credit or debit cards

A parent/guardian who desires to opt their child out of participation in activities provided herein or who desires a copy or access to a
survey or any other material described herein may contact the Building Principal.

The school does not expect to administer the following surveys that request personal student information.

A complete copy of the District's Student and Family Privacy Rights policy may be obtained from the Superintendent's office or
accessed on the District's website.

Student Records

A school student record is any writing or other recorded information concerning a student and by which a student may be identifie.
individually that is maintained by a school or at its direction or by a school employee, regardless of how or where the information is stored,
except for certain records kept in a staff member’s sole possession; records maintained by law enforcement officers working in the school;
video and other electronic recordings (including electronic recordings made on school busses) that are created in part for law
enforcement, security, or safety reasons or purposes, though such electronic recordings may become a student record if the content is
used for disciplinary or special education purposes regarding a particular student.

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the lllinois Student Records Act afford parents/guardians and students over
18 years of age (“eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's school records. They are:

(8

The right to inspect and copy the student's education records within 10 business days of the day the District receives a request for
access. The degree of access a student has to his or her records depends on the student's age. Students less than 18 years of age
have the right to inspect and copy only their permanent record. Students 18 years of age or older have access and copy rights to
both permanent and temporary records. A parent/guardian or student should submit to the building principal a written request that
identifies the record(s) he or she wishes to inspect. Within 10 business days, the building principal will decide for access and notify
the parent/guardian or student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. In certain circumstances, the District may
request an additional 5 business days in which to grant access. The District charges $.35 per page for copying but no one will be
denied their right to copies of their records for inability to pay this cost. These rights are denied to any person against whom an
order of protection has been entered concerning the student.

The right to have one or more scores received on college entrance examinations included on the student's academic transcript.
Parents/guardians or eligible students may have one or more scores on college entrance examinations included on the student's
academic transcript. The District will include scores on college entrance examinations upon the written request of the parent/guardian
or eligible student stating the name of each college entrance examination that is the subject of the request and the dates of the
scores that are to be included.




Page |54

3. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent/ quardian or eligible student believes are
inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper. A parent/guardian or eligible student may ask the District to amend a record that is believed to
be inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper. Requests should be sent to the building principal and should clearly identify the record the
parent/guardian or eligible student wants changed and the specific reason a change is being sought. If the District decides not to
amend the record, the District will notify the parent/guardian or eligible student of the decision and advise him or her of their right to
a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the
parent/guardian or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.

4. The right to permit disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent
that the FERPA or lllinois School Student Records Act authorizes disclosure without consent. Disclosure without consent is permitted
to school officials with legitimate educational or administrative interests. A school official is a person employed by the District as an
administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel);
a person serving on the School Board. A school official may also include a volunteer, contractor, or consultant who, while not
employed by the school, performs an institutional service or function for which the school would otherwise use its own employees
and who is under the direct control of the school with respect to the use and maintenance of personally identifiable information from
education records (such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, therapist, or educational technology vendor); or any
parent/guardian or student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another
school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an
education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility or contractual obligation with the district. Upon request, the
District discloses education records without consent to officials of another school district in which a student has enrolled or intends
to enroll, as well as to any person as specifically required by State or Federal law. Before information is released to these individuals,
the parents/guardians or eligible student will receive prior written notice of the nature and substance of the information, and an
opportunity to inspect, copy, and challenge such records. Academic grades and references to expulsions or out-of-school
suspensions cannot be challenged at the time a student's records are being forwarded to another school to which the student is
transferring. Disclosure is also permitted without consent to: any person for research, statistical reporting or planning, provided that
no student or parent/guardian can be identified; to another school district that overlaps attendance boundaries with the District, if the
District has entered into an intergovernmental agreement that allows for sharing of student records and information with the other
district, any person named in a court order; appropriate persons if the knowledge of such information is necessary to protect the
health or safety of the student or other persons; and juvenile authorities when necessary for the discharge of their official duties who
request information before adjudication of the student.

5. The right to a copy of any school student record proposed to be destroyed or deleted. The permanent record is maintained for at
least 60 years after the student transfers, graduates, or permanently withdraws. The temporary record is maintained for at least 5
years after the student transfers, graduates, or permanently withdraws. Temporary records that may be of assistance to a student
with a disability who graduates or permanently withdraws, may, after 5 years, be transferred to the parent/guardian or to the student,
if the student has succeeded to the rights of the parent/guardian. Student temporary records are reviewed every 4 years or upon a
student's change in attendance centers, whichever occurs first.

6. The right to prohibit the release of directory information. Throughout the school year, the District may release directory information
regarding students, limited to:

e Name

Address

Grade level

Birth date and place

Parent/guardian names, addresses, electronic mail addresses, and telephone numbers

Photographs, videos, or digital images used for informational or news-related purposes (whether by a media outlet or by

the school) of a student participating in school or school-sponsored activities, organizations, and athletics that have

appeared in school publications, such as yearbooks, newspapers, or sporting or fine arts programs

Academic awards, degrees, and honors

Information in relation to school-sponsored activities, organizations, and athletics

Major field of study

Period of attendance in school

7. Any parent/guardian or eligible student may prohibit the release of any or all of the above information by delivering a written
objection to the building principal within 30 days of the date of this notice.




Page |55

8. The right to request that military recruiters or institutions of higher learning not be granted access to your student's information
without your prior written consent. Federal law requires a secondary school to grant military recruiters and institutions of higher
learning, upon their request, access to secondary school students’ names, addresses, and telephone numbers, unless th
student's parent/guardian, or student who is 18 years of age or older, submits a written request that the information not be
released without the prior written consent of the parent/guardian or eligible student. If you wish to exercise this option, notify the
building principal.

9. The right contained in this statement: No person may condition the granting or withholding of any right, privilege or benefits or
make as a condition of employment, credit, or insurance the securing by any individual of any information from a student's
temporary record which such individual may obtain through the exercise of any right secured under State law.

10. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the District to comply with the
requirements of FERPA.

The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is:

U.S. Department of Education
Student Privacy Policy Office
400 Maryland Avenue, SW
Washington DC 20202-8520

Student Testing & Assessment Program
The District student assessment program provides information for determining individual student achievement and instructional needs,

curriculum and instruction effectiveness, and school performance measured against District student leaming objectives and statewide
norms.

The Superintendent or designee shall manage the student assessment program that, at a minimum:

e Administers to students all standardized assessments required by the lllinois State Board of Education (ISBE) and/or any
other appropriate assessment methods and instruments, including norm and criterion-referenced achievement tests,
aptitude tests, proficiency tests, and teacher-developed tests.

Informs students of the timelines and procedures applicable to their participation in every State assessment.
Provides each student's parents/guardians with the results or scores of each State assessment and an evaluation of the
student's progress See Board Policy 6:280, Grading and Promotion.

e Utilizes professional testing practices.

Overall student assessment data on tests required by State law will be aggregated by the District and reported, along with other
information, on the District's annual report card. All reliable assessments administered by the District and scored by entities outside of
the District must be (1) reported to ISBE on its form by the 30" day of each school year, and (2) made publicly available to
parents/guardians of students.

Student Use of Electronic Devices

The use of electronic devices and other technology at school is a privilege, not a right. Students are prohibited from using electronic
devices, except as provided herein. An electronic device includes, but is not limited to, the following: cell phone, smart phone, audio or
video recording device, personal digital assistant (PDA), iPod®, ipad®, laptop computer, tablet computer or another similar electronic

device. Pocket pagers and other paging devices are not allowed on school property at any time, except with the express permission of
the building principal.

Starting at 7:30, during instructional time, which includes class periods and passing periods, personal electronic devices must be kept
powered-off and placed in the hall locker unless: (a) permission is granted by an administrator, teacher or school staff member: (b) use
of the device is provided in a student's individualized education program (IEP) or 504 plans; or (c) it is needed in an emergency that
threatens the safety of students, staff, or other individuals.

Students are not allowed to use electronic devices during non-instructional time, which is defined as before and after school. Listening
to songs with inappropriate language on personal electronic devices is prohibited on school grounds.



Page |56

Electronic devices may never be used in any manner that disrupts the educational environment, violates student conduct rules or
violates the rights of others. This includes, but is not limited to, the following: (1) using the device to take photographs in locker rooms

F\’)r bathrooms; (2) cheating; and (3) creating, sending, sharing, viewing, receiving, or possessing an indecent visual depiction or non-
Jonsensual dissemination of private sexual images (i.e., sexting).

The school and school district are not responsible for the loss, theft or damage to any electronic device brought to school.

Students in violation of this procedure are subject to the following consequences:

1. First offense — The device will be confiscated by school personnel. A verbal warning will be assigned. The student will
receive the device back at the end of the day in the school office.

2 Second offense — The device will be confiscated. A detention will be assigned. The student's parent/guardian will be
notified and required to pick up the device in the school office.

3. Third offense - The device will be confiscated. A detention will be assigned. The student's parent/guardian will be notified
and required to pick up the device in the school office. Additionally, the student will be prohibited from bringing the device
to school for the next 10 school days. If the student is found in possession of the device during this 10-day period, the
student will be prohibited from bringing the device to school for the remainder of the school year. The student will also
face consequences for insubordination.

4. Fourth and subsequent offense — The device will be confiscated. The student will be assigned a detention and will be
prohibited from bringing the device to school for the remainder of the school year. The student's parent/guardian will be
notified and required to pick up the device in the school office. The student will also face consequences for
insubordination.

School officials may investigate or require a student to cooperate in an investigation if there is specific information about activity on the
student's account on a social networking website that violates a school disciplinary rule or policy. In the course of an investigation, the
student may be required to share the content that is reported in order to allow school officials to make a factual determination.

Students with Food Allergies

State law requires our school district to annually inform parents of students with life-threatening allergies or life-threatening chronic
ilinesses of the applicable provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and other applicable federal statutes, state
statutes, federal regulations and state rules.

If your student has a life-threatening allergy or life-threatening chronic iliness, please notify the building principal at (217)659-3713.

Federal law protects students from discrimination due to a disability that substantially limits a major life activity. If your student has a
qualifying disability, an individualized Section 504 Plan will be developed and implemented to provide the needed supports so that your
student can access his or her education as effectively as students without disabilities.

Not all students with life-threatening allergies and life-threatening chronic illnesses may be eligible under Section 504. Our school
district also may be able to appropriately meet a student's needs through other means.

Suicide & Depression Awareness & Prevention

Youth suicide impacts the safety of the school environment. It also affects the school community, diminishing the ability of surviving
students to learn and the school's ability to educate. Suicide and depression awareness and prevention are important goals of the
school district.

The school district maintains student and parent resources on suicide and depression awareness and prevention. Much of this
information, including a copy of school district's policy, is posted on the school district website. Information can also be obtained from
the school office. Contact information National Suicide Prevention Lifeline (988), Crisis Text Line text - (741741), Safe2Help I{linois -
(844-472-3345 - text 72332).

Targeted School Violence & Threat Assessment Education
(argeted School Violence Prevention Program




Page |57

Student safety is La Harpe CSD's top priority. To maximize safety, the District uses a threat assessment process to identify threats and
prevent targeted school violence. This process is part of the Target School Violence Prevention Program (Program). For more
information, see Board Policy 4:190, Targeted School Violence Prevention Program. The Program is part of the preparedness and
response phases of the School Emergency Operations and Crisis Response Plan, which in turn is part of La Harpe's Comprehensive
Safety and Security Plan.

La Harpe CSD wishes to create a climate that encourages sharing any information about a safety concern with a trusted adult who can
help. Sharing information about threats and safety concems is everyone’s responsibility: students, parents/guardians, staff, and
community members. The question-and-answer section below is designed to help students, parents/guardians, and staff understand
when school officials want individuals to share information about a safety concern.

What is a Threat?

A threat is a concerning communication or behavior that indicates that an individual poses a danger to the safety of school staff or
students through acts of violence or other behavior that could cause harm to self or others. It may be expressed/communicated orally,
visually, in writing, electronically, or in another way. Threats may be direct (“'m going to beat you up” or “I'm going to blow this place
up!”) or indirect (“Come and watch what | am going to do to her."). A threat can be vague (“'m going to hurt him.") or implied (“You
better watch out."). Any possession of a weapon or mention of one is a possible threat.

A threat is a threat regardless of whether it is observed by or communicated directly to the target of the threat or is observed by or
communicated to a third party; and regardless of whether the target of the threat is aware of the threat.

Sometimes students make threats that may seem funny or “just kidding,” but sometimes a threat is very serious and/or criminal. When
you are in doubt as to whether the statement is kidding or serious, the responsible thing to do is to tell the Superintendent, Principal,
teacher, or another responsible staff member.

What Is Targeted School Violence?

Targeted School Violence includes school shootings and other school-based attacks where the school was deliberately selected as the
location for the attack and was not simply a random site of opportunity. Individuals who have committed targeted violence did not “just"
snap,” but engaged in a process of thought and escalation of action over days, weeks, months, and even years. In the majority of
incidents of targeted violence, perpetrators did not directly threaten their targets, but they did communicate their intent and/or plans to
others before the violence. This indirect expression or third-party communication of intent to cause harm is often referred to as leakage.
Reporting leakage is key to preventing targeted school violence. If you see something, say something.

Who Is Required to Report Threats?

All school staff, volunteers, and contractors are required to report any expressed threats or behaviors that may represent a threat to the
community, school, or self to the Building Principal or Superintendent. Parents/guardians and students are also encouraged to report
any such threats to the Building Principal or Superintendent.

Reported threats are assessed by the school's Threat Assessment Team (TAT). Each TAT includes people with expertise in
counseling, instruction, school administration, and law enforcement. The goal of the threat assessment process is to take appropriate
preventive or corrective measures to maintain a safe and secure school environment, o protect and support potential victims, and to
provide assistance, as needed, to the individual being assessed.

The threat assessment process does not preclude anyone from acting immediately to address an imminent threat,

What Can Staff and Parents/Guardians Do?

The TAT will provide guidance to students and staff regarding recognizing threatening or unusual behavior that may represent a threat
to the community, school, or self. Staff and parents/guardians can reinforce this guidance by discussing with students what a threat is,
encouraging students not to make threats or “just kidding” statements in the first place, and reiterating that seeking help to prevent
someone from getting hurt or hurting another by reporting threats is appropriate.




Page |58

Targeted School Violence Prevention Program

~ Threats and acts of targeted school violence harm the District's environment and school community, diminishing students’ ability to
“yarn and a school's ability to educate. Providing students and staff with access to a safe and secure environment is an important goal
of the School and District. While it is not possible to completely eliminate threats, the School and District maintain a Targeted School
Violence Prevention Program and a Threat Assessment Team to reduce these risks to its environment.

Parents/guardians and students are encouraged to report any expressed threats or behaviors that may represent a threat to the
community, School, or self. Reports can be made to any school administrator, law enforcement authorities, or the Safe2Help lllinois
helpline (www.safe2helpil.com/).

Students and parents are urged to participate in behavioral threat assessment and intervention programs if the Behavioral Threat
Assessment Team believes that intervention is necessary to prevent a student from harming themselves or others. However, if for some
reason there is a reluctance to participate in the process by the threat maker(s) or parent/guardian(s), the threat assessment process will
continue in order to ensure a safe and caring learning environment for all.

For further information, please contact the Building Principal.

Teacher Qualifications
Parents/guardians may request information about the qualifications of their student's teachers and paraprofessionals, including:

o Whether the teacher has met State qualification and licensing criteria for the grade levels and subject areas in which the
teacher provides instruction;

e Whether the teacher is teaching under an emergency or other provisional status through which State qualification and
licensing criteria have been waived;

e Whether the teacher is teaching in a field of discipline of the teacher’s certification;
Whether any instructional aides or paraprofessionals provide services to your student and, if so, their qualifications.

i you would like to receive any of this information, please contact the school office.

Treats & Snacks

Due to health concerns and scheduling, treats and snacks for any occasion must be arranged in advance with the classroom teacher.
Al treats and snacks must be store bought and prepackaged in individual servings. No homemade treats or snacks are allowed at
school. Treats and snacks may not require refrigeration and must have a clearly printed list of ingredients on the packaging. We
strongly encourage you to select a treat or snack with nutritional value.

Truancy
Student attendance is critical to the learning process. Truancy is therefore a serious issue and will be dealt with in a serious manner by
the school and district.
Students who miss more than 1% but less than 5% of the prior 180 regular school days without valid cause (a recognized excuse) are
truant. Students who miss 5% or more of the prior 180 regular school days without valid cause are chronic truants. Students who are
chronic truants will be offered support services and resources aimed at correcting the truancy issue.
If chronic truancy persists after support services and other resources are made available, the school and district will take further action,
including:

o Referral to the truancy officer

e Reporting to officials under the Juvenile Court Act

e Referral to the State’s Attorney

e Appropriate school discipline

A student who misses 15 consecutive days of school without valid cause and who cannot be located or, after exhausting all available
support services, cannot be compelled to return to school is subject to expulsion from school.
A parent or guardian who knowingly and willfully permits a child to be truant is in violation of State law.



Page |59

Unsafe School Choice Option

The unsafe school choice option allows students to transfer to another District school or to a public charter school within the District.
The unsafe school choice option is available to: (1) All students attending a persistently dangerous school, as defined by State law an¢
identified by the lllinois State Board of Education; and (2) Any student who is a victim of a violent criminal offense that occurred on
school grounds during regular school hours or during a school-sponsored event.

Video & Audio Monitoring Systems

A video and/or audio monitoring system may be in use on school busses and a video monitoring system may be in use in public areas
of the school building. These systems have been put in place to protect students, staff, visitors and school property. If a discipline
problem is captured on audiotape or videotape, these recordings may be used as the basis for imposing student discipline. If criminal
actions are recorded, a copy of the tape may be provided to law enforcement personnel.

Visitors



Page |60

Al visitors, including parents and siblings, are required to enter through the front door of the building and proceed immediately to the
main office. Visitors should identify themselves and inform office personnel of their reason for being at school.

Jisitors must sign in, identifying their name, the date and time of arrival, and the classroom or location they are visiting. Approved visitors
must take a tag identifying themselves as a guest and place the tag on their outer clothing in a clearly visible location. Visitors are
required to proceed immediately to their location in a quiet manner. Al visitors must return to the main office and sign out before leaving
the school.

Any person wishing to confer with a staff member should contact that staff member to make an appointment. Conferences with
teachers are held, to the extent possible, outside school hours or during the teacher's conference/preparation period.

Visitors are expected to abide by all school rules during their time on school property. A visitor who fails to conduct himself or herself in
a manner that is appropriate will be asked to leave and may be subject to criminal penalties for trespassing and/or disruptive behavior.

No person on school property or at a school event shall perform any of the following acts:

1. Strike, injure, threaten, harass, or intimidate a staff member, board member, sports official or coach, or any other person.

2. Behave in an unsportsmanlike manner or use vulgar or obscene language.

3. Unless specifically permitted by State law, possess a weapon, any object that can reasonably be considered a weapon or looks

like a weapon, or any dangerous device.

Damage or threaten to damage another's property.

Damage or deface school property.

Violate any Winois law or municipal, local, or county ordinance.

Smoke or otherwise use tobacco products.

Distribute, consume, use, possess, or be impaired by or under the influence of an alcoholic beverage, cannabis, other lawful

product, or illegal drug.

9. Be present when the person’s alcoholic beverage, cannabis, other lawful product, or illegal drug consumption is detectible,
regardless of when and/or where the use occurred.

10. Use or possess medical cannabis, unless he or she has complied with lllinois’ Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Act
and District policies.

11. Impede, delay, disrupt, or otherwise interfere with any school activity or function (including using cellular phones in a disruptive
manner).

12. Enter upon any portion of school premises at any time for purposes other than those that are lawful and authorized by the board.

13. Operate a motor vehicle: (a) in a risky manner, (b) in excess of 20 miles per hour, or (c) in violation of an authorized district
employee's directive.

14. Engage in any risky behavior, including rollerblading, roller-skating, or skateboarding.

15. Violate other district policies or regulations, or a directive from an authorized security officer or district employee.

16. Engage in any conduct that interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the district or a school function.

®© N O

Volunteers

Individual teachers make this decision. Teachers who desire volunteers will notify parents. For school wide volunteer opportunities
please contact the principal. All school volunteers must complete the *Volunteer Information Form” and be approved by the building
principal prior to assisting at the school. Forms are available in the school office. Some teachers utilize parent volunteers in the
classroom. The individual teachers make this decision. Teachers who desire parent volunteers will notify parents.

Volunteers are required to check in and out at the main office and receive a visitor badge before going to their destination. Cross-
Reference: PRESS 6:250, Community Resource Persons and Volunteers






ASBESTOS ABATEMENT
(£)SPECTRUM MIOLD REMEDIATION
e LEAD REMEDIATION

DEMOLITION

Spectrum Environmental, an Alloy Group Company, has not included in our quote:

« A payment/performance bond is included in our proposal.

e The removal of any inaccessible materials.

e Removal or clean-up of hazardous wastes.

« The owner shall relocate all moveable objects in areas of work prior to our work. Spectrum
Environmental shall have exclusive use of the work area for the duration of the project.
The work area shall extend approximately six feet from all sides of the equipment.

e« Payment terms are Net 30.

« This quote is valid for thirty calendar days.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote on this project. If you have any questions, please feel free to
contact me at 219-228-0558.

Thank you,

Brian Hughes
Project Manager

Please sign and date for the acceptance of this proposal. Please initial and date by the scope of work
approved.

Print Name:

Sign Name:

Date:

ALLOY GROUP // IN

769 Madison Street Unit C

Crown Point, IN. 46307

(219) 776-1520 ALLOYGROUP.COM



ASBESTOS ABATEMENT

S p = CT IQ u M MOLD REMEDIATION

LEAD REMEDIATION
DEMOLITION

April 24, 2024

Ideal Environmental
2904 Tractor Ln
Bloomington, IL 61704

Regarding: La Harpe School District

Spectrum Environmental, an Alloy Group Company, is pleased to submit the following proposal per your
direction to remove the items listed in the scope of work.

Scope of work:

» Removal and disposal of vermiculite in the attic and HVAC tape within the old admin building.
e Removal and disposal of floor tile and wood underlayment in the old band room.
o Removal following NESHAPS rules and regulations.

All work shall be completed in accordance with all current Federal and State Regulations.
Spectrum Environmental has included or reflects the following in our quote:

*  Utilizing laborers with State Accreditation current medical surveillance and training.

»  Employing an onsite safety supervisor with necessary training for competent person status
as required by OSHA.

+  Two mobilizations are included.

«  Performing the project eight hours per shift

+  Ten 8-Hour shifts are required to complete the project.

*  Having exclusive use of the work area during the remediation process.

+  One mobilization per location to complete the project.

*  Power/water to be supplied by Spectrum if no other power is available.

+  Power panel to be hooked up to power source by the Owner, if required.

+  Power to be shut off within the space by the Owner, if required.

+  Dumpsters and hauling are provided by Spectrum Environmental, an Alloy Group
Company if required.

«  Occurrence Based Insurance.

+  Forman’s Documentation

We include all necessary supervision, union labor, material, equipment, and disposal to perform the
listed scope for the lump sum of Fifty-Two Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($52,250.00).

ALLOY GROUP // IN
769 Madison Street Unit C
Crown Point, IN. 46307

(219) 776-1520 ALLOYGROUP.COM



GREAT WESTERN
ABATEMENT, INC.

April 24, 2024

Kyle Cotton

Ideal Environmental Engineering, Inc.
kcotton@idealenvironmental.com
309-846-5514

B24039 — La Harpe CUSD #347 — Floor Tile and Insulation Removal

Great Western Abatement, Inc. proposes to furnish all labor, supervision, materials, and disposal of the floor tile and
mastic, duct wrap, and vermiculite attic insulation as shown on the pre-job walk on 4/17/24 at 404 W Main St, La Harpe,
IL in accordance with all local, state, and federal regulations.

Proposal Amount $47,255.00

Clarifications

1. All work to be performed in (2) phases and mobilizations. in the event all work can be performed in the same
mobilization, a $1200.00 credit will be applied.

2. GWA will control access to our work area upon mobilization. Other faculty/crafts/personnel will be unable to
obtain access until abatement is complete.

3. Any equipment or material in the work area shall be removed by others prior to mobilization.

Pricing for third party air monitoring services is not included in this proposal.

5. Full payment for contract services completed thirty (30) days after invoicing.

&

lofipgy Seunenipdocks 27298 Hagen Road
Business Developmient

johnny@greatwesternabatement.com Jerseyville, lllinois 62052
618-535-4813 greatwesternabatement.com







g - A P svala - B T w— o







	0413_001
	0414_001
	0415_001
	0416_001
	0417_001
	0418_001
	0419_001
	0420_001
	0420_032
	0420_058
	0421_001
	0421_031
	0421_057
	0421_082
	0421_110
	0421_131
	0422_001
	0422_020

